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CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: Committee Members we will open HB 1420. 

REPRESENTATIVE BRADENBURG: HB 1420 is a very important bill this session. It 

deals with animal agriculture. Our future is in our hands. We have lots of set 

• backs. I am in the middle of the ethanol every session. Minnesota has ethanol plants 

They have large cities. We have tried to have animal feeder lots here but the North 

Dakota laws are too tough. Township and counties split over zoning. You have to 

have at least two employees. The standards of having a feed lot is we need the North 

Dakota Health Department to set standards. This is an important bill. Every session 

there is an issue. As these ethanol plants get geared up and the bio diesel plants in 

two to three to five years. A lot of people have said to me why does South Dakota 

have all these ethanol plants? No answer. Why does Minnesota have all these 

ethanol plants? There are a couple of reasons. One is that have load centers 

• 
to deal with the ethanol to go to those cities that we don't have but yet another issue 

Is they animal feeding operations in South Dakota and Minnesota and they are 

probably years ahead of us in those issues. I think that is one of the issues that we 

need to start dealing with in NORTH DAKOTA. We have had people come and look at 
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• our state to come and put in animal feeding operations and they left. They have 

decided not to stay here is because of the laws we have in this state and also 

because of the perception by some of groups in the state. I think those issues will 

come out during the testimony today. Something that bothers me is the Sierra Club. 

Sierra Club recommends strategy to block CAFO'S. There is an article written by 

Lon Tonneson in the Dakota Farmer, January 2007. It deals with a five step 

strategy from the Sierra Club to keep concentrated animal feed operations from 

locating near you. This information is printed verbatim from the web site 

www.sierraclub.org/factoryfarms/resources/strategirs.asp. Please see the passed 

out article by Lon Tonneson. In the end the Sierra Club will sue them. 

CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: Representative Brandenburg, I am not going to have 

• you take questions because of the people we have here to testify. 

SENATOR ERBELE Dist 28: Good morning Mr Chairman and Committee Members. 

It is a privilege for me to be here before you today. I do stand in support of HB1420. 

I am a farmer and rancher myself and as I speak this morning my son should be 

running the feed wagon past our fence line feeding operation. I am 

in the Agriculture Committee and we are hearing the expansion of the biofuel bill which 

has many of the same players that you see here this morning. 

I see people from the dairy industry who are talking about colocating dairies by 

bio diesel and ethanol plants. The buzz word is renewable energy right 

now. It is a great industry in this state but we do have a market for ourby products. I 

just had a conversation with a person from the state mill and elevator. 

Their profits are always in the by-products. The product they produce is usually 

a wash. Large meat packing plants will tell you that the meat that they put on the 
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- show case is a break even for them. The state mill and elevator does well on by­

products. Because I think we have a good system here. Our standards are adequate. 

This bill is just to clarify that those environmental issues need to be dealt with at a state 

level. 

CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: We will take testimony for those in favor of 1420. 

ROGER JOHNSON: Good morning Chairman Johnson and Committee members. 

My name is Roger Johnson, Agriculture Commissioner for the State of North Dakota. 

I am here today in support of the intent of HB1420 which is to provide livestock 

producers with consistent science based environmental zoning regulations within the 

state (testimony attached) While I support the intent of the bill, I don't think it is going 

to deal with the issues that we really need to deal with. We are not the only state 

• dealing with these issues. Many states are facing the same problems. 

REPRESENTATIVE BRANDENBURG: I have heard about the Wisconsin model, 

don't completely understand it, but I think we need to have more discussion . 

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: When I get together with other commissioners 

In different states this is one of the first subjects we talk about. For a while it seemed 

like the popular thing to do was to developed friendly livestock counties. We had a 

number of states that had programs out there because there are a lot of folks out 

there that want livestock development. They ended up getting rid of livestock 

friendly counties because that was a place to go and protest. I don't know that 

that was very successful. I think that this is going to take a study group. 

Bring in lots of people and get their ideas. Decisions must be science based. I think 

that this is going to take a study bill. 
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REPRESENTATIVE BRANDENBURG: I really think that we should deal with this during 

this session. I don't disagree with your comments. 

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Maybe you can find the time to work this out this 

session. The way this bill is written, I don't think it will solve the problem. 

CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: Any others to offer support to this bill? 

ERIC AASMUNDSTAD: N.D. FARM BUREAU PRESIDENT. (testimony attached) I am 

here to offer support for HB 1420. 

REPRESENATIVE HEADLAND: You stated in your testimony that you believe 

that this bill will establish the rules but we also have an attorney generals opinion, 

and I am just going to ask you the question. After our Agriculture Commissioner 's 

testimony he put it in question. Do you believe that the counties and townships 

- have authority by statute to establish environmental rules in regards to animal feeding 

operations? 

• 

ERIC AASMUNDSTAD: I am not an attorney. I will attempt to answer the 

question based on the advice we have been given and things we have read. We 

currently believe and our information tells us that the counties have the ability 

and the obligation to zone. They are limited to zoning the scope and nature and 

location. I can disagree with Commissioner Johnson that there is ambiguity in those 

words when we look at and the attorney general's opinion. There is someone from the 

Attorney Generals office and he can answer these questions better than I can. 

They talk about using the size of the operation to determine its location. I think 

It is a pretty fair analogy that we would define scope to be the number of animals 

housed in a feeding operation. The nature would be the type. Whether it be hogs 

cattle or what have you. Location is a sighting issue. The way we have had this 
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• Interpreted for us in 1999 when those rules were changed. We are only talking about 

cattle feed lots. I do disagree with Commissioner John that this is a big step in getting 

the issue resolved. 

REPRESENTATIVE BRANDENBURG: You live up in Ramsey County and you 

are quite familiar with the feeding operation that was trying to be set up in Ramsey 

County. My question is what happened there. 

ERIC AASMUNDSTAD: I am not happy about what happened in Ramsey County. 

There is a lawsuit in Ramsey County on this subject. The zoning ordinance is 30 pages 

long. (that ordinance is not attached) Bonds are not available for cattle feeding lots. 

The operation in Ramsey County is about $9,000,000.00. Banks in North Dakota will not 

loan this kind of money when they don't know whether you'll be operating in that area in 

- five years. We believe the ordinance in Ramsey County as precluded the development 

of agriculture. 

REPRESENTATIVE MUELLER: Does the health department get involved in 

deciding rules and issues? Where these things are going to be? 

AASMUNDSTAD: There are people here from the health department that can answer 

these 

questions better than I can. The Health Department is involved in protecting 

the water in the state and also environmental issues. They are not going to allow the 

sighting of an operation of any type in a manner that's going to have an adverse effect 

on the waters of the state based on their scientific data. 

REPRESENTATIVE MUELLER: The Health Department establishes the rules. 

The townships cite the locations. How do you separate them? 
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- AASMUNDSTAD: It is hard to to get your arms around it. We still think the bill will get 

us a long way down the road of clearly letting the state set the rules when it comes to 

the environment. 

RANDY LAMM: Hillsburo, N.D. farmer. I am the Kelso township zoning officer. 

I am here in support of HB 1420. Environmental regulations are best left with the 

Department of Health. They have the expertise and man power and the financial 

resources to regulate environmental issues. I don't want those responsibilities 

placed on our township. Most of township's budget is used to maintain our road 

system and this leaves very little for other things. I strongly ask you to pass HB1420. 

GARRY HOFFMAN: Good morning, my name Is Garry Hoffman. I represent the 

ND Dairy Coalition. The Dairy Coalition is a group of dairy producers, dairy 

• processors, commodity groups and others related industries who want a strong dairy 

industry. I am here this morning to urge you to support HB 1420. I think it is 

• 

a good step forward in clarifying the duties of the Health Department verses 

the responsibilities of the townships and the counties. I think the two will work 

together. Local decisions are good but should be left to their expertise .. 

RODNEY BROWN: Ramsey County. I am the Stevens Township Treasurer 

in Ramsey County. I think it is best for the state to regulate. The township does 

not have the finances to monitor environmental regulations. I support HB1420. 

OLE JOHNSON: My name is Ole Johnson. I am a dairy producer from the Center 

ND area. I moved here a few years ago from Washington State. We have a large 

operation out there and it's getting bigger. I am for HB 1420 because I really believe 

the local community has supported us and wants us there. I don't know if the locals 
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• can handle all of the scientific areas. I think it should be left to the Health Department. 

Please support HB 1420. We had lots of law suits in Washington. We have to protect 

the environment. We want to expand with another 100 head of cattle. I was able to 

call the Health Dept from Washington to find out what it would take to get a permit to 

operate a dairy here. It has to be a simple system. 

JOHN PEYERL: My name is John Peyerl. I live in Ramsey County would strongly 

urge you to give this bill a do pass. (testimony attached) 

DARYL LIES: FARMER/LIVESTOCK PRODUCER FROM DOUGLAS, N.D. 

(testimony attached) I have a fear of extinction ifwe don't do something like HB 1420 

can do. 

JAMES GIBBIONS: My name is Jim Gibbons. I am from Cando, ND I am the mayor of 

• Cando. I sit on the Towner county economic development board and I am also a hog 

producer. My wife and I own a 6,000 head farrowing barn. The last time I saw 

Representative Johnson was when he and I showered in and looked at the inside of the 

barn. I am not going anywhere. I have spent all of my life here. We need rules and 

regulations that we can understand and follow. With that I would urge you to 

support HB 1420. 

DAVID PORSBORG: I am here representing the ND Pork Council. The ND Pork Council 

supports the intent of HB 1420 with the understanding that it does not affect local 

control. 

WES KLEIN: My name is Wes Klein. I am from Mercer County which is one of the 

largest coal and industry producing counties in the state. This bill may be able to 

bring animal agriculture into the 21 st century. We need clear definitions in order to 

grow animal agriculture in this state. I run a non-profit organization. My 
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• Wife is the CEO. We have nine children. All of my children want to farm. 

Ethanol and agriculture go hand and hand. If you are going to have a viable 

ethanol industry in this state you have you have to have a viable agriculture 

industry. They go hand and hand. I would recommend a DO PASS ON 

HB 1420. 

MIKE BELTZ: I am from Hillsboro, ND and am here today as the vice chairman of the 

ND AG. COALITION. On behalf of the Ag Coalition I urge you to support HB1420. 

(testimony attached) 

.JERRY JEFFERS: My name is Jerry Jeffers. I am from Rhame, ND. 

I am on the Bowman County Zoning board and have been for a number of years. 

I am from that area where a lot of the oil impact money comes from. We also 

• have one of the first concentrated hog operations to go in the state as well 

• 

as large cattle feed lots and some smaller ones. (testimony attached) Please support 

HB1420. 

WADE MOSER: ND STOCKMANS ASSOCIAITON. For the last five years we have 

worked with the ND Health Department. On sighting issues. Once the counties or 

townships give approval on set backs every thing goes to the health department. 

I think they have done a very professional job. We have not always agreed with 

them but a lot of times when they bring science forward you can't argue with them. 

I don't think we need to duplicate services. We can work hand and hand. We just 

need more clarification. 

CRAIG JAROLIMEK: I am a pork producer from Forest River, ND. I have been involved 

in the pork industry all of my life as well as my family. This is all about clarity as many 

have said. We support HB1420. 
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- CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: Thank you Craig. With that if there is someone that 

wanted to testify on this bill that did have written testimony please leave it off 

with the clerk for the record. The Committee will take a ten minute break and 

then hear the opposition. We do have to be out of this room, by ten to twelve because 

there is another group that will be using this room. 

CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: We will reopen the hearing and the Opposition will now be 

heard. 

KEN TEUBNER: For the record my name is Ken Teubner. I am a Towner County 

Commissioner and the current President of the North Dakota Association of Counties. 

(testimony attached) Please give HB1420 a do not pass recommendation, and let local 

• government work to encourage development in a thoughtful and reasonable manner. 

• 

As a county commissioner, when elected we have to represent all the citizens in the 

county. 

REPRESENTATIVE HEADLAND: Do you think that you currently have the authority to 

establish environmental regulations and rules? 

TUEBNER: I am not on our zoning board in our county but I would suggest that the 

health would still do the permitting in that part of the ordinance that needs to be done. 

REPRESENTATIAVE HEADLAND: The way I am reading this bill is that this bill 

Is trying to clarify that. I don't we where it is taking any authority as far a sighting 

or any thing else from county officials or township officials. 

TUEBNER: The biggest concern is that the door is cracked a little and pretty soon the 

door will be wide open and then the county will loose there opportunities. 

REPRESENTATIVE BRANDENBURG: We have people in our county wanting to have 
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• feed lots. They need leadership. I have county commissioners as well as township 

supervisors that are looking for direction and leadership in dealing with animal feeding 

operations because they want them and they want to make sure they are put 

in place right. My question to you is that do you feel that all the county 

commissioners and township supervisors completely understand what the health 

department and the location scope in nature in dealing with what this bill would do? 

TUEBNER: I am not sure. The state health department would have input as to 

lagoons, etc. 

REPRESENTATIVE FROELICH: Do you know how many townships and counties 

have set up zoning regulations and all the other things that go along with this. To work 

with livestock feeding deals, how many townships and counties have already done 

- this. 

TUEBNER: I am not sure. I think 60% of the townships in our county are zoned. In 

North Dakota, I would guess about half. I have not seen the number. We have two 

feeder lots in our county, there were no rules at that time. All people are not happy 

with the sighting. Every time I want to do something on my farm, I have to bow down 

to federal regulators. We are getting to have too many regulations. 

REPRESENTATIVE VIG: Can you just describe the relationship with the Health 

Department? How cordial they are to work with? 

TUEBNER: Personally I have not had a lot connection with the Health Department and 

I have never have had to work with them on any issues. 

REPRESENTATIVE FROELICH: . You say it is 
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- tiresome to get bogged down with regulations. . It is not perfect. There is no question 

about it. Now you follow the health department regulations. Now you don't have to 

worry about it. 

LADD ERICKSON: MCLEAN COUNTY STATES ATTORNEY. I have worked on this 

feedlot Issue extensively in the last few years. I maybe can answer some of the 

questions that were asked of the other speakers. I happen to stand here endorsing a 

lot of comments made by the supporters. I think Commissioner Johnson had some 

pretty sage advice in a lot of areas. We are in the middle of the ethanol expansion and 

we are having feed lot companies scoping our county. We have county officials on a 

feedlot committee to encourage feed lot development in our county and I have been 

asked to be on that. I am kind of an ex-official member in designing the large feed lot 

• that is going to be brought in conjunction with our ethanol plant that is supported by 

Blue Flint and Great River energy and it is something that our county officials are 

trying to work with the industry on. In anticipation of the feed lot business coming in 

with bio diesel's and stuff like that we did do some changes in our ordinance. I want to 

make sure there is some clarification on what we are talking about. I looked what 

other counties are doing. I didn't even know townships were doing stuff like this. 

don't think there are many that do. I am not aware where counties have set up separate 

environmental standards. Or have set separate health issues separate from the health 

department. You will see in Mclain County ordinances and I will give a picture back 

home. Our ordinance has a web sight. They can get the ordinance on line. It is 

designed to be a one stop shopping ordinance. You don't have to go to the health 

department administrative code. You don't have to go to the federal CFR'S. You don't 
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- have to do any of those things. If you just down load our ordinance and you start from 

the beginning. 

There is a misconception about all that stuff. The two areas that we think have to 

be addressed. When we did this feed lot ordinance update it was done 

with the industry and with the architects that are designing the feed lots that are 

going to be coming in McClain County. They had a lot of input how we do this. There 

are two areas that are deficient. One of them is state laws do not have set backs 

from intermittent streams. We put a 300 foot set back in from intermittent streams 

with the variance ability. 

Really as set back is a restriction. Clarification is important. We have a half mile set 

back for hog operations if there is a drainage that goes right by the hog operation. 

- We have to get back 300 feet so we can put a burm in there if the leak starts. 

The biggest liability for local government on feed lots is the cost associated with their 

closure. The property eventually ends back on the county because it gets forfeited for 

taxes etc. It gets shut down. It's a huge problem in this whole industry. I took council 

from a study from the farm bureau in Penn. It cost about one hundred thousand to 

close them down. It was tax payer money. It is a big problem. So what 

we did in our ordinance is we put in for some financial assurance 

through a letter of credit from the bank. The average feed lot lasts about ten years. 

Then the costs are stuck on local government. So what we did is look through the 

merits and demerits of the analysis that other states have done. We put in 

requirements that if you come in, you post a letter of credit, you get a surety bond. 

The groups that sell those surety bonds include the Farm Bureau, Farmers Union of 

ND, 
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• and Ag related insurance companies. They can develop this industry here or we 

can get a letter credit from an insurance company. The bottom line is we wanted 

to make sure that these people come in and that we are good neighbors. It makes 

good sense to use what hard lessons have been learned in other places to incorporate 

that. I am concerned about the language in these bills, not necessarily what the 

committee has in mind We can take other measures if there is an antiagriculture 

county. I can't imagine that. They need us so we need to work in partnership. The 

biggest problem under the current law in my opinion, is this reality, these are zoned 

agriculture. In zoned agriculture area the counties do not have the same sight approval 

ability as you do with a sub division is coming in residential. You can 

change the zoning. Everything is zoned agriculture. There is a economic problem 

• with that because for 30 acres you are paying about 100 bucks a year in property taxes 

But you are the most extensive user of the roads. Your neighbors property may have 

been devalued. The profits are going out of state. We have a serious issue with these 

being zoned agriculture. The sight approval ability of a local government is severely 

diminished. 

So how to make up for that in the current law is the title eleven statute. A statue to 

create zoning regulations for feed lots that are still considered agriculture. 

Then, what the counties do is enact some sight control type measures. I don't see 

this bill clarifying the issues. You have counties that are pro-feedlot development that 

are trying to work through this and not become a red herring. 

I think the committee would do well to take a long view of this to keep them coming. 
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- I think you should look at this from the long term. . Do a study. I ask that you re­

consider the language more broadly then you are thinking. It does not do what you 

want it to. 

CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: This bill will likely go to sub committee and maybe we could 

use you as a resource . 

. REPRESENTATIVE BRANDENBURG: Don't you think that the health department has 

the knowledge and sound science to give guidance to help the townships, with 

sightings and the like. 

L. ERICKSON: In its lowest common denominator this debate is not about the 

environment or the economy. It is about property rights. 

REPRESENTATIVE HEADLAND: Would it be possible for you to provide us with 

• written testimony as to how we address cleaning up the bill 

• 

L. ERICKSON: I would be very happy to work with the committee. I need an example 

of an environmental regulation. Water control regulation, air control regulation, that a 

county has enacted. I have not heard of one. I will be happy to work with you. 

REPRESENTATIVE MUELLER: If there were others then what the state health 

department deals with, and you gave some examples, I guess 

counties should they choose to have the where with all to enforce that regulation 

L. ERICKSON: Some of the supporters of the bill are valid. Counties and certainly 

townships. 

They are not going to be getting into this stuff. Who would do it? 

KEN YANTES: My name is Ken Yantes. I am the Executive Secretary of the North 

Dakota Township Officers. (testimony attached) 
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• JOE LAWSON, Member of the planning committee from Ramsey County: We put 

together a committee to write regulations to protect the waters of Devils Lake and the 

land of Ramsey County and the health and welfare of Ramsey County. Our intentions 

were never to stop feeder lots. We have worked with the state health department but we 

also are protecting our population. The commission that I worked on felt that 

agriculture is essential to Ramsey County. What we wanted to do is allow agriculture 

to come into Ramsey County, that we would trust, that they would do what they said 

they were going to do. But we wanted to as a commission, we wanted to verify what the 

people and the developers were saying. Along the way, we worked hand in hand with 

the Health Dept. We used the state model as the back bone of our ordinance. We even 

developed a position as an animal director feeding operations that works hand in hand 

• with the state health department. Along every avenue we worked with the state health 

department and professionals from NDSU that were telling us what we could do. 

Our intent was never to outlaw feeding operations. I am opposed to HB1420. 

REP HEADLAND: We have an article in front of us that says that you say that stronger 

enforcement is needed than what the state health dept provides. How many instances 

have there been where the state health dept hasn't done their job? 

LAWSON: What they do not do is that they do not soil sample around the lagoon that's 

holding over 15M gallons of waste. They do not do soil samples out into the fields 

where is waste is being applied on a yearly basis. They do not have public participation 

on every permit for an application that comes into Ramsey County. Our ordinance 

requires participation of the public. 

REP HEADLAND: What does public participation have to do with environmental 

science that the health dept provides? I don't understand the fit. 
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~ • LAWSON: The public participation is every citizen's right. 

We had a committee of nine members. We put two people on a committee 

that were against , two people in favor , one person who was a developer, and a neutral 

party. What we decided to do is we want an ordinance that would be broken into six 

areas, set backs, environmental issues, management plans, enforcement issues and 

Issues like financial assurances. Each person worked on an area and reported. 

REPRESENTATIVE BRANDBURG: What you are doing in Ramsey County 

affects the whole state. I want a place at that table too so that is why we are here 

today. To talk about this so we can have a balance across the state. This is not just 

about Ramsey County. This is about the State of North Dakota. I hope you realize 

that. 

• LAWSON: Ok, I agree with you and what is being said by Ag Commissioner, I agree 

with what was said by the president of the farm bureau and I agree with you. This 

issue is about what level of government is the most effective and the most efficient. 

We have the interest of the people in DIST. 15 at heart. We are in the best position 

to make those kinds of judgments. We will work hand and hand with the state which 

our ordinance does. 

REPRESENTATIVE HEADLAND: Would it be possible in your mind that a group 

such as yours, a zoning commission, could possibly make a decision based solely 

on emotion without any environmental standards if they chose to by giving you 

more regulatory authority over environmental issues then the state currently 

provides? 

LAWSON: No. 
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• RICHARD SCHLOSSER: I am here representing the members of North Dakota Farmers 

Union. I am here to testify in opposition of HB 1420. (testimony attached) 

REPRESENTATIVE FROELICH: Do you think if we had different ordinances for hogs 

and for beef it would satisfy some of the needs that we are talking about here today? 

SCHLOSSER: We don't get into those issues. 

REPRESENTATIVE BRANDENBURG: Do you think the townships are able financially 

to take care of the issues of health and the environmental issues that the health dept. 

now takes care of? Do you think they are ready for that? 

SCHLOSSER: We need to give them the opportunity. The right doesn't necessarily 

mean they are obligated. 

TODD LEAK: I am a farmer from central part of Grand Forks County. 

• I have been involved with live stock all my life. I am president of the Grand Forks 

Farmers Union and a member of Dakota Resource Council. I live agriculture 

and I am for Agriculture. Do Not Pass HB 1420. 

CHAIRMAN JOHNSON: WE WILL CLOSE THE HEARING ON HB 142 

• 
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Chairman Headland: This is just an informational meeting for the sub committee's purposes. 

We'd ask that you don't comment unless you're asked to comment. We are going to start off 

with the health department and a presentation from Mr. Glatt. First of all, maybe I should ask if 

• there are any comments from the other sub committee members. 

Rep Onstad: There are a couple of things that I hope will be addressed. One, it can be 

established from the opponents what is currently wrong with what we have in place now. Two 

is if HB1420 is to improve that situation, someone should tell me what it's doing to improve it. 

guess that in those two situations I see some unintended consequences that are going to 

develop is HB1420 is passed. 

Rep Brandenburg: When I introduced this bill I said this is a moving target and everyone in 

this room is going to have an impact as to how we are going to move forward with animal 

agriculture. I would ask everyone to keep an open mind and listen to the information that is 

presented. My goal is to come out with something that is good for animal agriculture and the 

state. We have no intention of doing something that is not good for animal agriculture. 

- Dave Glatt, Chief of the Environment Section of the ND Ag Dept: I would like to go over 

the history as well as some of the zoning regulations from 1999 to the present and talk about 
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some of the legislation that was passed to address this issue that seems to come up every 

couple of years. I would like to spend a couple of minutes to talk about the Health Department 

regulations. And if so inclined, to entertain some language, or proposed language that we 

could use to start the discussion. I did give you a packet of information and the first one starts 

with the model zoning ordinance. What I would address you to as to the history the first items 

on page 2 and 3 and it talks about the legal authority as it relates to what has been given by 

the legislature. The law does not allow political sub division to enact any regulations or 

restrictions that prohibit or prevent the use of land or buildings for farming or ranching or any of 

the normal instances of farming or ranching. The legislature defined farming and ranching to 

include livestock feeding. It gave counties and townships the authority to regulate the nature 

• and scope of concentrated feeding operations permissible within their jurisdictions and to set 

reasonable standards based on the size of the operation to govern its location. The legislation 

also forbids townships and counties from banning concentrated feeding operations from their 

jurisdictions and from prohibiting the reasonable diversification or expansion of farming or 

ranching operations. The amendments give counties and townships authority to regulate the 

size, nature and location of feedlots subject to the limitations in the law. Also attached is the 

law itself and the appendix. The Health Department sees local zoning as an integral part of 

overall protection of the environment. It is necessary and has to be done and has to be done 

correctly. We support local zoning because how the land is used is best left to the local level. 

The Legislature tried to adjust that in 199 and soon after the Governor (Schafer) convened a 

task force to see how do we implement this overall zoning authority when looking at nature, 

scope and location and how does it tie into the environmental regulations. The group included 

-industry, townships and counties, and some environmental groups. Thus came out the model 

zoning ordinance. It lays out a framework where we believe this can work. In 2005 we 
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• addressed the issue again more in line as it related to odors. That was in Century Code 23 25-

11. This is in the next handout. It deals with how do we deal with setbacks. Counties were 

not on the same page as related to setbacks. If the counties did not have mandatory setbacks 

taken care of this bill would do it. That lays it out in law regarding setbacks. The next 

handouts give a quick overview of the regulations of the Health Department. The latest 

regulations that were amended in 2003 pursuant to Federal Requirements of the Clean Water 

Act take a look at size of different operations. It has a section on permits as they relate to 

animal feeding operations. These handouts tell pretty well where we are with rules and 

regulations and the permitting process. Overall, zoning is a very important part to insure 

compatible use. We fully support local zoning. 

• 
Rep Brandenburg: I am wondering if you're going to go on and explain nature, scope and 

location. You said we might be able to define the better. 

Glatt: I will have someone from the Attorney General's office that represents the Health 

Department answer that question. I have handed out an amendment to be considered. 

(attached) 

Rep Brandenburg: When you are looking at sighting, do you work with the local people in the 

townships? 

Glatt: We do let the county and township know what is being proposed. 

Chairman Headland: Can you give us more details on the explanation of scope? 

Glatt: Scope means how large it is and how many animals are going to be allowed at that 

facility. 

Rep Onstad: What regulations are we giving the counties and townships? 

• Lyle Witham, Office of the Attorney General: The Health Department regulations which are 

the regulations adopted under Chapter 6128. Those regulations have to comply with the clean 
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• water act requirements that are dictated by the EPA. Then there is the authority given under 

1133-02 and 5803-11 to townships and counties. The statutory authority that is given to 

townships and counties is in that language. 

• 

Rep Onstad: Right now statute gives three items to townships and counties. That is nature, 

scope and location. So in your amendments you are just defining them. 

Witham: That's correct. 

Rep Brandenburg: If I want to set up a feeding operation, does the Health Department run 

the show or does the township and the counties run the show? 

Witham: It is a combined effort. 

Wade Moser, ND Stockman's Association: I do like the idea of putting these definitions in 

and I think working with this over the last several sessions, it seems like it is always clear. But 

if we don't define it then someone else can interpret something in between. Our support of the 

bill was for clarification. Adding this language definitely would do that. I would like to back up 

the Health Department. It is a great process, we have been working with it for over five years. 

Rep Johnson: Is there authority for local sub divisions to do bonding? 

Witham: My guess is it's based on state law and political subdivisions have only the authority 

that the legislature has given them. 

Robert Schlosser: Do the rules of the Health Department preclude the fact that you need to 

go out and do monitoring over certain structures? 

Glatt: No, the monitoring comes about in several ways. One of them is public comment. If 

there is a significant amount of interest or concern regarding a certain location we will monitor. 

Local knowledge is helpful. Monitoring is not common, but we do require it from time to time. 
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- Chairman Headland: We have some things to digest here and I would suggest that we meet 

tomorrow afternoon after session after you have had time to look at it and see if there is 

anything we can do to help or add. 

Chairman Headland closed the committee meeting . 

• 

• 
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Chairman Johnson opened the discussion on HB1420. 

Rep Headland: The sub committee met and this is what we came up with. The Amendment 

• defines the nature, scope and location. (amendment attached) 

Rep Onstad: If you have the old bill in front of you, it removes the sections on page 2 that do 

not give the county any duties. And it removes the same part for the townships. The Health 

Dept says that language is not needed because there are statutes in place that identifies that. 

The Legislative Council recommended that we not define it, and then it becomes an ordinary 

term. 

For all intents and purposes it does not change the counties and townships duties. They can 

still set their nature. 

Chairman Johnson: Are these all the amendments? 

Rep Headland: There is one more amendment. This was not an amendment that was 

decided in the sub committee. We did talk about a study. Part of the committee didn't want a 

study. I didn't want to put it into the original amendment, but I have it here to offer for this 
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committee. I wanted "may" in there instead of "shall". (The intern said "shall" is considered the 

new language and shall will be used instead of may.) 

Rep Boe: Has there been some discussion of this study being done by the Ag Dept so that 

we don't need a fiscal note on it? I guess we don't need a fiscal note if the Council does it 

either. 

Chairman Johnson: I would think that if the Legislative Council takes the study, the Ag Dept 

and the Health Dept and all interested parties would be part of the solution. 

Rep Onstad: One of the things that was brought up in the subcommittee is impact on the 

infrastructure that is brought on the township or county if a large operation comes. It's not that 

clear whether that can be bonded. There is an impact on roads, etc. It wasn't clear how that 

- can be addressed. The two things to be discussed are the impact on the infrastructure and 

whether or not a township or county can ask for bonding. 

Chairman Johnson: Don't you think that it would be brought out in the study? Do you think it 

needs to be addressed separately? 

Rep Brandenburg: I really think this study should be done in its own bill - separately. I am 

not going to support this bill. I think 1420 should be a clean bill and a resolution study should 

be called for. 

Rep Onstad: I appreciate the amendment coming forward and I'm going to support it. The bill 

is one thing, but the study on there is secondary just to discuss the zoning. It does not make 

the bill dirty. It was quite evident in the discussion that this thing has to be looked at. It's an 

issue all across the state. There were a lot of things that were not answered during the 

discussion. 



Page3 
House Agriculture Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. HB 1420 
Hearing Date: 2-8-07 

Chairman Johnson: Which one? We have two of them before us. I would like to deal with 

the first amendment. It changes the bill. Then we'll deal with the study resolution. 

Rep Mueller: I would like clarification. This isn't the format. Where did these come from? 

Rep Headland: They came from the Health Department and the AG's office. 

Rep Mueller: My question is can we just adopt that. or do we need to take it to the Council? 

Rep Kingsbury: How do the townships and counties feel about it? 

Rep Headland: They were there and had the opportunity to voice their opinions. 

Rep Headland: I would like to leave this as a clean bill and then have a study resolution 

defining all the issues that we want to study. 

Chairman Johnson: We aren't talking about the study resolution amendment right now. We 

• are discussing the first amendment. Do I have a motion on 1420 with the first amendment 

that was introduced? 

• 

Rep Brandenburg moved a Do Pass on the Amendment 

Rep Onstad seconded the motion 

Motion Passed on a Voice Vote 

Rep Onstad: I want to further amend the amendment. On line 2 after townships, "an act to 

provide a legislative study" and then continue. 

Rep Headland: We don't want to limit it to townships and counties. We want to study the 

whole ramifications of zoning. 

Rep Brandenburg: If we adopt this amendment on zoning, all our work on 1420 is gone . 
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Chairman Johnson: Why don't we go with 1420 as it is and take the time to write up a study 

resolution correctly? The bill has to go out tomorrow. The resolution has a week. 

Rep Brandenburg moved a Do Pass on Amended HB 1420 

Rep Onstad seconded the motion 

(Yes) 10 (No) 2 (Absent) 1 

Carrier: Rep Headland 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1420: Agriculture Committee (Rep. D. Johnson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(10 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1420 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact section 11-33-02.1, a new section to chapter 11-33, section 58-03-11.1, and a 
new section to chapter 58-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulations 
by a board of county commissioners and by a board of township supervisors; and to 
amend and reenact section 11-33-02, subdivision c of subsection 2 of section 
23-25-11, and section 58-03-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the 
designation of districts by a board of county commissioners and to the establishment of 
districts by a board of township supervisors. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-33-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-33-02. Board of county commissioners to designate districts : 
Uniformity. 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM 

4' For any or all of the purposes designated in section 11-33-01, the board of 
county commissioners may divide by resolution all or any parts of the 
county, subject to section 11-33-20, into districts of such number, shape, 
and area as may be determined necessary, and likewise may enact 
suitable regulations to carry out the purposes of this chapter. These 
regulations must be uniform in each district, but the regulations in one 
district may differ from those in other districts. A re!J1:1lalieA er res!rielieA 
FRay net r:,Fehibit er ,=,re•,rent tl:le ttse of laAd er buildings fer fermiAg er 
ranehing er any ef the nerFRal inoiSento e# hlrming er ranehing. Fer 
purpooee of tRie eee1ien, "hlrFAing er ranehing" R1eene eultir.1eting lane fer 
preauetien ef agriet1ltblFal ereps er li,•es4:eelt, or raising, feeSing, er 
J3F8dUOiRg IIYOGteol(, J30l:lltF)1, ff'lill(, er fFUit. Tho tOFRCl does net iRelude 
preduoing tiR-lBer er forest ~red1:1ets 1 nor deeo the terFfl inolueje a eentraet 
wRere8y e. ,=treeeoser er eiistri~1:1ter ef farm J3roei1:1ets er s1:1ppliee 13rovidoe 
graiA, RaF\.'ooting, or eU,or faFPR seFYiees. 

~ ,0. board of oounty oofllmioeieneFe FRay Feg1:1laie tt:te Rature ana soepe ef 
eenoontFa-tod 1ee8ing eperaiieAs J:l8Fffliosil31e iA tf:te ee1:1R1'/; t:le•,¥01,«or, if a 
FOf:11:JlatioA we1:1lei iFApese a e1:18etantial ooenemie Bureten en a eeneentratod 
feeeting epor-ation in OMiotenoe Before the offooti¥e elate of the reg\:llatieA, 
IAe eearel ef ee1mly eefflfflissieAars shall eleslars IAal !he ragulatieA is 
iReffee1ive witl=I respeet ts any eeneentFatea fee&ing eperaUen in ouiotenee 
eofore !Ao offeolia.•o elate ef !Re reg1:1latieR. 

& A reg1:1latien may not preol1:1Se tRe deYelopmeAt of a eoneentratoEi fooeiing 
oporaAioA in tAe ee1:1Aty. /\ rog1:1latioA aSdressing tf:10 ele•telepment of a 
eenoontr=ateei feeding operation in the 001:1nty May sot roasenaBle 
stanetards, Bases on tho eii!O ef tho operatieA, to go1w1ern its looation. 

4. For J3~Fposes et tAis aeetieA, "eeAeeAtr-atea feeeiiAg operation" means aAy 
li¥estoolt feeeting, Randling, er t:ieldiAg eperatieA, er fees yare, where 
aAifflals are eeAeeRtratee iA aA area that is Aet Aerman,, 1:1seel 1er ~asturc 
er 1er ~rewiA~ ere~s aAet iR •NRieh aRifflal wastes may aeeuFfltJlate, er in aA 
area wRere the Sf30ee f:'OF aAifflal 1:JAit is less thaA six h1:JRelreel square 1eet 
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6, 

[88.74 S~UaFe FROtOFS]. Tho tOFFR Soos not iAolude ROFFRal wintering 
operations fer e~le. For purposes of tl=lio seotion, "li•,«ootool(" ineludoe 
Beef oaHlo, efaif)• oattle, sReep, swine, peultr;, Rorsee, ane h.1r animals 
Faioea fer their pelts. 

A Boaret of 001::1n~• eoFRFRissieneFS R=iay not prohibit, U~rough reg1:1lation, the 
reasenaBle efr,1eFSifieeUen er eMpansien of a farFAing er ranehing eperaUen. 

This ehai:,tor Boes net ineluBe any pe\\•er relating to the est&eliohment, 
repair, ane maintenenee of higRwayo or roaas. 

SECTION 2. Section 11-33-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

11-33-02.1. Farming and ranching regulations - Requirements -
Limitations - Definitions . 

(2) DESK. (3) COMM 

.L For purposes of this section: 

a. "Concentrated feeding operation" means any livestock feeding, 
handling. or holding operation. or feed yard. where animals are 
concentrated in an area that is not normally used for pasture or for 
growing crops and in which animal wastes may accumulate. The 
term does not include normal wintering operations for cattle. 

b. "Farming or ranching" means cultivating land for the production of 
agricultural crops or livestock. or raising. feeding. or producing 
livestock. poultry. milk. or fruit. The term does not include: 

ill The production of limber or forest products: or 

{gl The provision of grain. harvesting. or other farm services by a 
processor or distributor of farm products or supplies in 
accordance with the terms of a contract. 

c. "Livestock" includes beef cattle. dairy cattle. sheep. swine. poultry. 
horses. bison. elk. fur animals raised for their pelts. and any other 
animals that are raised. fed. or produced as a part of farming or 
ranching activities. 

d. "Location" means the setback distance between a structure. fence. or 
other boundary enclosing a concentrated feeding operation. including 
its animal waste collection system. and the nearest occupied 
residence, the nearest buildings used for nonfarm or nonranch 
purposes. or the nearest land zoned for residential. recreational. or 
commercial purposes. The term does not include the setback 
distance for the application of manure or for the application of other 
recycled agricultural material under a nutrient management plan 
approved by the department of health. 

2. For purposes of this section. animal units are determined as follows: 

a. One mature dairy cow. whether milking or dry. equals 1.33 animal 
units: 

b. One dairy cow. heifer. or bull. other than an animal described in 
paragraph 1 equals 1.0 animal unit: 
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(2) DESK, (3) COMM 

c. One weaned beef animal, whether a calf, heifer, steer, or bull, equals 
o. 75 animal unit; 

d. One cow-calf pair equals 1.0 animal unit; 

e. One swine weighing fifty-five pounds (24.948 kilograms] or more 
equals 0.4 animal unit; 

t. One swine weighing less than fifty-five pounds (24.948 kilograms] 
equals 0.1 animal unit; 

~ One horse equals 2.0 animal units: 

h. One sheep or lamb equals 0.1 animal unit; 

L. One turkey equals 0.0182 animal unit: 

1 One chicken, other than a laying hen, equals 0.008 animal unit: 

k. One laying hen equals 0.012 animal unit; 

L. One duck equals 0.033 animal unit: and 

m. Any livestock not listed in subdivisions a through I equals 1 .0 animal 
unit per each one thousand pounds (453.59 kilograms] whether single 
or combined animal weight. 

3. A board of county commissioners may not prohibit or prevent the use of 
land or buildings for farming or ranching and may not prohibit or prevent 
any of the normal incidents of farming or ranching. 

4. A board of county commissioners may regulate the type and species of 
livestock in a concentrated feeding operating. the size of the concentrated 
feeding operation in animal units. and the location of the concentrated 
livestock feeding operation. However. if a regulation would impose a 
substantial economic burden on a concentrated feeding operation in 
existence before the effective date of the regulation, the board of county 
commissioners shall declare that the regulation is ineffective with respect 
to any concentrated feeding operation in existence before the effective 
date of the regulation. 

5. A board of county commissioners may not preclude the development of a 
concentrated feeding operation in the county. 

6. A board of county commissioners may not prohibit the reasonable 
diversification or expansion of a farming or ranching operation. 

7. a. A board of county commissioners may establish high-density 
agricultural production districts in which setback distances tor 
concentrated feeding operations and related agricultural operations 
are less than those in other districts. 

b. A board of county commissioners may establish, around areas zoned 
for residential. recreational, or nonagricultural commercial uses, 
low-density agricultural production districts in which setback 
distances for concentrated feeding operations and related agricultural 
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operations are greater than those in other districts: provided, the 
low-density agricultural production districts may not extend more than 
one and one-half miles (2.40 kilometers] from the edge of the area 
zoned for residential. recreational. or nonagricultural commercial 
uses. 

The setbacks provided for in this subsection may not vary by more 
than fifty percent from those established in subdivision a of 
subsection 7 of section 23-25-11. 

For purposes of this subsection. a "related agricultural operation" 
means a facility that produces a product or byproduct used by a 
concentrated feeding operation. 

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 11-33 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Highways - Roads. This chapter does not include any power relating to the 
role of the board of county commissioners in the establishment. repair. or maintenance 
of highways or roads. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdivision c of subsection 2 of section 23-25-11 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

c. If a county or township has zoned or established a setback distance 
for an animal feeding operation which is greater than one-half mile 
[.80 kilometer] under either section 11 aa ga er e8 ga 11 11-33-02.1 
or 58-03-11. 1, or if the setback distance under subsection 7 is greater 
than one-half mile [.80 kilometer], measurements for compliance with 
the seven odor concentration units standard must be taken at the 
setback distance rather than one-half mile [.80 kilometer] from the 
facility under subdivision b, except for any residence, church, school, 
business, public building, park, or campground within the setback 
distance which was built or established before the animal feeding 
operation was established, unless the animal feeding operation has 
obtained an odor easement from the preexisting facility. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 58-03-11 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

58-03-11. Establishment of zoning districts LIFRltatleA 8eepe ef aeAIAg 
Feg11latleAs aAEI restFletloAs Uniformity. 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM 

-1-, For the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals, or the general 
welfare, or to secure the orderly development of approaches to 
municipalities, the board of township supervisors may establish one or 
more zoning districts and within such districts may, subject to the 
provisions of chapter 54-21.3, regulate and restrict the erection, 
construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair, or use of buildings and 
structures, the height, number of stories, and size of buildings and 
structures, the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size of courts, 
yards, and other open spaces, the density of population, and the location 
and use of buildings, structures, and land for trade, industry, residence, or 
other purposes. All such regulations and restrictions must be uniform 
throughout each district, but the regulations and restrictions in one district 
may differ from those in other districts. The board of township supervisors 
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may establish institutional controls that address environmental concerns 
with the state department of health as provided in section 23-20.3-03.1. 

~ P. FogulatieA er reetrietioA May Aet 13ref:tibit er µre•.«ent U:1O l:iSO of lane er 
BuildiAgs fer farming or ranching er any ef the nermal incidents of farFAing 
or raneRing. For pur,oses ef tRis seetien, "Jarming er Fanehinff' Ffloans 
eultivaliAg land for J3roduetion ef egrieult1:1ral eFOJ>S er li¥esteeli, er raising, 
feediAg, er proeueing li\«OoteelE, J301:1ltr,, R'lillE, or fn:1it. The term Sees Rot 
include J)reeh•Jeing tiFAber er forest 13reeh:Jets, ner does tl=le torFA include a 
eontraet whereby a proeosoor er distributor of faffft products er supplies 
pre•1ides grain, haF¥esting, er etRer farFA services. 

&- A bears ef townsRip SUJJOA1iseFS may reg1:llate the Aab:1Fe aAel eeeJ:)e ef 
eoneontFatoS feeSing epeFatione f98Fmissible iA tf:te te1n1AsAi13; Ro1NO't1er, if a 
regt1latien we1:1ld imfJeee a s1:1betantial eeenemie bureen en a eenoentFatod 
feeeling eporENion in eMietonee BefoFe the eHeoti1,«e elate of the Feg1:1latien, 
tAe l:Jeara of to•Nnel=llp euporviooFs sRall BoelaFe tt:lat tho Feg1:1latien is 
inoffeetive with Fes13O0t ta any eeneentrated feeding o,=,eFation in onistonoe 
bofeFo tf:le effoetivo Sate ef tl=le Feg1:1latien. 

4-: A regulation FAay not f9FOolu8e tf:te ee\1elop~ent of a eonoontFGtee feeSing 
eperet:ien in tRe tewnohip. .'\ rogulatien aearessing tf:te ao1,1oleJ9ment ef a 
eeneont,atea feeding BJ>Sratien in tRe tewAel=lif:l may set reaoonal:Jlo 
staneaFSs, bases en the eii!e ef the eporEHien, to go-.1orn its leeatieA. 

&: ror puFpeses ef thio eeetien, "eenoontrateel feeSing epor:atien" moans any 
livestool< feeding, hanelling, er holeiing epeFatien, er feed yard, whore 
anifflals are 88R88Rtrateel iR an area that ie net nermally uoeel for ,=Jaoturo 
er foF gFewiAg er019s anfi in wRieR animal wastes FRB!,1 aeetJFRUlete, er in an 
area where the s~aee ~er aniFRal ttnit is less tAen sh< t=l1:1R6re8 squaFe feet 
~6§.74 square ffleters~. TAo term does net inell:Jde nerfflal winterin.g 
operatieAs for e&Mle. Fer ~uFf)eees ef this eeetieR, "li\•estoelc" inoll:ISes 
Beef amt.le, elairy eattle, sflee~, sv,ino, poultry, AoFSe9, and f1:1r aniFRels 
raieeel for tf:leir polls. 

6:- A Boera of township su13erw1iseFS fflay not 13rehibit, tRFel:l§l-'t FoguleiieA, t~e 
reasenaBle Siversifioation er e:Kpansien of a farming or ranehing eporatien. 

7-. Seetiens !i8 93 11 IRFe11gl:I !i8 93 1 !i ae net inel11ae an¥ 13oweF Felaling le 
the eetablieAFRent, Fepair, an.el ffiaintenanee of Righwaye or roads. 

SECTION 6. Section 58-03-11.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

58-03-11.1. Farming and ranching regulations - Requirements • 
Limitations - Definitions. 

(2) DESK. (3) COMM 

1, For purposes of this section: 

a. "Concentrated feeding operation" means any livestock feeding, 
handling, or holding operation, or feed yard, where animals are 
concentrated in an area that is not normally used for pasture or for 
growing crops and in which animal wastes may accumulate. The 
term does not include normal wintering operations for cattle . 

Page No. 5 HR-30-3009 
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(2) DESK, (3) COMM 

b. "Farming or ranching" means cultivating land for the production of 
agricultural crops or livestock, or raising. feeding, or producing 
livestock. poultry, milk, or fruit. The term does not include: 

ill The production of timber or forest products; or 

{g)_ The provision of grain, harvesting, or other farm services by a 
processor or distributor of farm products or supplies in 
accordance with the terms of a contract. 

c. "Livestock" includes beef cattle, dairy cattle, sheep. swine, poultry. 
horses. bison. elk. fur animals raised for their pelts. and any other 
animals that are raised. fed. or produced as a part of farming or 
ranching activities. 

cl "Location" means the setback distance between a structure. fence. or 
other boundary enclosing a concentrated feeding operation, including 
its animal waste collection system. and the nearest occupied 

· residence, the nearest buildings used for non farm or nonranch 
purposes. or the nearest land zoned for residential. recreational. or 
commercial purposes. The term does not include the setback 
distance for the application of manure or for the application of other 
recycled agricultural material under a nutrient management plan 
approved by the department of health. 

2. For purposes of this section. animal units are determined as follows: 

a. One mature dairy cow, whether milking or dry, equals 1.33 animal 
units: 

b. One dairy cow. heifer. or bull. other than an animal described in 
paragraph 1 equals 1.0 animal unit: 

c. One weaned beef animal. whether a calf, heifer, steer. or bull. equals 
0.75 animal unit: 

d. One cow-calf pair equals 1.0 animal unit; 

e. One swine weighing fifty-five pounds [24.948 kilograms] or more 
equals 0.4 animal unit: 

!, One swine weighing less than fifty-five pounds [24.948 kilograms] 
equals 0.1 animal unit: 

g_, One horse equals 2.0 animal units; 

h. One sheep or lamb equals 0.1 animal unit; 

L. One turkey equals 0.0182 animal unit; 

1 One chicken, other than a laying hen, equals 0.008 animal unit; 

k. One laying hen equals 0.012 animal unit; 

L. One duck equals 0.033 animal unit: and 

Page No. 6 HR-30·3009 
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m. Any livestock not listed in subdivisions a through I equals 1.0 animal 
unit per each one thousand pounds [453.59 kilograms] whether single 
or combined animal weight. 

A board of township supervisors may not prohibit or prevent the use of 
land or buildings for farming or ranching or any of the normal incidents of 
farming or ranching. 

A board of township supervisors may regulate the type and species of 
livestock in a concentrated feeding operating. the size of the concentrated 
feeding operation in animal units. and the location of the concentrated 
livestock feeding operation. However. if a regulation would impose a 
substantial economic burden on a concentrated feeding operation in 
existence before the effective date of the regulation. the board of township 
supervisors shall declare that the regulation is ineffective with respect to 
any concentrated feeding operation in existence before the effective date 
of the regulation. 

A regulation may not preclude the development of a concentrated feeding 
operation in the township. 

A board of township supervisors may not prohibit the reasonable 
diversification or expansion of a farming or ranching operation. 

7. a. A board of township supervisors may establish high-density 
agricultural production districts in which setback distances for 
concentrated feeding operations and related agricultural operations 
are less than those in other districts. 

b.... A board of township supervisors may establish. around areas zoned 
for residential. recreational. or nonagricultural commercial uses. 
low-density agricultural production districts in which setback 
distances for concentrated feeding operations and related agricultural 
operations are greater than those in other districts; provided. the 
low-density agricultural production districts may not extend more than 
one and one-half miles (2.40 kilometers] from the edge of the area 
zoned for residential. recreational. or nonagricultural commercial 
uses. 

c. The setbacks provided for in this subsection may not vary by more 
than fifty percent from those established in subdivision a of 
subsection 7 of section 23-25-11. 

d. For purposes of this subsection. a "related agricultural operation" 
means a facility that produces a product or byproduct used by a 
concentrated feeding operation. 

SECTION 7. A new section to chapter 58-03 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Highways - Roads. Sections 58-03-11 through 58-03-15 do not include any 
power relating to the role of the board of township supervisors in the establishment. 
repair. or maintenance of highways or roads." 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 7 HA-30-3009 



• 

• 

• 

2007 SENATE AGRICULTURE 

HB 1420 



• 

• 

2007 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Bill/Resolution No. 1420 

Senate Agriculture Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Hearing Date: March 15, 2007 

Recorder Job Number: 5140 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Sen. Flakoll opened the hearing on HB 1420, a bill relating to the designation of districts by a 

board of county commissioners and to the establishment of districts by a board of township 

supervisors and the designation of districts by a board of county commissioners and to the 

establishment of districts by a board of township supervisors. Members (6) present, absent 

( 1 )-Sen. Taylor. 

Rep. Brandenburg, district 28, testified in favor of the bill. 

Rep. Brandenburg- This is a bill dealing with animal agriculture it has been worked on and 

changed and amended and a number of things done with it. This bill basically deals with 

location, nature, and scope and I think that it is important that we look at where animal 

agriculture is at and what we are doing with animal agriculture and where the future is going. 

do think that before the session is over and before we leave that all parties concerned with this 

issue need to walk out of here with something that protects animal agriculture. 

Rep. Headland, district 29, testified in favor of the bill. 

Rep. Headland- I have an amendment that would just clean up a little language and doesn't 

change the bill what so ever. (walks committee through amendments 5:36- 7:15) 
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Sen. Heckaman- what was your reasons on page 4 striking lines 13-20, what are your 

reasons for changing that down into the 6 and 7? 

Rep. Headland- sections 6 and 7 are current language that were put into code in the 1999 

session and section 4 took and reworded that and it has some unintended consequences in 

the way that it was worded. 

Sen. Erbele- so you are saying that we are just putting back what is currently in code we are 

really not changing it just going back to the original code? 

Rep. Headland- that is correct. 

Brain Kramer, NDFB, testified in favor of the bill. See attached testimony. 

Sen. Klein- this will let the department of health be in charge of zoning or how does that relate 

to how the department of health will operate? 

Brian Kramer- the bill references the health department and what their abilities are it refers to 

that section of code that deals with animal agriculture and the responsibilities of the health 

department. I don't believe that it changes anything as far as what the health department 

authorities are right now. 

Roger Johnson, Senate Agriculture Commissioner, testified in favor of the bill. See attached 

testimony. 

Allan Braaten, Barney, ND, testified in favor of the bill. See attached testimony. 

Wes Klein, Rancher, testified in favor of the bill. 

Wes Klein- I am here in support of this bill. I think that education and demographics are the 

most important when it comes to animal agriculture. My concern is a lack of education, lack of 

understanding of the issues around animal agriculture. I think that this bill gives real 

- clarification and uniformity. I think that we need a clear definitions for our county 
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commissioners to help them understand which way we want animal agriculture to go and 

where we want to go in the state of ND. 

Don Moore, testified in favor of the bill. 

Don Moore- I stand in support of this bill. 

Kent Albers, ND Ag Coalition, testified in favor of the bill. See attached testimony. 

Dan Wogsland, NDGGA, testified in favor of the bill. 

Dan Wogsland- We stand in support of this bill. 

Jim Gibbens, farmer, testified in favor of the bill. 

Jim Gibbens- I am a swine and grain farmer, I stand in support of this bill. I think that what we 

really need to expand our industry is to understand the environmental regulations and we need 

the expertise of the health department to help us understand that. 

Sen. Klein- in your operations you are and have been sited by the health department, they 

have approved your location and tested the area and given you approval to build there? 

Jim Gibbens- that is correct, I have 2 sites operating right now. 

Sen. Heckaman- so if you are able to do this right now what more would this bill do for you? 

Jim Gibbens- what this bill would do is that when we go to build something else there is 

always the question of what the impact is on the environment and how are you going to build 

there and so the township or the county is going to study these matters and I think that a lot of 

it is well intended and they don't have the expertise to do that. 

Paul lvesdal, farmer, testified in favor of the bill. See attached testimony. 

Sen. Heckaman- are speaking to supporting the bill before the amendments came forward 

today or after or either? 

• Paul lvesdal- I am in support both ways. 
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David Glatt, chief of the Environmental Health Section for the ND Department of Health, 

testified in favor of the bill. See attached testimony. 

Sen. Flakoll- when you show your diagram here is it from the center point of the building? 

David Glatt- yes. 

Sen. Flakoll- have you had a chance to review the proposed amendments? 

David Glatt- I have and have no objection to those. 

Testimony was also submitted in favor of the bill by Rodney Brown and Randy Lemm, see 

attached testimony. 

Kerry Schorrsch, farmer, testified in opposition to the bill. 

Kerry Schorrsch- I am here to testify against this because I think that it does not support the 

little farmer. I think on this we would like local control rather then the state health department. 

I urge a do not pass. 

Testimony was also submitted in opposition of the bill by Harriet Bracken, see attached 

testimony. 

Sen. Flakoll closed the hearing . 
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Minutes: 

Sen. Flakoll opened the hearing on HB 1420. 

Sen. Wanzek passed out proposed amendments for the committee to review, 70766.0203 and 

reviewed them with the committee. 

- Sen. Heckaman- I am still not happy with how this turned out I think that it changes the intent 

of the law rather then just clarifies it. The people that came in yesterday and testified to this bill 

testified to the bill that came over from the house. They were not testifying to the amendments 

that I think changes that substantially. 

Sen. Wanzek- I am sure that no matter what we would do with this that not everyone could 

come to a total agreement. 

Sen. Flakoll closed the discussion. 

Sen. Wanzek motioned to move the amendments and was seconded by Sen. Klein, roll call 

vote 1: 6 yea, 1 nay, 0 absent. Sen. Wanzek motioned for a do pass as amended and was 

seconded by Sen. Klein, roll call vote 2: 6 yea, 1 nay, 0 absent. Sen. Wanzek was 

designated to carry the bill to the floor. 
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2007 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
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Senate Agriculture Committee 
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Legislative Council Amendment Number 
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Senators Yea No Senators Yea No 
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Robert S. Erbele \ Rvan M. Tavror .A 
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Absent 
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If the vote Is on an amendment, briefly indicate Intent 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1420, as engrossed: Agriculture Committee (Sen. Flakoll, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(6 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1420 was placed on 
the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 14, overstrike "section" and insert immediately thereafter "sections 11-33-02.1 
and" 

Page 3, line 7, remove the first underscored comma and remove the second underscored 
comma 

Page 4, remove lines 13 through 20 

Page 4, line 21, replace "5." with "4." 

Page 4, line 23, replace "6." with "5." 

Page 4, after line 24, insert: 

"6. A board of county commissioners may adopt regulations that establish 
different standards for the location of concentrated feeding operations 
based on the size of the operation and the species and type being fed. 

7. If a regulation would impose a substantial economic burden on a 
concentrated feeding operation in existence before the effective date of 
the regulation, the board of county commissioners shall declare that the 
regulation is ineffective with respect to any concentrated feeding operation 
in existence before the effective date of the regulation." 

Page 4, line 25, replace "7." with "8." 

Page 6, line 6, after "54-21.3" insert "and section 58-03-11.1" 

Page 8, line 1, remove the first underscored comma and remove the second underscored 
comma 

Page 9, remove lines 7 through 14 

Page 9, line 15, replace "5." with "4." 

Page 9, line 17, replace "6." with "5." 

Page 9, after line 18, insert: 

"6. A board of township supervisors may adopt regulations that establish 
different standards for the location of concentrated feeding operations 
based on the size of the operation and the species and type being fed. 

7. If a regulation would impose a substantial economic burden on a 
concentrated feeding operation in existence before the effective date of 
the regulation, the board of township supervisors shall declare that the 
regulation is ineffective with respect to any concentrated feeding operation 
in existence before the effective date of the regulation." 

Page 9, line 19, replace "7." with "8." 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 SR-51-5681 
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Page 9, line 28, remove "one and" and replace "miles [2.40 kilometers)" with "mile (0.80 
kilometer)" 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 2 SR-51-5681 
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Testimony of Roger Johnson 
Agriculture Commissioner 

House Bill 1420 
Agriculture Committee 

Peace Garden Room 
January 25, 2007 

Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture Committee, I am Agriculture 

Commissioner Roger Johnson. I am here today in support of the intended purpose of HB I 420 

which is to provide livestock producers with consistent science based environmental zoning 
' 

regulations withirttni state. 

The livestock industry is critically important to the state's economy as is the potential to increase 

livestock production. So any changefn zoning regulations have a potential to enhance or stifle 

increased livestock production. 

This bill basically gives all environmental regulatory authority to the state health department. 

It is my belief that this is the right thing to do because it is the agency that has the expertise and 

staff to regulate livestock facilities when it comes to nutrient management plans, size, and design 

of waste confinement systems and the amount ofland that is needed for manure management. 
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However, this bill does leave a lot of unanswered questions. The major issue is the loss of 

control to counties and townships that has been fundamental in our state government since our 

state's conception. Even though the bill clearly gives all jurisdiction to the state health 

department on environmental issues, there is a lack of clarity regarding some issues that can be 

considered environmental issues. For example, is a setback from an environmentally sensitive 

area, an environmental or siting or scope issue? Local authorities have a~ays had cQntrol whe~ 

it comes to zoning as it pertains to siting, setbacks and determining land use purpose. Does thy 

infringe on their current authority to do so? 

This bill needs to make sure that local control and state control are clearly defined in all areas. 

On the surface this bill appears to do so, but is that really the case? Last session House Bill 1291 

was amended to address this same issue. We are at this hearing today because the language in 

that bill was not clear. Ramsey County asked for an Attorney General's opinion regarding 

whether their regulation was within the scope of state law. The Attorney General's opinion did\ 

Cnot address the health department's authority over environmental regulations leaving us with t~ 

discussion today. 

That is why I have reservations on the current language and SB 2331 (which is a similar bill in 

the Senate) as written. I want this issue to be concise and clear on what we are addressing. 

Without local government support of this issue we will again be addressing it in the future. 

Other states have had the same problems that we are facing. Wisconsin has done a major 

overhaul of their zoning and siting regulations. I recommend that we look at what they have 
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done before we go down this path. I have included a copy of their laws and regulations for your 

review. 

Again, Chainnan Johnson and committee members, I urge that you take a hard look at this bill. 

We need to develop state policy regarding zoning that is consistent and science-based for our 

producers and at the same time does not diminish the local control that townships and counties 

need and want for siting and for the purpose of zoning. I would be happy to answer any 

questions you may have . 
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North Dakota 
Farm Bureau 
Bri,t!'Kf at /4o!l(e 

11011st Ave. N., Fargo, ND 58102 
P.O. Box 2064, Fargo, ND 58107-2064 
Phone: 701-298-2200 • 1-800-367-9668 • Fax: 701-298-2210 

4023 State St., Bismarck, ND 58503 
P.O. Box 2793, Bismarck, ND 58502-2793 
Phone: 701-224-0330 • 1-800-932-8869 • Fax: 701-224-9485 

House Agriculture Committee 
January 25, 2007 

North Dakota Farm Bureau 
Testimony on House Bill 1420 

Presented by, Eric Aasmundstad, president 

Good morning Chainnan Johnson and Agriculture Committee members. My name is 

Eric Aasmundstad I am a fam1er from the Devils Lake area and the president of the North 

Dakota Farm Bureau. I am here today to speak in support of House Bill 1420. 

HB1420 does not diminish a county or townships authority to zone. 1-1B 1420 does 

bring clarity to where the authority rests regarding regulation of environmental health. It 

is our belief that this authority is expressly granted to the North Dakota Department of 

Health now, not the counties and townships. 

Our policies clearly state our support for controlling zoning authority at the township 

level. Our policy further tells us that we need to work with the counties and townships 

when developing zoning ordinances. 

"We believe zoning authority should be controlled at the township level when the 

townships choose to do so. " 

"We shall work with townships and counties to develop farmer:friendly, responsible 

zoning ordinances for animal agriculture. " 

As you can see Farm Bureau fim1ly believes in the power of counties and townships to 

zone and to practice their zoning authority consistent with NDCC 11-33-02 and 58-03-

11. We believe that counties and townships have every right and an obligation to 

establish responsible setback distances for animal feeding operations. 

We also believe that the State should have preemptive authority with regards to 

environmental regulation. 
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Testimony of Paul Becker 

Ramsey County Farmer 

Good Morning Chairman Johnson and members of the Agriculture Committee. My name 
is Paul Becker I am a Ramsey County resident, a board member in Northern Prairie 
EnviroFuels, and farm about 20 miles northeast of Devils Lake. I am submitting this 
testimony in favor ofHB 1420. I apologize for not being able to be in attendance today 
for this hearing on such an important piece of legislation. 

Your support of House Bill 1420 is crucial for moving agriculture forward in North 
Dakota. As a resident of Ramsey County I have been in the middle of a battle that has 
been going on for over 3 years. Initially I had no opinion on the CAFO's, after some 
research I could see why there is interest in their growth. There was a lot of inaccurate or 
out of date information brought up in this battle. 

The buzz word all over the State is economic development. Animal agriculture is an area 
our fathers and grandfathers were involved in, but we thought they were too much work; 
we need to add value to the crops we are already growing. The past couple of years we 
have been shipped over 300,000 bu of corn up to Canada. They are offering us a $.20/bu 
premium over our local market and paying all of the freight. That has amounted to nearly 
$100,000 more income for our operation. If these CAFO's are built closer we could split 
the difference in freight and both gain. We have ethanol and biodiesel plants planning on 
locating in our area. We also need to have the livestock to feed the buy products to. We 
have been paying the railroad to haul our raw commodities to out of state markets; nearly 
all of our feed barley has been shipped to California. Ifthere is not room in the rural 
parts of North Dakota for the large livestock operations, how can they exist on the west 
coast? 

I also support clean air and water for all of North Dakota. We now have overwhelming 
scientific facts that prove the industry has become environmentally friendly. I have 
listened to the NDSU specialists who have facts supporting the animal industry and the 
benefits that can come with it. I have also listened to the State Health Department 
discuss their enforcement and oversight. 

The problem we had in Ramsey County was the County Planning and Zoning 
Commission went in with an attitude of, how can we keep the CAFO's out. They needed 
to wonder, how we can make these CAFO's work. The local township had that idea, and 
followed the state regulations to successfully permit a CAFO. The law needs to be 



written in a way that there is no gray area. County and Township Officials need to know 
what they can and cannot regulate. The State Health Department has been given the 
authority to regulate environmental issues, let them do their job. It needs to be clear 
where the jurisdictional lines are. Counties and Townships do not have the means or the 
dollars it would take to enforce such things. We also need to make this law for all 
counties across the State to make it equal for all farmers in every county. 

I respectfully ask that you give House Bill 1420 a strong due pass recommendation for 
the future North Dakota's largest industry. 

Paul Becker 
9250 58 th St NE 
Crary, ND 58327-9228 
701-398-3374 work 
701-398-3505 home 
701-739-8891 cell 
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Testimony in support ofHB 1420 
Gary Hoffman, executive director 

North Dakota Dairy Coalition 

Good morning 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Gary Hoffman. I represent the 
North Dakota Dairy Coalition. The ND Dairy Coalition is a group of dairy producers, 
dairy processors, commodity groups and other related industries who have an interest in a 
healthy growing dairy industry. 

1 am here this morning to support HB 1420. I think it is a good step forward to enhance 
the duties of the ND Dept. of Health. As director of the Dairy Coalition, our mission is to 
increase the number of dairy cows in North Dakota. We do not want to compromise our 
environment in the process. This legislation will clarify who the contact is and what the 
rules are. The ND Dept. of Health has a Water Quality Division, a Waste Management 
Division and an Air Quality Division to name just a few. The Water Quality Division 
monitors ground water, surface water and waste water. The Waste Management Division 
monitors animal waste application based on nutrients applied and nutrients used. The Air 
Quality Division promotes clean air and initiates enforcement. They do an excellent job. 
I think they have all the bases covered. They have trained scientists on staff who know 
State regulations and EPA regulations. They work with air, water and waste management 
issues on a daily basis and are in a position to work with producers and consumers as 
needed. Who else in ND has the staff and resources available that we have at the Health 
Department? County and township boards can still regulate the nature and scope of 
animal operations but it's clear they don't have the expertise and the resources to regulate 
the technical aspects of protecting our environment. 
As a representative of the Coalition and a landowner myself, I have more confidence in 
the environmental scientists at the Health Department than I do in the local coffee shop 
theories. Someone once said,"The best decisions are products of thorough scientific 
thinking." I agree, and I urge you to pass HB 1420. 

Thank you 
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Testimony before ND House Agriculture Committee, HB 1420 
January 25, 2007 
Todd Leake, Emerado, ND 
(70 I) 594-4253 toddleake@polarcomm.com 

In early I 997, in Grand Forks Co, near Larimore, construction on the Enviropork (Dakota 
Facilities LLP) hog farrowing facility began, without a special use permit from Grand 
Forks Co. Grand Forks Co. had at the time requirements for building permits. Enviropork 
had no permit. In July that same year, in what some might call a retroactive permit 
hearing on the nearly completed structure, a county zoning and planning hearing was 
conducted in the American Legion Hall in Larimore to a standing room only crowd. 
Amongst the citizen testimony was informational testimony from the State Dept. of 
Health. The Dept. of Health official told the Zoning Commission that it was not the 
responsibility of the Health Dept. to "site" the CAFO and that siting was the 
responsibility of Grand Forks Co. The Department of Health official stated that they 
"only worked with the site they were given" in the permit application. 
In response to this, in Sept of 1997, the County began the process of drafting CAFO 

zoning regulations for discussion at Zoning and Planning public meetings. Over a period 
of three and one half years of meetings, a rough draft of regulations regarding CAFOs 
was crafted involving input many livestock producers, from the largest to some of the 
smallest livestock producers in the county. During this entire process Grand Forks Co. 
zoning and planning listened to livestock producer's concerns on various parts of the 
draft ordinance, and it was changed and redrafted unti I their concerns were addressed. 
The final ordinance was passed at a County Commission meeting in Jan.2000.This was 
the first County CAFO ordinance that was passed in the state; the process was fair, 
democratic and inclusive. Enviropork continues to operate, livestock production 
continues to be a healthy part of the ag economy in Grand Forks County. Grand Forks 
Co. government has established public, reasonable parameters for CAFO's to continue to 
profitably operate in the county while protecting drinking water aquifers, reservoirs and 
providing setbacks for schools, towns, state parks and residences. 

• The North Dakota Dept. of Health does not site CAFOs, ND counties do site CAFOs 
• The issue at hand in HB 1420 is to remove any local responsibility or capacity of 

counties in ND to protect vital resources within the county that are necessary for 
continued public health and economic growth, in regard to the counties' and 
townships responsibility to properly site CAFO's. 

• The State primacy in enforcing the Federal Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Safe 
drinking Water act, and Natural Resource Recovery Act does not preclude North 
Dakota counties from enacting local control to do the same, as long as the 
ordinances are as strict or stricter than the state 

• How can anyone reasonably expect elected county officials to carry out their duty 
to site CAFOs without regard to health or environmental issues? 
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Jerry Jeffers, Rhame NorthDakota 

Good Morning Mr. Chairman and Committee Members. 

My name is Jerry Jeffers from Rhame, and I am here to ask for your support of 

HB1420. I have been a member ofth Bowman County Zoni;1g Board now for several years. I 

come from the part of Bowman County where at lot of the oil impact moneys that help fund 

this state are produced. We also have one of the first concentrated hog feeding operations in 

this state in our county, a large cattle feedlot as well as several smaller ones, and as of a few 

months ago, granted the zoning variance for a multi-million dollar natural gas purification 

plant to be built. By the way this is a safe, environment-friendly plant in that it takes that gas 

from the fires you see AND SMELL and turns that into top quality, useable natural 

gas-eliminating the fires and the stink. I tell you all of this because I feel we have a pretty 

aggressive, forward-thinking zoning board. We have an excellent director who makes sure all 

the T's are crossed and the I's are dotted in the zoning request prior to the hearings. Our 

board is comprised of farmers and ranchers, business people, and folks who work for others. 

I'm sure that is the make-up of most of the zoning boards across the state. 

Having told you that, I think that HB1420 is very important. We as zoning board members 

usually don't have the time, nor in most cases, the expertise to set the state health and 

environmental regulations needed for concentrated animal feeding operations or anything else 

like this natural gas purification plant that is in our county for that matter. So, in order for us 

to do our job which I feel is to I.) enhance the economy in our area and sometimes the state, 

and 2.) See that the lifestyle of the citizens of the surrounding area isn't adversely effected, 

and 3.) Create conditions that ALL parties involved can come to an agreement on, a good, 

sound set of health and environment regulations set forth and enforced by the State Health 



Department are crucial. If we as zoning board members and our commissioners can be sure 

that the State Health Department has taken care of the health and environmental issues, then 

we can concentrate on what we have the ability to do without fear of a suit or outside 

intervention, because BYLAW they have just taken most of the emotional issues out of the 

zoning process, leaving the nuts and bolt problems that we DO know something about and 

have local zoning guidelines for. This bill WILL NOT take that local zoning authority away 

from my board or any other zoning board in the state. But instead it clarifies who sets and 

regulates the health and environment regulations on CAFOs. So, for these reasons, I ask you 

to give a DO PASS on this House Bill #1420. Thank You for you kind attention. 
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Testimony of John Martinson 

Edmore School Board/Farmer 

Good Morning Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture Committee. 
My name is John Martinson; 1 am President of the Farmers Union Oil Co of Edmore, 
Vice-President of the Edmore School Board, A Supervisor of Overland Township, and a 
farmer in Ramsey County. 1 am submitting this testimony in favor ofHB 1420. 1 regret 
that I was not able to attend today's hearing on such an important piece oflegislation. 

Your support of HB 1420 is a very important step for agriculture in our state. It would 
send a message to groups that try to imply or just state out loud that our Sate Health 
Department is incompetent. 

1 was involved in what I would call "The Ramsey County Zoning Fiasco". 1 was asked to 
be on the zoning sub-committee with five or six other people. We were told our job was 
to review The Model Zoning Regulations and make recommendations to the Zoning 
Committee. We did what we were asked and at the next meeting one certain individual 
on the Zoning Committee did not like the recommendations. He then proceeded to write 
the zoning ordinance for Ramsey County himself with the help of the Dakota Resource 
Council, with little or no farmer input. 

Now, in Ramsey County, we have an ordinance that provides not only zoning regulations, 
but also environmental regulations. We have a State Health Department to handle the 
environmental regulations so why not let them do their job. This bill would clarify that. 

The farmers of our state are good stewards of the land because it is our life. Don't let 
outside interests dictate what direction agriculture will go in the future. 

1 strongly urge that you give HB 1420 a strong pass recommendation for North Dakota 
Agriculture. 

Sincerely, 

John Martinson 
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Testimony on House Bill 1420 
Presented by 
John Heaton, 

Pleasant Hill Township, Kidder County 
January 25, 2007 

I am a township officer, a position, which I have held for about twenty years. I support 
HB 1420. As I read this bill I see nothing that will take any zoning authority from our 
townships. The township officers don't want to police the environmental regulations of 
our neighbors' feeding operations. We don't have the time or finances to do this. Nor do 
we have the time to keep up with all of the changes that are necessary to protect the 
environment. 

If North Dakota won't support animal agriculture, then where is the future for our 
children? Support the economic future of our state, support HB 1420. 

Thank for your time and attention, I would try to answer any questions . 
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0 I am Paul Anderson representing the North Dakota Com Growers 

Association from District 7. 

0 I am involved in animal feeding and crop production east of Harvey. 

0 Animal ag is still the Number One consumer of com and its co­

products. 

0 The number of livestock on feed directly affects each com producer. 

0 Com crowers consider the passage ofHB1420 a pertinent step in 

;{,,5/,,hf.-Lnc,. I~ 
securing the integrity of air and water. Itis not "1't! n<tzg I. 

0 In addition to being a cattle feeder, I also serve on the township board. 

0 This bill doesn't take the principles of local control away-it places 

the burden of health regulation with the health department, where it 

belongs. 

I thank you for your attention and favor. 

Are there any questions . 
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Daryl Lies, farmer/ livestock producer 

Douglas, North Dakota 

( L,,,e) 
Good morning Mr. Chairman. My name is Daryl Lies, I am a farmer from the Douglas 

area and I am here in support of House Bill 1420. 

As a livestock farmer I believe it is very important to have rules and regulations across 

the state that are uniform. If we are going to be serious about the renewable fuels industry 

we have to be serious about animal farms. The two go hand in hand, with out animals to 

feed the by-product to the ethanol plants are going be taking from the bottom line 

shipping this feed out of state. This makes them less profitable. If they don't profit we 

will not have them in North Dakota for long. 

With out a uniform set of rules livestock farmers in North Dakota could well be 

exposed to hundreds of different sets of rules determined by nothing more than a line on a 

map. We have to embrace animal farming for the good of all of North Dakota as dollars 

derived from animals tum in the economy more times than tourism and the retail sectors 

combined. The bottom line is the more economic activity we have in rural North Dakota 

the more all of our state benefits from increased tax revenue. Our future depends on laws 

and regulations that are workable for agriculture. I believe the North Dakota Health 

Department is doing a good job of balancing this load. I would encourage a due pass on 

HB 1420. Thank you. 
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January 25, 2007 

Testimony of Pam Brekke 

Ramsey County Commissioner/Farmer 

Good Morning Chairman Johnson and members of the Agriculture Committee. My name 

is Pam Brekke I am a county commissioner from Ramsey County and farm in the 

Edmore area. I am submitting this testimony in favor of HB 1420. I apologize for not 

being able to be in attendance today for this hearing on such an important piece of 

legislation. 

Your support of House Bill 1420 is crucial for moving agriculture forward in North 

Dakota. As a County Commissioner in Ramsey County I have been in the middle of a 

battle that has been going on for 31/2 years. Communities should not be divided over 

anything concerning their future growth, especially when it involves the largest industry 

in North Dakota. 

Unfortunately there is a small group of people who are supported by a very large check 

book and they hide behind the names of Dakota Resource Council, Sierra Club, Dakota 

Rural Action and many other "heart warming" titles. They have one agenda and that is to 

go back in time with a farm on every section ofland, 12 milk cows, 25 hogs, 100 

chickens and a white picket fence. Wouldn't we all love this, but the truth is, times have 

changed and so has farming. If our homesteading great-grand parents could see tl1e 

advances we have made they would be speechless. The world of technology is not 

standing still and we in the Ag sector cannot be satisfied with the way things were 100 

years ago. 

The activists came into Ramsey County very quietly, not letting on that they were 

activists, and volunteered to be on boards and help "write" an animal feeding ordinance. 



We now have an ordinance that is full of environmental regulations that we as County 

Commissioners cannot enforce. They were very organized and followed a specific 

strategy to stop any animal feeding operations from being built. We as commissioners 

were told many lies and one was that it was "our" ordinance and we could grant variances 

to it upon requests. When a request came to us, Dakota Resource Council was there 

reading the "fine print" and letting us know that we could not grant variances after all. 

Their scare tactics worked on enough commissioners that they had a majority in their 

pocket. As of today I am standing alone on the Ramsey County Commission in full 

support of North Dakota Agriculture. 

I am also standing in support of clean air and water for all of North Dakota. The 

environmentalists use water and air quality as one of their big issues. They bring numbers 

to the table that come from mistakes that may have been made 20 years ago, before there 

where strict regulations in place. We now have overwhelming scientific facts that can 

prove the industry has become environmentally friendly. I have listened to the NDSU 

specialists who have all the facts on paper supporting the animal industry and the benefits 

that can come with it. 

The problem we had in Ramsey County was the door was open for these groups to come 

in and challengt! the law. If you have county officials that are not farmer friendly these 

groups will take control. The law needs to be written in a way that there is no gray area. 

County and Township Officials need to know what they can and cannot regulate. The 

State Health Department has been given the authority to regulate environmental issues, 

let them do their job. It needs to be clear where the jurisdictional lines are. Counties and 

Townships do not have the means or the dollars it would take to enforce such things. We 

also need to make this law for all counties across the State to make it equal for all farmers 

in every county. We have an operation that went up 5 miles from the Ramsey County 

line and our farmers are sitting here with their hands tied, patiently waiting for 31/2 years 

and watching the environmentalists control their elected county officials with scare 

tactics. 
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I respectfully ask that you give House Bill 1420 a strong due pass recommendation for 

the future North Dakota's largest industry . 
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THE HOUSE AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE 
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Ken Teubner, ND A Co President -
Towner County Commissioner 

REGARDING HOUSE BILL 1420 

Chairman Johnson and committee members, I am Ken Teubner, a Towner County 

Commissioner and the current President of the North Dakota Association of 

Counties. I thank you for the opportunity to address HB 1420 on behalf of county 

government. County commissioners from across the State have reviewed this bill 

and directed me to indicate their strong opposition. 

County commissioners are convinced that their county residents desire to have 

land use decisions made locally, not in Bismarck - made by locally elected leaders 

that they can hold accountable, not by bureaucrats. We believe that this law could 

be interpreted in a manner that would dramatically shift land use decision-making. 

away from the citizens and toward a system over which they have little control, 

The Legislature has limited the Health Department in the types of tools that they 

can use to ensure compliance with their rules - tools such as performance bonds. 

This bill proposes to relieve local government of their authority to do the same. 

It must be remembered, that when large animal feeding operations are not properly 

sited; it can result in tax-forfeited property with clean-up costs funded by the 

neighboring tax payers. Do not be mistaken, county officials desire these 

developments - they can be very good for a county. They must however, be sited 

in the best possible location after all factors are considered. 

Please give HB1420 a Do Not Pass recommendation, and let local government 

work to encourage development in a thoughtful and reasonable manner. 
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Testimony on HB 1420 to the House Agriculture Committee 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the House Agriculture Committee: My name is Ken 

Yantes I am the Executive Secretary of the North Dakota Township Officers 

Association and I represent over 6000 grassroots elected township officers I have come 

here today to oppose the passage ofHBJ420. After lengthy consultation with our State 
, 

Board Directors; we feel that townships not should give up , through loss of local 

zoning, the ability to defend our neighbors, residents and friends 

We are concerned with the potential loss of local controls and believe our 

forefathers had the same concern. 

In article one, of the Declaration of our Rights, in our North Dakota Constitution 

it says, that one of our inalienable rights, in section # l :\s possessing and protecting 

property and reputation; pursuing and obtaining safety and happiness. Zoning is land 

\ \ 

use control for the protection and happiness of our township residents. 

When legislation such as this, which seeks to reduce the power of the local 

governmental units to control themselves; 1 console myself in section #2 of 

the constitution which states that all political power is inherent in the people. 

I don't think they meant that all power should be found at the state level. 

I think they meant that some townships could have different conditions that 

warrant different local governing decisions . 

HB 1420 asks that townships and counties relinquish their authority to control air, water 
and 



• soil pollution to the State Department of Health. After this is dorie, we won't have any 

responsibility for legal enforcement of those controls, we are told, the state does. 

At the present a township that chooses to avail themselves of a comprehensive zoning 

plan and develops an ordinance on confined animal feeding operations that is exactly 

the same as the State Health Department regulations; would have the same degree of 

state protection. 

The big difference would be that the township would still have the authority to, 

set more stringent controls if the township residents were not happy with conditions. 

It would be true that the legal responsibility for the more stringent regulations may open 

- the door for legal defense efforts. Many ofus believe that these efforts would be worth 

it to preserve the right to decide for ourselves with out state regulated controls. 

• 

"We the People, not we the power of state." 

In order for this to prevail HB 1420 must be defeated and full authority rest in the local 

grassroots government officials hands. 

Please vote to kill HB 1420 . 



• 

• 

• 

North Dakota Farmers Union 
PO Box 2136 • 1415 12th Ave SE • Jamestown ND 58401 

701-252-2340 • 800-366-NDFU 
FAX: 701-252-6584 

House Bill 1420 
House Agriculture Committee 

WEBSITE: www.ndfu.org 
E-MAIL: ndfu@ndfu.org 

Chairman Johnson and Members of the House Agriculture Committee, 

EDUCATION 

My name is Richard Schlosser; I am here representing the members of North Dakota 
Farmers Union. I am here to testify in opposition of House Bill 1420. 

North Dakota Farmers Union believes that livestock production is essential to the 
economic well being of North Dakota. Our organization recognizes that sound 
environmental practices and family agriculture should work together for responsible 
development of livestock production that is vital to maintaining healthy agriculture. 

Livestock waste is a resource that can provide essential nutrients for crops. However, 
large feeding operations that have concentrated volumes of waste can negatively impact 
our natural resources, public health, and neighboring livestock operations. Presently, 
North Dakota Century Code speaks to the powers of regulating concentrated feeding 
operations by counties and townships. The sections state that each political subdivision 
" ... may regulate with respect to nature (type of livestock) and scope (size)." HB 1420 
states that" ... a regulation may not give to the county any duties or responsibilities 
regarding health or environmental issues associated with a concentrated feeding operation 
or with any other farming or ranching operation if the duties and responsibilities are 
placed on the state department of health." That begs the question, how will local entities 
establish ordinances dealing with scope and nature without referencing environment or 
health? HB 1420 negates the ability oflocal governments to regulate these facilities by 
limiting the counties ability to evaluate the health and environmental impact on the 
natural resources and citizens of their political subdivisions. 

North Dakota Farmers Union supports a Health Department permitting process that 
addresses size, concern for surface and ground water contamination and allows for public 
comment. With that said, North Dakota should safeguard the right of political 
subdivisions to enact and enforce their own ordinances. 

In closing, North Dakota Farmers Union believes that responsible livestock development 
can include the joint efforts of local zoning and the permitting process of the North 
Dakota Health Department. We urge a do not pass on House Bill 1420. Thank you . 

-----------------------------
North Dakota Farmers Union, guided by the principles of cooperation, legislation and education, 
is an organization committed to the prosperity of family farms, ranches and rural communities. 
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HB 1420 
North Dakota Planning Association Testimony 

Committee Members, 
State and federal courts have for over I 00 years affirmed the right of local governments 
to enact zoning regulations on the basis of a comprehensive plan to protect the public 
health, safety and welfare. This has allowed local citizens to develop an overall strategy 
for community development that minimizes land use conflicts and maximizes the 
efficient use of local tax dollars in the service of these communities. The presumption of 
local government control over local issues is the very core of this concept ofland use 
planning. 

This bill, if enacted, will remove the ability of local governments to address land use 
issues at a local level. It will make the state department of health responsible for 
something it was not created to and cannot do, which is to enact local comprehensive 
plans. 

This bill may in fact create another unfunded mandate where the decisions of a state or 
federal agency increase the local tax burden. Now issues relating to coordinated, 
appropriately-sited land development by local governments (such as the increased cost of 
road maintenance) may be lost. 

The ability to address the whole gamut of local issues which may be part of decisions 
regarding the siting of animal feeding operations will be lost; instead, a single non-local 
perspective will be used to govern this decision. 

Please vote "Do not pass" on HB 1420. 

Joel Quanbeck, President 
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Testimony on HB 1420 to the House Committee on Agriculture 
January 25, 2006 

Chaim1an Johnson and committee members my name is Barb Price and I am an 

organizer for Dakota Resource Council. DRC is an independent membership-based 

grassroots organization that has been working with No1th Dakotans since 1978 for the 

purpose of protecting their interests and rights. About half our members are active 

farmers and ranchers. 

Dakota Resource Council recognizes that livestock production is very important to the 

economy of North Dakota. We believe that livestock production should be increased in 

North Dakota but not at the risk to the livelihood of family farmers and ranchers or to 

the detriment of the environment, health and economic well being of North Dakotans. 

It has been explained to our members that this bill is just clarifying that counties and 

townships have the power to zone for "nature, scope and location" only 

in land use planning. Counties and townships can determine siting only of 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations (CAFOs) but have no power over the 

environmental aspects (such as set backs) and public health as it relates to CAFOs. 

I want to spend some time looking at ND Century code and the Model Zoning 

Ordinance for Animal Feeding Operations to see what authority has been given to 

counties and township pertaining to CAFOs. 
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In ND Century Code 23-29 Solid Waste l\1anagement and Land Protection 

Definitions #14 "Solid Waste:' it states, "The term does not include: 

a. Agricultural waste, including manures and crop residues, returned to the soil as 
fertilizer or soil conditioners; 

In addition, ND Century Code 23-29-05. Local government ordinances, it states, "Any 

political subdivision of the state may enact and enforce a solid waste management 

ordinance if such ordinance is equal to or more stringent than this chapter and the rules 

adopted pursuant to this chapter. (See Attachments - page 1 - 3) 

If manure from CAFOs is not included in the management of solid waste by the State 

Department of Health then it needs to be managed by the County Commissioners 

and/or Township Supervisors. It is clear from 23-29-05 that counties and townships 

have the authority to develop ordinances that are equal to or more restrictive that the 

state rules . 

In 1999 Governor Schafer issued an Executive Order (1999-03) which directed the 

Department of Health to" ... develop a model zoning regulations [for animal feeding 

operations] for the subdivisions to implement as they deem appropriate ... " As it 

turns out I was one of the members of the working group, as was the Executive 

Director of DRC, Mark Trechock. 

The document that resulted from this working group became "A Model Zoning 

Ordinance for Animal Feeding Operations", March 2000. I am going to go through 

some of the pages in the above mentioned document to point out that the intent of the 

executive order and the development State Model Ordinance was specifically to give 

the counties and townships the power to write ordinances for CAFOs that included the 

power to plan for environmental and public health and safety issues. Included with this 

testimony is a copy of the Model Ordinance. (Sec attachments. pages 4- 25) 

2 
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In the preamble of this document the purpose of the model ordinance, in part, states: 

• Provide a reference, or model, for zoning and ordinances pertaining to 
concentrate feeding operations for use by the local governments across North 
Dakota. 

• Remind local governments of their roles in protecting public safety and health 
and in planning the uses, conservation and protection of natural resources, 
including land for farming and ranching. 

As we read this " ... protecting public safety and health and in planning the uses, 

conservation and protection of natural resources ... " all refer to environmental and 

health issues that can be controlled by the counties and/or townships. 

On page 2 of the Model Ordinance, page 5 in the attachments, on the next to last line 

of the page it states," ... Or any of the normal incidents of farming or ranching." 

The first industrial-scale hog production facility sited in North Dakota was Enviropork, 

west of Larimore in Grand Forks County. The facility got its county permit during the 

- 1997 Grand Forks flood. It received its state permit later that year. A law suit was 

filed by Jim Griffin and Keith Peterson, neighbors to Enviropork, contending that the 

state Health Department should have required Enviropork to get a solid waste permit 

for its lagoon, and also alleging numerous violations of the state odor standard and the 

facility's construction permit. (See page 26 - 27 of the attachments) 

Judge Bruce E. Bohlmann ruled in the plaintiffs' favor on one clement of the lawsuit in 

September 1998, saying Enviropork was "not a farming operation" but a "pig 

factory" and should be subject to the same laws as any waste facility. However, 

within a month, the State Health Council passed "emergency rules" exempting all 

animal waste from the state's solid waste disposal law. The rest of Griffin and 

Peterson's case was settled out of court. 

3 
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In early 1999, state legislators passed three bills intended to provided assistance to 

industrial hog operations: 

• SB 2366, which wrote the Health Council's "emergency rules" into Century 

Code; 

• SB 2365, which weakened the state odor standard by preventing issuing an odor 

violation except at a residence or public area; 

• HB 1054, which gave industrial hog facilities the same property tax exemptions 

as traditional farmers have for farm buildings. 

However, the House defeated HB 1397, which would have taken away all county and 

township zoning authority over any agricultural practices. The primary supporters for 

all these bills were Farm Bureau of North Dakota, North Dakota Stockmen's 

Association and the North Dakota Pork Producers Council. 

Going on to page 3 of the Model Ordinance, page 7 of the attachments, talks about the 

1999 amendments to the law. It is stated that the legislature answered questions pertain 1 

whether counties and townships had zoning authority over CAFOs. The legislature 

gave authority to counties and townships to "regulate the nature and scope of 

CAFOs" and to "set reasonable standards, based on the size of the operation" to 

govern its location. In addition the amendments gave counties and townships 

discretion to adopt their own standards regulating the size, nature and location of 

feedlots. The amended law is provided in Appendix 1 of the Model Ordinance, pages 

of the attachments to this testimony. 

Fu1ther on page 3 of the Model Ordinance under "Function of an Ordinance" the 

following is stated: 

"If conflict in land use is to be constrained by local governments so as to protect the 

right to practice farming or ranching and to foster compatibility with nearby land use, 

local government oflit:ials choosing to adoot an ordinance for animal feeding 

operations must: 

4 
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► Adopt separation distances (aka setbacks or reverse setbacks) that reflect 

quantifiable odor characteristics and odor dispersal. 

► Identify those new land uses that do not confonn to the objectives and policies 

for delineated agricultural areas so as to infringe on the rights of farming or 

ranching (not included in the model zoning ordinance for animal feeding 

operations). 

► Identify those new and existing animal feeding operations that, due to size (e.g., 

number of animal units), present safety hazards, affect natural resources, affect 

smTounding areas or other means of infringing on the rights of others. 

This is being accomplished in some of the township is Griggs county after 141 out of 

approximatelyl45 the residents from the Sutton and Glenfield communities signed a 

petition opposing the proposed Willow Grove Sow Fann. (Copies attached to 

testimony) . 

We can continue through the whole Model Ordinance and it is clear that counties and 

townships have the authority to detennine environmental protections using setback 

requirements for odor and water protection and to protect public health and safety in 

their local jurisdictions. 

There is nothing in current county and township zoning CAFO ordinances that 

circumvents the Department of Health rules and regulations or that would keep the 

counties or townships from going to the Health Depart for professional help either in 

setting up ordinances or in enforcing the ordinances that are put in place. 

However, it is important to note that the State of North Dakota has not adopted into 

law any ordinances that pertain to Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations. Ideally, 

the Department of Health needs legislation directing it to regulate CAFOs land 

5 
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application of waste even if the operator does not propose to discharge pollutants to the 

water of the state. 

What we need are: 

1. Standards for emergency response to a lagoon spill. 

2. Operator funded trust fund for clean-up response to a lagoon spill. 

3. Operator funded trust funds for clean up of abandoned operations. 

4. Permitting of all CAFOs 

5. Each permit must include a nutrient management plan prepared by a certified 
agriculture professional. Public notice and comment on permits, including input on 
nutrient management plans. 

6. Self-Monitoring and record keeping to document compliance with nutrient 
management plan, with independent verification mechanism. 

7. Civil and criminal enforcement remedies, including citizen suits, for violation of 
permit conditions, including excursions from nutrient management plans. 

8. Vertical integrator liability for spills, clean ups, and operator violations. 

9. If state takes this on, then counties and townships still need to be able to have 
zoning authority over siting, density, size, setbacks, and mitigating impacts on local 
community. 

10. These are industrial facilities, therefore they need to be taxed. 

DRC would also suggest the following questions be asked of the Department of 

Health: 

1. How many inspectors are on staff) Are they full time or part time staff? 

2. How many times a year is each facility inspected? How many are onsite 
inspections? 

3. What specifically docs each inspection consist of? 
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4. ls there a fiscal note to go with this bill? To cover all the time and manpower it 
will take to do the work of the counties and townships . 

To conclude, Dakota Resource Council believes that local control must be preserved. 

County and township representative from other states that have allowed the state to 

take over control of CAFO ordinances and waste management have told us that "what 

ever we do, do not loose local control." Many of these counties and townships are 

now trying to get back local control. 

There fore DRC would respectfully request a "Do Not Pass" recommendation from 
this committee. 

Thank you for listening . 

7 
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Testimony 

House Bill 1420 

Agriculture Committee 

Thursday, January 25, 2007; 9 a.m. 

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture Committee. 
My name is David Glatt, and I am chief of the Environmental Health Section for the 
North Dakota Department of Health. I am here today to provide information regarding 
the environmental regulation of confined animal feeding operations (CAFOs). 

First, I want to make it clear that the department has historically suppof!ed local 
zoning and will do so in the future as authorized in state law. 

The intent of my testimony today is to provide the committee with background 
information as it relates to the regulation of CAFOs in North Dakota. It is important to 
note the following: 

• Animal feeding operations have been regulated by the North Dakota 
Department of Health since 1967. The decision to regulate animal feeding 
operations in the state was made long before the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) acknowledged the potential impact feedlots could 
have on water quality. In part, because of the state's proactive approach, we 
have not seen the large-scale pollution problems observed in some other states. 

• The North Dakota Department of Health CAFO regulation is based upon the 
requirements of the federal Clean Water Act as adopted by Congress to protect 
the nation's surface waters from contamination. In addition, the North Dakota 
CAFO regulations have been developed utilizing the expertise of the North 
Dakota Department of Health, Natural Resource Conservation Service 
(NRCS), North Dakota State University Agricultural Extension Service and the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency. Prior to adoption of the 
regulation, the department also provided opportunity for review and comment 
by the State Health Council, Environmental Protection Agency and the public. 

• The department continues to evaluate the environmental impact of CAFOs and 
has collected evidence that livestock facilities complying with state regulations 
can operate with minimal impact on the environment. As an example, 
groundwater monitoring conducted at several facilities in response to public 
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concern did not indicate widespread or gross contamination of the near-surface 
aquifer as feared by some in the public. 

To give you a brief synopsis of the complexity of the permitting process, the 
following is provided: · 

I. Each proposed new facility must be evaluated for appropriate site 
characteristics. For example, site-specific geology, location in relation to 
shallow groundwater and established residences, and proximity to surface 
water drainage must be evaluated. Proposed site locations that do not meet the 
appropriate siting criteria are rejected. 

2. Each proposed facility must meet specific design standards that include 
requirements for manure/wastewater storage capacity and liner compaction. 
Liner compaction requirements for CAFOs exceed those required of municipal 
wastewater stabilization lagoons constructed in the state. In some cases, the 
installation of groundwater monitoring wells may be required. 

3. Each new facility must develop nutrient management plans for review and 
approval by the department. Nutrient management plans must identify how 
manure will be put to beneficial use meeting approved application methods. 
Plans must also include how dead animals are properly handled and disposed. 

4. After the department determines that a proposed facility meets the criteria 
established in rule, each draft permit is made available to the public for review 
and comment. State law also provides appropriate opportunity to challenge any 
determination made by the department. 

5. If a permit is approved, the department conducts inspection of construction 
activities and, in fact, has required the removal and recompaction of manure 
storage pond liners that do not meet established specifications. Upon 
completion of construction activities, the department conducts annual 
inspections of the larger facilities for compliance with the appropriate 
environmental protection regulations. 

It has been our experience, supported by field data, that the North Dakota Department 
of Health CAFO regulations are protective of the environment. They work to protect 
the environment because they have been developed through an open public review 
process, are based upon science and the law, and have been objectively applied 
throughout the state . 

This concludes my testimony. I am happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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"We support a state pre-emption of environmental regulations with regard to local 

zoning of AFOs/CAFOs" 

With this policy statement we arc expressing our belief that the environmental rules and 

regulations governing animal feeding operations should be regulated by the North Dakota 

Department of Health as the state has the resources to carry out this task. Redundancy of 

these regulations is not needed at the township and county level of government. These 

policy statements do not contradict each other as they clearly address different issues. 

In reading Attorney General Letter Opinion 2005-L-27 dated October 4, 2005 

(attached) and after consultation with legal counsel we believe the State currently has 

clear jurisdiction in regulation of environmental health. The opinion clearly states; 

"Counties, of course, have only the authority granted by statute." By not referencing 

environmental health rules in NDCC 11-33-02 and 58-03-11 we believe the counties and 

townships are currently pre-empted from regulating environmental health issues as they 

pertain to AFO's. 

We also have policy that supports consistency in regulation, 

"We support reasonable and consistent environmental regulatory standards that balance 

the interests of producers and other citizens" 

With this policy we are recognizing the importance to agriculture and especially animal 

agriculture of having a consistent set of rules to play by throughout the state. We believe 

the rules developed by the North Dakota Department of Health, while rigorous, allow 

agriculture to grow as well as adequately protecting the air and water quality of North 

Dakota. 

We believe that the future growth of animal agriculture is critical to the future 

economic health of North Dakota. Unfortunately there are many that would have 

agriculture fail to realize their own ideals. The talk of inhumane animal factories, rivers 

of manure, antibiotic resistant super germs, and the destruction of our communities are 

nothing more than scare tactics designed to tum the consuming public against modern 

agricultural practices. We cannot let those that groups that want to shackle agriculture 

dictate the future of this states largest industry. We can and we must stand up to this 

misinformation with determination if our industry is going to survive. You can start by 

passing HB 1420. 
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North Dakota has 53 counties and 1100 townships it is conceivable North Dakota could 

have as many different sets of rules for farmers and ranchers to play by if this bill is not 

passed. Can you imagine the nightmare this could create for a business trying to startup 

or locate in this state. The reality is they could not and would not. Consistency in the 

rules is absolutely imperative if we are going to build our livestock sector to the potential 

it has. 

In North Dakota we have the space, the feed, and the work force that livestock 

enterprise need to exist. When you look at what is going on around us it is terribly 

disheartening to see the lack of activity in North Dakota. Take the hog industry for an 

example, we need have no worries about an over population of hogs. In Minnesota they 

average 138 hogs per square mile, South Dakota is at about 28 hogs per square mile and 

North Dakota is at 3. 7 hogs per square mile. I think you could agree we have a ways to 

go before anyone need get to concerned about too many hogs in this state. 

I had earlier mentioned the economic activity of rural North Dakota benefiting the 

entire state. Dollars generated by animal agriculture have a gross receipts multiplier of 

4.49. That represents a tum over of these dollars in the economy greater than tourism and 

the retail sector combined. By feeding our beef calves here and adding just 300 pounds to 

them we would generate more than $200,000,000.00 in the economy of North Dakota not 

figuring the multiplier effect. The point I am making is the impact of the livestock 

industry on our economy is nothing that can be ignored. 

For all of the reasons I have been talking about and more we must give this industry the 

chance to grow and thrive in this state. The uniformity of rules that HB 1420 will provide 

is huge step in the right direction of making this a reality with out sacrificing local control 

of zoning. I respectfully ask that you give HB 1420 a Do Pass recommendation. Thank 

you. 



• 

• 

• 

Testimony on House Bill 1420 
Presented by 

Rodney Brown 

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. My name is Rodney 
Brown and I am the Stevens Township Treasurer in Ramsey County. I support HB 
1420. --- '---

The township does not have the finances available to monitor environmental regulations. 
So I think its better that the state is responsible for establishing these regulations. 

Thank you for your time. I would try to answer any questions you may have . 
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• Township, county 
split over. zoning 
By LON TONNESON 

S
ETBACKS and odor 
aren't the cause of the 
clash between Ramsey 

County and Prospect Township 
over zoning and livestock de­
velopment. 

. At Issue are the county's ~ 
qt.ilrements thal a person with 
1,000 or more animal units In 

. a concentrated feeding aper~ 
tlon: . 
■ Resubmit the J)f!nnlt to 

the county for review every 
five years. 
■ Pay a 14,000 annual fee. 
■ Agree to pay aU re~ 

able costs In exceu of the fee 
that the county lncurt to mo~ 
ltor the site. 
■ Post a sufficient amount 

of money, but not less than 
$100,000, to be used to clean 
up the site If the company goes 
out of bus!ness. 

· Whtit•a wiong 

•

These . and other measures 
completely block deve. lopment 
of large, modern livestock op­
erations In the county, says 
Pam Brekke, an Edmore, N.D., 
farmer and member of both the 
Ramsey County commission 
and Prospect Township board. 

No one will Invest millions 
in a hog barn or dairy or beef 
feedlot If the county can shut It 
down In five years, she says, 

Noone ls wllllngtoturriover 
his or her operating checkbook 

Key Points 

■--..,."""" wen1 too far with lOl'llng. 
■ Al Issue are new requments 

fu,CAF<)S-

• The """" .. - "' ordtnance Is raasooable. _, 

IN DISPUTE: Pam Brekke 
holds a copy of the Prospect 
Township zoolng ordinance. 

to the county, Permit holders 
have to pay for ally monitoring 
or study a majority of the com­
missioners decides Is reason-
able. , 

Site closure bonds aren't 
even available to the Industry. 
Asking companies to set aside 
$100,000-plus In cash or credit 
Is unrcaaonahle aud unneces-­
sary, she says. 

Brekke suspects that these 
provisions were designed to 
tum away developers without 
banning livestock feeding out• 
right. 

Much of the text of the or• 
dlnance apparently comes 
from an organization called 
GrassRoots Action Center for 
the Environment - a fact she 
learned after the county passed 
the ordinance, she says. 

Among GRACE's many 
causes ls opposition to fanns 
that It defines as factory farms. 
GRACE helps members block 
factory-farm projects In their 
communities. 

On Ill Web ,lte In 2004, 
GRACE cheered passage of 
the Ramsey County zoning or• 
dlnance and noted that It had 
provided the text and research 
for the law, Brekke says. The 
references have since been r& 
moved. 

Ramsey County, commls. 
sloners were told _ that the 
county needed _a tough law to 
protect Devils Lake from pollu-­
tlon, Brekke says, but that they 
could grant variances for appl► 
cants who wanted to build In 
places like Prospecl Township, 
which Is 45 miles from Devils· 
Lake. 

But when commissioners 
started talldng about a real 
permit, they learned they could 
only grant variances on the set• 
back requirements. · 

"I w&S misled,• Brekke says. 

Lawson: No restrictions on the right to farm 

RAMSEY County's ordl-­
nance doesn't restrict 

anyone's right to farm, says 
Joe Lawson. 

Nor does It prevenl anyone 
from buHdlng a concentrated 
anlmal feeding operation. 

The ordinance Hmlts them 
to appropriate sites and glve.s 
the county the power and the 
money to make sure !he op. 
erators comply with the regu• 
latlon, he says. 

Lawson, a reUred Air Force 
pilot and retired farmer from 
Brocket, N.D., serves on the 
nine-member Ramsey County 
plannlllQ and zoning commit• 
tee. He took the lead in writing 
the ordinance. 

Lawson says Ramsey 
County lleeds stronger en­
forcement than whal the state 
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health department provides. 
In a written doe\Jment to the 
planning commission, he de• 
scribes those annual lnspec• 
Uons as two,. to three•hour 
on•site visits In which offlclals 
mostly check nutrient man• 
agement plan documents. 

Having a good plan on 
paper doesn'I mean that ii ls 

being followed, Lawson says. 
'We need to verity that the 

spread areas are not becoming 
oversaturated with nitrates and 
phOsphales.• 

Karl Aockeman, an environ-­
mental engineer with the state 
health department, says the 
department's two Inspectors 
- a third Is being hired":"" visit 
the state's 60 largest CAFOs 
an average of lour times a year 
and check the sites and prac­
tices thoroughly. 'We are not 
jusl chacklng paperwork; ha 

. saya 
Ramsey County should re-­

quire that a permit holder clean 
up a site when It is cJosed, 
Lawson continues. Owners 
of a limlte<J.llabllity company 
are personalty shielded from 
liability. At the end of the day, 
II a company Isn't able to pro­
vide a performance bond or a 
standby letter of credit, !he ap­
plicant probably doesn't have 
Iha financial ability to Clean up, 
he says. 

Lawson contends that the 
Ramsey County Jaw Is ·more 
than reason8ble. II only re­
quires that the county be able 

to verify that the permit holder 
does what he says he will do." 

MaJortty rules ~ 
Ramsey County's zoning o,-. 
dinanca wee cmflad In open, 
pubtlc meetings, Lawson 
says. People interested in 
expanding or starting new 
livestock ellterprlses par• 
tlclpated In the meetings. The 
nfne-,membef planning com· 
mlttee also received help from 
livestock and zoning experts. 

"Everyone had a place 
at lhe table,• he says. Some 
dldn't participate, but that was 
their choice. 

The ordinance may have 
some taxt that came from the 
GrassRoots Action Center for 
the Environment, but Lawson 
says he looked at 40 different 
sources of Information, The 
ordinance also has language 
from the state model ordl· 
nance and North Dakota State 
UnivefS!ty recommendations. 

The county commission 
passed !he ordinance unanl• 
mously, and a majority st!IJ 
supports It !Oday, Lawson 
points out. 

Sierra Club recommends 
strategy to block CAFOs 
By LON TONNESON 

THE following is a five-step strategy from the Sierra Club to 
I keep concentrated animal feeding operations from locating 

near you. The Information Is reprinted verbatim from the Web · 
site, www.sierraclub.org/1aetory1armslresourr:eslstrategies.asp. 

1) Use the public comment and review process. 
Get on every mailing list possible: Division of Environmental 
Quality (slate environmental agency), U_SDA/Natural Resources 
Conservalion SeNice, EPA, Army Corps, county planning and 
zoning, and any other agency Iha! may have to issue permits 
or rtMeW appllcatlons. Scrutlniza the public notices and other 
information sent out on CAFOs - the into may be concealed or 
fisted in such a way that ii is not immediitely apparent. 

Follow up: Provide comments on water quar1ty, air quality, 
socio-economic Issues, whatever. You don'I have to be an 
expert (although soon you will discover !hat you are becoming 
one); keep reminding the agencies that lhey are r8Qllred not 
only to listen but to respond to citizens' comments. Get involved 
In state--level committees and agency worl<ing groups that 
are charged with issues related to water quality, air quality, or 

. CAFOs. Push awry button at eve:ry level. 
Keep oommentlng and enUst others to Jorn you. Let them 

know thal you are not going away - this falls under the 
heading of "Wearing them down." Sooner or later, you will begin 
to ootice incremental changes in the way lhings are done, and 
II enough forces are gathered, the planning and zoning, health 
departments, and finally the state agencies will begin to re• 
spond positively - and may even tum down a permit or make 
conditions actually protective ol the environmenl (which means 
thal the applicant will likely withdraw). 

2) O~nlza a frlendty ''letter from the neighbors:• 
ti you l rn that a CAFO is moving in or a landowner is about 
to b a a contract grower, one tactic Missouri activists have 
used succ&ssft.iJly Is what is now known as the "neighbor letter.~ 
aune simply, all ot lhe adjacent and neighboring landowners 
send a letter to the company and lhe polentiat contract grower 
telling them that everyone ls having th~ir properties appraised; 
and wut have the prof)ertles re-appraised nine months after 
hog production begins. The letter concludes by stating that the 
neighbors will sue the cor:npany and the grower for any loss 
of property values. The appraisals must be completed and the 
letter sent prior to the beginning of construction of the facillUes. 

3) Pr88a for county health ordlnanCes. · 
Most states won't let counties zone for ·agricultural operations." 
Even though we all know that a CAFO is realty an Industrial 
operation, not a farm In any sense, legally these operations 
are stfll considered •agricultural." But, au counties have the 
authority, Indeed the duly, to adopt ordinances to protect the 
public health and welfare, Including protection from rank odors 
and noxious emissions. You and your allies can place pressure 
upon country commissioners lo adopt such ordinances. 

4) u88 the "threatened or Impaired watersheds" process. 
Obtain from your state water regulatory agency or the EPA re­
gional offices for your area·a copy of the Usting of all "impaired 
water bodies· or the "303(d) Hsr tor your state. Every state has 
such a list. They can also provide you with a copy ol the regula• 

,!Ions that govern the impaired water bodies process. No new 
or expanded CAFOs are allowed to locate in the. drainages of 
Impaired water bOd!es unless very strict standards are met. lf 
you know of such a new or expanding operation tn an impaired 
water body, report this to the state agency, the regional office of 
EPA, and to the Sierra Club Clean Water Campaign. 

5) Sue them. 
This Is not necessarily the last resort. In fact, just tillng a lawsult 
opens a lot_of doors and lets everyone- the agencies, polili· 
cians and the CAFO owner or grower- know that you mean 
business. Suits can be filed under the •citizens sun· provisions 
ot the lederal Clean Air Act and Clean Water Act, and legal 
fees are recoverable (which is how your attorney will get paid) . 
Lawsuits are easier and you are more likely to prevail it a group 
of plalntlHs files jointly. The problem with a lawsuit is that you 
may have to show that you have been harmed, which means 
waiting until after something negative has occurred. Recent 
cases, however, have prevailed on the basis of a "presumptive 
nuisance; which means that certain things can be presumed to 
be a nuisance and there Is no need to wait until II happens. 

Read more at www.sierracfub.org/tactorytarmslresources/ 
strategies.asp. 
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Testimony on House Bill 1420 
Presented by 
John Peyer! 

My name is John Peyer! and I have been a township officer for about 30 years in Coulee 
Township in R~ County. ,---__ -Our township has no one available, nor could we stand the expense of monitoring the 
environmental regulations for animal feeding operations. I don't think we even have 
anyone available to provide that service. 

I would be very comfortable with the State Health Department and their trained personnel 
to deal with the health and environmental issues. Their regulations are based on sound 
science, rather than pseudo-science injected by the people who have been invading our 
state with their scare tactics. 

Modem animal agriculture demands more than forty acres, a mule and ma and pa feeding 
the chickens and slopping the hogs. I would strongly urge you to give this bill a "do 
pass" 

Thank you for your time . 



Testimony on House Bill 1420 
Presented by 

Rodney Brown 

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. My name is Rodney 
Brown and I am the Stevens Township Treasurer in Ramsey County. I support HB 
1420. 

The township does not have the finances available to monitor environmental regulations. 
So I think its better that the state is responsible for establishing these regulations. 

Thank you for your time. I would try to answer any questions you may have. 
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Testimony of Mike Beltz 

North Dakota Ag Coalition 

House Bill 1420 

January 25, 2007 

Chairman Johnson, members of the House Agriculture Committee: 

I am Mike Beltz. I farm near Hillsboro and am here today as the vice chairman of 

the North Dakota Ag Coalition. On behalf of the Ag Coalition, I encourage your support 

ofHB 1420. 

For more than 20 years, the North Dakota Ag Coalition has provided a unified 

voice for North Dakota agricultural interests. Today, the Coalition is made up of 30 

statewide organizations or associations that represent specific commodities or have a 

direct interest in agriculture. Through the Ag Coalition, these members seek to enhance 

the business climate for North Dakota's agricultural producers. 

The Ag Coalition takes a position on a limited number of issues that have a 

significant impact on North Dakota's ag industry. HB 1420 is one of these issues, as it 

will impact feeding operations statewide and across species. 

The Ag Coalition is in support of this bill as it seeks to clarify the intent that the 

North Dakota Department of Health will have regulation over health and environmental 

issues surrounding the development of feeding operations. The Department of Health 

has the resources and expertise to set and effectively administer these regulations. The 

bill will provide a consistent set of guidelines for feedlot operators statewide, while still 

allowing counties and townships zoning authority, which is their area of expertise. 

This bill will help create uniform health and environmental regulations for feeding 

operations. thus simplifying the development process for North Dakota livestock 

producers. 

Therefore, we encourage your support of HB 1420. 
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■ Definitions 

■ Federal Requirements 
'_.,·,-.... ..._.,e,, ~: 

,-.a.. ; ,• '7i~_.-i .•~l{i,;, 
-.. ' ..,.- ,, 

■ Updated Regulations " 

■ Who must apply 

■ When must they apply 

■ How to apply 

■ Permitting process 
■ Other Regulations 

Definitions 

■ Animal Feeding Operation (AFO): An operation is an 
AFC if the following conditions are met: 

■ Animals are stabled or confined, and fed or maintained 
for a total of 45 days in any 12-month period. 

■ Vegetative growth or post harvest residues are not 
sustained during the normal growing season in the lot 
or facility. 

■ Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO): An 
AFC which is defined as a Large CAFC or designated as 
a CAFC in accordance with NDAC Section 33-16-03.1-04. 

1 



Large CAFOs 

■ Is an AFO that stables or confines equal to or over the 
following animal numbers. 

■ 700 mature dairy cows 

■ 1,000 veal calves 

■ 1,000 cattle (beef/dairy heifers, steers, bulls, cow/calf pairs) 

■ 2,500 swine (55 pounds or more) 

■ 10,000 swine (less than 55 pounds) 
■ 500 horses 

■ 10,000 sheep or lambs 

■ also numbers for chickens, turkeys, and ducks 

Medium AFOs 

■ Is an AFO that stables or confines, or has between the 
following animal numbers: 

■ 200-699 mature dairy cattle 
■ 300-999 veal calves 
■ 300-999 cattle (beef/dairy heifers, steers, bulls, cow/calf pairs) 

■ 750-2,499 swine (55 pounds or more) 
■ 3,000-9,999 swine (less than 55 pounds) 
■ 150-499 horses 
• 3,000-9,999 sheep or lambs 
11 also numbers for chickens, turkeys, and ducks 

2 



,._ 

:.::~\.~~ 

Medium AFOs Requiring a Permit 

■ And meets one or both of the following conditions: 

■ Pollutants are discharged into waters of the U.S. 
through a man-made ditch, flushing system, or other 
similar man-made device or 

■ Pollutants are discharged directly into waters of the 
U.S. which originate outside of and pass over, across, 
or through the facility or otherwise come into direct 
contact with the animals confined in the operation. 

Small AFOs 

■ Is an AFO that stables or confines, or has between the 
following animal numbers: 

■ 1-199 mature dairy cattle 
■ 1-299 veal calves 
■ 1-299 cattle (beef/dairy heifers, steers, bulls, cow/calf pairs) 

■ 1-7 49 swine (55 pounds or more) 
■ 1-2,999 swine (less than 55 pounds) 
■ 1-149 horses 
■ 1-2 ,999 sheep or lambs 
■ also numbers for chickens, turkeys, and ducks 

3 
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■ Pollutants are discharged into waters of the U.S . 
through a man-made ditch, flushing system, or other 
similar man-made device. 

■ Pollutants are discharged directly into waters of the 
U.S. which originate outside of and pass over, across, 
or through the facility or otherwise come into direct 
contact with the animals confined in the operation. 

■ AND is designated by the NDDH 

Updated Regulations 

■ Animal Units no longer exists 

■ Combination of Animals no longer exists 

■ "No Potential to Pollute" was added 

■ Does not include Large CAFO 

■ NMP can be kept on site with only certain information 
required to be sent to the department when submitting 
design plans 

■ Exceptions: Large CAFO, daily haul, Phosphorous 
Index is in the very high range, or spreading on frozen 
ground 
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• Updated Regulations 

■ Written agreements for spreading manure on acres 
which are owned or operated by a different entity which 
is not under the control of the facility 

■ Record retention is required for not less than 3 years 
from the date generated for state approved facilities and 
not less than 5 years from the date generated for 
NDPDES permitted CAFOs 

■ Permit requires renewal every 5 years 

Updated Regulations 

■ Capacity of containment facility increased to 270 days + 
25 year 24 hour storm event 
■ Except for Swine, Poultry, and Veal which is 270 days 

+ 1 OOyear 24 hour storm event 

■ Geological investigation 

■ Laboratory tests of liner material or in-situ material 
regardless of size 

■ 18" liner allowable for certain areas 

5 



· , ;qi ■ NDPDES Permit Required 
,t,.·~:· 

■ Record Keeping and Retention 

■ Annual Reporting 

■ Requires containment, "No potential to Pollute" does not 
apply 

■ Includes feed storage (ex. silage, potato waste, beet 
tailings) 

■ Department approved NMP 
■ Soil and manure tests 

, Who Must Apply? 

■ Large CAFOs 

■ Medium AFOs which cause or are likely to cause pollution 
to waters of the state or are within ¼ mile of surface 
waters of the state 

■ Medium AFOs which the department has determined to 
cause or are likely to cause pollution to waters of the 
state 

■ Small AFOs which the department has determined to 
cause or are likely to cause pollution to waters of the 
state 
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When must they apply? 

■ An existing CAFO shall submit a permit application 
by 

■ February 12, 2006 

■ An existing medium AFO within ¼ mile of surface 
water shall submit a permit application by 

■ July 1, 2008 

■ Compliance date set by the department 

How to apply 

■ Applications and engineering assistance are available 
through the 

■ Department of Health 

■ www.health.state.nd.us/wg/Anima1Feeding0perations/ 
AFOProgram.htm 

■ Local NRCS Office 

■ 319 Watershed Coordinator 

■ The Department is also available for on-site visits if 
requested. 
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Permitting Process 

■ The department receives the design, NMP, etc. 

■ Information is reviewed for completeness. 

■ If any information is incomplete the department will 
contact the producer, 319, or the local NRCS office. 

■ If or when information is complete the department will 
continue the review for compliance with state law. 

Permitting Process (cont.) 

■ When the design meets state regulations a permit or 
public notice will be issued. (public notice is dependant on 
size of facility) 

■ The permit is not finalized until it is signed by both the 
producer and health department officials. 

■ Construction can begin. 
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New Legislation 

■ House Bill 1291 

■ Adopted into NDCC 23-25-11 

■ Effective Aug 1, 2005 

■ Changed the odor laws 

■ Changed the zoning for non-zoned counties 

Odor Law 

■ City zoning or extraterritorial zoning 
■ Residence established before the agricultural operation 

■ Odor readings taken at property boundary 
■ Agricultural operation established before residence 

■ Odor readings taken 100 feet from residence but not less 
than 500 feet from property boundary 

■ Outside of city zoning authority 
■ Residence established before the agricultural operation 

■ Odor readings taken 100 feet from the residence 
■ Agricultural operation established before residence 

■ Odor readings taken at any point beyond one-half mile 
except for property owned by the operator of the facility 
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Odor Law 

■ If a county or township has zoned 
■ If setback distance is greater than one-half mile, odor 

reading will be taken at that setback distance rather 
than one-half mile, except for residence which was 
established before the animal feeding operation, 
unless an odor easement is obtained. 

■ A permitted animal feeding operation may expand its 
permitted capacity by 25% on one occasion without 
triggering a higher setback distance. 

Odor Law 

■ There may be limitations required by local zoning authority 
such as: 
■ Setback requirements from 

■ roads 
■ residence 

■ Special use permits. 

■ Check with City, Township or County for zoning 
requirements . 

10 
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Dead Animal Disposal 

■ Death from most diseases, must be disposed within 36 
hours by: 

■ Burning 

■ Burying with at least 4 feet of cover 

■ Rendering by licensed rendering plant 

■ Composting 

■ Landfill 

■ Method approved by State Veterinarian. 

■ Must NOT dispose of carcass along public highway, 
stream, lake or river. 

Further Information 
Brady Espe (328-5228) 

Michael Berg (328-5219) 
Karl Rockeman (328-5225) 

North Dakota Department of Health 
1200 Missouri Ave. 

Bismarck, ND 58506-5520 
Email: bespe@state.nd.us 

mdberg@state.nd.us 
krockema@state.nd.us 
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CHAPTER 23-29 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AND LAND PROTECTION 

23-29-01. Finding of necessity. The legislative assembly of the state finds that: 

1. The people of North Dakota have a right to a clean environment, and the costs of 
maintaining a clean environment through the efficient environmentally acceptable 
management of solid wastes should be borne by those who use such services. 

2. Serious economic, management, and technical problems exist in the management 
of solid wastes resulting from residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, and 
other activities carried on in said jurisdictions. 

3. Inefficient and improper methods of managing solid wastes create serious hazards 
to the public health, result in scenic blights, cause pollution of air and water 
resources, cause accident hazards, increase rodent and insect disease vectors, 
have an adverse effect on land values, create public nuisances, and otherwise 
interfere with community life and development. ' 

4. While the management of solid wastes is the responsibility of each person, problems 
of solid waste management have become a matter statewide in scope and concern, 
and necessitate state action through technical assistance and leadership in the 
application of new improved methods and processes to reduce the amount of solid 
wastes and unsalvageable materials and to promote environmentally acceptable 
and economical solid waste management. 

23-29-02. Declaration of purpose. It is hereby declared to be the purposes of this 
chapter to: 

1. Plan for and regulate the storage, collection, transportation, resource recovery, and 
disposal of solid wastes in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and 
to enhance the environment for the people of the state. 

2. Establish and maintain a cooperative state program of planning and technical 
assistance for solid waste management. 

3. Provide the authority to and require persons to plan and provide efficient, 
environmentally acceptable solid waste management. 

4. Provide the authority for the review of plans and facilities for solid waste 
management. 

5. Provide the authority to issue permits for the operation of solid waste management 
activities. 

6. Promote the application of resource recovery systems which preserve and enhance 
the quality of air, water, and land resources. 

7. Promote and assist in the development of markets for recovered and recycled 
materials. 

8. Encourage by 1995 at least a ten percent reduction in volume of municipal waste 
deposited in landfills, by 1997 at least a twenty-five percent reduction, and by 2000 
at least a forty percent reduction. 

23-29-03. Definitions. 
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1. "Collection' means the aggregation of solid waste from the places at which the 
waste was generated . 

2. "Department' means the state department of health. 

3. "Disposal' means the discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking, or 
placing of any solid waste int9 gr Cl) any land Qr wc1t~r)ncludmg ground water. 

4. "Industrial waste" means solid waste, which is not a hazardous waste regulated 
under chapter 23-20.3, generated from the combustion or gasification of municipal 
waste and from industrial and manufacturing processes. The term does not include 
municipal waste or special waste. 

5. "Infectious waste' means solid waste that may contain pathogens with sufficient 
virulence and in sufficient quantity that exposure of a susceptible human or animal to 
the solid waste could cause the human or animal to contract an infectious disease. 

6. "Landfill" means a publicly or privately owned area of land where solid wastes are 
permanently disposed. 

7. "Litter' means discarded and abandoned solid waste materials. 

8. "Major appliance" means an air conditioner, clothes dryer, clothes washer, 
dishwasher, freezer, microwave oven, oven, refrigerator, stove, furnace, water 
heater, humidifier, dehumidifier, garbage disposal, trash compactor, or other similar 
appliance. 

9. "Municipal waste' means solid waste that includes garbage, refuse, and trash 
generated by households, motels, hotels, and recreation facilities; by public and 
privataJacilities; and by commercial.• wholesale, and private and retail businesses.. 
The term does not include special waste or industrial waste. 

10. "Open burning' means the combustion of solid waste without control of combustion 
air to maintain adequate temperature for efficient combustion, containment of the 
combustion reaction in an enclosed device to provide sufficient residence time and 
mixing for complete combustion, and control of the emission of the combustion 
products. 

11. "Person" means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, 
firm, association, trust, estate, public or private institution, group, federal agency, 
political subdivision of this state or any other state or political subdivision thereof, 
and any legal successor, representative agent, or agency of the foregoing. 

12. "Political subdivision' means a city, county, township, or solid waste management 
authority. 

13. ''Resource recovery" means the use, reuse, or recycling of materials, substances, 
energy, or products contained within or derived from municipal waste. 

14. 'Solid waste" means any garbage, refuse, sludge from a waste treatment plant, 
water supply treatment plant, or air pollution control facility and other discarded 
material, including solid, liquid, semisolid, or contained gaseous material resulting 
from industrial, commercial, mining, and agricultural operations, and from 
community activities. The term does not include: 

a. Agricultural waste, including manures and crop residues, returned to the soil as 
fertilizer or soil conditioners; or 
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b. Solid or dissolved materials in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved material 
in irrigation return flows or industrial discharges that are point sources subject 
to permits under section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
,imended [Pub. L. 92-500: 86 Stat. 816: 33 USC. 1251 et seq.], or source, 
special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 
1954, as amended (68 Stat. 919; 42 U.S.C. 2011 et seq.]. 

15. "Solid waste management' means the purposeful systematic control of the storage, 
collection, transport, composting, resource recovery, land treatment, and disposal of 
solid waste. 

16. "Special waste" means solid waste that is not a hazardous waste regulated under 
chapter 23-20.3 and includes waste generated from energy conversion facilities; 
waste from crude oil and natural gas exploration and production; waste from mineral 
and ore mining, beneficiation, and extraction; and waste generated by surface coal 
mining operations. The term does not include municipal waste or industrial waste. 

17. "Storage" means the containment and holding of solid waste after generation for a 
temporary period, at the end of which the solid waste is processed for resource 
recovery, treated, disposed of, or stored elsewhere. 

18. "Transport" means the otfsite movement of solid waste. 

23-29-04. Powers and duties of the department. The department shall have the 
responsibility for the administration and enforcement of this chapter. It shall have the power and 
its duties shall be to: 

1. Administer the state solid waste management program pursuant to provisions of this 
chapter . 

2. Provide technical assistance on request to political subdivisions of the state and 
cooperate with appropriate federal agencies in carrying out the duties under this 
chapter, and may, on request, provide technical assistance to other persons. 

3. Encourage and recommend procedures for the utilization of self-financing solid 
waste management systems and intermunicipal agencies in accomplishing the 
desired objective of this chapter. 

4. Promote the planning and application of resource recovery facilities and systems 
which preserve and enhance the quality of air, water, and all resources. 

5. Serve as the official state representative for all purposes of the Federal Solid Waste 
Disposal Act [Pub. L. 89-272; 79 Stat. 997; 42 U S.C. 3251 et seq.], as amended, 
and for other state or federal legislation to assist in the management of solid wastes. 

6. Survey the solid waste management needs within the state and maintain and 
upgrade the North Dakota solid waste management plan. 

7. Require any person or combinations thereof within the state to submit for review and 
approval a solid waste management plan to show that solid wasles will be disposed 
of in accordance with the previsions of this chapter. 

? Adopt ar.d enforce rules governing solid ·.vaste ma~agement, in order to conserve 
the air. water. and land resources of the state; protect the public heallh; prevent 
,onvironmemal pollution and public nuisances; and enable the department to 
::;dminister this chapter, the adopted sciia wasre management plan, and delegated 
:ederal prcgrams. 
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9. Establish the procedures for permits governing the design, construction, operation, 
arid closure of solid waste management facilities and systems. 

10. Prepare, issue, modify, revoke, and enforce orders, after investigation, inspection, 
notice, and hearing, prohibiting violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or of 
any rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, and requiring the taking of such 
remedial measures for solid waste management as may be necessary or 
appropriate to implement or effectuate the provisions and purposes of this chapter. 

11. Adopt rules to establish categories and classifications of solid waste and solid waste 
management facilities based on waste type and quantity, facility operation, or other 
facility characteristics and to limit, restrict, or prohibit the disposal of solid wastes 
based on environmental or public health rationale. 

12. Adopt rules to establish standards and requirements for each category of solid waste 
management facility. 

13. Adopt rules to establish financial assurance requirements to be met by any person 
proposing construction or operation of a solid waste management facility sufficient to 
provide for closure and postclosure activities. Financial assurance requirements 
must include any or all of the following: insurance, trust funds, surety bonds, letters 
of credit, personal bonds, certificates of deposit, and financial tests or corporate 
guarantees. 

14. Conduct an environmental compliance background review of any applicant for any 
permit requested after July 7, 1991. In conducting the review, if the department 
finds that an applicant for a permit has intentionally misrepresented or concealed 
any material fact from the department, or has obtained a permit by intentional 
misrepresentation or concealment of a material fact, has been convicted of a felony 
or pleaded guilty or nolo contendere to a felony involving the laws of any state or the 
federal government within three years preceding the application for the permit, or 
has been adjudicated in contempt of an order of any court enforcing the laws of this 
state or any other state or the federal government within three years preceding the 
application for the permit, the department may deny the application. The 
department shall consider the relevance of the offense to the business to which the 
permit is issued, the nature and seriousness of the offense, the circumstances under 
which the offense occurred, the date of the offense, and the ownership and 
management structure in place at the time of the offense. 

23-29-05. Local government ordinances. Any political subdivision of the state may 
enact and enforce a solid waste management ordinance if such ordinance is equal to or more 
stringent than this chapter and the rules adopted pursuant to this chapter. 

23-29-05.1. Littering and open burning prohibited - Penalty. 

1. No person may discard and abandon any litter, furniture, or major appliances upon 
public property or upon private property not owned by that person, unless the 
property is designated for the disposal of litter, furniture, or major appliances and 
that person is authorized lo use the property for that purpose. 

2. No person may engage in the open burning of solid waste, unless the burning is 
conducted in accordance with rules adopted by the department. 

3. A person violating lhis section is guilty of an infraction, except if the litter discarded 
and abandoned amounted to more than one cubic foot (0.0283 cubic meter] in 
volume or if the litter consisted of furniture or a major appliance, the offense is a 
class B misdemeanor . 
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Chapter ATCP 51 

LIVESTOCK FACILITY SITING 

Subch1pler 1- Definitions .nd Gencr1\ Pn,\·lslons 
ATCP 5 ! .01 Drfinitions. 
ATCP 51.02 Scope ofthi\ chapter. 
ATCP 5 !.04 Anin1al units. 
ATCP 5 1.06 Local approval of existing !ivcs1ock fa.;-ilit1es 
ATCP 5 ! .08 Duration of local approval. 

Sub('h1ptrr II - Livest<K'k Facility Siting Standard~ 
ATCP 51.10 Livestock facility siling sumdard~; general. 
ATCP 51.12 Livestock structure!; location on property. 

No1e; This chaptt>r is adopted under authority of ss. 93.07 ( l) and 9J.90 (2), Stats. 
This chapter interprets Wisconsin's !ivestod; facility siting Jaw, s. 93.90, Stats, 
According to the livestock facility siting law, a county, town, city or viUage ("political 
subdivision") may not prohibit or disapprove a new or cx1landcd livestock facility (lf 
any si1.e unless one of the following applies 

The site is located in a 1.oning di,trict that is not an agricultural zoning district 

The site is located in an agricultural wning district where the livestock facility is 
prohibited. A prohibition. if any. must be clearly justified on the basis ofpubhc health 
or 111fety. The livestock facility siting law limits e•clusmnary zoning based solely on 
livestock facility size. 

The proposed livestock facihty \"iolates a valid local on:linance adopted 11nder cer­
tai11 ~late Jaws related to shore/and zonin11. flnodplam ,.oniog. construction site ero­
.~ion control (lr stom1wa1er managcmcnL 

The proposed livestock faciliry viola1es a local building, elecnical or plumbing 
code tha1 is con~istcnt with the state building. electrical 01 plumbing code for that type 
of facility. 

The proposed livestock facility will have 500 or n1ore "animal uniis" (or wi!l 
exceed a lower r,enmi thre~hold incorporated in a Inca! :uming ordinance prior !(l July 
I 9, 2003), and the proposed fadli1y violates one 1>f1he following 

• A state livestock fadlity siting standard adop1ed by the department under this 
chapter. 

• A more stringent local on.Jinance standard enacted priur to the siting applica· 
tinn. The more stringent focal standard must be based on reasonable and sci­
entifically defensible findings of fan. adopled by the local )urisdiction. which 
clearly show lhttt the dand<1rd is neces~ury to protect public health or safely 

Some. but not all, political subdivisions require local approval of new or expanded 
livestock facilities. The livestock facili_ty siting law dorJ not n-quire local approval 
But if local approval 1s required, the polillcal subdivision must grant or deny approval 
based on this chapter. A political subdivision may not consider other siting criteria. 
or apply standards that differ from this chapter. except as provided in the live~tock 
facility siting !aw or this chapter. 

The department must review the livestock facility siting standaros under this chap· 
ttr al least once every 4 years {.{l'I' s. 93.90 (2) {c). Stats.). The department will revtew 
the §tandards at least annual!) during the first 4 years of n.ik implementation. The 
departmenl will track local siting applications and decisions (j•ee s. ATCP 51.34 (5)). 
and will review that infom1a1ion 111 least monthly during the fin:1 :,ear of nilt> imrle• 
me11ta1ion. 

The livestock facilily siting law includes the followmg slalements or legislative 
intern: 

"This flaw) is an enactmen1 nf state-wide ~oncem for the purpose of providing 
unifom1 regulation of livestock racilities." 

" ... [T]he department shall consider whether [li1·1•.Ttndr • .facili1_11 siting .mm• 
dard.sj are all ofihe following: 

• Protective ofpublic health or safety. 
• PractlCal 11nd workable. 

• Cost-effective. 

Objective. 

Based on available scientific evidence that has been subjected to peer review. 

Designed to promote the growth and viability of animal agriculture in this 
state. 
~igned 10 balance lhe economic viability offann operations with protecting 
m1tural rei.ources and other community interests. 

Usa.ble by officials of political subdivisions." 

Subchapter 1- Definitions and General Provisions 

ATCP 51.01 Definitions. In this chapter: 
(1) "Adjacent" means located on land parcels that touch each 

other, or on land parcels that are separated only by a river, stream, 
or transportation or utility right-of-way. 

(2) "Affected neighbor" means, for purposes of the odor score 
calculation under s. ATCP 51.14, a residence or high-use building 

ATCP5114 
ATCP 51.16 
ATCPSl.11! 
ATCP 5 !.20 

Od1;1r and air emissions 
Nutrient management. 
Waste storage facililies 
Runoff managemenl 

Subchapttr 111-Appliutlon and Approval 
ATCP 5 !.JO Application. 
ATCP 51 .32 Timely action on application. 
ATCP 51.34 Granting or denying an applicatimi. 
ATCP 5 l .J6 Record of decision-making 

located within 2,500 feet of any livestock structure at a proposed 
livestock facility. "Affected neighbor" does not include a resi­
dence or high-use building owned by any of the following: 

(a) The livestock facility operator. 

(b) A person who affirmatively agrees to have the residence or 
high-use building excluded from the odor score calculation under 
s. ATCP 51.14. 

Note: The odor score calculation under s. ATCP SI, 14 is based. in part, on the 
proilimity 11nd density of"a/fe~ted neighbor.;." S('<' Apf'('11d(l A. wvrlt.1/irl'f 2. 

(3) "Animal tot" means a feedlot, barnyard or other outdoor 
facility where livestock are concentrated for feeding or other pur­
poses. "Animal lot" does not include a pasture or winter grazing 
area. Two or more animal lots at the same livestock facility consti­
tute a single animal lot, for purposes of this chapter. if runoff from 
the animal lots drains to the same treatment area under s. ATCP 
51.20 (2) or if runoff from the animal lot treatment areas con­
verges or reaches the same surface water within 200 feet of any of 
those treatment areas. 

(4) "Animal unit" has the meaning that was given ins. NR 
243.03 (3) as of April 27, 2004. 

Note: Secs. 93.90 (Im) (a), Stats., ands. ATCP 51 .04. "Animal unit" equiva!en!s. 
for different species and types of livestock, arc shown in Appendix A. works/icrt J 
(animal umt.<). The "anim11I unit" equivalents are based on s. NR 243.03 (3) a~ ii 
e:ii.isted on April 27. 2004 (the daie on which the livestock facility siting Jaw. 2003 
Wis. Act 23~. was published). 

(5) "BARNY model" means the NRCS "Evaluation System to 
Rate Feedlot Pollution Potential," ARM-NC-17 (April 1982 ver­
sion with modifications as of August 2005). 

Note: The R!\RNY model i~ a commonl:i,· used computer nu,del that prt"dic1s nutri• 
ent rum,fffn1m anin111! 101s. Copies of the BARNY model are 011 file with t11e depart­
ment, the secretary of state and lhe re visor of slalutes. An Excel computer spreod­
i-hec1 version is available at www.datcp.i.1.ate.wi.u~ 

(6) "Bedrock" means the top of the shallowest layer of a soil 
profile that consists of consolidated rock material or weathered~ 
in-place material, more than 50% of the volume of which will be 
retained on a 2 mm soil sieve. 

(7) "Certified agricultural engineering practitioner" means an 
agricultural engineering practitioner who is certified under s. 
ATCP 50.46 with a rating under s. ATCP 50.46 (5) that authorizes 
the practitioner to certify every matter that the practitioner certi­
fies under this chapter, 

(8) "Cluster" means any group of one or more livestock struc­
tures within a livestock facility. 

{9) "Complete application for local approval" means an 
application that contains everything required under s. ATCP 51.30 
(1)10(4). 

(10) "Department'' means the Wisconsin department of agri­
culture, trade and consumer protection. 

(11) "Direct runoff'' has the meaning given in s. NR 151.015 
(7). 

Nole: Under s. NR 151.015 (7 ), "direct runoff' means a discharg:c of a significant 
amount ofpnllutanL~ to woter1 of the state resul!ing from any of the following prac­
tices: 

Rcgi.dcr. April, 2006. No. 60-1 
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ja) Uunc,!T from a ma1rnre s1orage fai;ili1y 

(b) Runoff from an animal !01 thal can be pred1ctl'!d to reach surfac,: ""alcr~ of1hc 
state through a defined or channelized now path 0r man··made com·e>·ancc. 

(c) Discharge of leachate from a manure pile. 
(d) Seepage from a manure storage facility 

(c) Constructioo of a manure storage facility in pem1eable soils, c,r over frnctured 
bedrock, without a liner designed according to s. NR I 54.04 (3) 

(12) "DNR" means the Wisconsin department of natural 
resources. 

(13) "Expanded livestock facility" means the entire livestock 
facility that is created by the expansion, after May I, 2006, of an 
existing livestock facility. "Expanded livestock facility" includes 
all livestock structures in the expanded facility, regardless of 
whether those strnctures are new, existing or altered. 

Not~: This chapter applies to local approvals of m•11· or apauded livestock facili­
ties 1ha1 will h11ve 500 or more animal units (or will e~ceed a lnwe-rpem1it threshold 
inco'T'orated in a local z011itrf.! ordinance prior to July 19. 200JJ. St>r s. ATCP 51.0~. 
Although •his chapter cover,; alJ livestoc~ struc1ures in an "e1.panded livestock facil­
i1y," ('\isling structures are subjcct to less rigorous standards than ncw or e11pan<led 
structures, and arc completely c~cmpt ti'om certain requircmcms 

(14) ·'Expansion" means an increase in the largest number of 
animal units kept at a livestock focility on at least 90 days in any 
12-month period. The acquisition of an existing livestock facility. 
by the operator of an adjacent livestock facility, does not consti­
tute an "expansion" unless that operator increases the largest num­
ber of animal units kept at the combined livestock facilities on at 
least 90 days in any 12-month period. 

Note: Sees. ATCP 51.04. 

(15) "Fine soil particles" means soil particles that pass 
through a# 200 soil sieve. 

Note: Secs. NR 151.002(32) 

(16) "1-ligh-use building" means any of the following build­
ings: 

(a) A residential building that has at least 6 distinct dwelling 
units. 

(b) A restaurant, hotel, motel or tourist rooming house th.it 
holds a pennit under s. 254.64, Stats. 

(c) A i.chuul classruom building. 
(d) A hospital or licensed care facility. 
(e) A non-farm business or workplace that is normally occu­

pied, during at least 40 hours of each week of the year, by custom­
ers or employed workers. 

(17) "Karst feature" means an area or superficial geologic fea­
ture subject to bedrock dissolution so that it is likely to provide a 
conduit to groundwater. "Karst feature" may include caves, 
enlarged frach1res, mine features. exposed bedrock surfaces, sink­
holes, springs, seeps or swallets. 

(18) "Livestock" means domestic animals traditionally used 
in this state in the production of food, fiber or other animal prod­
ucts. "Livestock" includes cattle, swine, poultry, sheep and goats. 
"Livestock" does not include equine animals, bison, fann-raised 
deer, fish, captive game birds, ratites, camel ids or mink. 

(19) "Livestock facility" means a feedlot, dairy fann or other 
operation where livestock are or will be fed, confined. maintained 
or stabled for a total of 45 days or more in any 12-month period. 
A "livestock facility" includes all of the tax parcels of land on 
which the facility is located, but docs not include a pasture or win­
ter grazing area. Related livestock facilities are collectively 
treated as a single "livestock facility" for purposes of this chapter, 
except that an operator may elect to treat a separate species facility 
as a separate "livestock facility." 

Note: Sec definition of"rclatcd livestock facilities .. in sub. (36) and "separate spe­
cies facility .. in sub. 08) 

(20) "Livestock structure" means a building or other structure 
used to house or feed livestock, to confine livestock for milking, 
to confine livestock for feeding other than grazing. to store live­
stock feed, or to collect or store waste generated at a livestock 
facility. "Livestock structure" includes a barn, milking ·parlor, 
feed storage facility, feeding facility, animal lot or waste storage 
facility. "Livestock structure" does not include a pasture or winter 
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grazing area, a fence surrounding a pasture or winter grazing area, 
a livestock watering or feeding facility in a pasture or winter graz­
ing area. or a machine shed or like facility that is not used for live­
stock. 

(21) "Local approval" means an approval, required by local 
ordinance, of a new or expanded livestock facility. "Local 
approval" includes a license, permit, special exception, condi­
tional use pennit or other fonn of local authorization. "Local 
approval" does not include any of the following: 

(a) An approval required by a political subdivision within the 
scope of its authority under s. 59.692, 59.693, 60.627, 61.351, 
61.354, 62.23 I, 62.234 or 87.30, Stats. 

Nolt: Secs. 93.90 (3) (a) 3 .. Stalti. The sL1tutes listed in par. (a} pertain to shore­
land zoning, floodplain z1ming, construction site erosion control and stnn11watcr 
manai;ement 

(b) An approval required under a local building, electrical or 
plumbing code, if the standards for approval are consistent with 
standards established under the state building, electrical or plumb­
ing code for that type of facility. 

Note: Secs. 93.90 (3) (a) 4 .. Stats 

(22) "Local ordinance" or "local code" means an ordinance 
enacted by a political subdivision. 

(23) "Manure" means excreta from livestock kept at a live­
stock facility. "Manure" includes livestock bedding, water, soil, 
hair, feathers, and other debris that becomes intermingled with 
livestock excreta in nonnal manure handling operations. 

(24) "Minor alteration" of a livestock structure means a repair 
or improvement in the construction of an existing livestock struc­
ture that does not result in a substantially altered livestock struc­
ture. 

(25) "Navigable waters" has the meaning given ins. 30.01 
(4m), Stats . 

(26) "New livestock facility" means a livestock facility that 
will be used as a livestock facility for the first time, or for the first 
time in at least 5 years. "New livestock facility" does not include 
an expanded livestock facility if any portion of that facility has 
been used as a livestock facility in the preceding 5 years. 

Nolt: This chap1er apr,lie~ to loc11! ~pprovals of new or expmirled livestock facili­
ties that will have 500 ur more animal units (or will exceed a lower pem1it threshold 
incorporated in a local .v,wr,: ordinance p1for to July 19. 2003). Sees. ATCP 51 02. 

{27) "NRCS" means the natural resource conservation ser­
vice of the United States department of agriculture. 

(28) "Operator" means a person who applies for or holds a 
local approval for a livestock facility. 

(29) "Pasture" means land on which livestock gra7.c or other­
wise seek feed in a manner that maintains the vegetative cover 
over all of the grazing or feeding area. 

(30) "Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, 
cooperative, limited liability company, trust or other legal entity. 

(31) "Political subdivision" means a city, village, town or 
county. 

(32) "Populate" means to a<l<l animal units for which local 
approval is required. 

(33) "Property line" means a line that separates parcels of land 
owned by different persons. 

(34) "Qualified nutrient management planner" means a per­
son qualified under s. ATCP 50.48. 

(35) "Registered professional engineer" means a professional 
engineer registered under ch. 443, Stats. 

(36) "Related livestock facilities" means livestock facilities 
that are owned or managed by the same person, and related to each 
other in at least one of the following ways: 

(a) They are located on the same tax parcel or adjacent tax par­
cels of land. 

Not,: A mere acquisition ofa neighboring livestock fadhty does not C(lnstitutc 
an "expansion" unless more animal units arc ndded to the combined facilities 

See sub. (14). 
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(b) They use one or more of the same livestock stmcturcs to 
collect or store manure. 

(c) At least a portion of their manure is applied to the same 
landspreading acreage. 

1"ol~: Compare definition of"animaJ fcrding upcration" undn ~- NR 243.03 (1) 
"Rela1ed live~tock facilities"' an: treated a~ a ~ingle livestock facility for rurpo•e~ nf 
l(,cal approval. e~cept that a ">epdra1e specit"s facility" may be tre~ted ha s~p;1ratc 
livestock facility . .'fre sub~. ( 19) and (3~). 

(37) "Runoff' means storm water or precipitation including 
rain, snow, ice melt or similar water that moves on the land surfocc 
via sheet or channelized flow. 

(38) "Separate species facility" means a livestock facility thut 
meets all of the following criteria: 

(a) It has only one of the following types of livestock, and that 
type of livestock is not kept on any other livestock facility to 
which the separate srecies facility is related under sub. (36): 

I. Cattle. 
2. Swine. 
), Poultry. 
4. Sheep. 
5. Goats. 

Note: For purpo~s of par. (1), C11ttle and poultry are different ''type$" of live.«ock. 
but d11·1ry and beef tattle are livestock of the same "type" ("cau!e")- Milking cows, 
heifer~. calves and steers (all "caHle~) are livcsto.;k or the same "1yfl'C ... Turkeys, 
ducks. geeIC and chickens are livestock of the same •'type" ("poultT)-'"), 

(b) JI has no more than 500 animal tinits. 

(c) Ifs livestock housing and manure storage structures, if any, 
arc separate from the livestock housing and manure storage struc­
tures used by livestock facilities to which it is related under sub. 
(36). 

(J) It meets one of the following criteria·. 
I. Its livestock housing and manure storage structures, if any, 

are located at least 750 feet from the nearest livestock housing or 
manure storage structure used by a livestock facility to which it is 
related under sub. (36). 

2. If and the other livestock facilities to which it is related 
under sub. (36) have a combined total of fewer than 1,000 animal 
units. 

(39) "Site that is susceptible to groundwater contamination·• 
means any of the following: 

(a) An area within 250 feet ofa private well. 
(b) An area within 1,000 feet ofa municipal well. 
(c) An area within 300 feet upslope or 100 feet downslope of 

a karst feature. 
(d) A channel with a cross-sectional area equal to or greater 

than 3 square feet that flows to a karst fcan1re. 
(c) An area where the soil depth to groundwater or bedrock is 

less than 2 feet. 
(f) An area where none of the following separates the ground 

surface from groundwater and bedrock: 
I. A soil layer at least 2 feet deep that has at least 40% fine 

soil particles. 
2. A soil layer at least 3 feet deep that has at least 20% fine 

soil particles. 
3. A soil layer at least 5 feet deep that has at least 10% fine 

soil particles. 
Nott: .<if'f'l,NR151.015(18). 

(40) "Substantially altered" livestock structure means a live­
stock structure that undergoes a material change in construction 
or use, including any of the following material changes: 

(a) An increase in the capacity ofa waste storage facility. 
(b) The addition of a liner to a waste storage facility. 
(c) An increase of more than 20% in the area or capacity of a 

livestock structure used to house, feed or confine livestock, or to 
store livestock feed. 

(d) An increase of more than 20% in the number of animal 
units that will be kept in a livestock structure on at least 90 days 
in any 12-month period. 

(41) "Unconfine<l manure pile" means a quantity of manure 
at least 175 cubic feet in volume that covers the ground surface to 
a depth of at least 2 inches. but does not include any of the follow­
ing-. 

(a) Manure that is confined within a manure stornge facility, 
livestock housing structure or barnyard runoff control facility. 

(h) Manure that is covered or contained in a manner that pre­
vents storm water access and direct runoff to surface water or 
leaching of pollutants to groundwater. 

(42) "Waste" means manure. milking center waste and other 
organic waste generated by a livestock facility. 

(43) "Waste storage facility" means one or more waste stor­
age structures. "Waste storage facility" includes stationary equip­
ment and piping used to load or unload a waste siorage structure 
if the equipment is specifically designed for that purpose and is an 
integral part of the facility. "Waste storage facility" docs not 
include equipment used to apply waste to land. 

(44) "Waste storage structure" means a waste storage 
impoundment made by constructing embankments, excavating a 
pit or dugout, or fabricating a structure. "Waste storage structure" 
does not include equipment used to apply waste to land. For pur­
poses of ss. ATCP 51. I 2 (2) and 51.14, "waste storage structure" 
does not include any of the following: 

(a) A structure used to collecl and store wnste under a livestock 
housing facility. 

(b) A manure digester consisting ofa sealed structure in which 
manure is subjected to managed biological decomposition. 

(45) "Waters of the state" has the meaning given ins, 283.01 
(20). Stats . 

(46) "Winter grazing area" means cropland or pasture where 
livestock feed on dormant vegetation or crop residue, with or 
without supplementary feed, durint; the pcriod Octnbi.:r I to April 
JO. "Winter grazing area" does not include any of the following: 

(a) An area, other than a pasture, where livestock are kept dur­
ing the period from May I to September JO. 

(b) An area which at any time has an average of more than 4 
livestock animal units per acre. 

(c) An area from which livestock have unrestricted access to 
navigable waters of the state, such that the livestock access pre­
vents adequate vegetative cover on hanks adjoining the water. 

(d) An area in which manure deposited by livestock causes 
nutrient levels to exceed standards in s. ATCP 51.16. 

(47) "WPDES pennit" means a Wisconsin pollutant dis­
charge elimination system permit issued by DNR under ch. NR 
243. 

History: CR 0!i---014: er. Regbtrr Aprll 2006 No. 604, err. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.02 Scope of this chapter. (1) This chapter 
applies to local approvals of the following livestock facilities: 

(a) A new or expanded livestock facility that will have 500 or 
more animal units. 

(b) A new or expanded livestock facility that will exceed a 
lower size threshold, for a special exception or conditional use 
permit, if the threshold is expressed in terms of a specific number 
of animals or animal units and was incorporated in a local 1.0ning 
ordinance prior to July 19, 2003. 

Note: Some. but not all. political rubdivisions require local approval ofnell' or 
e11;pandcd live~tock facilities. The livestock facility siting I.aw dues no/ r'f'quif'f' local 
approval. Bu! /flocal approval is required, 1he p<>litical !iUbdivision niu~I gram llr 
deny approval based c,n 1his chapter. A poli1ical subdivi~ion may not consider other 
si1ing criteria, or apply standards lhal differ from this chap1cr, ucept IS provided in 
the livestock facilil)' siling law or this chapter. 

A political subdivision may ,iot require local approval for new or e:,;pandcd live­
s1ock facilities smaller than 500 animal uniuc. e:,;cepl as specifically 11uthorizcd by the 
livcstoc_k facility siting law and this chapter. A polilical subdivi_sion may apply a 
lower size lhreslw!d adopted by ordinance prior 10 July 19, 2003 1( that 1hreshold i5 

Reg1,1cr, April, 2006, Nu. 6'>4 
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expre.r.sed cu u spec/fir ,wm/wr of r111ima!1 ur ,wimul unir.,·. A local threshold 
c.,prcs-a:d in !(l(;a)l;·--dcfincd "a111mal unit, .. mav ml'C1 thi~ le~!. bccau~c u ctlcctivcl\ 
indicate~ a 11pc:cific· number of animals. C\'Cn if the local ordinance ,,kfinitii,n vf"anf­
mal units" differs from 1hc definition iu 1hi~ chaplet. However the loc·al appl1cn1ion 
and apprcwal proce~~ mus1 u~c the "animal units" ddinition in 1hi~ chapter. 

Local ar1mwals under this chapter "run wilh the land." _.'fr<' s ATCP :'i I 0~. They 
normally n>nl111uc lo apply. dc.~p1tc change\ in ownership. as loni: a~ sub~cqm:nl 
owners do nO! violate the lcm1s of the local approval. SLtme or<linarwes might rei.i11irc 
a p,r1form(1 pennil tnu1sfer wirh each trnnsi'cr of ownership, but that transfer may lll't 
ordinarily limit the scope of approval. 

A livestock operator is 1101 required to obtain local approval under thi~ chapter for 
the comtructwn, repair or improvement of livestock structures, unless the operator 
also adds "animal units" for which local approval is required (local building codes 
and manure storage ordinances may apply), However. a political subdivision may 
withdraw a local approval ;granted under this chapter if the livestock operator does 
any of the following (sf'e s. ATCP 51.34 /4)): 

• Without loca! authoriz.ation, alters the approved livestock faci!ity in a way th3t 
materially violates the tem1s of the local approval. 

• Allers Che approved livestock facility so that the altered facility violates the stan­
dards in subch. II. 

(2) This chapter does not apply to any of the following: 
(a) Livestock facilities other 1han those in sub. (I) that require 

local approval. 
(b) An approval required by a political subdivision within the 

scope of its authority under s. 59.692, 59.693, 60.627. 61.351, 
61.354, 62.231, 62.234 or 87 .30, Stats. 

Nore: S.-.- s. 9).'10 (3) (a) J •• Stats. The statutcs listed in par. (b) pcnnin to shc,rc­
land .wning. nooJplain zoning, constructi1,n s1le erosion control and stom1wa1er 
management 

(c) An approval required under a local building, electrical or 
plumbing code, if the standards for approval are consistent with 
standards established under the state building, electrical or plumb­
ing code for that type of facility. 

Nore: Src s. 93.90 (3) {a) 4 .. Stats. 
Hhtory: CR 05-014: er. Registtr Aprll 2006 No. 604, tfr. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.04 Animal units. In this chapter, and in every 
local approval or application for local approval under this chapter, 
the number of animal units kept or authorized at a livestock facil­
ity means the maximum number of animal units that arc or may 
be kept on at least 90 days in any 12-month period. 

Note: This section accounts for nonnal day-co-day and seasonal n1riations in 
livc~1ock numbers. as livestock are bom, received. moved and marketed. fie(' s. 93.90 
(J l {f), Stats. 

Under this chapter, an applicant for local approval must specify the number of"ani­
mal units" for which the applicant seeks authorization. Jfthc application is approved. 
the approval authorizes that number of"animal units." The authorized numhcr is the 
mnimum number of "animal units·· that may be kept on 90 or more days in any 
12-month period. A livestock operator may not exceed that authorized number with­
om fw1her local approval. 

"Animal unit" equivalents. for differen1 species and types of livestock, are shown 
in App<'ndi:,; A, work.th('('/ I (animal 1mit.r). The "animal unit" equivalents arc based 
on s. NR 243.03 (3) as it exi!.ted on April 27. 2004 (the date cm which the livestock 
facility siting law, 2003 Wis. Ac1 235. wes published). Sf'r s. 93.90 (Im) (a), Stats .. 
ands. ATCP 51.01 (4) 

History: CR 0~-014: er. R~isler April 2006 No. 604, efl'. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.06 Local approval of existing livestock 
facllltles. (1) GENERAL Except as provided in sub. (2), a local 
ordinance may not require local approval under this chapter for 
any of the following: 

(a) A livestock facility that existed before May I, 2006 or 
before the effective date of the local approval requirement. 

(b) A livestock facility that the political subdivision has 
already approved. A prior approval for the construction of a live­
stock facility implies approval for the maximum number of ani­
mal units that the approved livestock facility was reasonably 
designed to house, except as otherwise clearly provided in the 
approval. Prior approval of a single livestock structure, such as 
a waste storage structure, does not constitute prior approval of an 
entire livestock facility. 

Note: For example, ifa political ~ubdivision has alreadr approved construl·tion 
of a livestocl. facility th a! was rea~nabl)' designed to houst up to 800 "animal units,•• 
that approval authorizes the openitor to keep up to 800 "animal unit," at 1h11 facility 
(even ifthe scope of approval is no1 explicitly stated in tcmu of"animal units") 

(2) EXPANSIONS. A local ordinance may require local approval 
under this chapter for the expansion of a pre-existing or pre­
viously approved livestock facility under sub. (I) if the number of 

Register, April, 2006, No. 604 

animal units kept at the expanded livestock facility will exceed al! 
of the following: 

(a) The applicable size threshold for local approval under s. 
ATCP5l.02(1J. 

(b) The maximum number previously approved or, ifno maxi­
mum number was previously approved, a number that is 20% 
higher than the number kept on May I, 2006 or on the effective 
date of the approval requirement, whichever date is later. 

Note: Consider the folll,wing examples· 

Enmple I: Suppose that a local ordinance enacted after May 1. 2006 requirt's 
local approval for livestock facilities with 500 or more "animal units." "'Local 
approval is nm required" for a livestock faciliiy thal already has 600 "animal units" 
on the local ordinance effective date, unless the facility expands to more than 720 
"animal units.- The numbn of "animal units" kept on the ordinance effective date 
means the largest number kept on at !cast 90 days in the 12 months prior 10 1he ordi­
nance effective dale (uc s. 93.90 (3\ (c), Stats.). 

Eumple 2: Suppose that a local ordinance enacted prior to July 19. 2003 requires 
local approval of livestock facilities with 400 or more '"animal units." A11 exJMnsion 
frnm 200 "animal units" (exi~ting facility} to 450 "animal units" (e~panded facility) 
will require local approval. unless the polillcal subdiv1sinn has already given its 
appmval. If the p,.1li1ica) subdivision has already approved constrm;tion of a lives1(X:k 
facility that is designed 1(1 ht111se up to ~50 "animal umts," the opcra1or docs not need 
funher local appml'ol unles, the orerator pr(1pn,es tc, exceed 450 "animal uni1-." 

Hisrory: CR 05-014: er. Reaister April 2006 No. 604, cff. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.08 Duration of local approval. (1) Except as 
provided in sub. (2) ors. ATCP 5 I .34 (4), a local approval under 
this chapter: 

(a) Runs with the !and and remains in effect despite a change 
in O\.Vflership of the livestock facility or the land on which it is 
located. 

Not~: Some local ordinan,es may require a rroJimna pcm1i1 transfe1 with each 
transfer of ownership, but that transfer may not limit the scope oft he prior approval. 

(b) Remains in effect regardless of the amount of time that 
elapses before the livestock operator exercises the authority 
granted by the approval, and regardless of whether the livestock 
operator exercises the full authority granted by the approval. 

Note: Por c11.ample. if a livcs1ock operator gets local approval under this chapter 
to e)(pand from 400 "animal units" (existing) to 900 "animal units", the livestock 
nperatnr may implement the approved e)(p11nsinn over a period oftimc chosen by the 
li,·e!IIO(:k opcralor. The operamr does not lose the approval merely bct·11u~ the opcr11-
tor implements the expansion in gradual stages, or fails to e)(pand by the full amount 
authorized. Howel'er, the operator must al least begin lhe e"pansion within 2 yean;, 
or face possible loss of approval. See sub. (2). 

(2) A political subdivision may withdraw a local approval 
granted under this chapter unless the livestock operator docs all 
of the following within 2 years after a local approval is granted: 

(a) Begins populating the approved livestock facility. 
(b) Begins construction on every new or expanded livestock 

housing structure, and every new or expanded waste storage struc­
ture. proposed in the application for local approval. 

(3) If a local approval is appealed. the local approval is 
deemed to be granted for purposes of sub. (2) when the appeal is 
concluded. Withdrawal ofa local approval under sub. (2) does not 
prevent a livestock operator from obtaining a new local approval 
under this chapter. 

Note: A political subdivision should c.,ercisc ~ound judgment in deciding whether 
to withdraw a local appmval under sub.(~). The political subdivision may consider 
exten11ating ein:un1stanccs, such as adve.-se weather conditions. that may affect an 
operator's 11bili1y to comply. A political subdivision should give the operator prior 
notice, and a ,ea,onable opportunity lo demom1rate compliance. before withdrawing 
a local approval. 

Rlstory: CR 0S-Gl4: er. Register Aprll 2006 No. 604, err. 5-1-06. 

Subchapter II - Livestock Facility Siting Standards 

ATCP 51.10 Livestock facility siting standards; gen­
eral. (1) STATE STANDARIJS APPLY. Except as provided in sub. (2) 
or (3), a political subdivision shall grant or deny local approvals 
covered by this chapter based on the standards in this subchapter. 

(2) STATE STANDARDS INCORPORATED rN LOCAL ORDINANCE. 

Beginning on November I, 2006, a political subdivision may not 
deny a local approval covered by this chapter unless the political 
subdivision incorporates by local ordinance the standards in this 
subchapter and the application requirements in subch. Ill. A local 
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ordinance may incorporate the standards and application require­
ments by reference, without reproducing them in full. 

Note: The livcstocl.: facility siting Jaw. i;, 93.90, Stats .. lintils the reasons for which 
a political 1ub<li\'ision may deny !ocal approval. For the first 6 months after the ctTcc­
livc date oflhis chapter. from May J. 200(, to Nm,emhcr I, 2006, a polilical suhdivi­
sion may rJcny local approval based on standards in 1his chapter wilhoul incorporat­
ing those ~1antlards by Jocal ordinance. See .~ub. (I). But sub. (2) applies beginning 
on November I, 2006. 

(3) MORE STRINGENT LOCAL STANDARDS. A political subdivi­
sion may not apply local standards that are more st1ingent than the 
standards in this subchapter unkss all of the following apply: 

(a) The political subdivision is authorized to adopt the local 
standards under other applicable law. 

(b) The political subdivision enacted the standards by local 
ordinance, before the livestock facility operator filed the applica­
tion for local approval. 

(c) The political subdivision enacted the standards based on 
reasonable and scientifically defensible findings of fact adopted 
by the political subdivision's governing authority. 

(d) The findings of fact under par. {c) clearly show that the 
standards are needed to protect public health or safety. 

Note: Srr s. 93.90 (3) (ar), Stats. 

(4) ORDINANCE PROVISIONS l'ILED WITH DEPARTMENT. Within 
30 days after a political subdivision enacts an ordinance provision 
under sub. {2) or (3), the political subdivision shall file a copy of 
the ordinance provision with the department. Failure to file the 
ordinance provision with the department does not invalidate the 
ordinance provision. The political subdivision shall file the ordi­
nance provision, by mail, fax or e-mail, at the following applica­
ble address: 

Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, 
Trade and Consumer Protection 

Agricultural Resource Management Division 
Bureau of Land and Water Resources 

P.O. Box 8911 
Madison, WI 53708-8911 

Fax: (608) 224-4615 
E-mail: ordinance@datcp.stare.wi.us 

Hl~IOr}': CR 05--014: tr, Rt"gbl~r Aprll 2006 No. 604, err. 5-1--06. 

ATCP 51.12 Livestock structures; location on prop­
erty. (1) PROPER1Y LTNE AND ROAi) SETBACKS; GENERAL Live­
stock strucn1rcs shall comply with local ordinance requirements 
related to setbacks from property lines and public roads, except 
that no local setback requirement may do any of the following: 

{a) Require a livestock structure to be set back more than I 00 
feet from any property line or public road right-of-way, except as 
provided in sub. (2), if the livestock facility will have fewer than 
1,000 animal units. 

(b) Require a livestock structure to be set back more than 200 
feet from any property line, or more than 150 feet from any public 
road right-of-way, except as provided in sub. (2), if the livestock 
facility will have J ,000 animal units or more. 

(c) Prevent the use of a livestock structure that was located 
within the setback area prior to the effective date of the setback 
requirement. 

(d) Prevent the expansion of a livestock structure that was 
located within the setback area prior to the effective date ofthc set­
back requirement, other than an expansion toward the property 
line or public road to which the local setback applies. 

Solt: Many local jurisdictions have c~1ablishc-d ha~ic ~roperty line and mad ~c•· 
bad, rc-quiremen!s by ordinance. Setbacks vary depending on 11:>eal drtums1ancc-~. 
and often rcllect years of local expc:ricnce. Subscdim1 (1) honor~ local setback 
requirements. provided that the setbacks do not exceed the limits Spctified in sub. (1 J. 

(2) MANURE STORAGE S'ffiUCTURE: SETBACK. A waste storage 
structure may not be located within 350 feet of any property line, 
or within 350 feet of the nearest point of any public road right-of­
way, unless one of the following applies: 

(a) The location of the waste storage structure complies with 
a local ordinance that specifies a shorter setback that is specific to 
waste storage facilities or waste storage structures. 

(b) The waste storage structure existed prior to May I, 2006. 
This paragraph docs not authorize an expansion, toward a prop• 

erty line or public road right-of-way, of a waste storage structure 
that is located within 350 feet of that property line or public road 
right-of-way. 

(c) The waste storage structure is a single new waste storage 
structure constructed no closer to the relevant property line or 
public road than a ,vaste storage structure that exis1ed on the same 
tax parcel prior to May I, 2006, provided that the new strucrure 
is no larger than the existing strucrure and is located wi1hin 50 feet 
of the existing structure. 

Nole: See delini!ion of"wa~te storage struc1ure .. ins. ATCP 51.01 {44). 

(3) NAVIGAULE WATERS AND WETLANDS. A livestock focility 
shall comply with an applicable shorcland or wetland zoning ordi• 
nance that is enacted within the scope of authority granted under 
s. 59.692, 61.351 or 62.231, Stats. 

Nole: Essentially all navigable water~ ue now protected by ordinances that 
require building setbacks of75 feet or more (depending on the ordinance). Zoning 
restrictions, if any. typically apply to m•w or e11larged struclUrt>s. A zoning ordinance 
applies for purposes of sub. (3) if it i~ enacted within the scope of statutory authori!y 
under.~. 59.692. 61 J.S I or 62.231, Stat., .. even ifit i~ also enacted under other author­
ity. 

(4) FLOODPLAIN. A livestock facility shall comply with an 
applicable floodplain zoning ordinance that is enacted within the 
scope of statutory authority under s. 87 JO, Stats. 

Notr: Counly or local 1oning ord111ances turrently apply to many. but r,o! all. 
waceiways (n,,1 all waierw~ys have mapped floodplains). Zoning 1·estrictions, if any. 
typically apply 10 m'"' ur <'rilorged strunures. A roning ordinance applies for pur­
poses (lf sub. (4) if it is enocted within the stope of \"tatutory authority under s. 87.30, 
Stat~ .• even if 11 is also enacted under other authonty. 

(5) WELLS. (a) Wells in a livestock facility shall comply with 
chs. NR 811 and 812. 

(b) Except as provided in par. (c), new or substantially altered 
livestock structures shall be separated from existing wells by the 
distances requirr.rl in chs. NR ~ 11 and 812. regardless of whether 
the livestock facility operator owns the land on which the wells are 
located. 

(c) Paragraph (b) does not prohibit the alteration ofa livestock 
structure that existed on May I, 2006, unless that alteration 
reduces the distance between the livestock structure and an exist­
ing well. 

Note: ONR rules under chs. NR 811 and II l :! spell out well ton~tructioo aod well 
location standards to p101ec1 water supphes. Viol~ti(ln of well setback requirements 
in ch. NR 8 ! I or 812 may prevent use of a well. DNR may grant 11ppropriate vad-
11nces. a~ provided in ths. NR l! ! I and 1112. 

(6} PRESUMPTION. For purposes of local approval, a livestock 
facility is presumed to comply with this section if the application 
for local approval complies with s. ATCP 51 JO. 

Note: Under s. ATCP 51.30. an app!k11tion must be: complete. credible 11.nd inter­
nally consistent. The application mu.~t include 11n area map, a site map. and a certifica­
tion that the livestock fodhty complies with this secuon (.trr Appendix A). A local 
approval is conditioned upon compliance in fact (H'f' s. ATCP 51.34 (4)), The pre­
sumption in sub. (6) may be rebutted by clear 11nd convincing evidence m the record 
(.,re .~. ATCP 51.34 and 51.36) 

History: CR 0!i--OT4: er. R~bttr Aprll 2006 No. 604, err. S-1--06. 

ATCP 51.14 Odor and air emissions. (1) ODOR STAN· 
DARD. Except as provided in subs. (2) to (4), a livestock facility 
shall have an odor score of at least 500. The operator shall calcu­
late the odor score according to Appendix A, worksheet 2, or by 
using the equivalent spreadsheet provided on the department's 
website. An application for local approval shall include work­
sheet 2 or the spreadsheet output. 

Nole: The spreadsheet equivalent of Apprndi.x A. "orkshe<'I ! is a,·ailablc on the 
depanme11!·1 website al hllp;lfww1>.datcp.st~1e.wi.us'inde;,,.. 

Odorscort' is based on µr<'dicJed udor l{l"Wru1iu11 (based on size and type of li,·e­
stock facility). odor practices, and the proJ1in1ity and density of"affectcd neighbor1:· 
Stt Apptmdir A. work.thee/ 2. 

An odnr .TCOfl' is a predictive estimate. The ~t.andard in sub. ( t) applie~ only for 
purposes of local livestock foc1lity siting decisions under this chapter. Failure to com­
ply with the standard in sub. (I) does not conslitute evidence of a public or priva!e 
nuisance, negligence. or a taking of propeny 

Regi~tcr. Apri I. 2006. No. 604 
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Odor coutrol practices n1ay also control air pollution emissions. The department 
will work In coordinate odcir and air e111is~ions field re~arch with DNR. the W1sco11-
-~in agricultural ~teward~h1p initiative (WAS]). and the University nf Wiscnn~in. The 
dcrartmcn1 will consider research rcsu11s when it rc\·icw~ this chapter ~l least once 
C\'CI)' 4 years (~cc~- 93.90 (2) (cl. Stats.). As 1mt nfi1~ rc\·iew. the dcpanmcnt will 
consult with an advhory .:nmmittcc tha1 inch11ks represcnlativcs of livestock pw1foc­
cr.-;, Joe.a! go1·l."m1m:nt and cnvimnmcnra! intcrc~I~. The dcranmcnr "'ill cnn~idcr 
amendment~ lo thi~ rule. a~ appropriate, ba~c<l on rewarch finding~. 

(2) EXEMPTIONS. The odor standard in sub. (I) does not apply 
to any of the following livestock facilities unless the facility oper­
ator voluntarily completes and submits worksheet 2 or the equiva­
lent spreadsheet output with the operator's application for local 
approval: 

(a) A new livestock facility with fewer than 500 animal units. 
(b) An expanded livestock facility with fewer than 1,000 ani­

mal units. 
(c) A livestock facility in which all livestock structures will be 

located at least 2,500 ft. from the nearest affected neighbor. 
Note: "Affected neighbors" (ATCF' 5 l .01 /2)) are residences or '"high-use build­

ings" (ATCP 51.0 l ( ! 6)) 01/1er 1hn11 those uwnt'd by the livc,;tock operator or by per• 
~on~ who agree to bt e~cl1.1ded from odor scmt calculations under ~1,1b_ (I) 

(3) CLUSTERS. If all of the livestock structures in a livestock 
facility are divided among 2 or more clusters, such that no cluster 
is located closer than 750 feet to any other cluster, an operator may 
choose to calculate an odor score under sub. (1) for each cluster 
rather than for the entire livestock facility. Each cluster shall com­
ply with the odor standards in sub. (\ ). 

Nole: For example, a dairy operatc,r can take advantage of sub. (]) if a proposed 
dairy facility includes a milking operation {cluster I) and a heifer facility (cluster 2) 
located 800 feet from each other. 

(4) LOCAL DISCRETIONARY CREDIT. (a) Notwithsrnnding sub. 
(I), a poli1ical subdivision may in its discretion approve a live­
stock facility with an odor score of less than 500, provided that the 
odor score is not less than 470. 

(b) lfa political subdivision exercises its discretionary author­
ity under par. (a). its written decision under s.ATCP51.34 (3) shall 
state the reason or reasons for that exercise of discretionary 
authority. 

(c) The livestock facility siting review board may not review 
any of the following under s. 93.90 (5), Stats.: 

I. A political subdivision's exercise, or refusal to exercise, 
discretionary authority under par. (a). 

2. The adequacy of the political subdivision's stated reasons 
under par. (b) for exercising discretionary authority under par. (a). 

Nole: A political subdivision must approve a livestock facility that meets the odor 
standard under sub. (I), assuming that the facility meet~ other li~·estock facility siting 
standards under this chapter {.rrr ATCP 51.34 ( 1 )). 

A political subdivision may no/ approve a livestock facili1y that fails to meet 1he 
odor sianclard under sub. (I), except tha1 the political ~ubdivision may exerci'IC its di~­
cretionary authority under sub. (4) {a) in favor ofan arplicant ifi1 chooses to do Ml. 

For e,;ample. a political subdivision may turci~e ils discretionary a1.11hority under 
~ub. (4) (al based on foc1nr11 such 11$ community tolerance. the applicant's near attain­
ment of a standard. innovative odor control practices, local land use plans. or the 
applicant's past reputation for good management and community relation~ 

(5) CREDITS FOR ODOR CONTROL PRACTICES. In the calculation 
of predicted odor under sub. (I), an operator may claim credit for 
all of the following: 

(a) Odor control practices, identified in Appe11dix A, worksheet 
2, which the operator agrees to implement. For each odor control 
practice, the operator may claim a credit specified in Appendix A, 
worksheet 2. 

(b) An odor control practice not identified in Appendix A, 
worksheet 2 if the department pre-approves a credit for that prac­
tice. The operator shall claim the pre-approved credit according 
to the procedure specified in Appendix A, worksheer 2. 

(c) An operator seeking department approval under par. (b) 
shall submit all of the following to the department in writing: 

I. A clear description of the odor control practice for which 
the operator seeks an approved credit. 

2. Scientific evidence to substantiate the efficacy of the odor 
control practice under relevant conditions. 
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(d) The departmen1 may approve a credit for an odor control 
practice under par. (b) if, in the department's opinion, there is ade­
quate scientific evidence to show that under relevant conditions 
the practice will result in odor reduction commensurate with the 
approved credit. The department shall grant or deny the request 
within 90 days after the department receives the request. 

Nott: An odor control practice credi1 under sub. (5) is exp~ssed, in the odor sC\>ll' 

calc1.1la1ion inApf1t'ndiJ: A. worlc.rheet 2, as a m1.1lt1pl11:,r value (the/owe, the multiplier, 
the greater the benefit to !he !ivcs1ock operntnr J. 

(6) FUTURE RF.FF.RENCE POINTS. (a) Whenever an operator 
seeks local approval for the expansion ofa livestock facility pre­
viously approved under this chapter, the operator may calculate an 
odor score under sub. (I) by reference to the same affected neigh­
bors referenced in the odor score calculation for the prior local 
approval. The operator is not required to include, in the new odor 
score calculation, an affected neighbor that was not referenced in 
the odor score calculation for the prior local approval. 

(b) Paragraph (a) applies regardless of any change in owner• 
ship of the livestock facility since the prior local approval, and 
regardless of the amount of time that has pl-tssed since the prior 
local approval, provided that the prior local approval has not been 
lawfully withdrawn for good cause under s. ATCP 51.08 (2) or 
51.34 (4) (b). 

Nole: The odor score calculation in Appe11di.\ A, worlr..Thrct 2 is partly ha-.cd on 
the proximity and density of"affce1cd neighbo"" (see ATCP 51.01 (2)). An applica· 
tion for local approval documents those "affected neighbor .. reference points. Sub­
section {6) protects an operator against the effects of encroaching development, with­
out regulating that development directly. 

A local govemmen1 must keep a complete ~cord of each local approval for at lea~\ 
7 years, and mus1 file with DATCP a copy ofeach approval (including the application 
on which i1 was based). The local govemmc:111 must also provide the livestock opera­
tor wi1h documentation of the local approval. including the maps on which the 
approval was bued (.1ee s. ATCP S 1.34 (3) (bl). The approved maps document the 
"odor score" reference points for purposes of sub. (6) 

The livestock operator can record the local approval (including mapped '\•dor 
score" reference poi11ts) with the local register of deeds. and can convey the docu­
mentation to s1,1hseq1.1ent purchasers. hi those ways. an operalor can documcnl p1c• 
viously-apprnved "odor score" reference points for purpn~cs of a .~ubseqUL'Tlt c><pan­
~ion. 

(7) PRESUMPTION. For purposes of local approval, a live~tock 
facility is presumed to comply with this section if the application 
for local approval complies with s. ATCP 51.30. 

Note: Under s. ATCP 51.30, an application must he complete, credible and inter­
nally consistent. The: application must include, among other things, a worksheet (or 
equivalent spreadsheet output) that shows t'mnpliance with this ~ection. Ser> Appr>,i­
dU: A. worksheet]. Local approval is conditioned upon compliance in fac! (~·u 5. 

ATCP 5l.34 (4)). The preswnption in rub. (7) may be ~butted by dear and convinc­
ing evidence: in the record (.,er s. ATCP S 1.34 anJ S 1,36). 

History: CR O!Hll4: er. ReelUH April 2006 No. 604, err. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.16 Nutrient management. (1) NUTRIENT 
MANAGEMENT STANDARD. (a) Except as provided in par. (c): 

I. Land applications of waste from a livestock facility 
approved under this chapter shall comply with NRCS nutrient 
management technical standard 590 (September, 2005), except 
for sections V.A.2.b(2), V.D, V.E and VI. 

Note: NRCS nutrienl management technical standard 590 (Scrtcmber. 2005) is 
reprinted in Appr11di.t B. The following sections of the reprin1ed standard do ,wt 
apply for purpose~ of this chapter: 

V.A.2.b(2l. rela1ed l\l additional requirements imposed by local consenatiun 
plans. 

V.D. ~la1ed to additional criteria to minimize N and paniculate air emissions. 
V.E, related to additional criteria to protect the physit'al, chemical and biological 

condition ofthe soil. 
VJ. related to discretionary considerations. 

2, A nutrient management checklist, shown in Appendix A, 
worksheet 3, part C, shall accompany an application for local 
approval. A qualified nutrient management planner, other than 
the livestock operator, shall answer each checklist question. The 
planner shall have reasonable documentation to substantiate each 
answer, but neither the planner nor the operator is required to sub­
mit that documentation with the checklist. 

Note: A lh·estod,, opc111lor is 1101 ~quired to submil a c11mple1e nutrient mana~e­
mcnt plan with an applica1ion for local approval. Both tht' np,craror and the qualified 
nutrient management planner must sign 1he nutrien! managemem cheddi~1. S.-,· 
A1>p1'11du A. w<1rlt:shf'f'I .I, par/ C 
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(b) A political subdi\'ision may ask a nutrient management 
planner to submit the documentation that the planner relied upon 
to substantiate the planner's answer to one or more questions on 
the nutrient management checklist under par. (aJ 2. The political 
subdivision may deny local approval if the planner's documcnta• 
tion does not reasonably substantiate the answer. 

(c) Paragraph (a) does not apply to a livestock facility with 
fewer than 500 animal units unless the operator's ratio ofacrci; to 
animal units, calculated according to Appendix A, worksheet 3, 
parr B, is less than 1.5 for dairy and beef cattle, 1.0 for swine, 2.0 
for sheep and goats, 2.5 for chickens and ducks, and 5.5 for tur• 
keys. 

Nott: A waste and nutrieni managemenl worksheet (Apprndir A. wurks/11'1'1 3) 
must accompany every application for local approval. An1nng other thing~. the worl,-­
.1hret shows the operator's ratio of acres to animal units under par. (c) 

Parngraph (c) is an cxcmp!ion. nO! a requirement. for li\'cstnck facilities. lf_a live­
stock facility qu~lifies for e.,emption _under par.{-}. the operal1_>r is 11u1 r~qu1red to 
sut>nlU a m,tnt'l!I mana~emenl rht'rl..lw under par. (a), The ratios Staled 111 par. (c) 
are based on the pho~phnrus content nfmanure from lhe rei;pective live~tock ~recie~ 

(2) PRESUMPTION. For purposes of local approval. an operator 
is presumed to comply with sub. (I) if the application for local 
approval complies withs. ATCP 51.30. 

Note: Under s. ATCf' S 1.30, ao application mus! be complete. credibk and inter­
nally consistenl. The applicaliun must include, among other thin~s. a ""as1e and 
nutrient management ,.·orbheef (Appe11dlt A. worhheer 3). The completed w,:,~k­
,,,.,.,, mu~t include all of the following: 

• The typl-~ and amounts of manure and olhcr organic wa~1c tha1 the facility will 
generate when fully populated. 

• The types and amounts ofwa~tc to he stored, lhc waste s!oragc facilities and 
metliods IO be used. the duration of waste storage, and waste storage capacity. 

• The final disposition of wastc by landsprcading or other means 
• The acreage cuncntly available for land~prcading 
• A map showing where waste will he applied to land. 
• A nu1rienr mam1f.l'lll<'fll check/is/ if required under sub. ( I ) 

Local approval is condi1ioned upon compliance in fact (n••' s. ATCP .5!.34_ (4)), 
The presumpti(ln in sub. (2) may be rebutted by clear and convincing evidence m the 
record {.rl',' ss. ATCP 5 l.J-l and 51.)(t). 

(3) NLJTRIENT MANAGEMENT UPDATES. An operator may 
update nutrient management plans and practices as necessary, 
consistent with sub, (I) (a) 1. 

Nole: This subsection does not require an operator to file updates with a political 
subdivision, but neither docs it limit local authority to reques1 updates or monitor 
compliance with sub. tl}(a} I. Sees. ATCP 51.34 (4). 

(4) EXEMPTION. This section does not apply if all of the fol­
lowing apply: 

(a) The operator holds a WPDES pennit for the same proposed 
livestock facility, and that pennit is based on housing for a number 
of animal units that is equal to or greater than the number for which 
the operator seeks local approval. 

(b) The operator submits a copy of the WPDES pem1it with the 
operator's application for local approval. 

History: CR O!'i-014: er, Reii;hter April 2006 No. 604, err. !'i-1-0li. 

ATCP 51.18 Waste storage facilities. (1) DEs1or,.;, 
CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE; GENERAL. All waste storage 
facilities for a livestock facility shall be designed, constructed and 
maintained to minimize the risk of structural failure, and to mini­
mize the potential for waste discharge to surface water or ground­
water. A waste storage facility may not lack structural integrity 
or have significant leakage. An unlined earthen waste storage 
facility may not be located on a site that is susceptible to ground­
water contamination. 

Nole: A "site that is susceptible to groundwater contamination" i~ defined ins, 
ATCPSl.01 (39). 

(2) EXISTING FACILITIES. For purposes of local approval, an 
existing waste storage facility is presumed to comply with sub. (I) 
if a registered professional engineer or ce1tified agricultural engi­
neering practitioner certifies one of the following m the applica­
tion for local approval: 

(a) The facility is constructed of concrete or steel or both, was 
constructed within the last IO years according to then-existing 
NRCS standards, and shows no apparent signs of structural failure 
or significant leakage. 

(b) The facility was constructed within the last 3 years accord­
ing to then-existing NRCS standards, and shows no apparent 
signs ofstructurnl failure or significant leakage. 

(c) The facility was constructed according to NRCS standards 
that existed at the time of construction, is in good condition and 
repair, and shows no apparent signs of structural failure or signifi· 
cant leakage. 

(d) The facility is in good condition and repair, shows no 
apparent signs of structural failure or significant leakage, and is 
located on a site at which the soils and separation distances to 
groundwater comply with NRCS technical guide manure storage 
_(acili~y standard 3 l 3, table l (No~•emher. 2()04). 

(e) The facility is in good condition and repair, shows no appar­
ent signs of structural failure or significant leakage, is located 
entirely above ground, and is located on a site at which the soils 
comply with NRCS lechnicul guide manure storage.facility slw1• 
dard 313, /able 5 (Novemhe1; 2004). 

Nate: According to s. ATCP -~ I . .lO. an_ application for local approval must include 
a eenification uoder sub, (.2) for ea.:h e~1sting w~ste storag~ facility. Ser Apprndi, 
A. workshr,•1 4 (wmle ~wnigrfadlitir.1) 

(3) NEW OR SUASTANTlAI.I.Y ALTERED FACILITIES. For purposes 
of local approval, a new or substantially altered waste storage 
facility is presumed to comply with sub, ( ! ) if all of the following 
apply: 

(a) The application for local approval includes design spccifi• 
cations for the facility. 

(b) A registered professional engineer or certified agricultural 
engineering practitioner certifies that the design specifications 
comply with all of the following: 

I. NRCS technical guide manure storage facility standard 
313 (N01·embe1; 2004). 

2. NRCS technical guide manure transfer standard 634 
(November, 2004). 

Note: According to s. ATCP S 1.30, an applicatiL•n for local approval mus1 inc_lude 
lhe design !!pCcifications and .:ertitication zo which sub. (3) rcfcn;. See Apprndu A. 
...,,~hit,.,.,, (><'fl<lr •t<>mf:"' ji1ri/itir<). 

(4) CLOSED FACILITIES. lfa waste storage facility is closed as 
part of the construction or expansion of a livestock facility, the 
closure shall comply with NRCS technical guide closure of waste 
impoundments standard 360 (December, 2002). A closure is pre~ 
sumed to comply with this subsection, for purposes of local 
approval, if the application for local approval includes the closure 
plan and certification required under s. ATCP 51.30. 

Note: According to.'· ATCP 51.30. an application for local approval mu!II identify 
any wHte storage facilities to be closed. The oppl1cation must include a clo~ure plan 
for eaeh identified focduy. A registered professmnal engineer or .:ert1fied agricul• 
tural engineering practitioner must l't'rtify that the closure plan complies with NRCS 
rrrhnical 1:uidr c/ow11• of' 1WHI!' imp,mndm,•11u .~1andarri Jf,() (T)rrrmhrr 200:!). Srr 
Appendix.~. worlc:,lrt'e/ 4 (wm/t' s/oraxl' Jaci/i1ie:.). 

Under~- NR t 51.05 13) and (4). an operator must nom1ally cJ,m: a manure storage 
facility ifthe facili1y has not beeo us~d for 24 nwn1hs. or poses an immioent threat 
to public health, aquatic hfe or grroundwa1e1. 

!fa waste storage facility is abandoned or not properly closed. a political subdivi• 
sic,n may seek redress under s. M.0627 or 2~4.59, Stats .. as appropriate. 

(5) STORAGE CAPACITY. (a) The waste storage capacity of a 
livestock facility, not counting any excess storage capacity 
required for open waste storage facilities under par. (b), shall be 
adequate for reasonably foreseeable storage needs based on the 
operator's waste and nutrient management strategy under s. ATCP 
51.16. 

Nole: Section ATCP 51.20 (5) prohibit~ overflow ofwHte storage facilities. See 
also ss. NR 151.08 (2) and ATCP S0.04 (I). 

(b) An operator shall at all times maintain, in every open waste 
storage facility, unused storage capacity equal to the greater of the 
following volumes: 

I. One foot multiplied by the top area of the storage facility. 
2. The volume of rain that would accumulate in the manure 

storage facility from a 25-year 24-hour stonn. 
Note: The required excess ~tnragc cppacity in par. (b), often call_cd "frecboard 

storage."' provides a 5afe1y far1or lo prevent manure ~torag.e overflow m the event of 
a maJor ram e,·em. 

Rci;i~tcr, April, 2006, No. 60-l 
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(c) The waste storage capacity of a livestock facility is pre­
sumed to comply with this subsection, for purposes of a local 
approval, if the application for local approval complies with s. 
ATCP 51.30. 

N11le: Under~- ATCP 51.30. an application must be cnmpletc. credible 3Tid intc1-
nally comi~tcnl. An application nrn~t include a wa.fit' and 1u,1nr111 mana~rm<'nt 
11"0rbht'el (-.mrt1h,•f't 3. signed by the or,erator and a qualified nutricn1 managcmcn! 
planner) and a waslt' .Horagr facility work.1h1•r1 (wurbhee/ .f. signed by a regis1cred 
professional engineer t1r certified agricultural rngincering prac!1lioner), ftLJ,-k.1/wel 
J ml1st identify wash! ~!oragc needs. ba~cd on the O[)Cra1or's l;mdsprc:iding and wa~1,• 
disposal stratci;y. Wr,rbh1•1•f 3 must alsn ~h(lw wa~te 'iloragc rar,atiry, consiste111 with 
wurk.shtel 4. Capacity mus! be adcqtrnte fo, reasonably fores«able needs 

(6) DEVIATION FROM DESIGN SPECIFlCAT!0l\'S. Local approval 
of a livestock facility docs not authorize an operator to populate 
that approved livestock facility if the construction, alteration or 
closure of a waste storage facility deviates materially, and without 
express authorization from the political subdivision, from the 
design specifications or closure plan included in the application 
for local approval. 

Nole: A ptilitica) subdivision may inspec! waste storage facilities to ~·crify th~t 
they arc constructed accordmg to specifications included in the application for lixal 
appro,·al. This section dun no/ rt'qu/re ur pmlribil local inspec!ion. A deviation 
under sub. (6) does nol invalidate a local appro'"al, but docs pre,·ent the lives1ud; 
operawr from populating the approved livestock facility un1il the deviation Is rec1i­
ticd or approved 

This chapter Uocs not limit the application of local wa~tc storage orUinanccs. 
e)(Cepl in conncc1ion wiLh the approval of a new or expand«! livestock facilily. for 
e)(amplc. if a livestock operator constructs a new waste storage structure without add­
ing "animal units .. for which local approval i.~ required. the cm1nruction musl comply 
with the local was!c storage ordinance if any. 

Bui if a livestock operator proposes to add "animal uni ls .. am/ construct a new 
wa~te storage structure. to create an "e)(panded livc.~tock facility" for which l0cal 
approval is required. the was!e storage standards in this chapter arc controlling. A 
political subdh·ision nrny not disapprove !he npansion. ocept for reasons provided 
under this chapter. 

(7) EXEMPTION. This section does not apply if all of the fol­
lowing apply: 

(a) The operator holds a WPDES pet111it for the same proposed 
livestock facility, and that pennit is based on housing for a number 
of animal units that is equal to or greater than the number for which 
the operator seeks local approval. 

(b) The operator includes a copy of the WPDES permit with 
the opcrator·s application for local approval. 

History; CR O!i-014: er, Regilter April 2006 N11, 604, tff. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.20 Runoff management. (1) NEW OR sua­
STANTIALL y ALTER.ED ANIMAL LOTS, New or substantially altered 
animal lots shall comply with NRCS technical guide wastewarer 
treatment strip standard 635 (January, 2002). 

(2) EXISTING ANIMAL LOTS. (a) The predicted average annual 
phosphorus runoff from each existing animal lot to the end of the 
nmofftreatment area, as determined by the BARNY model, shall 
be less than the following applicable amount: 

I. Fifteen pounds ifno part of the animal lot is located within 
1,000 feet of a navigable lake or 300 feet of a navigable stream. 

2. Five pounds if any part of the animal lot is located within 
1,000 feet of a navigable lake or 300 feet of a navigable stream. 

Note: The BARNY model is a con1p111er model thal predicis nutrient n.mofffrom 
animal lots. Copies lllthc BARNY model are on file with the depanmen1. the secrClaT) 
or suite and the revisor of s1at11tes. An L::~cd spreadsheet version may be obt~111ed 
fr01n the NRCS Wi~con.~in weh~11e (cngi11ecring directory) 

(b) Runoff from an animal lot may not discharge to any direct 
conduit to bl"fOUndwater. 

Nole: See ss. NR 151,08 (4) and ATCP 50.04 (1 ). A dire1.·1 conduit to groundwater 
may include. for e~ample. a sinUiolc. 

(3) FEED STORAGE. (a) Feed storage shall be managed to pre­
vent any significant discharge of leachate or polluted runoff from 
stored feed to waters of the state. 

(b) Ifan existing paved area may be used, without substantial 
alteration, to store or handle feed with a 70% or higher moisture 
content: 

I. Surface water runoff shall be diverted from entering the 
paved area. 

2. Surface discharge of leachate from stored feed shall be col­
lected before it lca\'eS the paved area, if the paved area covers 
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more than one acre. Collected leachate shall be stored and dis• 
posed of in a manner that prevents discharge to waters of the state. 

Nole: t'eed leachate is a poten1ially seriuus waler polluiant. Pav~d areas include 
paved fo:d .~11,ragc bunkcn; and handling areas. Collected leachate may, for cumplc. 
be transferred to wa~te storage and applied to land at ogronomic rates 

(c) A new or substantially altered feed storage strncture, 
including any building, bunker, silo or paved area used for feed 
storage or handling, shall be designed, constructed and main­
tained to the following standards if it may used to store or handle 
feed with a 70% or higher moisture content: 

I. Surface water runoff shall be diverted from entering the 
feed storage structure. 

2. Surface discharge of leachate shall be collected before it 
lea\'es the feed storage structure. 

3. The top of the feed storage strucrure floor shall be at least 
3 vertical feet from groundwater and bedrock. 

4. If the feed storage structure covers more than 10.000 square 
feet, it shall have an effective subsurface system to collect lea­
chate that may leak through the structure floor. The system shall 
consist of drainfill material, a tile drainage network, and an effec­
tive sub-liner as specified in Appendix A, worksheet 5, sec/ion 
11.C. 

5. Collected leachate shall be stored and disposed ofin a man­
ner that prevents discharge to surface water or groundwater. 

Nole: Collected leachate may. for example. be transferred tn waste storage and 
applied lo land at agronomic rntes. 

(4) CLEAN WATER DIVERSION. Runoff from a livestock facility 
shall be diverted from contact with animal lots, waste storage 
facilities, paved feed storage areas and manure piles within 1,000 
feet of a navigable lake or 300 feet of a navigable stream. 

Note; See ss. NR !51.06 and AT{;P S0.04 ( l ). Runoff may be divened by means 
of earthen diversions. curbs. gutters, waierways, drains or other practkcs. as 
appro11riate 

(5) OVERFLOW OF WASTE STORAGE FACILITIES. A livestock 
facility shall be designed, constructed and maintained to prevent 
overflow of waste storage facilities. 

Note: Under s ATCP 51, 18 (5). waste storage capacity must be adcqua!c to mec1 
reasonably foreseeable ~1orngc need.~. based on the opcratm 's waste and nutricn1 
management ~trategy under s. ATCP 51.16. See also ~s. NR 151.0~ (21 and ATCP 
50.Q.l (l) 

(6) UNC0NFTNEJ) MANURE PILF.S. A livestock facility may no! 
have any unconfined manure piles within 1,000 feet ofa navigable 
lake or 300 feet ofa navigable stream. 

Nole: See ss. NR 151.08 (3) and ATCP 50.04 (Jl. 

(7) L!VESTOCK ACCESS TO SURFACE WATERS OF THE STATE. A 
livestock facility shall be designed, constructed and maintained to 
prevent unrestricted livestock access to surface waters of the state, 
if that access will prevent adequate vegetative cover on banks 
adjoining the water. This subsection does not prohibit a properly 
designed, installed and maintained livestock crossing or machin­
ery crossing, 

Note: See ss, NR 151.08 (5)and ATCP 50.04 {l). 

(8) PRESUMPTION. For purposes oflocal approval, a livestock 
facility is presumed to comply with this section if the application 
for local approval complies withs. ATCP 5 \JO. 

Nott': Under ~- ATCP 51.30. Bn application must be complete. credible and inter­
nally consi~tcnt. An applicant must suhmi! a ru11u({manal(t'men1 worhhcel signed 
by the applicant and a registereU professional engineer or certified agricul1ural engi­
neering pr.1c1i1ioner l.ter .4pprndix A. '11-m·kshrrl 5). The wnrk..thrrt shows pre~ump­
li\"c compliance with this section. Local appmval is condi1i0ned upon c0mplioncc 
in fac1 (.tr,• sub. (Q) ands. ATCP 51.3-4 t4)). The rire~umption ofc0mpliance may be 
rebutted by clear and coovincing e\"idencc in the record (ser ss. ATCP 5 I.J4 aod 
S 1.36). 

(9) DEVTATI0N FROM DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS. Local approval 
of a livestock facility does not authorize an operator to populate 
that approved livestock facility if the construction or alteration of 
an animal lot or feed storage structure deviates materially, and 
without express authorization from the political subdivision, from 
design specifications included in the application for local 
approval. 

Note: A political subdi\"ision may inspect animal lots or foed ~1.oragc structure~ 
lo venfy tha1 they are constructed occording to specifications included in the ariplica­
lion for local approval. This ~ection Jurs ,wt fl'quirt" ,,,. pruhibu local inspection 
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A deviatic,n under sub, (9J does not invalidate a local approval. but does prevent the 
livestock operator from populating the approved li\'estock facility until the deviation 
is rectified or approved. 

(10) EXEMPTION. This section does not apply if all of the foJ. 
lowing apply: 

(a) The operator holds a WPDES pem1it for the same proposed 
livestock facility, and that permit is based on housing for a number 
of animal units that is equal to or greater than the number for \vhich 
the operator seeks local approvaL 

(b) The operator includes a copy of the WPDES permit with 
the operator's application for local approval. 

Hi~tory: CR 05---014: l"r, Register April 2006 No. 604, elT. 5-1-06. 

Subchapter Ill - Application and Approval 

ATCP 51.30 Application. (1) GENERAL If local 
approval is required for a new or expanded livestock facility, a 
person seeking local approval shall complete and file with the 
political subdivision the application form shown in AppendLr; A. 
The application shall include all of the infonnation required by 
Appendix A and attached worksheets, including any authorized 
modifications made by the political subdivision under sub. (2). 
The information contained in the application shall be credible and 
internally consistent. 

(2) LOCAL MODTFTCATIONS. A political subdivision may not 
alter the application form sho¥m in Appendix A and attached 
worksheets, or require any additional infonnation, except that a 
political subdivision may require information needed to deter­
mine compliance with local ordinance standards authorized under 
s. ATCP 51.10(3) or 51.12 (I). 

(3) ADDITIONAL COPIES. A political subdivision may require 
an applicant to submit up to 4 duplicate copies of the original 
application under sub. ( 1 ). Each duplicate copy shall include all 
of the worksheets, maps and other attachments included in the 
application, except th.at it is not required to include engineering 
design specifications, 

Nole: A pol1tic~I subdivision mu~1 file one duplicate copy of the Jln:il application 
and attachments with the department. within 30 days after the p<ilitical subdivision 
grants or denies that applicarion. Sees. ATCP S l .34(5). If the political subdivision 
approves the application, the political subdivision must give the applicant a copy of 
the approved applica1ion, market.I "approved." Sees. ATCP S 1.34 (3) (b). The appli­
cant may wish t_o record this documentation with the register of deeds,_ and convey 
the documentation to any subsequent purchaser of the livestock facility. Among 
other things. documentation establishes ''odor score" reference points for future 
e11.pansions. Set's, ATCP 51. !4 (6). 

(4) LOCAL FEES. (a) A political subdivision may charge an 
application fee established by local ordinance, not to exceed 
$1,000, to offset the political subdivision's costs to review and 
process an application under sub. ( 1 ). 

Note: Under s. 66.0628. Stats., any fee imposed by a political subdivision must 
bear a reasonable relationshi:p to lhe seivice for which the fee js imposed. 

(b) A political subdivision may not require an applicant to pay 
any fee, or post any bond or security with the political subdivision, 
except as provided in par. (a). 

Note: If a waste storage facility is abandoned or not prnpl;'rly closed. a political 
~ubdivision may seek redress under s. 66.0627 or 254.59, Stats .. and other law as 
appropriate. However, a political subdivision may not require an 11pplicant for )ocal 
approval to post any bond or security with the application 

(5) COMPLETE APPLICATION. Within 45 days after a political 
subdivision receives an application under sub. (I), the political 
subdivision shall notify the applicant whether the app1ication con­
tains everything required under subs. ( I) to (4). If the application 
is not complete, the notice shall specifically describe what else is 
needed. Within 14 days after the applicant has provided every­
thing required under subs. (I) to (4), the political subdivision shall 
notify lhe applicant that the application is complete. A notice of 
completeness does not constitute an approval of the proposed 
livestock facility. 

Nole: Sees. 93.90 (4) (a), Stats. 

(6) NOTICE TO ADJACENT PROPERTY O\VNERS Within 14 days 
after a political subdivision issues a notice under sub. (5). the 
political subdivision shall mail a completed written copy of the 

notice in Appendir: C to the recorded owner of each parcel of land 
that is adjacent to the proposed livestock facility. The political 
subdivision shall mail the notice by first class mail. A political 
subdivision may recover from the livestock facility operator, 
under sub. (4) (a), its reasonable cost to prepare and mail notices 
under this subsection. The sum of the costs charged to the live• 
stock operator under this subsection and sub. (4) (a) may not 
exceed the maximum amount specified in sub. (4) (a). Failure to 
comply with the notice requirement under this subsection does not 
invalidate a political subdivision's approval of a proposed live­
stock foci!ity, or create a cause of action by a property owner 
against the political subdivision. 

History: CR OS---014: er. Rei;:hter April 2006 No. 6114, err. 5-1-06. 

ATCP 51.32 Timely action on application. (1) GEN­
ERAL Except as provided in sub. (2), a political subdivision shall 
grant or deny an application under s. ATCP 5 l .30 (I) within 90 
days after the political subdivision gives notice under s. ATCP 
51.30 (5) that the application is complete. 

(2) TIME EXTENSION. (a) A political subdivision may extend 
the time limit in sub. (I) for good cause, including any of the fol~ 
lowing: 

I, The political subdivision needs additional information to 
act on the application. 

2. The applicant materially modifies the application or agrees 
to an extension. 

(b) A political subdivision shall give an applicant v.rritten 
notice of any extension under par. (a). The notice shall state the 
reason for the extension, and shall specify the extended deadline 
date by which the political subdivision will act on the application. 

Nole: See~. 93.90(4) (d) and (e), Stats 
Hlst11ry; CR 0!1~014: er. Re~hler April 2006 No, 604, err. 5-1---06. 

ATCP 51.34 Granting or denying an application. 
(1) GRANTTNG AN APPLICATION. Except as provided in sub. (2), a 
political subdivision shall grant an application under s. ATCP 
51.30 (I) if all ofthc following apply: 

(a) The application complies with s. ATCP 51 .30. 
(b) The application contains sufficient credible information to 

show, in the absence of clear and convincing information to the 
contrary, that the proposed livestock facility meets or is exempt 
from the standards in subch. IL To the extent that a standard under 
subch. [J vests discretion in a political subdivision, the political 
subdivision may exercise that discretion. 

Note: Sees. 93.90 (4) (d), Stats 

(2) DE1''YTNG AN APPLICATION. A political subdivision may 
deny an application under s. ATCP 51.30 if any of the following 
apply: 

(a) The application fails to meet the standard for approval 
under sub. (I). 

{b) The political subdivision finds, based on other clear and 
convincing information in the record under s, ATCP 5L36, that 
the proposed livestock facility fails to comply with an applicable 
standard under subch. IL 

(3) WRITTEN DECISION. (a) A political subdivision shall issue 
its decision under sub. (I) or (2) in writing. The decision shall be 
based on written findings of fact included in the decision, The 
findings of fact shall be supported by evidence in the record under 
s. ATCP 51.36. Findings may be based on presumptions created 
by this chapter. 

Note: The Wisconsin Livestock Facility Siting Law, s. 93.90. Stats., provides a 
new option for "aggtie~ed person.~" to appeal a local live!l\cx:k facili1y siting decision 
The law does not limit any exi.~1ing right that any pe~n may him,• to challenge a local 
decision in court. 

Under the Li1-es1ock Facility Sitin~ Law. an "aggrieved person•· may appeal a local 
decision 10 the slate Livestock Facility Siting Review Board ("Board") An 
"aggrieved person" means a11 applicant for local approval_, _or a person who re~ide~ 
or owns land within 2 miles of the pwposed hvcs1nck facil1!} 

An "aggrieved person" ma_y apjleaJ a political sub<li\·ision's decision within 30 
days after the political sllbd_1v1sion issues the decision (or. 1f the "aggnc1·ed per,;011" 
pursues a !o,·al admmistrat1ve appeal process. within JO days afte1 that process 1s 

Register, A1lril, 2006, Nn. 6~ 
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complete). The "aggrie,e-d person" may challenge the local decision on the grounds 
tha1 11 incurrcctly applied Ii ,·c,tr•d fadlny ~i1ing standard< under thi~ charter, or , io­
!atcd the Li"c~tnck r"aciliry Siting Law. 

When an arpeal i~ filed. the Rnard mu•t notify the pol111ca! ~ubdi,·i•ion. Within 
30 day, aflcr the political ~ubdi\'isinn n.:cti,L·, !his notice. it must file a certified copy 
urits dn·ision md~lnF- record under~- ATCP 51_.~6 with tht' Board. The Bond mus1 
re1·iew the local decisicm b.ised on 1he evidence in the local record (the Board will not 
huld a new hcarin~ or acc<:p1 new C\'idcncc}. The Board mu~I make its deci~inn 
within 60 days after il recei,·es the l'Crtilie<l local record (it may extend the deadlin~ 
for good cause), 

If the Board determines that the challenge is valid, it must revcri;c the d1..'Cismn of 
lhe rolitical subdivision, The Board', decision is binding on the political subdivision 
(once any coun appeal of the decision is completed. or the _appeal time !_aptts) If the 
pohtical subd1vi,ion fails to comply with the Board's decision, an "aggneve<l person" 
may bring a court action 10 enforce the Board's decision 

An "aggrieved person" Qr the political mbdMsion may appeal _the Board's dcci• 
5ion to circuit court. The circuit court must review the Board's decision based on the 
evidence in the local record 

(b) ff a political subdivision grants an application for local 
approval, the political subdivision shall issue the local approval 
to the applicant in writing. The local approval shall include a 
duplicate copy of the approved application, marked "approved." 
The duplicate copy shall include all of the worksheets, maps and 
other attachments included in the application, except that it is not 
required tu include engineering design specifications. 

Note: A swce~sful applicam may wish to record the approval documentJ1i,in 
un<ler par. (b) with the rci;is!cr of deed~. an<l convey the documc-ntation In any subsl.'­
quC'nt purclrnser of the livestod.; facility. /\111ong other thiogs, the documentation 
estabfohes '\,di,r score .. refcrC'ncc points for foture expansions. See s. ATCP 51. J~ 
(b). 

(4) TERMS OF APPROVAL. An approval under sub, ( l) is condi­
tioned on the operator's compliance with subch. II and representa­
tions made in the application fur approval. This chapter does not 
limit a political subdivision's authority to do any of the following: 

(a) Monitor compliance. 
(b) Withdraw an approval, or seek other redress provided by 

law, if any of the following apply: 
I. The operator materially misrepresented relevant infom1a­

tion in the application for local approval. 
2. The operator, without authorization from the political sub­

division, fails lo honor relevant commitments made in the applica­
tion for local approval. A political subdivision may not withhold 
authorization. under this subdivision, for reasonable changes that 
maintain compliance with the standards in subch. ll. 

3. The livestock facility fails to comply with applicable stan­
dards in subch. II. 

Note: A political subdivision should exercise sound judgment in deciding whether 
to take compliance action uncler sub. (4) (b). The political subdivision may consider 
e~tcnunling circums1anccs, such as a<lvcr~e weather cundi1ions. th11t may affect an 
operntnr's ability to comply. A political subdivi~ion may a!~o consider the narure and 
seriousness of the violatilln, whether the vil>lation was in1ention11I or accidental, the 
operator's compliance history, consistency of enforcenienl, and whether the prob km 
can be resolved wi1hou1 formal enforcement. Before taking compliance action. a 
political 1ubdi\•ision should give the operator notice and a reasonable opportunity to 
demonstrate compliance, 

(5) NOTICE TO DEPARTMENT. (a) Within 30 days after a politi­
cal subdivision grants or denies an application under this section, 
or withdraws an approval under sub. (4) (bi ors. ATCP 51.08 (2), 
the political subdivision shall do all of the following: 

I. Give the department °"''Titten notice of its action. 

Register, April, 2006, No, 604 

2. File with the department a copy of the final application 
granted or denied, if the political subdivision has granted or 
denied an application under this section. The copy shall include 
all of the worksheets. maps and other at1achmcnts included in the 
application. except that it is not required to include engineering 
design specifications. 

3. File with the department a copy of the political subdivi­
sion's final notice or order withdrawing a local approval under 
sub. (4) (b) ors. ATCP 51.08 (2), if the political subdivision has 
withdrawn a local approval. 

(b) A political subdivision shall submit the information 
required under pars. (a) and (b), by mail or fax, to the following 
address: 

Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade 
and Consumer Protection 

Agricultural Resource Management Division 
Bureau of Land and Water Resources 

P.O. Box 891 I 
Madison. WI 53708-8911 

Fax (608) 224-4615 

(c) Failure to comply with par. (a) or (b) does not invalidate a 
political subdivision's decision to grant or deny an application for 
local approval, or to withdraw a local approval. 

History: CR 0_!;--014: er. Rrgl!itfr April 2006 No. 604, elT. _!;-J-06. 

ATCP 51.36 Record of decision-making. A political 
subdivision shall keep a complete written record of its decision­
making related to an application under s. ATCP 51.30, The politi­
cal subdivision shall keep the record for at least 7 years following 
its decision. The record shall include all of the following: 

(1) The application under s. ATCP 51.30 (!), and all subse­
quent additions or amendments to the application. 

(2) A copy of any notice under s. ATCP 51.30 (5), and copies 
of any other notices or correspondence that the political subdivi­
sion issues in relation to the application. 

(3) A record of any public hearing related to the application. 
The record may be in the form of an electronic recording, a tran­
script prepared from an electronic recording, or a direct transcript 
prepared by a court reporter or stenographer. The record shall also 
include any documents or evidence submitted by hearing partici­
pants. 

Nott: Municipal law nommlly dctem1ines whether a hearing is rcquirct.l. See, gen­
erally, ch, Ml. StHIS. 

(4) Copies of any correspondence or evidentiary material that 
the political subdivision considered in relation to the application. 

(5) Minutes of any board or commit1ee meeting held to con­
sider or act on the application. 

(6) The written decision required under s. ATCP 51.34 (3). 
(7) Other documents that the political subdivision prepared to 

document its decision or decision-making process. 
(8) A copy of any local ordinance cited in the decision. 

Hiuory: CR OS--014: er. Rea:hier April 2006 No. 604, ell . .5-1--06, 
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(2) COLLECTION GRANTS. The department may award a grant 
to a county for a chemical and container collection program. A 
grant under this subsection shall fund all or a part of the cost ofa 
program. Costs eligible for funding include the cost of establish­
ing a collection site for chemicals and chemical containers, the 
cost of transporting chemical containers to a dealer or distributor 
for refill and reuse or 10 a hazardous waste facility, as defined in 
s. 291.0 I (8), and costs associated with the proper use and han­
dling and disposal or recycling of chemicals and chemical con­
tainers. Grants shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 
20.115 (7) (va). 

(2m) FARMER LIABILITY. To the extent permitted under federal 
regulations, a county establishing a chemical and container 
collection program under sub. (2), in cooperation with the depart· 
ment, shall ensure that a farmer, as defined in s. I 02.04 (3), who 
participates in the program is not liable for chemicals or chemical 
containers collected under the program after the fam1er relin• 
quishes control over the chemicals or chemical containers. 

Hblon: 19ll\l a. 335; 1\191 a, 39: 1\195 a. 227, 2003 a.)). 
Cron R<'fcr<'n('e: See .:ils<> ch. ATCP 34, Wis, adm. ,-ode 

93.57 Household hazardous waste. The department shall 
administer a grant program to assist municipalities and regional 
planning commissions in creating and operating local programs 
for the collection and disposal of household hazardous waste. 

llbtory: 1985 a. 29: 1995 a. 227 s, 6'19; Stats. l9'l5 s. 299.41; 2001 a. 109; 2003 
a. 33 s. 2481s: Stats. 2003 s. 93.57. 

Cron Rererence: Sec also ch~. ATCP 34 and NR 187. Wis. adm. code. 

93. 70 Conservation reserve enhancement program. 
(1) The department may expend funds from the appropriation 
account under s. 20.866 (2) (wt) to improve water quality, erosion 
control and wildlife habit.:1t through participation by this state in 
rhe conservmion reserve enhancement progrum as approveJ by 
the secretary of the federal department of ab>riculture unJer 16 
use 3834 (fl (4). 

(2) The department may not make a payment under sub. (I) to 
a person whose name appears on the statewide support lien <locket 
under s. 49.854 (2) (b), unless the person provides to the depart­
ment a payment agreement that has been approved by the county 
child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent with 
rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a). 

Hislory: 1999 a. 9; 2003 a. 33. 

93.75 Payments to ethanol producers. (1) ELIGIBILITY. 

Beginning on July I, 2001, the department shall administer a pro• 
gram under which the department makes payments to a person 
who produces ethanol if all of the following criteria are satisfied: 

(a) The person produces in this state, within 12 months, over 
I 0,000,000 gallons of ethanol or, during the first l 2 months that 
the person produces ethanol in this state, a lesser amount of etha­
nol that is established by the department by rule. 

(b) The person has been producing ethanol in this state for 
fewer than 60 months. 

(c) The person purchases the substances from which the person 
produces ethanol from a local SOllrcC, as defined by the depart• 
ment by rule. 

(d) If construction of the ethanol production facility begins 
after July 27, 2005, a competitive bidding process is used for the 
construction of the ethanol production facility. 

(2) PAYMENTS. The department shall pay a person who is eligi­
ble under sub. (I) at the rate of 20 cents per gallon for not more 
than 15,000,000 gallons of ethanol produced in this state within 
12 months, except that ifthcrc arc insufficient funds to make pay• 
mcnts at this rate to all eligible persons the department shall pro­
rate the payments. 

(3) RULES. The department shall promulgate rules for the pro­
gram under this section. The department shall include all of the 
following in the rules; 

(a) The amount of!.!thanol that a person must produce within 
the first 12 months that the person produces ethanol in this state 
to be eligible for payments under this sectlon. 

(b) A definition of"local source" for the purposes of sub. (I) 
(c). 

(c) A method for prorating payments under sub. (2). 
(3m) MONITOR!;-.;G. (a) The department of transportation shall 

monitor the impact of ethanol sales in this state on the amount of 
federal moneys received by this state for highways and other sur• 
face transportation purposes, excluding federal moneys received 
for railroads. 

(b) If the department of transportation determines, on or before 
December 31, 2003, that the amount of federal moneys received 
by this state fol' highways and other surface transportation pur­
poses, excluding federal moneys received for railroads, is 
decreased due to ethanol sales in this state, the department of 
transportation shall notify the department of agriculture, trade and 
consumer protection of that determination not sooner than Octo• 
her I, 2003, and not later than December 31, 2003. 

(c) If the department of transportation determines, after 
December 31, 2003, and before January I, 2005, that the amount 
of federal moneys received by this state for highways and other 
surface transportation purposes, excluUing federal moneys 
received for railroads, is decreased due to ethanol sales in this 
state, the department of transportation shall notify the department 
of agriculture, trade and consumer protection of that determina­
tion not sooner than October I, 2004, and not later than Decem• 
ber JI. 2004. 

(d) If the department of transportation determines, after 
December 31, 2004, and before January I, 2006, that the amount 
of federal moneys received by this stale for highways and other 
surface transportation purposes, e'<cluding federal moneys 
received for railroads, is decreased due ro ethanol sales in this 
state, the department of transportation shall notify the department 
of agriclllture, trade and consumer protection of that detennina· 
tion not sooner than October I, 2005, and not later than Decem­
ber 31, 2005. 

(4) SUNSET. The department may not make a payment under 
this section after June 30. 2006, or the first day of the 6th month 
beginning after the department receives a notice under sub. (3m), 
whichever is sooner. 

Hi1IOI')': 1999 a. 55; 200S a. 25. 

93.80 Arsenic In wood. The department, jointly with the 
department of commerce, shall review scientific evidence to 
determine whether there is a substantial likelihood that wood 
treated with copper, chromium, and arsenic is harmful to the envi• 
ronment or to human health. 

History: 2001 a. 16. 

93.90 Livestock facility siting and expansion. (1) This 
section is an enactment of statewide concern for the purpose of 
providing unifonn regulation of livestock facilities. 

(1m) DEFINITIONS. In this section; 
(a) "Animal unit" has the meaning given ins. NR 243.03 (3), 

Wis. Adm. Code. 

(b) "Application for approval" means an application for 
approval of a liwstock facility siting or expansion. 

(c) "Board" means the livestock facility siting review board. 
(d) "Expansion" means an increase in the number of animals 

fed, confined, maintained, or stabled. 
(e) ''Livestock facility" means a feedlot or facility, other than 

a pasture, where animals used in the production of food, fiber, or 
other animal products arc or will be fed, confined, maintained, or 
stabled for a total of 45 days or more in any 12-month period. 
"Livestock facility" does not include an aquaculture facility. 

(t) "Political subdivision" means a city, village, town, or 
county. 

Unofficial text from 05-06 Wis. Stats. database. See printed 05-06 Statutes and 2007 Wis. Acts for official text under s. 35.18 
(2) stats. Report errors to the Re visor of Statutes at (608) 266-2011, FAX 264-6978, http://www.leg/s.state.wf.us/rsb/ 
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(2) DEPARTMENT DUTIES. (a) For the purposes of this section, 
the department shall promulgate rules specifying st,mdards for sit• 
ing and expanding livestock facilities. In promulgating the mies, 
the department may incorporate by cross-reference provisions 
contained in rules promulgated under ss. 92.05 (3) (c) and {k), 
92.14 (8), 92.16, and 281.16 (3 I and ch. 283. The department may 
not promulgate rules under this paragraph that conflict with rules 
promulgated under s. 92.05 (3) (c) or (k), 92.14 (8), 92.16, or 
281.16 (3 I m ch. 283. 

(b) fn promulgating rules under par. (a), the department shall 
consider whether tht: proposed standards, other than those incor• 
porated by cross-reference, are all of the following: 

1. Protective of public health or safety. 
Im. Practical and workable. 
2. Cosr-cffccrive. 
3. Objective. 
4. Based on available scientific information that has been sub­

jected to peer review. 
5. Designed to promote the growth and viability of animal 

agriculture in this state. 
6. Designed to balance the economic viability offann opera­

tions with protecting natural resources and other community inter­
ests. 

7. Usable by officials of political subdivisions. 
(c) The department shall review rules promulgated under par. 

(a) at least once every 4 years. 
(d) The secretary shall appoint a con,mit1ee of experts to 

advise the department on the promulgation of the rules under par. 
(a) and on the review of rules under rar. (c). 

(c) In addition to the ni.lcs under rar. (a). the department shall 
promulgate rules that do all of the following: 

I. Specify the infonnation and documentalion that must be 
provided in an application for approval in order to demonstrate 
that a livestock facility siting or expansion complies with applica­
ble state standards under sub. (2) (a). 

2. Specify the information and documentation that must be 
included in a record of decision making under sub. (4) (b). 

(3) POLITICAL SURDIVISION AUTHORITY. (a) Notwithstanding 
ss. 33.455, 59.03 (2) (a), 59.69, 60. IO (2) (i), 60.61, 60.62, 61.34 
(I), 61.35, 62. I I (5), 62.23, 66.04 I 5, 92.07 (2), 92.11, and 92. I 5 
(3) (a), a political subdivision may not disapprove or prohibit a 
livestock facility siting or expansion unless at least one of the fol­
lowing applies: 

I. The site is located in a zoning district that is not an agricul­
tural zoning district. 

2. The site is located in an agricultural zoning district in which 
the proposed new or expanded livestock facility is prohibited, 
subject to pars. (b) and (c). 

3. The proposed new or expanded livestock facility violates 
an ordinance adopted under s. 59.692, 59.693, 60.627, 61.351. 
61.354, 62.231, 62.234, or 87.30. 

4, The proposed new or expanded livestock facility violates 
a building, electrical, or plumbing code that is consistent with the 
state building, electrical, or plumbing code for that type of facility. 

5. The proposed new or expanded livestock facility will have 
500 or more animal units and violates a state standard under sub. 
(2) (a). 

6. The proposed new or expanded livestock facility will have 
500 or more animal units and violates a requirement that is more 
stringent than the state standards under sub. (2) (a) if the political 
subdivision does all of the following: 

a. Adopts rhe requirement by ordinance before the applicant 
files the application for approval. 

b. Bases the requirement on reasonable and scientifically 
defensible findings of fact, adopted by the political subdivision, 
that clearly show that the requirement is necessary to protect pub• 
lie health or safety. 

8. The proposed new or expanded livestock facility will have 
fewer than 500 animal units but will exceed a size threshold for 
requiring a special exception or conditional use permit that was 
incorporated into the political subdivision's ordinances before 
July 19, 2003, and the proposed new or expanded livestock facil­
ity violates a state standard under sub. (2) (a), 

9. The proposed new or expanded livestock facility will have 
fewer than 500 animal units but will exceed a size threshold for 
requiring a special exception or conditional use permit that was 
incorporated into the political subdivision's ordinances before 
July 19, 2003, and the proposed new or expanded livestock foci!• 
ity violates a requirement that is more stringent than the stale stan­
dards under sub. (2) (a) if the political subdivision does all of the 
following: 

a. Adopts the requirement by ordinance befon: the applicant 
files the application for approval. 

b. Bases the requirement on reasonable and scientifically 
defensible findings of fact, adopted by the political subdivision, 
that clearly show that the requirement is necessary to protect pub­
lic health or safety. 

(ae) A political subdivision that requires a special exception 
or conditional use permit for the siting or expansion of any of the 
following livestock facilities shall require compliance with the 
applicable state standards under S\lb. (2) (a) as a condition of issu• 
ing the special exception or conditional use pennit: 

I. A new or expanded livestock facility that will have 500 or 
more animal units. 

2. A new or expanded livestock facility that will have fewer 
than 500 animal units but that will exceed a size threshold for 
requiring a special exception or conditional use pem1it that was 
incorporated into the political subdivision's ordinances before 
July 19, 2003. 

(am) Notwithstanding par. (ae), a political subdivision may 
apply to a new or expanded livestock facility described in par. (ae) 
I. or 2., as a condition of issuing a special exception or conditional 
use permit, a setback requirement that is less stringent than a set­
back requirement under sub. (2) (a) if the setback requirement is 
incorporated in the political subdivision's ordinances as a numeri­
cal standard. 

(ar) Notwithstanding par. (ae) a political subdivision may 
apply to a new or expanded livestock facility described in par. (ae) 
I. or 2., as a condition of issuing a special exception or conditional 
use permit, a requirement that is more stringent than the state stan­
dards under sub. (2) (a) if the political subdivision docs all of the 
following: 

I. Adopts the requirement by ordinance before the applicant 
files the application for approval. 

2. Bases the requirement on reasonable and scientifically 
defensible findings of fact, adopted by the political subdivision, 
that clearly show that the requirement is necessary to protect pub­
lic health or safety. 

(b) Notwithstanding ss. 59,69, 60.6 I, 60.62, 61.35, and 62.23, 
a political subdivision may not prohibit a type of livestock facility 
in an agricultural zoning district based on number of animal units 
if livestock facilities of that type with fewer animal units arc 
allowed in that zoning district, unless the political subdivision also 
has an agricultural zoning district in which livestock facilities of 
that type arc pcnnittcd or conditional uses without respect to num­
ber of animal units. 

(c) Notwithstanding ss. 59.69, 60.61, 60.62, 61.35, and 62.23, 
a political subdivision may not enact or enforce a zoning ordi­
nance with a category of agricultural district in which livestock 
facilities arc prohibited unless the political subdivision bases that 
prohibition on reasonable and scientifically defensible findings of 
fact, adopted by the political subdivision, that clearly show that 
the prohibition is necessary to protect public health or safety. 

(d) Notwithstanding ss. 92.15 (4) and 28 I .16 (3) (e), a political 
subdivision that requires compliance with state standards under 
sub. (2) (a) as a condition of issuing a special exception or con di-

Unofficial text from 05-06 Wis. Stats. database. See printed 05-06 Statutes and 2007 Wis. Acts for official text under s. 35.18 
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tional use pcnnit for an expanded livestock facility is not required 
to determine that cost-sharing is available to the operator of the 
livestock facility for facilities or practices needed to comply with 
those standards if the livestock facility will have 500 or more ani­
mal units. 

(c) Norn-·ithstanding ss. 59.69, 60.61, 60.62, 61.35. and 62.23, 
a political subdivision may not enact a requirement that a person 
obtain a special exception or conditional use pennit for the expan­
sion of a livestock facility that exists when the requirement takes 
effect, except that a political subdivision may enact a requirement 
that a person obtain a special exception or conditional use pennit 
for the expansion of a livestock facility that exists when the 
requirement takes effect if the requirement applies only when the 
number of animal units that the livestock facility will have after 
expansion will exceed by more than 20 percent the largest number 
of animal units that were at the livestock facility for at least 90 
days in the 12-month period before the requirement takes effect. 

(t) For the purposes of this subsection, the number of animal 
units that a livestock facility will have is the largest number of ani­
mal units that will be fed, confined, maintained, or stabled at the 
livestock facility on at least 90 days in any 12-month period. 

(4) POUTICAL SUBDIVISION F'ROCF.OURE. (a) No later than 45 
days after a political subdivision receives an application for 
approval, the political subdivision shall notify the applicant 
whether the application for approval is complete and, if it is not 
complete, what information is needed to complete the application 
for approval. As soon as the applicant has provided all of the 
required information, the political subdivision shall notify the 
applicant that the application for approval is complete. 

(b) A political subdivision shall make a record of its decision 
making on an application for approval, including a recording of 
any public hearing, copies of documents submitted at any public 
hearing, and copies of any other documents provided to the politi­
cal subdivision in connection with the application for approval. 

(c) A political subdivision shall base its decision on an applica­
tion for approval on written findings of fact that are supported by 
the evidence in the record under par. (b). 

(d) Except as provided in par. (e), a political subdivision shall 
approve or disapprove an application for approval no more than 
90 days after the day on which it notifies the applicant that the 
application for approval is complete. If an applicant complies 
with the rules promulgated under sub. (2) (c) I. and the infonna­
tion and documentation provided by the applicant is sufficient to 
establish, without considering any other infonnation or documen­
tation, that the application complies with applicable requirements 
for approval, the political subdivision shall approve the applica­
tion unless the political subdivision finds, based on other clear and 
convincing infonnation or documentation in the record, that the 
application does not comply with applicable requirements, 

(e) A political subdivision may extend the time limit in par. (d) 
if the political subdivision needs additional infonnation to deter­
mine whether to approve or deny the application for approval, if 
the applicant makes a material modification to the application for 

approval, or for other good cause specified in writing by the politi­
cal subdivision. 

(5) REv1EW OF SITING 11F.C1S10NS (a) In this subsection 
"aggrieved person" means a person who applied to a political sub­
division for approval of a livestock facility siting or expansion, a 
person who lives within 2 miles ofa livestock facility that is pro­
posed to be sited or expanded, or a person who owns land within 
2 miles of a livestock facility that is proposed to be sited or 
expanded. 

(b) An aggrieved person may challenge the decision ofa politi­
cal subdivision on an application for approval on the groundi; that 
the political subdivision incorrectly applied the state standards 
under sub. (2) (a) that are applicable to the livestock facility siting 
or expansion or violated sub. (3), by requesting the board to 
review the decision. An aggrieved person is not required to 
exhaust the political subdivision's administrative remedies before 
requesting review by the board. An aggrieved person shall request 
a review under this paragraph within 30 days after the political 
subdivision approves or disapproves the application for approval 
or, if the aggrieved person chooses to exhaust the political subdi• 
vision's administrative remedies, within 30 days after the final 
decision in the political subdivision's administrative review pro­
cess. 

(hm) Upon receiving a request under par. (h), the board shall 
notify the political subdivision of the request. The political subdi• 
vision shall provide a certified copy of the record under sub. (4) 
to the board within 30 days after the day on which it receives the 
notice. 

(c) Upon receiving the certified copy of the record under par. 
(bm), the board shall detennine whether the challenge is valid. 
The board shall make its decision without deference to the deci­
sion of the political subdivision and shall base its decision only on 
the evidence in the record under sub, (4) (b). In a case that 
involves the application ofrequircmcnts related to water quality, 
the board shall consult with the department of agriculture, trade 
and consumer protec1iun or with the department of natural 
resources concerning the application of the requirements related 
to water quality. The board shall make its decision within 60 days 
after the day on which it receives the certified copy of the record 
under par. (bm), except that the board may extend this time limit 
for good cause specified in \\'Titing by the bourd. 

(d) If the board determines that a challenge is valid, the board 
shall reverse the decision of the political subdivision. The deci­
sion of the board is binding on the political subdivision, subject to 
par. (e). Ifa political subdivision fails to comply with a decision 
of the board that has not been appealed under par. (e), an aggrieved 
person may bring an action to enforce the decision. 

(e) An aggrieved person or the political subdivision may 
appeal the decision of the board to circuit court. The filing of an 
appeal does not in itself stay the effect ofa decision of the board. 

(f) A circuit court to which a decision of the board is appealed 
under par. (e) shall review the decision of the board based on the 
evidence in the record under sub. (4) (b). 

lllstory: :!003 a. 235. 
Crou Reference: Sec also ch. ATCP 5!, Wis. adm. code . 

Unofficial text from 05-06 Wis. Stats. database. See printed 05-06 Statutes and 2007 Wis. Acts for official text under s. 35.18 
(2) stats. Report errors to the Revlsor of Statutes at (608) 266-2011, FAX 264-6978, http:ltwww./egls.state.wl.us/rsbl 



• 

• 

A 

!VIODEL ZONING ORDINANCE 

FOR 

ANIMAL FEEDING OPERATIONS 

Developed by a 

ZONING WORK GROUP 

for Animal Feeding Operations 

Final 

March 2000 

Facilitated by the 

\"ORTH DA KOT A DEPART\IENT OF HEALTH 
Environmental Health Section 
P.O. Box 5520 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5520 



• PREAMBLE 

Public rnnccrn about odors produced hv animal feeding operations and agricultural concern 
for rights 10 practice farming and ranching emerged within North Dakota during 1998. As 
remedies for these concerns, the 1999 North Dakota Legislative Assembly approved 
amendments to law that ( 1) limited the powers of local governments to prohibit or prevent the 
use of land ,,r buildings for farming or ranching but allowed local governments to regulate the 
nature and scope of concentrated feeding operations, and (2) established a state standard for 
odors. The 1999 legislation was Senate Bills 2355 and 2365. 

Subsequent to signing this legislation, Governor Edward T. Schafer issued Executive Order 
1999-03, which reads in part: 

The Department of Health shall ... take steps reasonably necessary 10 protect 1hc 

~111.·i:·1.)nm~nt of the state of Nonh Dakota, according to its responsibilities under law: 
:md. 

The Department shall establish a working group with interested political suhdivisions. 
or their associations to develop model zoning regulations for the subdivisions to 
implement as they deem appropriate; 

The Department of Health arranged for and facilitated meetings of the work group and a 
committee of the work group. The work group was comprised ofrepresentatives of two 
livestock producer associations, three boards of county commissioners, two township officers 
associations, two city officers and the Department of Health. At times, several other people 
participated in meetings or assisted the work group, including county planners and land-use 
administrators. 

This document is the product of the work group. It represents the consensus recommendation 
of the work group for zoning of concentrated feeding operations, sometimes referred to as 
feedlots or animal feeding operations. Its purpose is to: 

,..,,. Provide a reference, or model, for zoning and ordinances pertaining to concentrated 
feeding operations for use by the local governments across North Dakota. 

n.- Remind local governments of their roles in protecting public safety and health and in 
planning the uses, conservation and protection of natural resources, including land for 
farming and ranching. 

t:-i· Foster unifonn zoning ordinances For cnnccnlratcd feeding operations among counties 
and townships. Since regional differences in population density, climate, and soil and 
w:i.ter resoiirccs cccur across the sutc. lo,::al go\~rnmcnts can revise the mode) as 
appropriate. 

:\ void duplication among state environmental protection rules and local government 
zoning ordinances. 
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INTRODUCTORY COMMENTARY 

:\ summ, ir_\' <f rhe rea.rnn.\' }f>r, nnil r he content t~f, an ordinance far animal _t(,eding operations. 

DEVELOPER AWARENESS 

As some counties or townships in North Dakota become increasingly urban, especially those 
that contain the larger population centers, there is a need to reduce the conflict between farms 

Jnd ranches and rural property 0wncrs. Normal facets of fa1ming and ranching must be 
recognized by new and potemial rural property owners and developers who make these 
properties J\·ailable for non-farming or non-ranching uses. 

Counties ancl townships should consider preparing educational matcri:ils for potential property 
Jcvdupcrs ,nd buyers; the materials should explain that aspects oi some normal activities 01 
fa.rmii1g or r:1nching can be dis.pleasing lO non-farm or non-ranch occupanl~. For example, 
informational materials were developed by Spokane County and are available: "Code of the 
West: Agriculture, Access and Mother Nature." Long Range Planning Department, Public 
Works Building, 11 I 6 W. Broadway, Spokane, WA. 

Normal farming and ranching practices can create these conditions: 

✓ Animal production can cause odors, flies and noise. 

✓ Crop production can create road and fie! d dust. 

✓ Applications of fertilizers and pesticides are common. 

✓ Slow-moving vehicles and extra-wide equipment are common on roadways. 

✓ Early morning or late evening truck traffic or chemical applications can occur. 

State law places limitations on the :ibility of penple affected by agricultural operations to bring 
nuisance actions to limit or stop such activities. (See N.D.C.C. chapter 42-04.) 

LEG \L ALTHORITY 

The North Dakota legislature has given political subdivisions the authority to enact local 
wning <Jrdinanccs for the purpose of promoting health, safety, morals, public convenience. 
general pro;;1eri1y and public welfare. (Sec. for example, N.D.C.C. * 11-33-01, which is the 
county wning authority.) In general, however, the law does not allow political subdivisions to 

enact any rcgulat ion or restriction that prohibits or prevents ;'the use of land or buildings for 

fanning or ranching or any of the normal incidents of farming or ranching." (See, for 

example .. , .D.C.C. ~ I I -33-02, subsection I.) 
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The 1999 amendments to the law addressed an important legal question: whether concentrated 
feeding operations were "industrial" operations over which counties and townships could 
exercise their traditional zoning authority, or whether 1hey were ••fanning" operations over 
which poli1ical subdivisions had no zoning au1hority'' The lcgislalUre answered this question. 
First, ii defined farming and ranching to include li,cslock "feeding": second, it gave counties 
and townships authority to "regulate the nature and scope of concentrated feeding operations" 
pennissible within their jurisdictions and to "set reasonable standards, based on the size of the 
operation" to govern its location. The legislation abo forbids counties and townships from 
banning concentrated feeding operations from their jurisdictions and from prohibiting the 
reasonable diversification or expansion of farming or ranching operations. The amendments 
give coumics and townships discretion to adopt their 01.n standards regulating the size, nature 
and location of feedlots subject to the limitations rnnlincd above. The amended law is 
provided in Appendix I. 

FUNCTION OF AN ORDINANCE 

There appears to be a misunderstanding among many people in North Dakota as to how 
zoning functions. Many believe that, because rural areas beyond incorporated cities have 
historically been agricultural production areas, they are zoned agriculture and arc entitled to 
protection from encroachment of non-agricultural land use. This is not the case. Zoning 
authorities maintain that farming and ranching areas arc not protected from encroachment 
until they are delineated in comprehensive land-use plans. Comprehensive land-use plans are 
required by law before adoption of land-use ordinances. Apparently, most rural areas of the 
state are not covered by comprehensive land-use plans; therefore, there is no protection from 
encroachment by incompatible land use. 

If conflict in land use is to be constrained by local governments so as to protect the right to 
practice farming or ranching and to foster compatibility with nearby land use, local 
government officials choosing to adopt an ordinance for animal feeding operations must: 

► Adopt comprehensive land-use plans, which delineate land uses and specify land use 
objectives and policies. 

► Adopt separation distances (aka setbacks or reverse setbacks) that reflect qualifiablc or 
yuantifiable odor characteristics and odor dispersal. (Compliance with the odor 
provisions of 1999 5B2365 is not a defense in nuisance litigation, N.D.C.C. chapter 
42-01.) 

► !dcn1ify those ne\v l:.rnd uses r.!Jat do 1wt Ct.rn:·,:.irrn 10 :he l)hjccrivcs and policies for 
delineated agricultural areas so as 10 infringe on the rights of farming or ranching (not 

included in 1hc model zoning ordinance for animal !'ceding operations). 

► ldc111ify those new and cxi.\ling animal feeding ,,pcrations 1hat, due to size (e.g., 
numhcr of animal units). pre.sent safety hazards, affect n:,tural resources, affect 
s11rruunding areas or lJther means of infringing nn !he right, of others. 

7 
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MODEL LAND-USE POLICY 

Srnre lrrn's 1i·hich allow :oning hy local governments require comprelwnsfre plans that contain Land­
use goals, ere. Suggested goals, objectives and policies - for indusion in a comprehensil'e lmui-use 

p/nn llS dl.~eml!d appropriate - are provided. 

LAND-USE COORDI1"ATION 

Development within the zoning jurisdiction of a city shall be determined by that city. 
Development within the zoning jurisdiction of a county or township that may affect property 
within a city's zoning limits should be reviewed cooperatively hy the hoard of county 
,:,)mmissi,mers or the township board and the city. 

ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY AND HEAL TH 

Goal: Develop, adopt and administer zoning ordinances that are consistent with the 
objectives and policies of this comprehensive land use plan. 

Objective A: Manage new development. 

Policy Al: Encourage rural residential development, as needed, to locate areas that are in 
non-productive for farming or ranching. 

Policy A2: Protect farming or ranching from non-agricultural development of land uses 
that would hinder the operations or productivity of farming or ranching. A 
proposed change in land use should not cause conflict with existing farming or 

ranching. 

Objective B: Promote conservation of natural resources. 

Policy B 1: Encourage development in ways that conserve natural and agricultural 
resources. Developments or land use should not pose unacceptable 
exploitation of natural and agricultural resources or unacceptahle risk of 
polluting air, land or water. 

Policy 82: Encourage programs and activities that reduce and control soil erosion and 1hat 
prevent the growth and spread of weeds. 

Ohjcctivc C: Promote public safety and health. 

Pc,licy Cl: Encourage programs and activities 1hat disi..:mirage siting of development in a 

!load way or flood plain and Lhat reduce and prevent air, soil ur water 
pollution . 
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MODEL AFO ZONING ORDINANCE 

,.\ .mgge.\·ted :oning orili11m1<·e pertaining to aninwlfeetling operations is prm·idedfor use by local 
g,overnme.nts as <iel'i11t~d appropriate. A sumnwry ofrhe work .~roup's discussions rluu ,qorerned 
.rn/Jstance of this model ordinance is include,J in a s11hsl:',/IH'111 t ·hap1er of this document. 

This land-use ordinance for animal feeding operations includes the following sections. 

I. General Provisions 
I. I Definitions 
I .2 Equivalent Animal Numbers 
1.3 Environmental Provisions 
I .4 Enforcement 
I .5 Severability 

2. Setback Requirements 
2. I Water Resource Setbacks 
2.2 Odor Setbacks 

3 . Conditional Uses 
3.1 Permit Procedures 
3.2 Ownership Change 
3.3 Operational Change 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.1 DEFINITIONS 

Terms used in this ordinance have the same meaning as given by the laws and rules of the 
slate of No1th Dakota, specifically chapter 33-16-03 of the North Dakota Administrative 
Code. The definitions for these terms and for additional terms (bold print) are: 

"Animal feeding operation" means a place where: livestock have been, are, or will be 
confined, concentrated and fed for 45 or more days in any 12 month period; pasture, 
crops, or other vegetation are not normally managed or sustained for grazing during 
the normal growing season; and, animal waste or manure accumulates. This term does 
not include an animal wintering operation. Adjoining animal feeding operations 
urnk·r cornn1on ownership arc considered to be one animal feeding operation. if they 

use common areas or systems for manure handling. 

··_.\nirna! wintering operation" means the confinement of cattle or sheep used or kept for 
breeding purposes in a feedlot or shc!Jcred area at any time between October 15 and 
:vtay 15 of each production cycle under circumstances in which these animals do not 
,1h1ain a majority of their feed and nutrients from grazing. The term includes the 

5 
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weaned ,,rt.-spring ,,r ,·attle and sheep, but it does not include ( I) breeding operations of 
more than 1,000 animal units or (2) weaned offspring which are kept longer than 120 
days and that arc not retained for breeding purposes. 

"Due process" involves two essential elements: (I) notice and (2) an opportunity for a 
hearing. The notice must adequately describe the potential action that might affect the 
person(s) being notified and it must provide the person(s) a reasonable time to 
respond. If the person(s) request(s) a hearing, the hearing must be fair and allow the 
person(s) to present relevant evidence and arguments. 

·'Existing" means in place and operating on the date this ordinance is effective. 

"Livestock" means any animal raised for food. raw materials or pleasure. including, but not 
limited to, beef and dairy cattle, bison, sheep, swine, poultry and horses. Livestock 
also includes fur animals raised for pelts. 

"Manure." means fecal material and urine from livestock, as well as animal-housing wash 
water, bedding material, rainwater or snow melt that comes in contact with fecal 
material or urine . 

"Operator" means an individual or group of individuals, a partnership, a corporation, a joint 
venture, or any other entity owning or controlling one or more animal feeding 
operations or animal wintering operations. 

"Shall" means that the requirement is mandatory, rather than optional. 

"Surface water" means waters of the state located on the ground surface such as lakes, 
reservoirs, rivers and creeks. 

·'Waters of the state" means all waters within the jurisdiction of this state, including all 
streams, lakes, ponds, impounding reservoirs, marshes, watercourses, waterways, and 
al I other bodies or accumulations of water on or under the surface of the ea1th, natural 
or artificial, public or private, situated wholly or partly within or hordering upon the 
state, except those private waters that do not combine or effect a junction with natural 
surface or underground waters just defined. 

1.2 EQUIVALENT ANIMAL NUMBERS 

An "animal unit equivalent" is a unitless number developed from the nutrient and volume 
d1aractcristics of ma1111re for a specific livestock type. The term "animal units" is used to 
normalize the number of animals (e.g .. head1 for each specific lives!Ock type which produce 
comparable bulk quantities of ma11ure. The animal unit equivalents for types of livestock and 
the numbers of livestock for facility size thresholds of 300 animal units (a.u.J. and so forth. are 
listed in the following table. 

() 
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Equivalent :\umbers of the Lh·cstock (hd) 
for Four Sizes (a.u.) of Animal Feeding Operations 

Animul Unit 
Li\'estock Type Equivalent JOO ~.u. ] _(l{)() J.\l. 2.000 a.u. 5,0<Xla.u. 

I horse 2.0 150 hd 500 hd 1,000 hd 2,500 hd 

I Jairy c-ow 1.3] 225 750 1,500 3,750 

I mature heef 1.0 300 1,000 2,000 5,000 

I hcef feeder • 1.0 300 1,000 2,000 5,000 
finishing 

I heef feeder - 0.75 400 1,3.13 2,667 6,667 
backgrounding 

I mature bison 10 ,oo 1.000 2,000 5,000 

I bison feeder 1.0 300 l,UOU 2,000 5,000 

1 swine,> 55 lbs 04 750 2,500 5,000 12,500 

I goose or duck 0.2 1,500 5,(XJ0 I O,O(Xl 25,000 

I sheep 0.1 3,000 10,000 20,000 50,000 

I swine, nursery U.l 3,0UO JU,000 20,000 50,000 

I turkey 0.0182 16,500 55,000 110,000 275,000 

I chicken 0.01 30,000 100,000 200,000 500,000 

1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

The operator of a new facility for animal feeding is expected to locate, construct, operate and 
maintain the facility so as to minimize, reduce or abate effects of pollution on environmental 
resources and on public safety and health. The operator of an existing facility is expected lo 
operate and maintain the facility so as to minimize, reduce or abate effects of pollution on 
environmental resources and on public safety and health. Each operator shall comply with 
applicable state laws and rules, including the laws and rules administered by 1he North Dakota 
Department of Health and with any permits granted by that department. 

IA E:\FORCE.\-IE:\'f 

In the event of a violatiun of this ordinance ur a judgement on a civil action by the Nonh 
Dakota Dcpar1111l:nt of Health. the local uni1 or gl)vcrrnrn::nt, afti.;r due process. can order 
cessation of a racility for animal feeding within a reasonable period of time and until such 
time ,is the opera/Or corrects ,ir abates lhe cau,cisi ilf the violation. Ir the cause(s) of the 

I I 
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"inlalion Jre not remedied within a reasonable period of lime as set by the local unit ,if 
government, the permit may be revoked. 

1.5 SEVERABILITY 

If any parJgraph, sentence. clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held lo be 
in val id or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

2. S£TBACK REQUIREMENTS 

2.1 WATER RESOURCE SETBACKS 

The operator of a new animal feeding operation that has more than 1,000 animal units shall 
not locate or establish that operation: 

A. Within a delineated source water protection area for a public water system. The source 
water protection areas for water supply wells include the entire wellhead protection 
area. For the su,face-water intakes of public water systems, source water protection 
areas include all or portions of the surface water that supplies the water for the public 
water system, including all or portions of the surface-water's shoreline. 

B. (The following provision is optional. Within 1,200 feet (365.6 meters) of a private 
ground water well which is not owned by the operator or within 1,500 feet (457.1 
meters) of a public ground water well which does not have a delineated source water 

protection area.) 

C. (The.fi;l/owing proFiswn is op1io11al. Within 1,000 feet (304.7 meters) of surface water 
which is not included in a source water protection area.) 

2.2 ODOR SETBACKS 

The operator of a new facility for an cmimalfeeding operation shall not locate that operation 
within the extra territorial zoning jurisdiction ofan incorporated city. 

-\ 11 , nvnci- of property sh JI I Joe at~! ::rnd establish a residence, business, church, school. puhl ic 
park nr zone for residential use so as to provide a separation distance from any existing 

:111i111ul f('( 1di11g operation. The scparalinn distances, or setbacks, are listed in the following 
1~d1k . .\11 O\\'ncr of property who i:-; an operator may locate the owner's residence or business 

wi1hi11 the setbacks . 
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Setback Distances for Animal Feeding Operations 

;\um her t1f Animal U11it~ Hng Operations Other Animal Operations 

fewer than JOO 1\0lll.! lll)llC 

:1()() - 1000 0.:-'ltl !lli Ill.SOS km) 0.50 mi \0.805 km) 

1001 or more 0.75 mi t 1.207 km) 0.50 mi (0.805 km) 

2001 or more 1.00 mi ( 1.609 km) 0.75 mi ( 1.207 km) 

500 I or more l .50 mi (2.414 km) 1.00 mi ( 1.609 km) 

The opera10r of a new animal feeding opera1i,m shall locate the site of that operation from 
existing residences, businesses, churches, schools, public parks and areas of property that are 
zoned residential so as to exceed the corresponding listed setback from these places. 

If notified in writing by an operator of a planned future expansion of an animal feeding 
operwion, the local unit of government may implement the corresponding odor setback for a 
temporary time period not to exceed two years, after which time the setback will remain in 
effect only if the expansion was completed. 

A local unit of government may, upon recommendation of the zoning commission or land use 
administrator, increase or decrease a setback distance for a new animal feeding operation after 
consideration of the proposed operation's plans, if it determines that a greater or lesser setback 
distance is necessary or acceptable, respectively, based upon site conditions or demonstrable 
safety, health, environmental or public welfare concerns. 

3. CONDITIONAL USES 

3. t PERMIT PROCEDURES 

3.1.A. Applicability. 

The operator of a new livestock facility or an existing li,·estock facility, which meets the 
definition of an animal feeding operation and which is a conditional (or special) use of land 
as listed below, shall apply for and obtain a conditional (or special) use permit. 

I. A new animal.feeding operation that would be capable of handling, or that 
expands to handle, more than ! ,000 animal units is a conditional (or special) 
use of land. 

:\n e.ris1i11g rmimaljl'.eding npem1io11 that expands to handle more than 1.000 
animal units is a conditional (or special) use of land. 
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Whcncvcr the capacity ,if an animal feeding operarion is expanded to handle mcwc than 2.000 
or 5,000 animal uni!>. the operator shall apply for a new conditional (or special) use pcnnil. 

3.1.B. Procedure. 

The local unit of govcmmcnl may practice any or all of the provisions in the following 
subparagraphs in harmony with the permitting process of its general zoning regulations. 

I. Application for a conditional use (or special use) permit shall be submitted to 
the local unit of government for tentative approval. The local unit of 
gm crnmcnt shall notify the Dcpa11ment of Health that it has rcceivc:d such 
application. 

2. The Inca! unit of government shall notify by certified mail all propenv o"ncrs 
ha Ying property within the co1Tesponding odor setback distance of a prcpl)Sed 
new animal.feeding operation. This notification must occur within 21 days of 
receiving the application. The approval process utilized by the local unit of 
government may include at least one advertised public hearing. 

3 . Following tentative approval or denial of the application by the local unit of 
government, the applicant shall be notified by letter of the Jecision, including 

conditions imposed, if any. 

4. The applicant shall then forward its application for a conditional (or special) 
use permit, together with the tentative approval by the local government, to the 
North Dakota Department of Health. 

5. Following a review by the Department of Health of the operator's application 
for a stale permit, the Department of Health will notify the local unit of 
gnvcrnmcnt of its decision. 

6. The c:omlitional (or special) use permit will become final following the 
granting of a permit by the Department of Health. 

7. A conditional (or special) use permit granted to the operator of a new animal 
!ceding opaation shall be put into use within twenty-four (24) months. or the 
pcrmi1 shall lapse and the operator may re-apply. 

3.1.C. Application Requirements. 

The application for a conditional use (or special use) permit to operate a facility for an animal 
kcdi11., 01H,mtio11 shall include a scaled site plan. If the facility will handle more than 1,000 
animal units. the scaled site pian shall be prepared by a registered land surveyor. a civil 
engineer ur 1Hhcr pcrs,111 having comparable experience or qualifications. The local unit of 
gowrnmcnl ,nay rc<.Juirc any <1r all of the following clements, or require aJditional elements. 

\lj 

'4-
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in its site plan review process when needed to determine the nature and scope of the animal 
feeding operation. 

I. Proposed number of animal units. 

2. Total acreage of the site of the facility. 

3. Existing and proposed roads and access ways within and adjacent to the site of 
the facility. 

4. Surrounding land uses and ownership, if the operation will have the capacity to 
handle more than 1,000 animal units. 

5. A copy of the pennit application submitted by the applicant to the Department 
of Health. 

3.2 OWNERSHIP CHANGE 

An operator of a facility that includes an animal feeding operation having a permit granted by 
this ordinance shall notify the local unit of government of the sale, or the transfer of the 
ownership of tliat operation . 

3.3 OPERATING CHANGE 

An operator of a facility that includes an animal feeding operation having a permit granted by 
this ordinance shall notify the local unit of government of intent to include an alternate 
livestock type. The notice shall be given at least 120 days prior to the anticipated date of the 
change . 

11 

---------
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ST.\Tl:TORY AUTHORITY FOR JOINT PO\VERS AGREEMENTS 

Cno1wrati\'e or Joint Administration by Counties and Townships 
of Authority to Regulate Concentrated Feeding Operations 

N.D.C.C. § 54-40.3-01 allows counties, townships or other political subdivisions to enter into 
agreements with other political subdivisions for the cooperative or joint administration of any 
power or function authorized by law or assigned to one or more of them. Counties and 
townships may use this authority to pool resources, cut red tape, and make their services and 
functions more cost effective, timely, efficient and responsive. 

The 1999 Legislature amended N.D.C.C. § 11-33-02 and N.D.C.C. § 58-03-11 to clarify the 
ro" er and function of c,iunties and townships to regulate animal feeding operations. 
Counties and townships may wish to explore the possibility of cooperative or joint regulation 
of rnncentrated feeding operations to avoid unnecessary duplication of these regulations and 
to satisfy the purpose and intent of N.D.C.C. § 11-33-02 and N.D.C.C. § 58-03-11. 

l. Factors Relevant Under Amended Law. 

The 1999 Legislature amended N.D.C.C. § l l-33-02 and N.D.C.C. § 58-03- l l to clarify that 
counties and townships may "regulate the nature and scope of concentrated [animal] feeding 
operations." These amendments are given under the "INTRODUCTORY COMMENTARY" 
of this document. 

In implementation of the amended laws, counties and townships may find it easier to ensure 
there are places for the development of animal feeding operations within their jurisdictions 
and to ensure there are reasonable and consistent regulations governing the nature and scope 
of operations, if they adopt one regulation for both counties and townships. One way of doing 
this would be for townships to relinquish their zoning authority over concentrated feeding 
operations to counties. Another way would be to enter into an agreement for cooperative or 

joint administration. 

2. Decision Choices for a Cooperative or Joint Administration Agreement. 

Counties and townships can structure agreements i<Jr joint or cooperative regulation of animal 
feeding operations in several ways. The factors, which are relevant to determining whether a 
county or township should enter into a cooperative or joint administration Jgrecmcnt with 
other counties or LO\\'llships. J.rc listed in Appendix ll. One factor is cost. Another is 
1-cprcscntation. A third i., wurking out the details of such an agreement. There arc almost 
endless ways of structuring .~uch agreements. state age.ncies and Cl)Unty and township 
organizations may be willing to help if interest is shown . 



• 

• 

CLOSING COMMENT ARY 

:\ summary of the prevailing work group discussion that gol'erned the .rnhstance ufthe model zoning 
ordinance Ji,r animal feeding operations. 

The work group acknowledges that many counties and townships within the state have 
constraints on the resources needed for effective administration of zoning and zoning 
ordinances. The work group also acknowledges that compliance with detailed requirements 
of zoning and zoning ordinances by many people who practice farming and ranching could be 
a significant burden. Thus, the work group endeavored to achieve a practi.::al and functional 
model ordinance supported with a model land use policy (required hy law). 

A report titled "History of the Development of a Model Zoning Ordinance for Animal 
Feeding Operations" provides information about the work group and its meetings. 

The work group recognizes that the model zoning ordinance likely does not accommodate all 
existing zoning preferences and provisions of local units of government across the state. 
Thus, the model ordinance may be amended by a local unit of government as deemed 
appropriate. A summary of the prevailing discussion governing the substance of the model 
ordinance is provided below . 

ROLE OF THE ND DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH (DoH) 

• Local units of government, as well as the livestock producers, prefer that the 
Department of Health shoulder responsibility for protection of natural resources from 
pollution via its rules for animal feeding operations, including land application of 
manure, without additional detail in a local ordinance for animal feeding operations. 

• An ordinance for animal feeding operations should be consistent in choice and use of 
terms as applied or defined in state laws and rules. 

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM SOURCE WATER SETBACKS 

• New animal feeding operations should avoid locating in areas which have been 
delineated for the protection of waters of the state, including both surface water and 
ground water, which are used as drinking water. The federal Safe Drinking Water Act 
requires EPA-approved slate plans for the delineation of those waters-of-the-state used 
as water resources for public water systems. While the state plan for North Dakota 
does not prohibit location of new animal feeding operations within delineated areas, 
the best interests of the owners/operators of animal feeding 1)perations and the owners 

of the public water systems are not served by siting these operation., within delineated 
source water protection areas. 

I ' .• 

i7 
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• \lap:-. or ddim:alcJ source water pn.Hci.:tion J.rcas for public water systems arc 

anilahic' '"' 1hc World Wide Weh. 

► The moJ1.:I nrdinancc does not propose setbacks from those portions of floud plains 
that arc 1101 within delineated source water protection areas of Public Water Systems. 
Local governments should include a provision concerning land uses in flood plain 
areas. 

ODOR SETBACKS 

• The choices for separation distances (.setbacks) for animal feeding operations were 
balanced with the state odor standard ( 1999 SB 2365, N.D.C.C. chapter 23-25). The 
state odor standard makes an odor concentration of seven or more odor concentration 
units a violation of the standard at distances greater than one-half mile. This standard 
applies to all animal feeding operations. regardless of the type of livestock or the 
number confined and fed by the operation. 

• Reported information indicates that amount of odors produced by confined swine 
feeding operations are greater than amounts of odors produced by other livestock 
types. After odors arc released from animal-housing or manure-storage structures, the 
atmosphere governs the downwind transport and dispersion of the odors. 

• The strength of odors released into ambient air and transported from animal feeding 
operations depends upon the construction of the animal housing and manure storage 
units and the topography of the site, as well as the type and number of animals. There 
is no apparent threshold based solely on the numbers of animals at which the 
downwind odor possibly could become a troublesome issue. 

• General zoning provisions usually establish setbacks for buildings and structures from 
roadways; tints, no specific roadway setback for animal feeding operations is 
necessary. 

• A framework for odor easements should be developed by the local unit of government 
when deemed appropriate. state law indicates that odor easements can be obtained by 
the owners/operators of animal feeding operations from owners of other property 
located beyond one-half mile (subparagraph b of paragraph 2 of section 11 of 
N.D.C.C. chapter 23-25). 

CO'iOITlONAL-USE SIZE THRESHOLD 

• The state laws which allow zoning indicate that a local unit of government" ... can 
Ill)! prnhihil t.hrnugh regulation. the reasonable diversification or expansion of a 
rann i ng nr ranching operation." The interpretation of the words "prohibit"' and 

i4 
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"reasonable" intertwine with selection of the appropriate regulatory (in the model 
ordinance) .size threshold for animal feeding operations. 

The number of animal feeding operations that have been issued permits by the 
Department of Health is about 440. (The Department presently requires any livestock 
feeding operation with more than 200 animals units to obtain a permit, and it 
anticipates a rule change adjusting this threshold to 300 animal units so as to be 
consistent with federal regulation.) Currently, there are: about 80 operations with 300 
or more animal units; nearly 60 operations with more than 500 animal units; and 
nearly 30 operations with more than 1,000 animal units. Based upon a recent survey, 
other liveswck feeding operations may not have permits because the operators are 
unaware ,)f the rule pennit requirements. The total number of animal feeding 
operations is unknown. 

While a local permit requirement for animal feeding operations with less than 1,000 
animal units would involve some paperwork, public hearings, etc., on the part of 
owners/operators, matters of public safety, health, and general public welfare should 
not be overlooked. 

Additional summary details of the work group's discussion of this issue are provided 
in Appendix I of the report titled "History of the Development of a Model Zoning 
Ordinance for Animal Feeding Operations." 
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APPENDIX I 

Legislative Rnisions of Local Zoning Law 

ROLE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

Although the North Dakota's constitution (Article VII. section 6) and law (NDCC chapter 11-09. I) 
grant home rule authority to counties, the model language proposed herein assumes that local 
governments in the state have only those powers expressly granted, or reasonably implied in, the law. 

The 1999 North Dakota Legislative Assembly increased protection of farming and ranching in the 
state by aml!nding law:-i lhat allow a county and/or a wwnship to divide, or zone, all or any parts nf the 
county or township into districts. Section 11-33-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, which grants 
zoning authority to counties. now states: 

I. 

-1. 

'i 

For any or all of the purposes designated in section 11-33-0 I, the board of county 
commissioners may divide by resolution all or any parts of the county, subject to section 11-
33-20. into districts of such number, shape. and area as may be determined necessary, and 
likewise may enact suitable regulations to carry out the purposes of this chapter. These 
regulations must be uniform in each district, but the regulations in one district may differ 
from those in other districts. A regulation or restriction may not prohibit or prevent the use of 
land or buildings for farming or ranching or any of the normal incidents of farming or 
ranching. For purposes of this section, "farming or ranching" means cultivating land for 

production of agricultural crops or livestock, or raising, feeding, or producing livestock, 
poultry, milk, or fruit. The term does not include producing timber or forest products, nor 
does the term include a contract whereby a processor or distributor of farm products or 
supplies provides grain, harvesting, or other farm services. 

A board of county commissioners may regulate the nature and scope of concentrated feeding 
operations permissible in the county; however, if a regulation would impose a substantial 
economic burden on a concentrated feeding operation in existence before the effective date of 
the regulation. the hoard of county commissioners shall declare that the regulation is 
i ncffcctive with respect to any concentrated feeding operation in existence before the 
effective date of the regulation. 

A regulation may not preclude the development of a concentrated feeding operation in the 
county. A regulation addressing the development of a concentrated feeding operation in the 
county may set reasonable standards. based on the size of the operation, to govern its location. 

For purposes of this scciion. ·•concentrated feeding operation" means any livestock feeding. 
h~ir:Jlin.g. or ho!Jin~ 1.1pcration. or !"ccd yard, where animals are concentrated in an area that is 
nl1t normally used for pasture or for growing crops and in which animal wastes may 
accumulate. llr in :111 :m.:a where 1hc space per animal unit is less than six hundred square feet 
I 55.:4 .syuarc mctnsJ. The term does not include normal wintering operations for cattle. For 
purposes of this :--:t·cti,_m. "livestock" includes beef cattle. dairy cattle, sheep. swine. poultry. 
horses. and fur animals raised for their pelts . 

:\ hi l{ll"t\ 1;f ,:nu111_v 1.\:n 11uissi,_i11L-r-.: :nay :1ot 1.1rohibit. through regulation. the reasonable 
,Ji,. •,J:-. i :·ici 1 h 111 , 1r <-.: \ p;ui . ;, )11 , it' .1 : ·,;n.1 in:; (Jr ranching op~ratiun . 

. ., 
i ,'\ 
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6. This chapter does not include any power relating to the establishment, repair. and 
maintenance of highways or roads. 

COU'.'<TY POWERS 

First. state law allows, but does not require, boards of county commissioners to take action to promote 
safety, health and public welfare. Section 11-33-01 of the North Dakota Century Code states, in part: 

For the purpose o~promoting health, safety, morals, public convenience, general 
prosperity, and public welfare, the board of county commissioners of any county may 
regulate and restrict within the county, subject to section 11-33-20 and chapter 54-
21.3, the location and the use of buildings and structures and the use, condition of 
use, or occupancy of lands for residence, recreation, and other purposes. 

However, section 11-33-02, as quoted under the "Role of Local Governments" above, defines the 
scope of zoning regulations that pertain to farming or ranching and concentrated feeding operations. 

Second. Zoning divides land into districts so as to enable compatible and adjoining land uses to co­
exist in each district and to separate incompatible land uses from each other. Thus, a zoning 
ordinance consists of: (I) a map that divides the jurisdiction (county or township) into districls for 
classes of use, which typically are residential, recreational, commercial, industrial, agricultural and 
other; and (2) written conditions that establish criteria under which the land may be developed and 
used for the particular land use class. Section 11-33-02, as quoted earlier in this chapter, grants 
authority to county commissions to divide the county and to set reasonable standards, based upon size, 
to govern locations of concentrated feeding operations. 

Third. A prerequisite for adopting a zoning ordinance is a comprehensive land use plan for the 
jurisdiction. Section 11-33-03 of the North Dakota Century Code states, in part: 

These regulations shall be made in accordance with a comprehensive plan and 
designed for any or all of the following purposes: 

I. To protect and guide the development of non-urban areas. 
2. To secure safety from fire, flood, and other dangers. 
5. To conserve and develop natural resources. 

These regulations shall be made with a reasonable consideration, among other things, 
to the character of the district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses. The 
comprehensive plan shall be a statement in documented text setting forth explicit 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the jurisdiction to guide public and private 
development within its control. 

TOW<'iSHIP POWERS 

Sections 58-03-11, 58-03-12 and 58-03-13 of the North Dakota Century Code contain similar 
r~quiremL"nts, as described above. for !O\vnships that chuos~ 10 !..!Stablish zoning districts and regulate 
development. 
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APPENDIX II 

Elements of a Cooperative or Joint Administration Agreement 

N.D.C.C. * 54-40.3-0 I provides: 

I. Any county. city. township, city park district, school district or other political 
subdivision of this state. upon approval of its respective governing body. may enter 
into an agreement with any other political subdivision of this state for the cooperative 
or joint administration of any power or function that is authorized by law or assigned 
to one or more of them. Any political subdivision of this state may enter into a joint 
powers agreement with a political subdivision of another state or political subdivision 
of a Canadian province if the power or function to be jointly administered is a power 
or function authoriz~d by the laws of this state for a political subdivision of this state 
anJ is authorized by the laws of tht~ other state or province. A joint pov.-ers 
agreement may provide for: 

a. The purpose of the agreement or the power or function to be exercised or carried 
out. 

b. The duration of the agreement and the permissible method to be employed in 
accomplishing the partial or complete termination of the agreement and for disposing 
of any property upon the partial or complete termination. 

c. The precise organization, composition, and nature of any separate administrative or 
legal entity, including an administrator or a joint board, committee, or joint service 
council or network, responsible for administering the cooperative or joint 
undertaking. Two or more political subdivisions which enter into a number of joint 
powers agreements may provide a master administrative structure for the joint 
administration of any number of those agreements, rather than creating separate 
administrative structures for each agreement. However, no essential legislative 
powers, taxing authority. or eminent domain power may be delegated by an 
agreement to a scrarate administrative or legal entity. 

d. The manner in which 1he parties to the agreement will finance the cooperative or 
joint undertaking and establish and maintain a budget for that undertaking. The 
parties to the agreement may expend funds pursuant to the agreement, use 
unexpended balances of their respective current funds, enter into a lease-option to buy 
and contract for deed agreements between themselves and with private parties, 
accumulate funds from year to year for the provision of services and facilities, and 
nthen\is~· shan:: or L'Ontribute prop~11y in accordance with the agreement in 
C1)opcral ivcly or jointly L'Xercising or carrying out the power or function. The 
agreement may inl:!uJc :he prn\·\siun of personnel, equipment, or property of one or 
more or the p.1rties tc) thl' ~grecrnent rhar may be used instead of other financial 
_...,:_1ppon. 

i..:, Th~· 111.1:nh:r o( ;lcquiri:1g. hukling. 1ir disposing of real and personal property u:--l'd 

in thi..: 1:dopi..:ra1ivi..: ,_1r jninr underw.king. 

2'+ 
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f. The acceptance of gifts, grants, or other assistance and the manner in which those 
gifts, grants, or assistance may be used for the purposes set forth in the agreement. 

g. The process to apply for federal or state aid, or funds from other public and private 
sources, to the parties for furthering the purposes of the agreement. 

h. The manner of responding for any liability that might be incurred through 
performance of the agreement and insuring against that liability. 

i. Any other necessary and proper matters agreed upon by the parties to the 
agreement. 

2. Any county, city, township, city park district, school district, or other political 
subdivision of this state may enter into an agreement in the manner provided in 
subsection I with any agency, board, or institution of the state for the undertaking of 
any power or function which any of the parties is permitted by law to undertake. 
Before an agreement entered into pursuant to this subsection is effective, the 
respective governing body or officer of the state agency, board, or institution must 
approve the agreement and the attorney general must determine that the agreement is 
legally sufficient. 

3. An agreement made pursuant to this chapter does not relieve any political subdivision 
or the state of any obligation or responsibility imposed by law except to the extent of 
actual and timely performance by a separate administrative or legal entity created by 
the agreement. This actual and timely performance satisfies the obligation or 
responsibility of the political subdivision. 

Thus, as defined by N.D.C.C. § 54-40.3-01, a cooperative or joint administration agreement relating 
to regulating concentrated animal feeding operations may contain the following elements: 

I. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9 . 

The purpose of the agreement; 

The duration of the agreement and procedure for termination; 

The organization, composition and nature of its administering board; 

Budget and financing; 

Location and who will own or lease the property, if needed; 

How to handle gifts, grants or other assistance, if needed or relevant; 

The process to apply for federal or state aid, or other funds, if relevant; 

Liability and insurance; and 

Any other necessary and proper matters agreed upon by the parties to the agreement. 
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P.O. Box 2064, Fargo, ND 58107-2064 
Phone: 701-298-2200 • 1-800-367-9668 • Fax: 701-298-2210 

4023 State St., Bismarck, ND 58503 
P.O. Box 2793, Bismarck, ND 58502-2793 
Phone: 701-224-0330 • 1-800-932-8869 • Fax: 701-224-9485 

House Agriculture Committee 
January 25, 2007 

North Dakota Farm Bureau 
Testimony on House Bill 1420 

Presented by, Brian Kramer, Public Policy Director 

Good morning Chairman Flakoll and Agriculture Committee members. I am Brian 

Kramer and I am representing North Dakota Farm Bureau in support of House Bill 1420. 

Originally, House Bill 1420 sought to bring clarity to where the authority rests 

regarding regulation of environmental health. Now the bill provides for high-density and 

low-density agricultural districts and provides for varying setback distances for them. 

We agree with those provisions. 

The bill defines animal units consistent with the state model zoning ordinance and 

defines "confined animal feeding operation", "farming and ranching", "livestock" and 

"location", which clarifies those terms and is another positive aspect of the legislation. 

Our policies clearly state our support for controlling zoning authority at the township 

level. Our policy further tells us that we need to work with the counties and townships 

when developing zoning ordinances. 

"We believe zoning authority should be controlled at the township level when the 

townships choose to do so. " 

"We shall work with townships and counties to develop farmer-friendly, responsible 

zoning ordinances for animal agriculture. " 

As you can see Farm Bureau firmly believes in the power of counties and townships to 

zone and to employ their zoning authority consistent with NDCC 11-33-02 and 58-03-11. 



We believe that counties and townships have every right and an obligation to establish 

responsible setback distances for animal feeding operations. 

We also believe that the State should have preemptive authority with regards to 

environmental regulation. 

"We support a state pre-emption of environmental regulations with regard to local 

zoning of AFOs/CAFOs. " 

Unfortunately, the preemptive language was stricken from the bill. We would ask that 

you consider amending that language back into HB 1420. 

We believe that the future growth of animal agriculture is critical to the future 

economic health of North Dakota. Unfortunately there are many that would have modem 

animal agriculture fail. The talk of inhumane animal factories, rivers of manure, 

antibiotic resistant super germs, and the destruction of our communities are nothing more 

than scare tactics designed to turn the consuming public against modem agricultural 

practices. We can and we must stand up to this misinformation with determination if our 

industry is going to survive. You can start bypassing HB 1420. 

The economic activity of rural North Dakota benefits the entire state. Dollars generated 

by animal agriculture have a gross receipts multiplier of 4.49. That represents a turn over 

of these dollars in the economy greater than tourism and the retail sector combined. By 

feeding our beef calves here and adding just 300 pounds to them we could generate more 

than $200,000,000.00 in the economy of North Dakota not figuring the multiplier effect. 

The point I am making is the impact of the livestock industry on our economy is nothing 

that can be ignored. 

For all of the reasons I have been talking about and more we must give this industry 

the chance to grow and thrive in this state. The uniformity of rules that HB 1420 will 

provide is huge step in the right direction of making this a reality with out sacrificing 

local control of zoning. I respectfully ask that you give HB 1420 a Do Pass 

recommendation. Thank you. 



Roger Johnson 
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Testimony of Roger Johnson 
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Roosevelt Park Room 

March 15, 2007 

Chairman Flakoll and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, I am Agriculture 

Commissioner Roger Johnson. I am here today in support ofHB1420, which clarifies regulatory 

authority relating to livestock zoning and environmental regulation. 

Livestock is nearly a $1 billion industry in this state and is an important component of our state's 

economy. Changes in zoning regulations have the potential to enhance or to stifle increased 

livestock production. It is impmiant that the state's environmental and zoning regulations 

relating to livestock are concise, consistent and uniform. 

The growing renewable energy sector will produce an abundance of feed stocks, which in tum, 

will create many new oppol1lmities for local livestock feeding. North Dakota is currently home 

to four operating ethanol facilities with a combined annual production capacity of 135.5 million 

gallons. Additional projects totaling 200 million gallons of production capacity have also been 

announced. Current estimates show that when all current and planned ethanol plants are up and 
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running, more than I million tons of dry distillers grains (DDGs) will be available for livestock 

feed. 

The addition of a new canola-based biodiesel facility at Velva will also yield additional livestock 

feed in the form of meal. More than 450,000 tons of meal will be available from the Velva 

facility alone to feed cattle and other livestock. 

HB 1420 aims to clarify the environmental regulatory authority of the State Health Department. 

The Stale Health Department is the agency that has the expertise and staff necessary to regulate 

livestock facilities with respect to nutrient management plans, size and design of waste 

confinement systems and land requirements for manure management. 

This bill also clarifies issues relating to local control among the counties and townships. Without 

local government support of this issue, we will be facing it again in the future. 

There are several other issues that may not get resolved this session, such as property tax issues 

and bonding requirements. We hope that these issues can be addressed in an interim study 

provided for in HCR 3061. You will have an opportunity to hear that resolution later today and I 

urge your support of that resolution. 

Again, Chairman Flakoll and committee members, I urge a do pass on HB1420. I would be 

happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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Testimony to the Senate Agriculture Committee 
On House Bill 1420 

Presented by Allan Braaten 

March 15, 2003 

Good morning Chairman Flakoll and members of the Senate 
Agriculture Committee. I am Allan Braaten from Barney, North 
Dakota. I support House Bill 1420. I have grown com on my farm 
in Richland County for nearly 60 years. As a past president of the 
North Dakota Com Growers, I believe it is very important to have 
an outlet for com as a livestock feed. The ethanol industry needs 
to have an outlet for their byproducts as well. 

HB 1420 clarifies the authority of counties and townships to 
develop animal agriculture zoning rules. It provides the counties 
and townships the opportunity to set up agricultural districts, which 
will serve to lessen the controversy of these feeding operations. 

The expansion of livestock feeding in our state will provide for 
economic growth in rural areas and North Dakota in general. For 
these reasons, I support HB 1420 and urge you to give a "Do Pass" 
recommendation on the bill. 

Thank you . 
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House Bill 1420 

March 15, 2007 

Chairman Flakoll, members of the Senate Agriculture Committee: 

I am Kent Albers. I farm and ranch near Center and am here today as the chairman of 

the North Dakota Ag Coalition. On behalf of the Ag Coalition, I encourage your support 

of HB 1420. 

For more than 20 years, the North Dakota Ag Coalition has provided a unified voice for 

North Dakota agricultural interests. Today, the Coalition is made up of 30 statewide 

organizations or associations that represent specific commodities or have a direct 

interest in agriculture. Through the Ag Coalition, these members seek to enhance the 

business climate for North Dakota's agricultural producers. 

The Ag Coalition takes a position on a limited number of issues that have a significant 

impact on North Dakota's ag industry. HB 1420 is one of these issues, as it will impact 

the expansion of feeding operations statewide and across species. 

The Ag Coalition supports this bill, as it seeks to advance North Dakota's animal 

agriculture opportunities through clarifications of such things as scope, nature and 

location and also provides uniform regulations among districts. 

Simplifying the development process for North Dakota livestock operations is important 

to the agricultural industry's ability to grow and diversify at a time when increased 

opportunities for confined animal feeding operations are emerging. 

It is for these reasons; we encourage your support of HB 1420. 
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Senate Agriculture Committee 

Testimony of Paul Ivesdal on 

House Bill 1420 

March 15, 2007 

Good morning Chairman Flakoll and members of the Committee. I am Paul Ivesdal from 

Ramsey County, Edmore, North Dakota. Our family has owned our farm since 1903. 

Approximately 4 years ago I informed the Ramsey County Commissioners of my intent 

to build a hog facility on my property located about 50 miles from the City of Devils 

Lake (see the attached map). We have been in a battle with most of the Ramsey County 

Commissioners for four years. We received our approval to build from the North Dakota 

Department of Health in June of 2005. 

I attended a CAFO Owner/Operator Training session put on by NDSU Extension Service 

and North Dakota Department of Health on Tuesday, March 13th in Carrington. This was 

a very informational session, which I believe anyone, including township supervisors or 

county commissioners who demand higher standards than the Health Department, should 

be required to attend ... at least two sessions per year. Commissioners need to take the 

time to hear what the Health Department actually does and the expertise they have to 

protect all of us citizens. 

NDSU experts, who live and work in this state, presented the session. Their information 

is based on sound science and research. After attending this session, I was reassured that 

the North Dakota Department of Health has the knowledge and the personnel available to 

regulate the environmental aspects of these facilities. 

Each township and county needs consistent rules and regulations to work under. Farmers 

and ranchers deserve to be treated fairly and equitably. North Dakota citizens need 

assurance that our natural resources are being used wisely and that their quality of life is 

not compromised. This bill goes a long way toward meeting those needs. The 
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definitions included in HB 1420 provides the clarity, the authority to set up agricultural 

districts provides assurances and together they ensure fair and equitable treatment. 

Animal agricultural can add diversity and added value to crops already here and will 

stimulate the rural economy. The biodiesel and ethanol plants are not going to be built 

without some assurances that there is a demand for at least some of their by-products. 

Please support House Bill 1420 and provide clarity to the authority of townships and 

counties. Thank you . 



, Ramsey County 

I 

18 RAMSEY CO., ND ID Farm & Home Publlshers, Ltd. 49 
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Chapter 
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ARTICLE 33-16 
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Pretreatment Regulations 
Standards of Water Quality for State of North Dakota [Repealed] 
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CHAPTER 33-16-01 
NORTH DAKOTA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 
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33-16-01-01 

33-16-01-01.1 
33-16-01-02 
33-16-01-02.1 
33-16-01-03 
33-16-01-04 
33-16-01-05 

33-16-01-06 
33-16-01-07 
33-16-01-07.1 
33-16-01-08 
33-16-01-09 
33-16-01-10 
33-16-01-11 
33-16-01-12 

33-16-01-13 

33-16-01-14 

33-16-01-15 

33-16-01-16 

33-16-01-17 

33-16-01-18 

33-16-01-19 

General - Definitions - Permit Effect - Incorporation by 
Reference 

Additional Point Sources Subject to Regulation 
Acquisition of Data 
Requests for Variance 
Receipt and Use of Federal Data 
Transmission of Data to the Regional Administrator 
Identity of Signatories to National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System Forms 
Notice and Public Participation 
Public Notice 
Response to Comments 
Fact Sheets 
Notice to Government Agencies 
Public Access to Information 
Hearings and Notice 
Terms and Conditions of National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System Permits 
Application of Effluent Standards and Limitations, Water 

Quality Standards, and Other Requirements 
Effluent Limitations in Issued National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System Permits 
Schedules of Compliance in Issued National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System Permits 
Other Terms and Conditions of Issued National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System Permits 
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Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permits 
Transmission to Regional Administrator of Issued National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permits 
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33-16-01-20 

33-16-01-21 
33-16-01-22 
33-16-01-23 
33-16-01-24 
33-16-01-25 

33-16-01-26 

33-16-01-26.1 
33-16-01-27 
33-16-01-28 
33-16-01-29 
33-16-01-30 
33-16-01-31 
33-16-01-32 

Reissuance of National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System Permits 

Monitoring, Recording, and Reporting 
Recording of Monitoring Activities and Results 
Reporting of Monitoring Results 
Enforcement 
Modification, Suspension, and Revocation of National 
. Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permits 

Disposal of Pollutants Into Wells, Into Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works, or by land Application 

General Permits · 
Other Requirements 
Appeal 
Toxic Pollutant Effluent Standards 
Secondary Treatment Regulations 
Effluent Guidelines and Standards 
Criteria and Standards for the National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System 

33-16-01-01. General - Definitions - Permit effect - Incorporation by · 
reference. 

1. Authority. The authority for this chapter relating to the control, 
prevention, and abatement of pollution of natural surface and 
underground waters is provided by North Dakota Century Code section 
61-28-04. 

2. Scope and purpose. This chapter establishes procedures governing 
the application for, and the issuance, denial, modification, and 
revocation of, permits for the discharge of pollutants into the waters of 
the state, as defined by subsection 6 of North Dakota Century Code 
section 61-28-02. The establishment of such procedures is required as 
a condition precedent to participation by North Dakota in the national 
pollutant discharge elimination system, pursuant to the provisions of 
section 402(b) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act [33 U.S.C. 
1251 et seq.]. 

3. Definitions. As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise 
indicates: 

a. "Administrator" means the administrator of the United States 
environmental protection agency. 

b. "Applicable water quality standards" means all water quality 
standards to which a discharge is subject under the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act and which have been: 
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• (1) Approved or permitted to remain in effect by the administrator 
following submission to the administrator pursuant to section 
303(a) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act; or 

(2) Promulgated by the administrator pursuant to section 303(b) 
or (c) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 

c. "Biological monitoring" means the determination of the effects 
on aquatic life, including accumulation of pollutants in tissue, in 
receiving waters due to the discharge of pollutants: 

(1) By techniques and procedures, including sampling of 
organisms representative of appropriate levels of the food 
chain appropriate to the volume and the physical, chemical, 
and biological characteristics of the effluent; and 

(2) At appropriate frequencies and locations. 

d. "Department" means the North Dakota state department of health. 

e. "Discharge" when used without qualification includes a discharge 
of a pollutant, and a discharge of pollutants. 

f. ''Discharge of a pollutant" and "discharge of pollutants" each means 
any addition of any pollutant to the waters of the state from any 
source, including the disposal of pollutants into wells. 

g. "Effluent standard" or "effluent limitation" means any restriction 
established by the department on quantities, rates, and 
concentrations of chemical, physical, biological, and other 
constituents which are discharged from point sources into the 
waters of the state. Such restrictions shall be at least as stringent 
as standards adopted by the administrator pursuant to the 
provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. Such 
restrictions shall include, but not be limited to, effluent limitations 
and applicable compliance schedules, standards of performance, 
toxic effluent standards and prohibitions, and pretreatment 
standards adopted by the administrator pursuant to the aforesaid 
Act. 

h. "EPA" means the United States environmental protection agency. 

i. "Industrial user" means a source of indirect discharge as defined in 
section 33-16-01.1-01. 

j. "Major facility" means any facility or activity subject to regulation 
under the national pollutant discharge elimination system which 
has been identified as a major facility by the regional administrator 
in conjunction with the department. 
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k. "Minor discharge" means any discharge from a facility or activity 
which has not been identified as a major facility. 

I. "Municipality" means a city, county, district, association, or other 
public body created by or pursuant to state law and having 
jurisdiction over disposal of wastes, as the term is defined by 
subsection 2 of North Dakota Century Code section 61-28-02, or a 
designated and approved management agency under section 209 
of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 

m. "National data bank" means a facility or system established or to 
be established by the administrator for the purposes of assembling, 
organizing, and analyzing data pertaining to water quality and the 
discharge of pollutants. 

n. "National pollutant discharge elimination system (NP DES)" means 
the national system for the issuance of permits under section 402 
of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972 and includes 
any state or interstate program which has been approved by the 
administrator pursuant to section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act. · 

o. "National pollutant discharge elimination system application" 
or "application" means the uniform national forms, including 
subsequent additions, revisions, or modifications duly promulgated 
by the administrator pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control 
Act, for application for a national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit and any state form that has been approved for use 
by the administrator. 

p. "National pollutant discharge elimination system form" means 
any issued national pollutant discharge elimination system 
permit and any uniform national form developed for use in the 
national pollutant discharge elimination system and prescribed in 
regulations promulgated by the administrator and any state form 
that has been approved for use by the administrator. 

q. "National pollutant discharge elimination system permit" means 
any permit issued by the department pursuant to its authority under 
North Dakota Century Code section 61-28-04, and subsequent 
to approval by the administrator as described in subsection 5 of 
section 33-16-01-04. 

r. "National pollutant discharge elimination system reporting form" 
means the uniform national forms, including subsequent additions, 
revisions, or modifications duly promulgated by the administrator 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, for reporting 
data and information pursuant to monitoring and other conditions 
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t. 

u. 

of national pollutant discharge elimination system permits and any 
state form that has been approved for use by the administrator. 

"Person" means the state or any agency or institution thereof, any 
municipality, political subdivision, public or private corporation, 
individual partnership, association, any agency or instrumentality 
of the United States government, or other entity, and includes any 
officer or governing or managing body of any municipality, political 
subdivision, or public or private corporation. 

"Pollutant" means "wastes" as defined in subsection 2 of North 
Dakota Century Code section 61-28-02, including dredged spoil, 
solid waste, incinerator residue, garbage, sewage, sludge, 
munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive 
materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, 
cellar dirt, and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste 
discharged into water. 

"Refuse Act application" means the application for a permit under 
section 13 of the River and Harbor Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 407]. 

v. "Regional administrator" means the regional administrator of 
region VIII of the environmental protection agency, which includes 
within its jurisdiction North Dakota. 

w. "Schedule of compliance" means a schedule of remedial 
measures, including an enforceable sequence of actions or 
operations leading to compliance with an effluent limitation, other 
limitation, prohibition, or standard. 

x. "Toxic pollutant" means those pollutants, or combinations of 
pollutants, including disease-causing agents, which after discharge 
and upon exposure, ingestion, inhalation, or assimilation 
into any organism, either directly from the environment or 
indirectly by ingestion through food chains, will, on the basis of 
information available to the administrator, cause death, disease, 
behavioral abnormalities, cancer, genetic mutations, physiological 
malfunctions including malfunctions in reproduction, or physical 
deformations, in such organisms or their offspring. 

y. "Waters of the state" means all water included within the definitions 
given in subsection 6 of North Dakota Century Code section 
61-28-02 or North Dakota Century Code section 61-01-01. 

4. Effect of a permit. 

a. Except for any toxic effluent standards and prohibitions and 
standards for sewage sludge use or disposal, compliance with a 
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permit constitutes compliance with sections 301, 302, 307, 318, 
403, and 405(a) and (b) of the Clean Water Act. 

The issuance of a permit does not convey any property rights of 
any sort or any exclusive privilege. 

5. Incorporation by reference. 

a. The subchapters, parts, subparts, and appendices of title 40, 
Code of Federal Regulations, which are incorporated by reference 
into this chapter shall be treated as if they were published in full 
in this chapter. Unless otherwise specified, any incorporation by 
reference shall be as it exists on October 1, 2002. 

b. · Any reference to "waters of the United States" or "waters of the 
U.S." in any corporation by reference shall include "waters of the 
state" as defined in this section. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 1989; October 1, 2002; December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-01.1. Additional point sources subject to regulation. 

1. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.23, concentrated animal 
feeding operations, [40 CFR 122.23]. as it exists on February 12, 2003, 
is incorporated into this chapter by reference. The department regulates 
livestock operations under chapter 33-16-03, including those which are 
not subject to this subsection. 

2. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.24, concentrated aquatic 
animal production facilities, [40 CFR 122.24) is incorporated into this 
chapter by reference. 

3. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.25, aquaculture projects, 
[40 CFR 122.25] is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

4. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.26, storm water 
discharges, [40 CFR 122.26) is incorporated into this chapter by 
reference. 

5. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.27, silvicultural activities, 
[40 CFR 122.27] is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002; amended effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 
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33-16-01-02. Acquisition of data. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Application for a national pollutant discharge elimination system 
permit. Any person who discharges any waste through a point source 
into a surface water or conducts any activity which requires a valid 
permit under North Dakota Century Code section 61-28-06 must file a 
completed national pollutant discharge elimination system application. 

Any person who commences discharge of any waste through a point 
source into a surface water or conduct of any activity which requires a 
valid permit under North Dakota Century Code section 61-28-06 after 
the effective date of this chapter shall either: 

a. File a completed national pollutant discharge elimination system 
application no less than one hundred eighty days prior to the day 
on which it is desired to commence operation of the waste disposal 
operation; or 

b. File a completed national pollutant discharge elimination system 
application in sufficient time prior to the commencement of waste 
disposal operations to allow the department to ensure compliance 
with any applicable water quality standards and effluent standards 
and the requirements of sections 306 and 208(b) and (c) of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 

Application requirements. 

a. All applications must comply with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 122.21 (f), which is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

b. Applications by manufacturing, commercial, mImng, and 
silvicultural dischargers shall comply with 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations, part 122.21 (g}, which is incorporated into this chapter 
by reference. 

c. Applications by manufacturing, commercial, mining, and 
silvicultural facilities that discharge only nonprocess wastewater 
shall comply with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.21 (h), 
which is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

d. Applications by concentrated animal feeding operations and 
aquatic animal production facilities shall comply with 40 Code of 
Federal Regulations, part 122.21 (i), as it exists on February 12, 
2003, which is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

e. Applications from publicly owned treatment works shall comply 
with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.21 U), which is 
incorporated into this chapter by reference. 
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4. 

5. 

f. Applications from new sources shall comply with 40 Code of 
Federal Regulations, part 122.21 (k), which is incorporated into this 
chapter by reference. 

The department may require whatever additional information is 
necessary to complete the processing of the application. No 
application will be processed by the department until all of the 
requested information is supplied and the application is complete. 

When a facility or activity is owned by one person but is operated by 
another person, it is the operator's duty to obtain a permit. 

6. Applicants shall keep records of all data used to complete permit 
applications and any supplemental information submitted with an 
application for a period of at least three years from the date the 
application is signed. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002; December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-02.1. Requests for variance. 

1. Applicants for a national pollutant discharge elimination system permit 
may request a variance from otherwise applicable effluent limitations 
under the following provisions: 

a. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.21(m), variance 
requests by nonpublicly owned treatment works, [40 CFR 
122.21(m)]. which is incorporated into this chapter by reference; 

b. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.21(n), variance 
requests by publicly owned treatment works, [40 CFR 122.21 (n)], 
which is incorporated into this chapter by reference; and 

c. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.21(0), expedited 
variance procedures and time extensions, [40 CFR 122.21(0)]. 
which is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

2. The public notice for a draft permit for which a variance has been 
requested under section 316(a) of the Federal Water Pollution Control 
Act shall comply with the provisions of 40 Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 124.57(a), [40 CFR 124.57(a)], which is incorporated into this 
chapter by reference. 
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3. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 124.62, decision on 
variances, [40 CFR 124.62] is incorporated into this chapter by 
reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-03. Receipt and use of federal data. 

1. The department shall receive national pollutant discharge elimination 
system applications and other relevant data collected by the regional 
administrator prior to North Dakota's participation in the national 
pollutant discharge elimination system. The procedure for such 
transmittal of data shall be set out in a formal agreement entered into 
by the department and the regional administrator. 

2. No national pollutant discharge elimination system permits shall be 
issued by the department based upon any Refuse Act or national 
pollutant discharge elimination system application which the regional 
administrator has identified as incomplete or otherwise deficient until 
the department receives information sufficient to correct the deficiency 
to the satisfaction of the regional administrator . 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-04. Transmission of data to the regional administrator. The 
department shall enter into a formal agreement with the regional administrator, 
setting out procedures for the following actions: 

1. Transmittal to the regional administrator of a complete copy of any 
national pollutant discharge elimination system form received by the 
department. 

2. Transmittal to the national data bank of a complete copy of any 
appropriate national pollutant discharge elimination system form 
received by the department. 

3. Procedures for acting on the regional administrator's written waiver, if 
any, of the regional administrator's rights to receive copies of national 
pollutant discharge elimination system forms with respect to classes, 
types, and sizes within any category of point sources and with respect 
to minor discharges or discharges to particular navigable waters as such 
are defined by section 502(7) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 
or parts thereof. 

4. An opportunity for the regional administrator to object in writing to 
deficiencies in any national pollutant discharge elimination system 
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application or reporting form received by the regional administrator 
and to have such deficiency corrected. If the regional administrator's 
objection relates to a national pollutant discharge elimination system 
application, the department shall send the regional administrator any 
information necessary to correct the deficiency and, if the regional 
administrator so requests, shall not issue the national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit until the department receives 
notice from the regional administrator that the deficiency has been 
corrected. 

An opportunity for the regional administrator to identify any discharge 
which has a total volume of less than fifty thousand gallons [189250 
liters] on every day of the year as a discharge which is not a minor 
discharge. If the regional administrator so identifies a discharge and 
notifies the department, the latter shall require the applicant for such 
discharge to submit additional national pollutant discharge elimination 
system application forms or any other information requested by the 
regional administrator in the regional administrator's notification to the 
department. 

6. Procedures for the transmittal, if requested by the regional 
administrator, of copies of notice received by the department from 
publicly owned treatment works pursuant to subsection 4 of section 
33-16-01-16. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-05. Identity of signatories to national pollutant discharge 
elimination system forms. 

1. Any national pollutant discharge elimination system application form or 
other document required to accompany the form when submitted to the 
department must be signed as follows: 

a. In the case of corporations, by a principal executive officer of at 
least the level of vice president, or the officer's duly authorized 
representative, if such representative is responsible for the overall 
operation of the facility from which the discharge described in the 
national pollutant discharge elimination system form originates. 

b. In the case of a partnership, by a general partner. 

c. In the case of sole proprietorship, by the proprietor. 

d. In the case of a municipal, state, federal, or other public facility, by 
either a principal executive officer or a ranking elected official. 
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2. All reports required by permits and other information requested by the 
department shall be signed by the person described in subsection 1 
or that person's duly authorized representative. Authorization for a 
representative shall be submitted to the department in writing by the 
person described in subsection 1 and shall specify either an individual 
or a position having responsibility for the overall operation of the 
regulated facility. 

3. If an authorization becomes invalid, a new authorization shall 
be submitted to the department prior to or together with any 
reports, information, or applications to be signed by an authorized 
representative. 

4. Any person signing application forms, reports, or other information, shall 
make the following certification: 

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all 
attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision 
in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified 
personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 
Based on my inquiry· of the person or persons who manage 
the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering 
the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing 
violations." 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-06. Notice and public participation. In the formulation of 
tentative determinations and draft national pollutant discharge elimination system 
permits, including general permits: 

1. The department will prepare a tentative staff determination, with 
respect to any completed national pollutant discharge elimination 
system application. Such tentative determinations shall include at least 
the following: 

a. A proposed determination to issue or deny a national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit for the discharge described 
in the application .. 

b. If the proposed determination is lo issue a national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit, the following additional 
tentative determinations shall be made: 
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(1) Proposed effluent limitations, standards, and prohibitions, 
identified pursuant to section 33-16-01-13 for those pollutants 
proposed to be limited. 

(2) If necessary, a proposed schedule of compliance, including 
interim dates and requirements, for meeting the proposed 
effluent limitations. 

(3) Proposed permit conditions pursuant to sections 33-16-01-12 
and 33-16-01-13. 

(4) Proposed monitoring requirements pursuant to section 
33-16-01-12. 

(5) Proposed variances pursuant to section 33-16-01-02.1. 

(6) A brief description of any other proposed special condition 
which will have a significant impact upon the discharge 
described in the national pollutant discharge elimination 
system application. 

2. The department shall organize the tentative determinations prepared 
pursuant to subsection 1 into a draft national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit for the discharge which is the subject of the 
application. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-07. Public notice. 

1. Public notice of every national pollutant discharge elimination system 
draft permit shall be circulated in a manner designed to inform interested 
and potentially interested persons of the proposed discharge and of the 
proposed determination to issue or deny a national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit for the proposed discharge. Procedures for 
the circulation of public notice shall include at least the following: 

a. 

b. 

Notice of a major facility permit or general permit shall be published 
in a daily or weekly newspaper within the area affected by the 
facility or activity. 

Notice of all other permits shall be circulated within the 
geographical areas of the proposed discharge; such circulation 
may include any or all of the following: 
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(1) Posting in the post office and public places of the municipality 
nearest the premises of the applicant in which the effluent 
source is located. 

(2) Posting near the entrance to the applicant's premises and in 
nearby places. 

(3) Publishing in local newspapers and periodicals, or, if 
appropriate, in a daily newspaper of general circulation. 

(4) Any other method, including press releases, which will 
reasonably provide actual notice of the proposed action to 
the persons potentially affected. 

c. Notice shall be mailed to the following persons: 

(1) Any user identified in the permit application of a privately 
owned treatment works. 

(2) Persons who are on the mailing list. 

(3) Local governmental units which have jurisdiction over the 
area where the facility is proposed to be located and each 
state agency which has authority with respect to the facility's 
construction or operation. 

d. Notice, a copy of the permit application, the statement of basis or 
fact sheet if required by section 33-16-01-08, and the draft permit 
prepared pursuant to section 33-16-01-06 shall be mailed to the 
following persons: 

(1) The applicant, except for those national pollutant discharge 
elimination system general permits for which there is no 
applicant. 

(2) Any other agency which is known to have issued or to be 
required to issue an environmental control permit for the 
same facility or activity. 

(3) Federal and state agencies with jurisdiction over fish, 
shellfish, and wildlife resources, the advisory council on 
historic preservation, and the state historic preservation 
officers, including any affected states or Indian tribes. 

(4) Any state ag'ency responsible for plan development under 
sections 208(b)(2), 208(b)(4), and 303(e) of the Clean Water 
Act, the United States army corps of engineers, the United 
States fish and wildlife service, and the national marine 
fisheries service. 
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e. The department shall add the name of any person or group upon 
request to the mailing list. The department shall also publish 
annually an invitation to be added to the mailing list. 

2. The department shall provide a period of not less than thirty days 
following the date of the public notice during which time interested 
persons may submit their written views on the tentative determinations 
with respect to the national pollutant discharge elimination system 
application. All written comments submitted during the thirty-day 
comment period shall be retained by the department and considered in 
the formulation of its final determinations with respect to the national 
pollutant discharge elimination system application. The period for 
comment may be extended at the discretion of the department. 

3. The contents of public notice of applications for a national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit shall include at least the following: 

a. Name, address, and telephone number of the agency issuing the 
public notice. 

b. Name and address of each applicant and facility, except for public 
notices of general permits. 

c. Brief description of each applicant's activities or operations 
which result in the discharge described in the national pollutant 
discharge elimination system application or draft general permit, 
e.g., municipal waste treatment plant, steel manufacturing, or 
drainage for mining activities. 

d. Name of waterway to which each discharge is made and a short 
description of the location of each discharge on the waterway 
indicating whether such discharge is a new or an existing 
discharge. For general permits, the public notice shall include a 
description of the permit area. 

e. A statement of the tentative determination to issue or deny a 
national pollutant discharge elimination system permit for the 
discharge described in the national pollutant discharge elimination 
system application. 

f. A brief description of the procedures for the formulation of final 
determinations, including the thirty-day comment period required 
by subsection 2, the right to request a public hearing, and any other 
means by which interested persons may influence or comment 
upon those determinations. 

g. Address and telephone number of the department, where 
interested persons may obtain further information or request a 
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• copy of the draft permit prepared pursuant to section 33-16-01-06, 
request a copy of the fact sheet prepared pursuant to section 
33-16-01-08, and inspect and copy national pollutant discharge 
elimination system forms and related documents. 

h. The date, time, and location of any public hearing or meeting which 
has been scheduled. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-07.1. Response to comments. Upon issuance of any final 
permit, the department shall issue a response to comments which briefly describes 
and responds to all significant comments received during the public comment 
period, public hearing, or public meeting. The response shall specify each 
provision of the draft permit which has been changed and the reasons for each 
change and shall be available to the public. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-08. Fact sheets. 

1. The department shall prepare, and following public notice, shall send. 
upon request to any person, a fact sheet with respect to the application 
described in the public notice, when a draft permit is prepared in the 
following circumstances: 

a. The draft permit is for a major facility or a general permit; 

b. The draft permit incorporates a variance or requires an explanation 
pursuant to paragraph 3 of subdivision c of subsection 2; or 

c. The draft permit is subject to widespread public interest or raises 
major issues. 

2. The contents of such fact sheets shall include at least the following 
information: 

a. A brief description of the facility or activity and, when appropriate, 
a sketch or detailed description of the location of the discharge 
or regulated activity described in the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system application. 

b. The type and quantity of wastes, fluids, or pollutants which are 
proposed to be or are being discharged. 
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C. The tentative determinations required under section 33-16-01-06, 
in addition to the following: 

(1) A brief summary of the basis for the draft permit conditions, 
including references to applicable statutory or regulatory 
provisions. 

(2) Any calculation or explanation of the derivation of specific 
effluent limitations and conditions, including a citation to 
the applicable effluent limitation guideline or performance 
standard, and reasons why they are applicable or an 
explanation of how the alternative effluent limitations were 
developed. 

(3) When the draft permit contains limitations to control toxic 
pollutants, limitations on internal waste steams, limitations on 
indicator pollutants, or case-by-case limitations derived from 
technology-based treatment requirements, an explanation of 
the limitations' applicability. 

d. A brief citation, including a brief identification of the uses for which 
the receiving waters have been classified, of the water quality 
standards and effluent standards and limitations applied to the 
proposed discharge. 

e. Reasons why any requested variances or alternatives to required 
standards do or do not appear justified. 

f. When applicable, an explanation of the proposed method of 
regulating users of privately owned treatment works. 

g. A more detailed description of the procedures for the formulation of 
final determinations than that given in the public notice, including: 

(1) The thirty-day comment period required by section 
33-16-01-07 and the address where the comments will 
be received. 

(2) Any procedures by which the public may participate in the 
formulation of the final determinations, including procedures 
for requesting a hearing pursuant to section 33-16-01-11. 

h. The name and telephone number of a person to contact for 
additional information. 
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• 3. The department shall add the name of any person or group upon request 
to a mailing list to receive copies of fact sheets. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-09. Notice to government agencies. The state shall notify other 
appropriate government agencies of each complete application for a national 
pollutant discharge elimination system permit and shall provide such agencies an 
opportunity to submit their written views and recommendations. 

1. The department shall ensure that a copy of each fact sheet prepared 
under the provisions of this chapter is mailed to the following parties: 

a. Any other state whose waters might be affected by the issuance of 
a national pollutant discharge elimination system permit. 

b. Any interstate agency having water quality authority over affected 
waters. 

c. Any other appropriate federal, state, or local agency, including 
other appropriate public health agencies. 

d. The appropriate district engineer of the United States army corps 
of engineers. 

2. Each such governmental body listed in subsection 1 shall be given 
an opportunity to submit written recommendations concerning the 
proposed permit to the department. 

a. Whenever a state makes recommendations concerning the 
proposed permit, and such recommendations are not incorporated 
into the final version of the permit, the department shall provide 
the recommending state with a written explanation for the failure 
to incorporate such recommendations. 

b. Response to written comments provided by the corps of engineers 
during the comment period pursuant to section 33-16-01-06 shall 
conform to the following: 

(1) If the corps of engineers advises that anchorage and 
navigation of any of the waters of the United States would be 
substantially impaired by the granting of a permit, the permit 
shall be denied and the applicant notified. 

(2) If the corps of engineers advises that imposing specified 
conditions in the permit is necessary to avoid any substantial 
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(3) 

impairment of anchorage or navigation, the department shall 
include the specified conditions in the permit. 

Review or appeal of a permit denial or of conditions specified 
by the corps of engineers shall be made through the 
applicable procedures of the corps of engineers. If the 
conditions are stayed by a court of competent jurisdiction or 
by applicable procedures of the corps of engineers, those 
conditions shall be considered stayed in the national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit for the duration of that 
stay. 

c. Whenever the United States fish and wildlife service, the national 
marine fisheries service, or any other state or federal agency 
with jurisdiction over fish, wildlife, or public health makes 
recommendations of specified permit conditions necessary to 
avoid substantial impairment of fish, shellfish, or wildlife resources, 
the department may include the specified conditions in the permit 
to the extent necessary to carry out the provisions of 40 Code of 
Federal Regulations, part 122.49, and of the Clean Water Act. 

3. In appropriate cases, the department may consult with the United States 
corps of engineers or the United States fish and wildlife service before 
issuing a draft permit. The department may reflect these agencies' 
views in the statement of basis, the fact sheet, or the draft permit. 

4. The department may enter into a written agreement with the appropriate 
district engineer of the United States army corps of engineers to provide 
for procedures which will ensure the transmission of all forms and 
information required by the corps, and procedures for the recording of 
any comment or objections the corps may have on a proposed permit. 
A copy of the agreement, if promulgated, shall be forwarded to the 
regional administrator. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-10, Public access to information, In addition to the provisions 
of section 33-16-01-07, the department shall provide the following: 

1. Facilities for the public inspection of all information relating to national 
pollutant discharge elimination system forms, including monitoring data, 
and a machine or device for the copying of those papers and documents 
at a reasonable fee. 

2. A copy of any request for the confidential treatment of any information 
relating to a North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit 
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• application to the regional administrator, together with all information 
related to such request. 

3. If the department determines that certain information should be 
accorded confidential status for reason of being a trade secret, it 
shall disclose such information to the administrator upon the latter's 
request; the administrator shall maintain the disclosed information in 
confidence, unless the administrator determines that such information, 
if made public, would not divulge methods of processes entitled to 
protection as trade secrets. 

4. Information required by national pollutant discharge elimination system 
application forms may not be claimed confidential. This includes 
information submitted on the forms and any attachments used to 
supply information required by the form. In no case shall the name and 
address of any applicant or permittee, permit applications, permits, or 
effluent data be considered confidential by the department. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-11. Hearings and notice. 

1. A national pollutant discharge elimination system applicant, any 
affected state, any affected interstate agency, any affected country, 
the regional administrator, or any interested agency, person, or 
group of persons may request or petition the department for a public 
hearing with respect to national pollutant discharge elimination system 
applications. Any such request or petition for public hearing shall be 
filed in writing within the thirty-day period prescribed in subsection 2 of 
section 33-16-01-07 and shall indicate the interest of the person filing 
such request and the reasons why a hearing is,warranted. 

2. The department shall hold a hearing if it determines that there is a 
significant public interest, including the filing of requests or petitions for 
such hearing, in holding such a hearing. The department may also hold 
a hearing at its discretion for any other reason. Any hearing brought 
pursuant to this subsection shall be held in the geographical area of the 
proposed discharge or other appropriate area, in the discretion of the 
department and may, as appropriate, consider related groups of permit 
applications. 

3. Public notice of any hearing held under this section shall be circulated 
at least as widely as was the notice of the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system application pursuant to section 33-16-01-07. 
Procedures for the circulation of public notice for hearings held under 
this section shall include at least the following: 
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a. Notice shall be published in at least one newspaper of general 
circulation within the geographical area of the discharge. 

b. Notice shall be sent to all persons and government agencies which 
received a copy of the notice or the fact sheet for the national 
pollutant discharge elimination system application. 

c. Notice shall be mailed to any person or group upon request. 

d. Notice shall also be given to all persons who submitted comments 
on the proposed national pollutant discharge elimination system 
permit pursuant to section 33-16-01-07. 

e. Notice shall be effected pursuant to subdivision a at least thirty days 
in advance of the hearing. 

4. The contents of public notice of any hearing held pursuant to this section 
shall include at least the following: 

a. Name, address, and telephone number of the agency holding the 
public hearing. 

b. Name and address of each applicant whose application will be 
considered at the hearing, except in the case of draft general 
permits. 

c. A brief description of the business conducted at the facility of the 
activity described in the permit application or draft permit. 

d. Name of waterway to which each discharge is made and a short 
description of the location of each discharge on the waterway. 

e. A reference to the date of previous public notices relating to the 
permit. 

f. Information regarding the date, time, and location for the hearing. 

g. The purpose of the hearing. 

h. A concise statement of the issues raised by the persons requesting 
the hearing. 

i. Address and telephone number of the premises at which interested 
persons may obtain further information, request a copy of each 
draft national pollutant discharge elimination system permit 
prepared pursuant to section 33-16-01-06, request a copy of each 
fact sheet prepared pursuant to section 33-16-01-08, and inspect 
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and copy national pollutant discharge elimination system forms 
and related documents. 

j. A brief description of the nature of the hearing, including the rules 
and procedures to be followed. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-12. Terms and conditions of national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permits. 

1. The following discharges into the waters of the state are prohibited: 

a. Any radiological, chemical, or biological warfare agent or high-level 
radioactive waste. 

b. Any discharge into the navigable waters that the secretary of the 
army acting through the chief of engineers finds would substantially 
impair anchorage and navigation. 

c. Any discharge to which the regional administrator has objected in 
writing. 

d. Any discharge from a point source which is in conflict with a plan 
or amendment thereto approved pursuant to section 208(b) of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 

e. Any discharge requiring certification under section 401 of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act and 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations, part 124.53, for which the department has neither 
granted nor waived the certification. 

f. Any discharge from a new source or new discharger which causes 
or contributes to the violation of applicable water quality standards, 
unless the owner or operator of the new source or new discharger 
demonstrates that: 

(1) The existing dischargers lo the stream segment are subject to 
compliance schedules designed to bring the stream segment 
into compliance; and 

(2) Remaining pollutant load allocations are sufficient to allow for 
the discharge. 

2. All national pollutant discharge elimination system permits shall 
contain, either expressly or by reference, the permit conditions listed in 
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40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.41, (40 CFR 122.41], which 
is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

3. National pollutant discharge elimination system permits shall contain all 
applicable permit conditions listed in 40 Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 122.42, (40 CFR 122.42], as it exists on February 12, 2003, which 
is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

4. National pollutant discharge elimination system permit conditions shall 
be established in compliance with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 122.43, (40 CFR 122.43], which is incorporated into this chapter 
by reference. 

5. National pollutant discharge elimination system permits shall include 
requirements for recording and reporting of monitoring results in 
compliance with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.48, [40 CFR 
122.48], which is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002; December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-13. Application of effluent standards and limitations, water 
quality standards, and other requirements. All of the terms and conditions of 
any permit issued by the department will comply with the following requirements 
whenever applicable: 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Effluent limitations as incorporated by reference in sections 33-16-01-30 
and 33-16-01-31. 

Standards of performance for new sources as incorporated by reference 
in section 33-16-01-31. · 

Effluent standards or prohibitions for toxic pollutants as incorporated by 
reference in section 33-16-01-29. 

Pretreatment standards for the introduction of pollutants into treatment 
works as incorporated by reference in section 33-16-01-31. 

Water quality standards, classifications, or effluent requirements 
established pursuant to North Dakota Century Code sections 61-28-04 
and 61-28-05 if such standards and requirements are more stringent 
than those described in subsections 1 through 4. 

Water quality standards and total maximum daily loads established 
pursuant to the authority and guidelines specified in the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act and properly transmitted to the department. 

22 



• 7. Prior to the adoption of effluent limitations and standards by the 
administrator under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, any such 
additional conditions as the department determines are necessary to 
carry out the provisions of that Act. 

8. Any applicable regulations promulgated by the secretary of the 
department in which the coast guard is operating regulating the 
discharge of pollutants from vessels. 

9. Any more stringent legally applicable requirements necessary to comply 
with a plan approved pursuant to section 208(b) of the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act. 

10. When an issued national pollutant discharge elimination system permit 
applies the effluent standards and limitations described in subsections 
1 through 4, the department must state that the discharge authorized by 
the permit will not violate applicable water quality standards and must 
have prepared some explicit verification of that statement. 

11. When an issued national pollutant discharge elimination system permit 
applies any more stringent effluent limitation based upon applicable 
water quality standards, a waste load allocation must be prepared to 
ensure that the discharge authorized by the permit is consistent with 
applicable water quality standards. 

12. National pollutant discharge elimination system permits shall include 
limitations, standards, and other permit conditions in compliance with 
the requirements of 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.44, 
[40 CFR 122.44], which is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-14. Effluent limitations in issued national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permits. 

1. Any permit issued by the department shall specify average and 
maximum daily quantitative limitations for the level of pollutants in the 
authorized discharge in terms of weight or some other appropriate 
measure such as pH, temperature, or radiation. When it is at all 
appropriate the requirement is that the discharge must be expressed 
in terms of weight. The department may also impose additional 
quantitative limitations in terms of average or maximum concentration 
levels. 

2. When applicable, permit conditions in national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permits shall be calculated in compliance with the 
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3. 
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requirements of 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.45, [40 CFR 
122.45], which is incorporated into this chapter by reference, 

The effluent quality for municipal wastes shall be that required by the 
department and shall be based on the following: 

a, Municipal wastes shall receive a minimum of secondary ireatment 
or equivalent in compliance with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 133, [40 CFR 133], which is incorporated by reference in 
section 33-16-01-30. 

b. Wastes shall be effectively disinfected before discharge into state 
waters if such discharges cause violation of the bacteria criteria 
as set forth in the standards of water quality for the state of North 
Dakota, chapter 33-16-02, 1, The effluent shall meet the water 
quality criteria for bacteria except as provided in subdivision c, 

c. The effluent limitations specified under secondary treatment 
and bacteria criteria may be adjusted to reflect site-specific 
considerations as provided in the following: 

(1) 

(2) 

A five-day biochemical oxygen limit of twenty-five milligrams 
per liter (consecutive thirty-day average) may be applied in 
instances in which limits expressed in terms of secondary 
treatment standards would be impractical or deemed 
inappropriate to protect receiving waters, 

In certain instances, external circumstances or specific uses 
of the receiving waters make either attainment or application 
of the suspended solids or bacteria limitations an ineffective 
means of controlling water quality, For this reason, the 
department reserves the right to evaluate the application of 
these limitations on a case-by-case basis. 

(3) The pH of natural ground waters and surface waters in 
some parts of the state (presently used for water supplies 
with or without treatment) are basic, and the stabilization 
process of wastewater treatment in lagoon systems can 
result in more alkaline (increased pH) water. Discharges 
from waste treatment facilities may exceed the upper pH limit 
of 9,0 provided in the secondary treatment standard due to 
these uncontrollable properties. Approval to discharge may 
be granted, providing the pH of the receiving water is not 
violated. 

d, The department may require treatment in addition to that listed 
in this section if such waste discharges, made during low 
streamflows, cause violations of stream water quality standards or 
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have a detrimental ·effect on the beneficial uses of the receiving 
waters. 

4. Industrial waste effluents shall meet all parameters of quality as set forth 
in section 33-16-01-13 and shall not violate North Dakota water quality 
standards. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002; December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-15. Schedules of compliance in issued national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permits. 

1. With respect to any discharge which is not in compliance with 
applicable effluent standards and limitations, water quality standards, 
or other requirements listed in section 33-16-01-13, the permittee shall 
be required to take specific steps to achieve compliance with such 
applicable effluent standards and limitations, water quality standards, 
or other requirements: 

a. In accordance with any applicable schedule of compliance 
contained in: 

(1) Applicable effluent standards and limitations; 

(2) If more stringent, water quality standards; or 

(3) If more stringent, requirements listed in section 33-16-01-13; 
or 

b. In the absence of any applicable schedule of compliance, within a 
reasonable period of time, as provided in subsection 13 of North 
Dakota Century Code section 61-28-04; provided, that such period 
shall be consistent with the guidelines and requirements of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 

2. A permit issued to a new source, new discharger, or recommencing 
discharger may contain a compliance schedule, but only when 
necessary to allow a reasonable opportunity to attain compliance 
with requirements issued or revised less than three years before 
commencement or recommencement of the discharge. For a new 
source or new discharger, such requirements must also have been 
issued or revised prior to commencement of construction. 

3. When the period of time for compliance specified in subsection 1 
exceeds nine months, a schedule of compliance shall be specified in 
the permit which will set forth interim requirements and the dates for 
their achievement; in no event shall more than nine months elapse 
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4. 

5. 

between interim dates. If the time necessary for the completion of the 
interim requirements, such as the construction of a treatment facility, 
is more than nine months and is not readily divided into .stages for 
completion, interim dates shall be specified for the submission of 
reports of progress toward completion of the interim requirement. For 
each national pollutant discharge elimination system permit schedule 
of compliance, interim dates and the final date for compliance shall, 
to the extent practicable, fall on the last day of the months of March, 
June, September, and December. 

Either before or up to fourteen days following each interim date and the 
final date of compliance, the permittee shall provide the department with 
written notice of the permittee's compliance or noncompliance with the 
interim or final requirement. 

On the last day of the months of February, May, August, and November, 
the department shall transmit to the regional administrator a list of all 
instances, as of thirty days prior to the date of such report, of failure 
or refusal of a permittee to comply with an interim or final requirement 
or to notify the department of compliance or noncompliance with each 
interim or final requirement of this section. Such list shall be available 
to the public for inspection and copying and shall contain at least the 
following information with respect to each instance of noncompliance: 

a. Name and address of each noncomplying permittee. 

b. A short description of each instance of noncompliance. 

c. A short description of any actions or proposed actions by the 
permittee or department to comply or enforce compliance with the 
interim or final requirement. 

d. Any details which tend to explain or mitigate an instance of 
noncompliance with an interim or final requirement. 

6. If a permittee fails or refuses to comply with an interim or final 
requirement in a national pollutant discharge elimination system 
permit, such noncompliance shall constitute a violation of the permit 
for which the department may modify, suspend, or revoke the permit 
or take direct enforcement action. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 
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33-16-01-16. Other terms and conditions of issued national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permits. 

1. All discharges authorized by the national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit shall be consistent with the terms and conditions of 
the permit; that facility expansions, production increases, or process 
modifications which result in new or increased discharge of pollutants 
must be reported by submission of a new national pollutant discharge 
elimination system application or, if such discharge does not violate 
effluent limitations specified in the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit, by submission to the department of notice 
of such new or increased discharges of pollutants; that the discharges 
of any pollutant more frequently than or at a level in excess of that 
identified and authorized by the permit shall constitute a violation of the 
terms and conditions of the permit. 

2. A permit may be transferred by the permittee to a new owner or operator 
in either of the following ways: 

a. The current permittee may request that the department modify or 
revoke and reissue the permit to identify the new permittee, and 
incorporate any other requirements as may be necessary under 
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act; or 

b. The current permittee may notify the department in writing at 
least thirty days in advance of the proposed transfer date. The 
notice shall include a written agreement between the current and 
new permittees containing a specific date of transfer of permit · 
responsibility, coverage, and liability between them. Unless the 
department notifies the current permittee that the permit will be 
transferred by modification or revocation and reissuance, the 
transfer will be effective on the date specified in the agreement. 

3. A permit may be modified, suspended, or revoked in whole or in part 
during its term, or denied renewal, for cause, including the following: 

a. Violation of any terms or conditions of the permit. 

b. Obtaining a permit by misrepresentation or failure to disclose fully 
all relevant facts. 

c. A change in any condition that requires either a temporary or 
permanent reduction or elimination of the permitted discharge. 

d. A determination that the permitted activity endangers human health 
or the environment and can only be regulated to acceptable levels 
by permit modification, suspension, or revocation. 
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e. If the department receives notice of a proposed permit transfer, the 
permit may be modified or revoked and reissued, but may not be 
suspended or denied renewal unless other cause exists. 

4. The permittee shall permit an authorized representative of the 
department upon presentation of the representative's credentials: 

a. To enter upon permittee's premises in which an effluent source is 
located or in which any records are required to be kept under terms 
and conditions of the permit. 

b. To have access to and copy any records required to be kept under 
terms and conditions of the permit. 

c. To inspect any monitoring equipment or method required in the 
permit. 

d. To sample any discharge of pollutants. 

5. Publicly owned treatment works shall provide notice to the department 
in the following situations: 

a. 

b. 

Any new introduction of pollutants into such treatment works from 
a new source, if such source would be subject to the provisions of 
section 306 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act and if such 
source was discharging such pollutants. 

Except as to such categories and classes of point sources or 
discharges specified by the department, any new introduction of 
pollutants into such treatment works from a source which would 
be subject to the Act if such source were discharging pollutants. 

c. Any substantial change in volume or character of pollutants being 
introduced into such treatment works by a source introducing 
pollutants into such works at the time of issuance of the permit. 

Such notice shall include information on (a) the quality and quantity 
of effluent to be introduced into such treatment works and (b) any 
anticipated impact of such change in the quantity or quality of 
effluent to be discharged from such publicly owned treatment 
works. 

d. If the permit is for a discharge from a publicly owned treatment 
works, the permittee shall require any industrial user of such 
treatment works to comply with the requirements of sections 
204(b), 307, and 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 
As a means of ensuring such compliance, the permittee shall 
require of each industrial user subject to the requirements of 
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section 307 of that Act and shall forward a copy to the department 
periodic notice over intervals not to exceed nine months of 
progress toward full compliance with section 307 requirements. 

e. The permittee at all times shall maintain in good working order and 
operate as efficiently as possible any facilities or systems of control 
installed by the permittee to achieve compliance with the terms and 
conditions of the permit. 

f. If a toxic effluent standard or prohibition is established pursuant 
to section 307 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act for a 
toxic pollutant which is present in the permittee's discharge, and 
if such standard or prohibition is more stringent than any limitation 
upon such pollutant in the national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit, the department shall revise or modify the permit in 
accordance with such toxic effluent standard or prohibition and so 
notify the permittee. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-17. Transmission to regional administrator of proposed 
national pollutant discharge elimination system permits. The department 
shall ensure that the regional administrator is provided with copies of all national 
pollutant discharge elimination system permits that are proposed to be issued by 
the department. Such procedures shall provide for at least the following: 

1. Except as waived pursuant to subsection 4, the transmission by 
the department of any and all terms, conditions, requirements, or 
documents which are a part of the proposed permit or which affect the 
authorization by the proposed permit of the discharge of pollutants. 

2. A period of time (up to ninety days) in which the regional administrator, 
pursuant to any right to object provided in section 402(d)(2) of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, may comment upon, object to, or 
make recommendations with respect to the proposed permit. 

3. Procedures for the department's acceptance or rejection of a written 
objection by the regional administrator. 

4. Any written waiver by the regional administrator of the regional 
administrator's rights to receive, review, object to, or comment upon 
proposed national pollutant discharge elimination system permits for 
classes, types, or sizes within any category of point sources. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 
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33-16-01-18. Transmission to regional administrator of issued national 
pollutant discharge elimination system permits. A copy of every national 
pollutant discharge elimination system permit issued by the department will be 
sent to the regional administrator immediately following issuance along with any 
and all terms, conditions, requirements, or documents which are a part of such 
permit or which affect the authorization by the permit of the discharge of pollutants. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-19. Duration and review of national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permits. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.46, 
"duration of permits" is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

1. Every permit issued by the department shall have a fixed term not 
to exceed five years. When the permittee has complied with section 
33-16-01-20, but the department, through no fault of the permittee, 
fails to issue a new permit prior to the expiration of the previous permit, 
the department may extend the expired permit until the permit is 
reissued. Permits extended under this section remain fully effective 
and enforceable. 

2. The department may issue any permit for a duration that is less than 
five years. 

l:listory: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-20. Reissuance of national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permits. 

1. Any permittee who wishes to continue to discharge after the expiration 
date of the permittee's permit must file for reissuance of the permittee's 
permit at least one hundred eighty days prior to its expiration. 

2. The request for reissuance of a permit shall be in letter form and contain, 
as a minimum, the following: 

a. The permit number and date of issue. 

b. Any past, present, or future changes in the effluent quantity or 
quality not reflected in the present permit conditions. 

3. The department will review each permit to ensure that the following 
conditions exist: 

a. The permittee is in compliance with or has substantially complied 
with all the terms, conditions, requirements, and schedules of 
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compliance of the expired national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit. 

b. The department has up-to-date information on the permittee's 
production levels, permittee's waste treatment practices, nature, 
contents, and frequency of permittee's discharge, either pursuant 
to the submission of new forms and applications or pursuant to 
monitoring records submitted to the department by the permittee. 

c. The discharge is consistent with applicable effluent standards and 
limitations, water quality standards, and other legally applicable 
requirements listed in section 33-16-01-13, including any additions 
to, or revisions or modifications of, such effluent standards and 
limitations, water quality standards, or other legally applicable 
requirements during the term of the permit. 

d. The notice and public participation procedures set out in section 
33-16-01-06 shall be followed for every reissuance under this 
chapter. 

e. . Notwithstanding any other provision in this chapter, any point 
source the construction of which is commenced after the 
date of enactment of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
Amendments of 1972 and which is so constructed as to meet all 
applicable standards of performance shall not be subject to any 
more stringent standard of performance during a ten-year period 
beginning on the date of completion of such construction or during 
the period of depreciation or amortization of such facility for the 
purposes of section 167 or 169 (or both) of the federal Internal 
Revenue Code of 1954, whichever period ends first. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-21. Monitoring, recording, and reporting. 

1. Any discharge authorized by a national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit may be subject to such monitoring requirements as may 
be reasonably required by the department pursuant to its authority 
under subsection 1 0 of North Dakota Century Code section 61-28-04. 

2. Any discharge authorized by a national pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit which (a) is not a minor discharge, and (b) the regional 
administrator requests, in writing, be monitored, or (c) contains toxic 
pollutants for which an ·effluent standard has been established by the 
administrator pursuant to section 307(a) of the Act shall be monitored 
by the permittee for at least the following: 

a. Flow (in gallons per day). 
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• b. All of the following pollutants: 

(1) Pollutants (either directly or indirectly through the 
use of accepted correlation coefficients or equivalent 
measurements) which are subject to reduction or elimination 
under the terms and conditions of the permit. 

(2) Pollutants which the director finds, on the basis of information 
available to the director, could have a significant impact on 
the quality of navigable waters. 

(3) Pollutants specified by the administrator, in regulations 
issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
as subject to monitoring. 

(4) Any pollutants in addition to the above which the regional 
administrator requests, in writing, be monitored. 

3. Each effluent flow or pollutant required to be monitored pursuant to 
subsection 2 shall be monitored at intervals sufficiently frequent to 
yield data which reasonably characterizes the nature of the discharge 
of the monitored effluent flow or pollutant. Variable effluent flows and 
pollutant levels may be monitored at more frequent intervals than 
relatively constant effluent flows and pollutant levels which may be 
monitored at less frequent intervals. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-22. Recording of monitoring activities and results. 

1. The results of any monitoring activity required pursuant to section 
33-16-01-21 and subsection 10 of North Dakota Century Code section 
61-28-04 shall be recorded and maintained for a period of not less 
than three years. This period of retention shall be extended during the 
course of any unresolved litigation regarding the discharge of pollutants 
by the permittee or when requested by the department or the regional 
administrator. 

2. Any records of monitoring activities and results shall include for all 
samples: 

a. The date, exact place, and time of sampling. 

b. The date analyses were performed. 

c. Who performed the analyses. 

d. The analytical techniques or methods utilized. 
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e. The results of such analysis. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-23. Reporting of monitoring results. Monitoring results 
obtained by a permittee shall be reported to the department in accordance with a 
reporting schedule prescribed by the department in the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit. In no case shall the required frequency of reporting be 
less than on an annual basis. Reports shall be submitted on the proper national 
pollutant discharge elimination system reporting form which will be supplied to the 
permittee by \he department. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-24. Enforcement. The department shall evaluate all reports, 
notifications, and data submitted by a permittee in compliance with this chapter 
and shall investigate and follow up all apparent violations for possible enforcement 
action pursuant to North Dakota Century Code section 61-28-08. All such 
information received by the department, if forwarded to the regional administrator 
pursuant to the requirements of this chapter, shall constitute information available 
to the administrator for purposes of section 309 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act. 

General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-25. Modification, suspension, and revocation of national 
pollutant discharge elimination system permits. 

1. The department may modify, suspend, or revoke any national pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit in whole or in part during its term 
for cause including, but not limited to, the causes listed in subsection 2 
of section 33-16-01-16, or for failure or refusal of the permittee to carry 
out the requirements of subsection 3 of section 33-16-01-16. 

2. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.62(a), causes for 
modification, [40 CFR 122.62(a)] is incorporated into this chapter by 
reference. 

3. Any such modification, suspension, or revocation by the department 
shall be governed by the procedures outlined in North Dakota Century 
Code section 61-28-07, and the following procedures: 

a. Permit actions may be undertaken at the request of any interested 
person or upon the department's initiative. Permits may be 
modified, suspended, or revoked and reissued only for the 
reasons specified in subsections 1, 2, and 4. 
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b. If the department tentatively decides to modify or revoke and 
reissue a permit, a draft permit incorporating the proposed 
changes shall be prepared pursuant to section 33-16-01-06. The 
department may request additional information from the permittee. 
If the permit is to be modified, the department may require the 
submission of an updated application. If the permit is to be revoked 
and reissued, the permittee shall submit a new application. 

c. In a permit modification, only those conditions to be modified shall 
be reopened when the draft permit is prepared. All other aspects 
of the existing permit shall remain in effect for the duration of the 
unmodified permit. When a permit is revoked and reissued, the 
entire permit is reopened, but the permittee shall comply with all 
conditions of the existing permit until a new final permit is issued. 

d. If the department tentatively decides to suspend a permit under 
subsection 3 of section 33-16-01-16, a notice of intent to terminate, 
a type of draft permit, shall be issued. The notice of intent to 
terminate shall be prepared pursuant to section 33-16-01-06. 

4. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 122.63, minor modifications of 
permits, [40 CFR 122.63] is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 
Such modifications are not subject to subsection 3. 

5. The department may, upon request of the permittee, revise or modify 
a schedule of compliance in an issued national pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit if it determines good and valid cause, such 
as an act of God, strike, flood, materials shortage, or other event over 
which the permittee has little or no control, exists for such revision and 
if within thirty days following receipt of notice from the department, 
the regional administrator does not object in writing. All revisions or 
modifications made pursuant to this section during the period ending 
thirty days prior to the date of transmission of such list shall be included 
in the list prepared by the director pursuant to subsection 4 of section 
33-16-01-15. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-26. Disposal of pollutants into wells, into publicly owned 
treatment works, or by land application. 

1. Disposal of pollutants into wells that affect the waters of the state is 
prohibited, except as provided under an underground injection control 
authorization pursuant to chapter 33-25-01, or as provided in applicable 
regulations of the state industrial commission. Any permit issued for the 
disposal of pollutants into wells shall be issued in accordance with the 
procedures and requirements specified in the applicable regulations. 
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2. When part of a discharger's process wastewater is not subject to a 
national pollutant discharge elimination system permit because it is 
being disposed into a well, into a publicly owned treatment works, or by 
land application, applicable effluent standards and limitations shall be 
adjusted to reflect the reduced waste load. Permit effluent standards 
and limitations shall be calculated by one of the following methods: 

a. If none of the waste from a particular process is discharged into 
waters of the state, and effluent limitations guidelines provide 
separate allocation for wastes from that process, all allocations 
from that process shall be eliminated from the permit limit 
calculations. 

b. In all other cases, effluent limitations shall be adjusted 
proportionally to the amount of wastewater to be diverted 

. from discharge into waters of the state. Effluent limitations and 
standards may be further adjusted under subsection 4 of section 
33-13-01-32 if the character or treatability of the pollutants is 
changed by the alternative disposal method. 

c. Subdivisions a and b do not apply to the extent that promulgated 
effluent limitations guidelines control concentrations of pollutants 
but not mass or specify a different specific technique for adjusting 
effluent limitations to account for well injection, land application, or 
disposal into publicly owned treatment works. 

3. This section shall not alter a discharger's obligation to comply with any 
more stringent applicable requirements in this chapter. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-26.1. General permits. 

1. Coverage. The department may issue a general permit in accordance 
with the following: 

a. Area. The general permit will be written to cover a category of 
discharges described in the permit under subdivision b, except 
those covered by individual permits, within a designated area. The. 
area will correspond to existing geographic or political boundaries 
or any other appropriate division or combination of boundaries. 

b. Sources. The general permit may be written to regulate, within the 
designated area as described in subdivision a, categories of point 
sources if the sources all: 

(1) Involve the same or substantially similar types of operations; 
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(2) Discharge the same types of wastes; 

(3) Require the same effluent limitations or operating conditions; 

(4) Require the same or similar monitoring; and 

(5) In the opinion of the department, are more appropriately 
controlled under a general permit than under individual 
permits. 

c. Storm water. The general permit may be written to regulate storm 
water point sources within the designated area as described in 
subdivision a. 

2. Administration. 

a. General permits may be issued, modified, revoked and reissued, or 
terminated in accordance with applicable requirements of chapter 
33-16-01. 

b. Requiring an individual permit. 

(1) The department may require any person authorized by a 
general permit to apply for and obtain an individual North 
Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit. Any 
interested person may petition the director to take action 
under this paragraph. Cases when an individual North 
Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit may 
be required include the following: 

(a) The discharge is a significant contributor of pollution as 
determined by the factors set forth in chapter 33-16-01; 

(b) The discharger is not in compliance with the conditions 
of the general North Dakota pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit; 

(c) A change has occurred in the availability of 
demonstrated technology or practices for the control or 
abatement of pollutants applicable to the point source; 

(d) Effluent limitation guidelines are promulgated for point 
sources covered by the general North Dakota pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit; 

(e) A North Dakota water quality management plan 
containing requirements applicable to such point 
sources is approved; 
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• (f) Circumstances have changed since the time of the 
request to be covered so that the discharger is no 
longer appropriately controlled under the general 
permit or either a temporary or permanent reduction or 
elimination of the authorized discharge is necessary; or 

(g) The requirements of subsection 1 are not met. 

(2) Any owner or operator authorized by a general permit 
may request to be excluded from the coverage of the 
general permit by applying for an individual permit. The 
owner or operator shall submit an application under section 
33-16-01-02 to the department with reasons supporting 
the request. The request must be submitted no later than 
ninety days after the notice by the department in accordance 
with section 33-16-01-07. The request must be processed 
under chapter 33-16-01. If the reasons cited by the owner or 
operator are adequate to support the request, the department 
may issue an individual permit. 

(3) When an individual North Dakota pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit is issued to an owner or operator 
otherwise subject to a general North Dakota pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit, the applicability of 
the general permit to the individual North Dakota pollutant 
discharge elimination system permittee is automatically 
terminated on the effective date of the individual permit. · 

(4) A permittee, excluded from a general permit solely because 
the permittee already has an individual permit, may request 
that the individual permit be revoked. The permittee shall 
then request to be covered by the general permit. Upon 
revocation of the individual permit, the general permit shall 
apply to the source. 

3. Federal requirements. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 122.28, general permits, [40 CFR 122.28], as it exists on 
February 12, 2003, is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 1989; amended effective October 1, 2002; 
December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 
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33-16-01-27. Other requirements - Conflicts of interest. Conflicts of 
interest shall comply with 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 123.25(c), which is 
incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-28. Appeal. Any person who has received notice of the final 
determination of the department to deny, suspend, or revoke the applicant's or 
permittee's national pollutant discharge elimination system application or permit 
shall have a right to petition the department for relief pursuant to North Dakota 
Century Code section 61-28-07. 

History: Amended effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-29. Toxic pollutant effluent standards. The 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations, part 129, [40 CFR 129] is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-30. Secondary treatment regulations. The 40 Code of Federal 
R'egulations, part 133, [40 CFR 133] is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-31. Effluent guidelines and standards. The 40 Code of 
Federal Regulations, subchapter N, with the exception of part 403, as it exists on 
February 12, 2003, is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002; amended effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-01-32. Criteria and standards for the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system. 

1. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 125, subpart A - criteria 
and standards for imposing technology-based treatment requirements 
under sections 301 (b) and 402 of the Act [40 CFR 125, subpart A] is 
incorporated into this chapter by reference. 
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• 2. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 125, subpart B - criteria for (-,., 
issuance of permits to acquaculture projects [40 CFR 125, subpart B] 
is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

3. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 125, subpart D - criteria 
and standards for determining fundamentally different factors under 
sections 301 (b)(1 )(A) and 301 (b}(2)(A) and (E) of the Act [40 CFR 125, 
subpart DJ is incorporated into this chapter by reference. 

4. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 125, subpart H - criteria 
for determining alternative effluent limitations under section 316(a) of 
the Act [40 CFR 125, subpart HJ is incorporated into this chapter by 
reference. 

5. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 125, subpart I - criteria 
applicable to cooling water intake structures under section 316(b) of 
the Act [40 CFR 125, subpart I] is incorporated into this chapter by 
reference. 

6. The 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 125, subpart L - criteria and 
standards for imposing conditions for the disposal of sewage sludge 
under section 405 of the Act [40 CFR 125, subpart LJ is incorporated 

-
into this chapter by reference. 

History: Effective October 1, 2002. c~ 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

( 
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CHAPTER 33-16-03.1 
CONTROL OF POLLUTION FROM ANIMAL FEEDING OPERATIONS 

Section 
33-16-03.1-01 
33-16-03.1-02 
33-16-03.1-03 
33-16-03.1-04 
33-16-03.1-05 
33-16-03.1-06 
33-16-03.1-07 
33-16-03.1-08 
33-16-03.1-09 
33-16-03.1-10 
33-16-03.1-11 
33-16-03.1-12 
33-16-03.1-13 

Authority 
Scope and Purpose 
Definitions 
Designation of Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations 
Operations Requiring a Permit 
No Potential to Pollute Determination 
Permit Application Content and Procedures 
Facility Requirements 
Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements 
Enforcement and Compliance 
Departmental Inspection 
Prohibited Activities 
Public Participation 

33-16-03.1-01. Authority. The North Dakota state department of health 
has been authorized to provide and administer this chapter relating to the control 
of pollution from animal feeding operations under the provisions of North Dakota 
Century Code section 61-28-04. · 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-02, Scope and purpose. This chapter establishes procedures 
governing the application for, and the issuance, denial, modification, and revocation 
of, permits for animal feeding operations to maintain beneficial uses of and prevent 
degradation of quality of the waters of the state. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-03. Definitions, As used in this chapter, unless the context 
otherwise indicates: 

1. "Animal feeding operation" means a lot or facility, other than an aquatic 
animal production facility, where the following conditions are met: 

a. Animals, other than aquatic animals, have been, are, or will be 
stabled or confined and fed or maintained for a total of forty-five 
days or more in any twelve-month period; and 

b. Crops, vegetation, forage growth, or post-harvest residues are not 
sustained in the normal growing season over any portion of the lot 
or facility. 
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2. "Bedding material" means an absorbent substance applied to dirt 

or concrete flooring systems, including wood shavings, wood chips, 
sawdust, shredded paper, cardboard, hay, straw, hulls, sand, and other 
similar, locally available materials. 

3. "Best management practices" means schedules of activities, 
prohibitions of practices, conservation practices, maintenance 
procedures, and other management strategies to prevent or reduce 
the pollution of waters of the state. Best management practices also 
include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices 
to control production area and land application area runoff, spillage or 
leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage. 

4. "Concentrated animal feeding operation" means an animal feeding 
operation that is defined as a large concentrated animal feeding 
operation, as a medium concentrated animal feeding operation, or 
is a small or other type of animal feeding operation designated as 
a concentrated animal feeding operation in accordance with section 
33-16-03.1-04. For purposes of determining animal numbers, two or 
more feeding operations under common ownership are considered 
to be a single animal feeding operation if they adjoin each other or 
if they use a common area or system fo°r the disposal of wastes. All 
concentrated animal feeding operations are required to obtain a North 
Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit pursuant to 
chapter 33-16-01. · 

5. "Department" means the North Dakota state department of health. 

6. "Discharge of a pollutant" and "discharge of pollutants" each means any 
addition of any pollutant to the waters of the state from any source, 
including the disposal of pollutants into wells. 

7. "Earthen storage pond" or "pond" means a topographic depression 
either below or above ground level, manmade excavation, or diked 
area formed primarily of earthen materials, although it may be lined 
with manmade materials or other seepage control materials, and used 
to store manure or process wastewater and runoff from the production 
area of a livestock facility. 

8. "Engineer" means a professional engineer registered to practice in the 
state of North Dakota. 

9. "Facility or livestock facility" has the same meaning as animal feeding 
operation or concentrated animal feeding operation. 

10. "General permit" means a general North Dakota pollutant discharge 
elimination system permit or a general state animal feeding operation 
permit. This is a permit issued to cover multiple facilities of the same 
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• or similar type, without requiring each facility to be covered under an (' individual permit. 
'- .· 

11. "Large concentrated animal feeding operation" means any animal 
feeding operation that stables or confines as many as or more than the 
numbers of animals specified in any of the following categories: 

a. Seven hundred mature dairy cows, whether milked or dry; 

b. One thousand veal calves; 

C. One thousand cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal calves. 
For purposes of this subdivision, "cattle" includes heifers, steers, 
bulls, and cow-calf pairs; 

d. Two thousand five hundred swine, each weighing fifty-five pounds 
[24.95 kilograms] or more; 

e. Ten thousand swine, each weighing less than fifty-five pounds 
[24.95 kilograms]; 

f. Five hundred horses; 

g. Ten thousand sheep or lambs; C' h. Fifty-five thousand turkeys; 

i. Thirty thousand laying hens or broilers, if the animal feeding 
operation uses a liquid manure handling system; 

j. One hundred twenty-five thousand chickens, other than laying 
hens, if the animal feeding operation uses other than a liquid 
manure handling system; 

k. Eighty-two thousand laying hens, if the animal feeding operation 
uses other than a liquid manure handling system: 

I. Thirty thousand ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses other 
than a liquid manure handling system; or 

m. Five thousand ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses a liquid 
manure handling system. 

12. "Litter" means a mixture of fecal material, urine, animal bedding 
material, and sometimes waste feed. 

- 13. "Manure" or "livestock manure" means fecal material and urine, 

( animal-housing wash water, bedding material, litter, compost, rainwater, 
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• 14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

or snowmelt that comes in contact with fecal material and urine, and 
raw or other materials commingled with fecal material and urine or set 
aside for disposal. 

"Manure handling system" means all of the water pollution control 
structures used at the production area of a livestock facility. 

"Manure storage pond" means an earthen storage pond that stores 
liquid manure and process wastewater from indoor confined animal 
feeding operations. 

"Manure storage structure" means any water pollution control structure 
used to contain or store manure or process wastewater. It includes 
earthen manure storage ponds; runoff ponds; concrete, metal, plastic, 
or other tanks; and stacking facilities. 

"Medium animal feeding operation" means any animal feeding 
operation that stables or confines the numbers of animals specified 
within any of the following ranges: 

a. Two hundred to six hundred ninety-nine mature dairy cows, 
whether milked or dry; 

b. Three hundred to nine hundred ninety-nine veal calves; 

c. Three hundred to nine hundred ninety-nine cattle other than mature 
dairy cows or veal calves. For purposes of this subdivision, "cattle" 
includes heifers, steers, bulls, and cow-calf pairs; 

d. Seven hundred fifty to two thousand four hundred ninety-nine 
swine, each weighing fifty-five pounds [24.95 kilograms] or more; 

e. Three thousand to nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine swine, 
each weighing less than fifty-five pounds [24.95 kilograms]; 

f. One hundred fifty to four hundred ninety-nine horses; 

g. Three thousand to nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine sheep 
or lambs; 

h. Sixteen thousand five hundred to fifty-four thousand nine hundred 
ninety-nine turkeys; 

i. Nine thousand to twenty-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine 
laying hens or broilers, if the animal feeding operation uses a liquid 
manure handling system; 

j. Thirty-seven thousand five hundred to one hundred twenty-four 
thousand nine hundred ninety-nine chickens, other than laying 
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hens, if the animal feeding operation uses other than a liquid 
manure handling system; 

k. Twenty-five thousand to eighty-one thousand nine hundred 
ninety-nine laying hens, if the animal feeding operation uses other 
than a liquid manure handling system; 

I. . Ten thousand to twenty-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine 
ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses other than a liquid 
manure handling system; or 

m. One thousand five hundred to four thousand nine hundred 
ninety-nine ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses a liquid 
manure handling system. 

18. "Medium concentrated animal feeding operation" means a medium 
animal feeding operation that meets either one of the following 
conditions: 

a. Pollutants are discharged into waters of the state through a 
manmade ditch, flushing system, or other similar manmade 
device; or 

b. Pollutants are discharged directly into waters of the state which 
originate outside of and pass over, across, or through the facility or 
otherwise come into direct contact with the animals confined in the 
operation. 

19. "North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit" means 
the permit issued by the department pursuant to chapter 33-16-01 
to a concentrated animal feeding operation that the department has 
determined will not cause, nor likely cause, pollution to waters of the 
state. 

20. "Nutrient management plan" means a written description of the 
equipment, methods, and schedules by which: 

a. Manure, litter, and process wastewater is beneficially reused in 
an environmentally safe manner such as being applied to land at 
appropriate agronomic rates as nutrients or fertilizers; and 

b. Water pollution and air pollution, including odors, are controlled 
sufficiently to protect the environment and public health. 

21. "Open lot" means livestock pens, feeding, or holding areas at the 
production area of an animal feeding operation which are outside and 
not under roof, and where rain can fall directly on the lot area. e l 
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22. "Open manure storage structure" means an earthen pond or storage 
tank for holding liquid manure which is not covered so rainfall can fall 
directly into the pond or tank. 

23. "Operation and maintenance plan" means a written description of the 
equipment, methods, and schedules for: 

a. Inspection, monitoring, operation, and maintenance of the animal 
feeding operation, including manure storage structures, water 
pollution control structures, and the production area; and 

b. Controlling water pollution and air pollution, including odors, 
sufficient to protect the environment and public health. 

It includes emergency response actions for spills, discharges, or failure 
of a collection, storage, treatment, or transfer component. 

24. "Operator" means an individual or group of individuals, partnership, 
corporation, joint venture, or any other entity owning or controlling, in 
whole or in part, one or more animal feeding operations. 

25. "Overflow" means the discharge of manure or process wastewater 
resulting from the filling of wastewater or manure storage structures 
beyond the point at which no more manure, process wastewater, or 
storm water can be contained by the structure. 

26. "Pollutant" means wastes as defined in North Dakota Century Code 
section 61-28-02, including dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator 
residue, garbage, sewage, sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, 
biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded 
equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and industrial, municipal, and 
agricultural waste discharged into water. 

27. "Process wastewater" means water directly or indirectly used in the 
operation of the animal feeding operation for any or all of the following: 
spillage or overflow from animal or poultry watering systems; washing, 
cleaning, or flushing pens, barns, manure pits, or other animal feeding 
operation facilities; direct contact swimming, washing, or spray cooling 
of animals; or dust control .. Process wastewater also includes any 
water which comes into contact with any raw materials, products, 
or byproducts, including manure, litter, feed, milk, eggs, or bedding 
material. 

28. "Production area" means those areas of an animal feeding operation 
used for animal confinement, manure storage, raw materials storage, 
and waste containment. The animal confinement area includes open 
lots, housed lots, feedlots, confinement houses, stall barns, free 
stall barns, milking rooms, milking centers, cattle yards, barnyards, 
medication pens, walkers, animal walkways, and stables. The manure 
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storage .area includes lagoons, runoff ponds, storage sheds, stockpiles, 
under-house or pit storages, liquid impoundments, static piles, and 
composting piles. The raw materials storage area includes feed silos, 
silage bunkers, and bedding materials. The waste containment area 
includes settling basins, areas within berms, and diversions which 
separate uncontaminated storm water. Also included in the definition of 
production area is any egg washing or egg processing facility and any 
area used in the storage, handling, treatment, or disposal of mortalities. 

29. "Runoff' means rainwater or snowmelt that comes in contact with 
manure at an open lot or open manure storage area and, therefore, is 
defined as manure. 

30. "Runoff pond" means an earthen storage pond that is used to collect 
and store runoff from an open lot or from a manure storage area. 

31. "Seepage" means the volume of flow through a manure storage 
structure. 

32. "Sensitive ground water area" means vulnerable hydrogeologic settings 
as determined by the department such as glacial outwash deposits or 
alluvial or aeolian sand deposits that are critical to protecting current 
or future underground sources of drinking water. Areas designated 
as sensitive ground water areas by the department include alluvial 
or aeolian sand deposits shown on Geologic Map of North Dakota 
(Clayton, 1980, North Dakota geological survey) and glacial drift 
aquifers listed in North Dakota Geographic Targeting System for 
Groundwater Monitoring (Radig, 1997, North Dakota state department 
of health), or most recent editions of these publications, with DRASTIC 
scores greater than or equal to 100 based on methodology described 
in DRASTIC: A Standardized System for Evaluating Groundwater 
Pollution Potential (Aller et al., 1987, United States environmental 
protection agency). 

33. "Small animal feeding operation" means any animal feeding operation 
that stables or confines less than the numbers of animals specified for 
a medium animal feeding operation. 

34. "Small concentrated animal feeding operation" means any animal 
feeding operation that stables or confines less than the numbers 
of animals specified for a medium animal feeding operation and is 
designated as a concentrated animal feeding operation in accordance 
with section 33-16-03.1-04. 

35. "State animal feeding operation permit" means a permit issued by the 
department pursuant to this chapter to an animal feeding operation that 
the department has determined will not cause, nor likely cause, pollution 
to waters of the state. 
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36. "Surface water" means waters of the state that are located on the 

ground surface, including all streams, lakes, ponds, impounding 
reservoirs, marshes, watercourses, waterways, and all other bodies or 
accumulations of water on the surface of the earth, natural or artificial, 
public or private. 

37. "Unconfined glacial drift aquifer'' means a glacial drift aquifer that does 
not have an impervious soil layer which acts to prevent or minimize 
movement of water into, through, or out of the aquifer. 

38. "Water pollution control structure" means a structure built or used 
for handling, holding, transferring, or treating manure or process 
wastewater, so as to prevent it from entering the waters of the state. 
The term also includes berms, ditches, or other structures used to 
prevent clean water from coming in contact with manure. 

39. "Water quality standards" means the water quality standards contained 
in chapter 33-16-02.1. 

40. "Waters of the state" means all waters within the jurisdiction of this state, 
including all streams, lakes, ponds, impounding reservoirs, marshes, 
watercourses, waterways, and all other· bodies or accumulations of• 
water on or under the surface of the earth, natural or artificial, public 
or private, situated wholly or partly within or bordering upon the state, 
except those private waters that do not combine or effect a junction 
with natural surface or underground waters just defined. 

,. 
History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-04. Designation of concentrated animal feeding operations. 

1. The department may designate any animal feeding operation as a 
concentrated animal feeding operation upon determining that it is a 
significant contributor of pollutants to waters of the state. In making 
this designation, the department shall consider the following factors: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

The size of the animal feeding operation and the amount of wastes 
reaching waters of the state; 

The location of the animal feeding operation relative to waters of 
the state; 

The means of conveyance of animal wastes, manure, and process 
wastewater into waters of the state; and 
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d. The slope, vegetation, rainfall, and other factors affecting the 
likelihood or frequency of discharge of animal wastes, manure, 
and process wastewater into waters of the state. 

2. No medium or small animal feeding operation shall be designated a 
concentrated animal feeding operation under this section unless the 
department has conducted an onsite inspection of the operation and 
determined that the operation should and could be regulated under 
chapter 33-16-01. In addition, no small animal feeding operation with 
numbers of animals below those established in subsection 17 of section 
33-16-03.1-03 may be designated as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation unless: · 

a. Pollutants are discharged into waters of the state through a 
manmade ditch, flushing system, or other similar manmade 
device; or 

b. Pollutants are discharged directly into waters of the state which 
originate outside the facility and pass over, across, or through 
the facility or otherwise come into direct contact with the animals 
confined in the operation. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004 . 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-05. Operations requiring a permit. The operator of an animal 
feeding operation shall apply for a permit as follows: 

1. Any animal feeding operation that has been defined as a concentrated 
animal feeding operation in section 33-16-03.1-03 or designated a 
concentrated animal feeding operation under section 33-16-03.1-04 
must obtain a North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system 
permit pursuant to chapter 33-16-01. 

2. Any medium animal feeding operation where manure or process 
wastewater from the operation causes or is likely to cause water 
pollution or those that are located within one-fourth mile [.40 kilometer] 
of a stream or surface water that contains water, except for infrequent 
periods of severe drought, must apply for a state animal feeding 
operation permit pursuant to this chapter or a "no potential to pollute" 
determination pursuant to section 33-16-03.1-06. Waters completely 
contained on an owner's property and which do not combine or effect 
a junction with natural surface or underground waters are not included. 

3. A small animal feeding operation shall apply for a state animal feeding 
operation permit pursuant to this chapter when the department has 
determined that manure or process wastewater from the operation 
causes or is likely to cause water pollution. 
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4. An animal feeding operation which stables or confines animals, other 
than the types of animals specified in the definition of medium animal 
feeding operation, shall apply for a state animal feeding operation 
permit pursuant to this chapter when the department has determined 
that manure or process wastewater from the operation causes or is 
likely to cause water pollution. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-06. No potential to pollute determination. 

1. The department, upon request, may make a case-specific 
determination that a livestock facility that is not a concentrated animal 
feeding operation has no potential to discharge pollutants to waters of 
the state and does not require a state animal feeding operation permit. 
The department shall review the determination at least every five years. 

2. The department retains the authority to subsequently require a state 
animal feeding operation permit if circumstances at the facility change, if 
new information becomes available, or if there are other reasons for the 
department to determine that the operation has a potential to discharge 
pollutants into waters of the state. 

3. No potential to pollute means the facility is located where there is: 

a. No discharge of pollutants to ground water and no discharge of 
pollutants to surface water from a rainfall event that is less than or 
equal to a twenty-five-year, twenty-four-hour rainfall event; and 

b. The facility follows a nutrient management plan for the utilization of 
manure and process wastewater that is consistent with this chapter. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-07. Permit application content and procedures. 

1. Any new livestock facility or existing livestock facility that is proposing 
an increase in the number of livestock above the level allowed in the 
current permit or above the level at which a permit is required under 
section 33-16-03.1-05 shall apply for and obtain a state animal feeding 
operation permit or a North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit prior to construction or expansion. Any livestock facility 
that is proposing to expand the production area, or update or change 
the manure handling system, and which requires a permit under 
section 33-16-03.1-05, shall apply for and obtain a state animal feeding 
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operation permit or a North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit prior to construction. 

2. An existing concentrated animal feeding operation shall submit a permit 
application pursuant to chapter 33-16-01 by February 12, 2006. 

3. An existing medium animal feeding operation for which a permit is 
required as per section 33-16-03.1-05 shall submit a permit application 
pursuant to this chapter by July 1, 2008, or earlier if requested by the 
department when concerns of potential or actual pollution of waters of 
the state are documented. 

4. Application forms for state animal feeding operation · permits are 
available from the department. An operator shall furnish information 
requested by the department that is consistent with this chapter. The 
department will not process an application unless all of the necessary 
information is provided. The information within or attached to an 
application must include the following: 

a. The owner's and operator's name and mailing addresses. 

b. The facility's legal location and mailing address. 

c. A topographic map of the area where the facility is or proposes to 
be located and showing the specific production area. 

d. Specific information about the number, size, and type of animals 
proposed for the facility; the number of days per year animals will 
be handled; and the type of confinement (open or housed under 
roof). 

e. The type of containment and storage (anaerobic lagoon, roofed 
storage shed, ponds, under-floor pits, aboveground storage tanks, 
underground storage tanks, concrete pad, impervious soil pad, 
water spreading system, other) and total capacity for manure, 
litter, and process wastewater storage (tons or gallons), or other 
measures to meet department requirements to prevent discharge 
of pollutants to waters of the state. 

f. The total number of acres under control of the applicant and 
available for land application of manure, litter, or process 
wastewater. 

g. Estimated amounts of manure, litter, and process wastewater 
generated per year (tons or gallons). 

h. Estimated amounts of manure, litter, and process wastewater 
transferred to other persons per year (tons or gallons). 
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5. 

i. Designs, including location, for all manure storage and water 
pollution control structures and site-specific background 
information as specified in the North Dakota Livestock Program 
Design Manual. Design plans developed by anyone other than 
the facility owner must be signed by the engineer who prepared 
or supervised the preparation of the plans under North Dakota 
Century Code chapter 43-19.1. 

j. Site-specific information on topography, surface water, ground 
water, and soil geology. 

k. A nutrient management plan or information related to a nutrient 
management plan as specified in subsections 4 and 5 of section 
33-16-03.1-08. 

I. The signatures of individuals responsible for the animal feeding 
operation. 

m. A description of how dead animals will be handled and disposed of 
by the facility operator. 

In preparing an application, the operator shall follow the North Dakota 
Livestock Program Design Manual. 

The operator of an existing animal feeding operation may reference 
any information previously submitted to the department rather than 
resubmitting it. Existing information shall be updated if changes to the 
operation have been made since the prior application. 

Permit conditions. The department may impose any conditions upon a 
state animal feeding operation permit to ensure proper operation of the 
facility to protect water and air quality, including: 

a. Sampling, testing, and monitoring at or adjacent to the facility of 
manure, process wastewater, ground water, or runoff. 

b. Steps to prevent the facility from causing exceedances of water 
quality standards or air quality standards and to minimize odors 
during land application of manure. 

c. Recordkeeping and reporting. 

d. Compliance schedules for upgrades at facilities to meet the 
requirements of this chapter. 

6. If the department determines that the animal feeding operation will 
not cause nor likely cause pollution of waters of the state, either 
after upgrades are made or at its current status, and the department 
determines that it is not likely to exceed air quality standards, a 
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state animal feeding operation permit or a no potential to pollute 
determination will be issued. 

7. If manure storage or water pollution control structures were required at 
the facility, the operator shall notify the department within thirty days of 
construction completion and provide certification from an engineer or 
the designer that construction of manure storage and water pollution 
control structures was completed according to designs provided with 
the application or to department-approved changes. 

8. The permit shall be valid until its expiration date as long as the animal 
feeding operation is not materially changed or waters of the state are 
not impacted pursuant to chapter 33-16-02.1. If an operator plans to 
change the type or increase the number of animals or change the facility, 
including expanding barns or pens or changing manure storage or water 
pollution control structures, the operator shall inform the department in 
writing prior to implementation of these changes. 

9. Expiration of permits. Every state animal feeding operation permit 
issued by the department shall have a fixed term not to exceed five 
years. 

10. Renewal of permits. One hundred eighty days prior to the expiration of 
an existing permit, an application for permit renewal shall be submitted 
to the department for review. If an operator submits a complete 
application for a permit renewal at least one hundred eighty days 
prior to the expiration date, but the department, through no fault of 
the operator, fails to issue a new permit prior to the expiration of the 
previous permit, the department may extend the expired permit until the 
permit is reissued. All conditions and stipulations of permits extended 
under this subsection remain fully effective and enforceable. 

11. 

12. 

Transfer of permits. The holder of a state animal feeding operation 
permit may transfer it by notifying the department in writing at least thirty 
days in advance of the proposed transfer date. The notice shall include 
a written agreement between the current and new owners or operators 
and contain a specific date for the permit transfer and the name and 
address of the individual responsible for compliance with the permit. 

General permits. The department may issue a general state animal 
feeding operation permit covering similar facilities. Any general permit 
shall comply with all requirements of this chapter and shall identify 
criteria by which facilities may qualify for the general permit. Facilities 
that would qualify for a general permit shall apply to the department 
for coverage under the terms of the general permit. The department 
may grant a facility's request to construct and operate under a general 
permit or, at its discretion, issue an individual permit if circumstances 
warrant. 
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13. Confidentiality. If the department determines that certain information 
should be accorded confidential status for reason of being a trade 
secret, it shall disclose such information to the administrator upon 
the latter's request. The administrator shall maintain the disclosed 
information in confidence, unless the administrator determines that 
such information, if made public, would not divulge methods of 
processes entitled to protection as trade secrets. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004; amended effective January 7, 2005. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-08. Facility requirements. 

1. A livestock facility requiring a permit under this chapter must be 
located, designed, built, maintained, and operated to limit or prevent 
pollution of or the discharge of pollutants into waters of the state 
consistent with the North Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual, 
best professional judgment, best management practices, and pursuant 
to the requirements of North Dakota Century Code chapter 61-28, this 
chapter, and the facility's state animal feeding operation permit. 

2. All concentrated animal feeding operations must be located, designed, 
built, maintained, and operated to limit or prevent pollution of or the 
discharge of pollutants into waters of the state consistent with the North 
Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual, best professional judgment, 
best management practices, and pursuant to the requirements of North 
Dakota Century Code chapter 61-28, North Dakota Administrative 
Code chapter 33-16-01, this chapter, and the operation's North Dakota 
pollutant discharge elimination system permit. 

3. Nutrient management plan. A nutrient management plan must be 
developed and a copy maintained onsite by the owner or operator 
of any livestock facility that land applies manure, litter, or process 
wastewater to cropland or grassland and is required to obtain a permit 
or a no potential to pollute determination pursuant to this chapter or 
chapter 33-16-01. These facilities must land apply manure litter or 
process wastewater in accordance with the current properly developed 
nutrient management plan. At a minimum the nutrient management 
plan must contain the following information: 

a. Description of the land to which an operator has access for 
applying manure or process wastewater, or both, and adequate 
information to demonstrate that manure or process wastewater, 
or both, will be applied at agronomic rates. The agronomic 
rate for nitrogen must not exceed the plant utilization rate for 
the cropping year. Phosphorous must not be applied at rates 
exceeding the recommendations based on either the North Dakota 
phosphorous index, the North Dakota state university extension 
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• service soil tests, or other risk assessment methods i:lpproved by 
the department. 

b. The proposed method and timing of land application of manure and 
process wastewater. 

c. The precautions that will be taken to: 

(1) Prevent manure and process wastewater from reaching 
waters of the state or areas where they have the potential to 
impact waters of the state; and 

(2) Minimize odors to residences and public areas where people 
are present during transport and land application of manure. 

d. Other information specified in the North Dakota Livestock Program 
Design Manual. 

4. Of the facilities identified in subsection 3, the following facilities must 
submit a copy of their current nutrient management plans to the 
department along with their application or design, or both, plans: 

a. Concentrated animal feeding operations; 

b. Livestock facilities that plan to apply manure on frozen ground; 

c. Livestock facilities with land that is designated for manure 
application and which also has soil phosphorous levels that meet 
or exceed the very high levels for crop production based on North 
Dakota state university extension service information; 

d. Livestock facilities that daily haul and land apply manure; and 

e. Livestock facilities that fail to comply with these rules or permit 
conditions. 

5. Livestock facilities identified in subsection 3, which do not meet 
conditions in subsection 4, must submit to the department, along with 
their application or design, or both, plans, the following information: 

a. An indication that the facility has a nutrient management plan that 
meets the department requirements; 

b. The name of the individual who developed the nutrient 
management plan and the organization with which that individual 
is affiliated; 

c. The amount of land available for land application of manure; 

15 



d. The type of crops or vegetation grown on this land; 

e. The typical manure application rate for each crop or vegetation 
grown; 

f. The method and timing of application; 

g. The precautions used to prevent manure from reaching waters of 
the state; and 

h. The precautions, if needed, used to minimize odors to residences 
and public areas where people are present during transport and 
land application of manure. 

6. Manure storage structures. All livestock facilities requiring permits 
under chapter 33-16-01 and this chapter, which are constructed or 
expanded after the effective date of the respective rule, must meet the 
following requirements: 

a. All facilities regulated under this chapter shall have manure 
storage structures designed and constructed to store runoff 
from a twenty-five-year, twenty-four-hour rainfall event, except 
swine, chicken, turkey, and veal calf facilities which shall be 
designed and constructed to store runoff from a one hundred-year, 
twenty-four-hour rainfall event. In addition, all facilities shall 
collect and store all manure, process wastewater, and runoff 
for a minimum of two hundred seventy days. Overflows from a 
properly operated manure storage structure due to a chronic or 
catastrophic rainfall event in excess of those specified or seepage 
from the storage structure that is within the standards as specified 
in the North Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual are not 
considered violations of this chapter. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

A ground water site assessment is required for all manure storage 
structures. 

All manure storage structures must be designed and maintained to 
withstand natural forces, to prevent impacts to waters of the state, 
and minimize seepage. 

All earthen storage ponds shall have a properly designed and 
constructed liner to minimize seepage, unless the department has 
determined a liner is not necessary based on site conditions. 

Other manure storage structure requirements specified in the North 
Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual must be met. 
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f. The department may specify additional design or monitoring 
requirements as needed to ensure facilities will satisfactorily 
prevent pollution to waters of the state. 

7. Liquid storage facilities. All livestock facilities requiring permits under 
this chapter and all concentrated animal feeding operations requiring 
permits under chapter 33-16-01 which store liquid manure, process 
wastewater, or manure-contaminated runoff must meet the following 
requirements: 

a. New facilities, expanding facilities significantly increasing their 
number of livestock, or those facilities that have not housed 
livestock within five years must not be located over an unconfined 
glacial drift aquifer unless approved by the department. 

b. All livestock facilities requiring permits under chapter 33-16-01 or 
this chapter, which are constructed or expanded after the effective 
date of the respective rule, must be designed by the facility owner 
or designed by or under the direct supervision of an engineer. If 
designed by an engineer, all final drawings, specifications, plans, 
reports, or other engineering documents, when issued, shall be 
signed by the engineers or land surveyors who supervised the 
preparation of these documents under North Dakota Century 
Code chapter 43-19.1. After construction completion, an engineer 
or the designer shall certify that the construction was completed 
according to the design plan. 

c. Other requirements specified in the North Dakota Livestock 
Program Design Manual. 

8. Odor management. An operator shall manage a facility to minimize the 
impact of odors on neighboring residents and public areas and comply 
with the odor requirements of North Dakota Century Code section 
23-25-11, North Dakota Administrative Code chapter 33-15-16, and the 
North Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual. 

9. Best management practices. An operator of a livestock facility 
requiring a permit under this chapter or a concentrated animal feeding 
operation requiring a permit under chapter 33-16-01 is responsible for 
applying best management practices to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of this chapter and the permit and to prevent pollution 
of waters of the state. The best management practices used must be 
included in the design plans or in the nutrient management plan. 

10. Additional requirements which the department may require for livestock 
facilities requiring permits under this chapter and concentrated animal 
feeding operations requiring permits under chapter 33-16-01. The 
department may: 
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a. Require the operator to install and collect routine samples from 
monitoring wells to ensure that potentially usable ground water 
resources are not adversely impacted. 

b. Require odor control for manure storage and livestock housing 
areas and require steps to minimize odors to residences or public 
areas during transport and land application of manure. 

c. Based on site-specific conditions, specify additional design or 
monitoring requirements as needed to ensure the facility will 
satisfactorily prevent pollution of waters of the state. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004; amended effective January 7, 2005. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-09. Recordkeeping and reporting requirements. 

1. The operator of a livestock facility requiring a permit under this chapter 
shall record and maintain the following for a period of not less than three 
years: 

a. Any sampling, testing, and monitoring results as required by this 
chapter or by the department; 

b. Maintenance and inspection records for water pollution control 
structures; 

c. Reports and data required by this chapter, the North Dakota 
Livestock Program Design Manual, and the permit; and 

d. A copy of this permit. 

The department may request an extension of the record retention 
period if a facility has failed to comply with these rules or permit 
conditions or during the course of any unresolved litigation regarding 
the discharge of pollutants by the operation. The information shall be 
provided to department representatives upon request. A concentrated 
animal feeding operation must keep records as required under chapter 
33-16-01. 

2. Reports shall be submitted to the department in accordance with the 
schedule prescribed and on the appropriate forms supplied by the 
department or in a manner specified by the department if required as 
a condition of the state animal feeding operation permit or the North 
Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit for concentrated 
animal feeding operations or based on site-specific conditions. 
Information requested may include sampling, testing, and monitoring 
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results; maintenance and inspection records; records related to facility 
operation; or nutrient management plan information or records. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004; amended effective January 7, 2005. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-10. Enforcement and compliance. 

1. The department shall evaluate all reports, notifications, and data 
submitted by an operator in compliance with this chapter and the state 
animal feeding operation permit. The department shall investigate all 
apparent violations for possible enforcement action pursuant to North 
Dakota Century Code section 61-28-08. 

2. No person may knowingly make a false statement, representation, or 
certification in any application, record, report, plan, or other document 
filed or required under this chapter or the permit. No person may 
knowingly falsify, tamper with, or provide inaccurate information 
regarding a monitoring well or other device required under this chapter 
or the permit. 

3. Operators of permitted facilities that are not operating properly shall 
update those facilities to achieve compliance with this chapter and the 
conditions of the permit within a timeframe approved by the department. 

4. If the department finds that a facility, which has not been covered by 
a state animal feeding operation permit or a North Dakota pollution 
discharge elimination system permit within the last five years, is causing 
or is likely to cause pollution of waters of the state, or poses a significant 
threat to public health or safety, the operator will be notified that actions 
shall be taken to prevent the pollution. 

5. Within one hundred twenty days following the notification described in 
subsection 4, the operator shall submit a compliance plan to prevent 
the facility from impacting waters of the state. 

a. The compliance plan shall be prepared in accordance with the 
minimum requirements of this chapter and the North Dakota 
Livestock Program Design Manual. The plan shall contain 
adequate information to enable the department to determine 
whether the proposed measures will abate or prevent pollution of 
waters of the state. The operator also shall present a proposed 
schedule for plan implementation and completion. 

c: 

b. If the compliance plan allows for operation of the facility in a manner 
that will not cause nor likely cause pollution of waters of the state, 
the department will issue a permit with a compliance schedule for 
construction. Approval of the permit shall be contingent upon any ( 
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changes which may be required by the department after its review 
of the proposed plan. The construction must be completed within 
the timeframe specified in the compliance schedule. 

If the approved compliance plan needs to be modified or amended 
during construction, the operator shall notify the department prior 
to making any modifications or amendments and they must be 
approved by the department. 

6. If the department revokes a state animal feeding operation permit 
for cause, the operator can finish feeding the animals for up to one 
hundred twenty days from the date of revocation, provided public and 
environmental health are not threatened. The operator will not be 
allowed to bring any other animals into the facility until the requirements 
of the permit, this chapter, and the North Dakota Livestock Program 
Design Manual have been met as approved by the department. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-11. Departmental inspection. Authorized representatives of 
the department may request access to a facility site under authority of North Dakota 
Gentury Code section 61-28-04. The owner or operator of a livestock facility may 
request to see the representatives' credentials. Authorized representatives of the 
department shall be allowed: 

1. To enter the facility site or area in which any records required to be kept 
under terms and conditions of the permit are stored; 

2. To have access to and copy any records required to be kept under terms 
and conditions of the permit; 

3. To inspect any monitoring equipment or water pollution control 
structures at the facility; or 

4. To sample any discharge of pollutants. 

The department representatives will abide by all security measures implemented 
by the owner or operator to protect the health and safety of the workers and the 
animals at the facility. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-12. Prohibited activities. It shall be unlawful for any person: 

1. To feed any livestock on the ice cover of streams or lakes. 
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2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

To create or maintain an immediate threat to human, public, or 
environmental health. 

To dispose of an animal carcass along or in any stream, lake, river, or 
other surface water; to bury the carcass near any such surface water; 
to dispose of a carcass in an area that will discharge into waters of 
the state; to dispose of a carcass in any structure used to store or 
treat liquid manure, process wastewater, or storm water unless the 
department-approved system is designed for such a purpose; or to 
dispose of a carcass in a manner that is in violation of North Dakota 
Administrative Code article 33-20 or North Dakota Century Code 
chapter 36-14. 

To cause pollution of waters of the state or to place or cause to be 
placed any wastes in a location where they are likely to cause pollution 
of waters of the state. 

To discharge any pollutants into waters of the state thereby reducing 
the quality so as not to comply with the water quality standards 
established by the department, except facilities that are in compliance 
with subsection 6. 

To discharge manure or process wastewater from a livestock facility 
except: 

a. The overflow of a properly operated manure storage structure due 
to a chronic or catastrophic rainfall greater than a twenty-five-year, 
twenty-four-hour event or greater than a one hundred-year, 
twenty-four-hour event for swine, chicken, turkey, or veal calf 
facilities; or 

b. Seepage from the manure storage structures that is within the 
standards as specified in the North Dakota Livestock Program 
Design Manual. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 

33-16-03.1-13. Public participation. 

1. If the department determines a significant degree of public interest 
exists regarding new or expanding facilities, it shall issue a public 
notice requesting comment on applications for both individual permits 
and general state animal feeding operation permits. 

2. The department shall provide a period of not less than thirty days during 
which time interested persons may submit comments. The period of 
comment may be extended at the discretion of the department 
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3. The public notice must be placed in the official county newspaper or 

other daily or weekly newspaper circulated in the area of the proposed 
animal feeding operation. In the case of draft general permits, the 
public notice will be placed in applicable official county newspapers. 
The department may also use any other reasonable means to provide 
the public notice information to parties potentially affected. 

4. The public notice must include at least the following: 

a. Name, address, and telephone number of the agency issuing the 
public notice. 

b. Name and address of the applicant and a brief description of the 
application information, including the proposed location of the 
facility. The exception would be draft general permits for which 
there is no specific applicant. 

c. The date, time, and location of any scheduled public meeting or 
hearing. 

d. An explanation of how to view or obtain materials (e.g., copy 
of design plans) related to the application and the department's 
review. 

e. An explanation of how to submit comments. 

5. The department shall send copies of the public notice to the applicant 
and to local governmental entities which have jurisdiction over the area 
where the facility is located or is proposed to be located. 

6. The department shall hold a public meeting or hearing as it deems 
appropriate to allow additional public input or to provide information to 
the public concerning the department's review of the facility. 

7. In making its final decision on the application or draft permit, the 
department shall consider all comments submitted within a timeframe 
specified in the public notice and all comments received at any public 
hearing. Within twenty days of the close of the public comment period, 
the applicant, if any, may submit a written response to the public 
comments. The department shall consider the applicant's response in 
making its final decision. 

8. Pursuant to the requirements of this chapter and within sixty days of 
the applicant's response to the public comments, the department shall 
make a final determination as to whether the permit should be approved, 
approved with conditions, or denied. 

9. The department shall notify the applicant in writing of its final 
determination and provide to the applicant a copy of the final permit, 
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if issued. Upon· request, other interested individuals may also obtain 
copies of the final permit. 

10. Once finalized, information on general permits and their availability must 
be provided to potentially eligible or affected facilities. 

History: Effective December 1, 2004; amended effective January 7, 2005. 
General Authority: NDCC 61-28-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28-04 
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SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION 

The North Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual (design manual) establishes 
guidelines for use by the North Dakota Department of Health (department) in the review 
and permitting process for concentrated animal feeding operations (CAFOs) and animal 
feeding operations (AFOs), as defined by North Dakota Administrative Code (NDAC) 
Section 33-16-03.1-03. CAFOs and AFOs must be located, designed, built, maintained 
and operated to prevent the discharge of wastes into waters of the state as required by 
North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) Chapter 61-28, NDAC Chapter 33-16-01, and 
NDAC Chapter 33-16 -03.1, and, to the extent practicable, consistent with the policies 
and guidelines of this manual, best professional judgment, and best management 
practices. The department may vary application of this design manual based on 
site-specific geological, hydrological, or environmental conditions, but only in ways that 
are consistent with the requirements of law, the policies set forth in this design manual, 
and best professional judgment. 

All CAFOs are required to obtain a North Dakota Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NDPDES) Permit pursuant to NDAC Chapter 33-16-01. Certain AFOs that are 
identified in NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 must obtain coverage under a State Animal 
Feeding Operation Permit or receive a "No Potential to Pollute" determination. 

The guidelines this design manual sets forth are explanatory in nature, and do not have 
the force and effect of law, NDCC § 28-32-01 (11 )(k). Statutory and rule requirements 
for animal feeding operations are set forth elsewhere in the North Dakota Century Code 
and the North Dakota Administrative Code. 

Prior to amending or updating this manual, the department will solicit public comments. 

Where the words "shall" or "must" are used the guideline is one where the department 
believes an enforceable requirement under the relevant environmental statutes or rules 
will likely occur if this guideline is not implemented. Where the word "should" is used 
the guideline is a recommendation of the department that is less critical to avoiding 
violations of relevant environmental statutes and rules. 

The department reviews livestock facilities based on the specific site conditions and will 
follow the standards in this design manual for all applicable facilities. We understand, 
however, that there may be cases where some of the standards may not apply. If it is 
appropriate to deviate from these standards, the reasoning shall be explained and 
documented with the facility information. 

Owners/operators are responsible for ensuring their facilities do not pollute 
waters of the state and do not exceed air quality standards. If a facility is 
detrimentally impacting waters of the state or air quality, the owner/operator will 
be required to make corrections to prevent such impacts, regardless of whether 
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the owner/operator followed the design manual when the facility was designed 
and constructed. 

If appropriate, the department may institute more stringent requirements to protect 
water quality and air quality. 

An owner/operator is responsible for complying with the air pollution law found in NDCC 
Chapter 23-25 Air Pollution Control and the rules promulgated thereunder in NDAC 
Article 33-15 Air Pollution Control. Specifically applicable to CAFOs and AFOs are 
NDCC Section 23-25-11 Regulation of Odors - Rules and NDAC Chapter 33-15-16 
Restriction of Odorous Air Contaminants. 

An owner/operator is responsible for implementing Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements of NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 and 
NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1, the design manual and the conditions of the permit. The 
owner/operator shall include the BMPs that will be implemented in Operation and 
Maintenance (O&M) plans and the Nutrient Management Plan . 
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SECTION 2. GENERAL APPLICATION AND PERMITTING INFORMATION FOR 
ANIMAL FEEDING OPERATIONS 

2.1. Objective 

The objective of this section is to provide a description of the review process for 
livestock facilities wl1ich require permits pursuant to NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 and 
NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1. In addition, it describes the information needed by the 
department to determine (1) whether a medium AFO (Definition 17) has "No Potential to 
Pollute" and (2) whether a small AFO (Definition 33) requires a permit. 

2.2. Operations Requiring Permits 

See NDAC Section 33-16-03.1-04 and NDAC Section 33-16-03.1-05. 

Medium AF Os located within 1 /4 mile of a stream or surface water that contains water, 
except for infrequent periods of severe drought, must submit an application for a state 
determination. Waters completely contained on an owner's property and which do not 
combine or effect a junction with natural surface or underground waters are not 
included. This is intended to be measured as a horizontal distance from any portion of 
the production area of a livestock facility to the nearest point of a stream or surface 
water of the state. USGS 7½ Minute Quadrangle maps may be used to assist 
producers in determining if waters are surface waters; however, these are only guides, 
and the surface water still needs to be assessed to determine its distance from the 
livestock facility. 

Following are some guidelines to help producers determine whether manure or process 
wastewater from their operation causes or is likely to cause water pollution. If the 
facility is located on sandy soil, and has a usable well that is less than 30 feet deep, the 
department recommends that the well water be tested for bacteria and nitrates. If the 
test indicates high fecal bacteria or nitrates, further assistance may be needed to help 
determine if the livestock facility is the source. 

If a livestock facility is located where manure or runoff from the livestock area reaches 
an adjacent wash or water way, and if during heavy rains or snow melt, water flows 
from this water way to a stream or surface water containing water, except for infrequent 
periods of severe drought, the facility is likely to cause water pollution and needs a state 
permit. Also if a livestock facility is located such that pollutants are discharged into 
waters of the state through a man-made ditch, flushing system, or other similar man­
made device; or pollutants are discharged directly into waters of the state which 
originate outside of and pass over, across, or through the facility or otherwise come into 
direct contact with the animals confined in the operation, the facility is likely to cause 
water pollution and needs a state permit. 
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The following definitions are taken from NDAC Section 33-16-03.1-03: 

1. "Animal feeding operation" means a lot or facility (other than an aquatic animal 
production facility) where the following conditions are met: 

a. Animals (other than aquatic animals) have been, are, or will be stabled or 
confined and fed or maintained for a total of 45 days or more in any 
12-month period; and 

b. Crops, vegetation, forage growth, or post-harvest residues are not 
sustained in the normal growing season over any portion of the lot or 
facility. 

2. "Bedding material" means an absorbent substance applied to dirt or concrete 
flooring systems, including wood shavings, wood chips, sawdust, shredded 
paper, cardboard, hay, straw, hulls, sand, and other similar, locally available 
materials. 

3. "Best management practices" means schedules of activities, prohibitions of 

• 
practices, conservation practices, maintenance procedures, and other 
management strategies to prevent or reduce the pollution of waters of the state. c:! Best management practices also include treatment requirements, operating 
procedures, and practices to control production area and land application area 
runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material 
storage. 

4. "Concentrated animal feeding operation" means an animal feeding operation that 
is defined as a large concentrated animal feeding operation (Definition 11) or as 
a medium concentrated animal feeding operation (Definition 18), or is a small or 
other type of animal feeding operation designated as a concentrated animal 
feeding operation in accordance with section 33-16-03.1-04 (Designation of 
concentrated animal feeding operations). For purposes of determining animal 
numbers, two or more feeding operations under common ownership are 
considered to be a single animal feeding operation if they adjoin each other or if 
they use a common area or system for the disposal of wastes. All concentrated 
animal feeding operations are required to obtain a North Dakota pollutant 
discharge elimination system permit pursuant to chapter 33-16-01. 

5. "Discharge of a pollutant" and "discharge of pollutants" each means any addition 
of any pollutant to the waters of the state from any source, including the disposal 
of pollutants into wells. 

6. "Department" means the North Dakota department of health. 
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7. "Earthen storage pond" or "pond" means a topographic depression either below 
or above ground level, man-made excavation, or diked area formed primarily of 
earthen materials (although it may be lined with man-made materials or other 
seepage control materials) and used to store manure, process wastewater and 
runoff from the production area of a livestock facility. 

8. "Engineer" means a professional engineer registered to practice in the state of 
North Dakota. 

9. "Facility or livestock facility" has the same meaning as animal feeding operation 
(Definition 1) or concentrated animal feeding operation (Definition 4 ). 

10. "General permit" means a general North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination 
system permit or a general state animal feeding operation permit. This is a 
permit issued to cover multiple facilities of the same or similar type, without 
requiring each facility to be covered under an individual permit. 

11. "Large concentrated animal feeding operation" means any animal feeding 
operation that stables or confines as many as or more than the numbers of 
animals specified in any of the following categories: 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

j. 

k. 

700 mature dairy cows, whether milked or dry; 

1,000 veal calves; 

1,000 cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal calves. Cattle includes, 
but is not limited to, heifers, steers, bulls, and cow/calf pairs; 

2,500 swine, each weighing 55 pounds or more; 

10,000 swine, each weighing less than 55 pounds; 

500 horses; 

10,000 sheep or lambs; 

55,000 turkeys; 

30,000 laying hens or broilers, if the animal feeding operation uses a 
liquid manure handling system; 

125,000 chickens (other than laying hens), if the animal feeding operation 
uses other than a liquid manure handling system; 
82,000 laying hens, if the animal feeding operation uses other than a 
liquid manure handling system; 
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• I. 30,000 ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses other than a liquid 
manure handling system; or 

m. 5,000 ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses a liquid manure 
handling system. 

12. "Litter'' means a mixture of fecal material, urine, animal bedding material, and 
sometimes waste feed. 

13. "Manure or livestock manure" means fecal material and urine, animal-housing 
wash water, bedding material, litter, compost, rainwater, or snow melt that comes 
in contact with fecal material and urine, and raw or other materials commingled 
with fecal material and urine or set aside for disposal. 

14. "Manure handling system" means all of the water pollution control structures 
used at the production area of a livestock facility. 

15. "Manure storage pond" means an earthen storage pond that stores liquid manure 
and process wastewater from indoor confined animal feeding operations. 

16. "Manure storage structure" means any water pollution control structure used to 
contain or store manure or process wastewater. It includes, but is not limited to: 
earthen manure storage ponds; runoff ponds; concrete, metal, plastic, or other 
tanks; and stacking facilities. 

17. "Medium animal feeding operation" means any animal feeding operation that 
stables or confines the numbers of animals specified within any of the following 
ranges: 

a. 200 to 699 mature dairy cows, whether milked or dry; 

b. 300 to 999 veal calves; 

c. 300 to 999 cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal calves. Cattle 
includes, but is not limited to, heifers, steers, bulls, and_ cow/calf pairs; 

d. 750 to 2,499 swine, each weighing 55 pounds or more; 

e. 3,000 to 9,999 swine, each weighing less than 55 pounds; 

f. 150 to 499 horses; 

g. 3,000 to 9,999 sheep or lambs;' 
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h. 16,500 to 54,999 turkeys; 

i. 9,000 to 29,999 laying hens or broilers, if the animal feeding operation 
uses a liquid manure handling system; 

j. 37,500 to 124,999 chickens (other than laying hens), if the animal feeding 
operation uses other than a liquid manure handling system; 

k. 25,000 to 81,999 laying hens, if the animal feeding operation uses other 
than a liquid manure handling system; 

I. 10,000 to ·29,999 ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses other than a 
liquid manure handling system; or 

m. 1,500 to 4,999 ducks, if the animal feeding operation uses a liquid manure 
handling system. 

18. "Medium concentrated animal feeding operation" means a medium animal 
feeding operation that meets either one of the following conditions: 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

a. Pollutants are discharged into waters of the state through a man-made 
ditch, flushing system, or other similar man-made device; or 

b. Pollutants are discharged directly into waters of the state which originate 
outside of and pass over, across, or through the facility or otherwise come 
into direct contact with the animals confined in the operation. 

"North Dakota pollutant discharge elimination system permit" means the permit 
issued by the department pursuant to NDAC chapter 33-16-01 to a concentrated 
animal feeding operation that the department has determined will not cause, nor 
likely cause, pollution to waters of the state. 

"Nutrient management plan" means a written description of the equipment, 
method(s) and schedule(s) by which (1) manure, litter and process wastewater is 
beneficially reused in an environmentally safe manner such as being applied to 
land at appropriate agronomic rates as nutrients or fertilizers, and (2) water 
pollution and air pollution (including odors) are controlled sufficiently to protect 
the environment and public health. 

"Open lot" means livestock pens, feeding or holding areas at the production area 
of an animal feeding operation which are outside and not under roof, and where 
rain can fall directly on the lot area. 

"Open manure storage structure" means an earthen pond or storage tank for 
holding liquid manure which is not covered so rainfall can fall directly into the 
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• pond or tank. 
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23. "Operation and maintenance plan" means a written description of the equipment, 

methods, and schedules for: (1) inspection, monitoring, operation, and 
maintenance of the animal feeding operation (manure storage structures, water 
pollution control structures, and the production area); and (2) controlling water 
pollution and air pollution (including odors) sufficient to protect the environment 
and public health. It includes emergency response actions for spills, discharges 
or failure of a collection, storage, treatment, or transfer component. 

24. "Operator" means an individual or group of individuals, partnership, corporation, 
joint venture, or any other entity owning or controlling, in whole or in part, one or 
more animal feeding operations. 

25. "Overflow• means the discharge of manure or process wastewater resulting from 
the filling of wastewater or manure storage structures beyond the point at which 
no more manure, process wastewater, or storm water can be contained by the 
structure. 

26. "Pollutant" means "wastes" as defined in subsection 2 of North Dakota Century 
Code section 61-28-02, including dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, 

• 
garbage, sewage, sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, 
radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar c··, dirt, and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into water. 

....,-; 

27. "Process wastewater'' means water directly or indirectly used in the operation of 
the animal feeding operation for any or all of the following: spillage or overflow 
from animal or poultry watering systems; washing, cleaning, or flushing pens, 
barns, manure pits, or other animal feeding operation facilities; direct contact 
swimming, washing, or spray cooling of animals; or dust control. Process 
wastewater also includes any water which comes into contact with any raw 
materials, products, or byproducts, including manure, litter, feed, milk, eggs, or 
bedding material. 

28. "Production area" means those areas of an animal feeding operation used for 
animal confinement, manure storage, raw materials storage, and waste 
containment. The animal confinement area includes, but is not limited to, open 
lots, housed lots, feedlots, confinement houses, stall barns, free stall barns, 
milking rooms, milking centers, cattle yards, barnyards, medication pens, 
walkers, animal walkways, and stables. The manure storage area includes but is 
not limited lo lagoons, runoff ponds, storage sheds, stockpiles, under-house or 
pit storages, liquid impoundments, static piles, and composting piles. The raw 
materials storage area includes, but i~ not limited to, feed silos, silage bunkers, 
and bedding materials. The waste containment area includes, but is not limited 
to, settling basins, areas within berms, and diversions which separate 
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29. 

30. 

31. 

uncontaminated storm water. Also included in the definition of production area is 
any egg washing or egg processing facility and any area used in the storage, 
handling, treatment, or disposal of mortalities. 

"Runoff' means rainwater or snow melt that comes in contact with manure at an 
open lot or open manure storage area and, therefore, is defined as manure. 

"Runoff pond" means an earthen storage pond that is used to collect and store 
runoff from an open lot or from a manure storage area. 

"Seepage" means the volume of flow through a manure storage structure. 

32. "Sensitive groundwater area" means vulnerable hydrogeologic settings as 
determined by the department such as glacial outwash deposits or alluvial or 
aeolian sand deposits that are critical to protecting current or future underground 
sources of drinking water. Areas designated as sensitive groundwater areas by 
the department include alluvial or aeolian sand deposits shown on Geologic Map 
of North Dakota (Clayton, 1980, North Dakota geological survey) and glacial drift 
aquifers listed in North Dakota Geographic Targeting System for Groundwater 
Monitoring (Radig, 1997, North Dakota department of health), or most recent 
editions of these publications, with DRASTIC scores greater than or equal to 100 
based on methodology described in DRASTIC: A Standardized System For 
Evaluating Groundwater Pollution Potential (Aller et al, 1987, United States 
environmental protection agency). 

33. "Small animal feeding operation" means any animal feeding operation that 
stables or confines less than the numbers of animals specified for a medium 
animal feeding operation (Definition 17). 

34. 

35. 

36. 

"Small concentrated animal feeding operation" means any animal feeding 
operation that stables or confines less than the numbers of animals specified for 
a medium animal feeding operation (Definition 17) and is designated as a 
concentrated animal feeding operation in accordance with section 33-16-03.1-
04. 

"State animal feeding operation permit" means a permit issued by the 
department (pursuant to this chapter) to an animal feeding operation that the 
department has determined will not cause, nor likely cause, pollution to waters of 
the state. 

"Surface water" means waters of the state that are located on the ground 
surface, including all streams, lakes, ponds, impounding reservoirs, marshes, 
watercourses, waterways, and all other bodies or accumulations of water on the 
surface of the earth, natural or artificial, public or private. 
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37. "Unconfined glacial drift aquifer" means a glacial drift aquifer that does not have 
an impervious soil layer which acts to prevent or minimize movement of water 
into, through, or out of the aquifer. 

38. "Water pollution control structure" means a structure built or used for handling, 
holding, transferring, or treating manure or process wastewater, so as to prevent 
it from entering the waters of the state. The term also includes berms, ditches, 
or other structures used to prevent clean water from coming in contact with 
manure. 

39. "Water quality standards" means the water quality standards contained in 
chapter 33-16-02.1. 

40. "Waters of the state" (subsection 11 of North Dakota Century Code section 61-
28-02.) means all waters within the jurisdiction of this state including all streams, 
lakes, ponds, impounding reservoirs, marshes, watercourses, waterways, and all 
other bodies or accumulations of water on or under the surface of the earth, 
natural or artificial, public or private, situated wholly or partly within or bordering 
upon the state, except those private waters that do not combine or effect a 
junction with natural surface or underground waters just defined. 

2.4. True Pasture and Rangeland Operations 

(See NDAC Section 33-16-03.1-05.) 

Wintering operations were addressed in the previous North Dakota state livestock rules, 
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and by local zoning ordinances. EPA 
chose not to define a winter feeding operation but instead chose to address it through 
the preamble to the federal livestock rules as follows: "First, EPA is reiterating that true 
pasture and rangeland operations are not considered AFOs, because operations are 
not AFOs where the animals are in areas such as pastures, croplands or rangelands 
that sustain crops or forage growth during the normal growing season. In some 
pasture-based operations, animals may freely wander in and out of particular areas for 
food or shelter; this is not considered confinement. However, pasture and 
grazing-based operations may also have confinement areas (e.g. feedlots, barns, pens) 
that may qualify as an AFO. Second, incidental vegetation in a clear area of 
confinement, such as a feedlot or pen, would not exclude an operation from meeting 
the definition of an AFO. Note that animals must be stabled or confined for at least 45 
days out of any 12 month period to qualify the operation as an AFO." The state will 
follow the same directive to not consider true pasture and rangeland operations as 
AFOs; however, confinement areas of these operations may qualify as AFOs. These 
areas may be subject to regulation under NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 or NDAC Chapter 
33-16-01 and the owner/operator may·need to submit an application for a state animal 
feeding operation permit or obtain a "No Potential to Pollute" determination . 
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• 2.5. When to Submit an Application 

Applications must be submitted to the department by owners or operators of livestock 
facilities that require a permit pursuant to NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 or NDAC Chapter 
33-16-03.1. The owner/operator of the following facilities must submit an application 
and design plans, and must receive department approval prior to construction: 

1. New livestock facilities or 

2. Existing livestock facilities that are: 

a. Increasing the number of livestock above the level allowed in the current 
permit or above the level where a permit is required, 

b. Expanding the production area, or 

c Are updating or changing the manure handling system. 

A preliminary application may be submitted before a facility is designed so the 
department can assist the owner/operator by evaluating information on the water 
resources in the area, reviewing siting requirements and identifying potential concerns. 
The final design plans for the manure handling system, including a Nutrient 
Management Plan, must then be submitted to the department for review. 

If a facility design meets department construction and operation standards to prevent 
the discharge of pollution to waters of the state and to prevent an exceedance of air 
quality standards, a permit may be issued. If the department determines the design is 
not adequate, changes will be required before the design can be approved and a permit 
issued. 

A public notice process (as described in NDAC 33-16-01) is required bf CAFOs issued 
NDPDES permits. 

For new or expanding facilities requiring a state permit, the department may issue a 
public notice requesting comment when there is significant degree of public interest. A 
significant degree of public interest exists when justifiable concerns of environmental 
impact are expressed. 

When an owner or operator is considering a new site for a livestock facility, the 
department can provide general comments to assist in evaluating a potential site and 
understanding the requirements for manure handling systems. 

An application for renewal of a permit or of a "No Potential to Pollute" determination 
shall be submitted 180 days prior to the expiration. The department will send out a 
reminder notice prior to the expiration date indicating the expiration date and informing 
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the owner/operator when a renewal must be submitted. 

2.6. Criteria for a "No Potential to Pollute" Determination 

Livestock facilities can receive a "No Potential to Pollute" determination from the 
department if they: (1) are not a CAFO, (2) are located where the facility has no 
discharge of pollutants to groundwater: (3) are located where their facility has no 
discharge of pollutants to surface water from a rainfall event less than or equal to a 25-
year, 24-hour rainfall event; and ( 4) manage the manure so it will be utilized for crop 
production consistent with a nutrient management plan. To request this determination, 
the owner/operator must submit a signed and completed application with a written 
request for a "No Potential to Pollute" determination. The department will inspect the 
livestock facility site to determine if it has no potential to pollute. The facility also must 
keep a current Nutrient Management Plan that meets the department requirements on 
site and available for department review upon request. 

Once the department determines that the livestock facility has "No Potential to Pollute," 
the facility will be subject to review at least once every five years to maintain this status. 
The department may make a determination to extend a "No Potential to Pollute" based 
solely on provided documentation, or it may decide to inspect facilities prior to renewing 
or extending a "No Potential to Pollute" determination. 

2.6.1. The criteria for the department to make a "No Potential to Pollute" determination 
for livestock facilities that are not CAFOs are: 

1. The livestock facility must not discharge pollutants to surface waters from a 
rainfall event that is less than or equal to a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event. This 
includes spring runoff events, unless they are due to a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall 
event. 

2. The livestock facility or area where manure is stored or is contained within must 
not be located over a sensitive ground water area where the on-site soil is 
predominately gravel, sand or silt; 

3. The livestock facility must have a Nutrient Management Plan approved by the 
department; and 

4. If a liquid manure storage structure is needed at the facility, it is not eligible for a 
"No Potential to Pollute" determination. 

2.6.2. The following information will be kept on file by the department to justify a "No 
Potential to Pollute" determination for a livestock facility that is not a CAFO. The 
department will collect the information from the livestock facility owner or operator and 
from a site assessment: 
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The name of the livestock facility owner/operator and the legal location and 
mailing address; 

2. The number and type of livestock and the number of days per year livestock are 
on site; 

3. The size of the livestock facility including a sketch of the site showing the number 
and size of barns and the area of the feedlot or livestock lots; 

4. The distance and slope to the nearest surface waters of the state (based on a 
topographic map); 

5. The distance (straight-line and flow) to the nearest named waterway that runoff 
may potentially reach; 

6. If runoff drains across crop or grassland before reaching waters of the state, a 
map showing the area throughout which runoff spreads before reaching a water 
of the state; 

7. The watershed area located above the livestock facility from which clean water 
drains into or through the facility and comes in contact with manure, process 
wastewater, litter, or the livestock on site; 

An indication if manure, process wastewater, litter, or runoff from the livestock 
facility drains or may drain onto neighboring property not owned by the facility; 

9. A determination if manure, process wastewater, litter, or runoff from the livestock 
facility reaches waters of the state; and 

10. An indication that the facility has a Nutrient Management Plan that meets the 
department requirements and general information on the Nutrient Management 
Plan, including the name of the individual who developed the Nutrient 
Management Plan and the organization with which he/she is affiliated, amount of 
land available for land application of manure, type of crops or vegetation grown 
on this land, typical manure application rate for each of the crops to be grown, 
method and timing of application, precautions used to prevent manure from 
reaching waters of the stale and precautions used to minimize odors to 
residences or public areas where people are present during transport and land 
application of manure. 

2.7. Criteria for Determining if a Small AFO Requires a Permit 

Small AFOs must apply for and obtain a permit from the department if it is determined 
that manure, process wastewater, litter, or runoff is causing the discharge of pollutants 
into waters of the state. To make this determination, the department will inspect the 
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AFO to assess if it is, is likely to, or has discharged pollutants into waters of the state. If 
there is an impact, a permit will be required. The criteria that will be evaluated to 
determine if a small' AFO requires a permit are: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

The number of livestock and the number of days per year the livestock are on 
the site; 

Whether the livestock are confined in or adjacent to surface water where there 
are no natural or man made controls to keep runoff out of the surface water; 

Whether the AFO is impacting or has impacted waters of the state or pollution is 
discharging to surface water (based on an assessment or testing water 
samples); 

Whether the AFO has discharged to surface water from a rainfall event less than 
or equal to a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event (based on an inquiry of the owner or 
operator); and 

Whether the AFO is land applying manure in a manner that will keep it out of 
surface water and is utilizing the nutrients for crop production. 
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SECTION 3. SUBMITTING FINAL DESIGN PLANS 

3.1. Objective 

The final design plans for livestock facilities that require a permit under NDAC Chapter 
33-16-01 or NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 shall show that manure, process wastewater 
and runoff can be properly contained and managed to prevent detrimental impacts to 
surface and ground water resources and meet air quality standards. Manure, process 
wastewater and runoff must be contained and stored as per the design criteria for 
animal manure systems in Section 5. At a minimum, the following information in 
Sections 3.2.1 through 3.2.5 shall be included in the design plans for livestock facilities 
that require a permit. 

3.2. Information to be Included in Final Design Plans 

3.2.1. Design plans which address: 

1. Production areas of a livestock facility 

a. Include provisions to minimize manure, process wastewater, and runoff 
from the production area and contain manure, process wastewater, and 
runoff on site until it can be properly utilized off site. 

b. Specify dimensions of outside lots or barns for livestock. For outdoor lots, 
specify percentage slope of lots, total drainage area of livestock lots and 
any additional drainage area running through the livestock lots. 

c. Indicate the volume of manure and wash water produced from confined 
facilities. For outdoor lots, indicate the runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour 
rainfall event or a 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event, depending on the type 
of operation, including runoff for the period of storage and any additional 
manure from the livestock lots. 

d. Provide an overview of facility operation which relates to manure handling, 
including the collection, transfer and storage of manure on site, the lype of 
livestock and the number of days per year livestock are on site. 

e. Location and size of feed storage areas at the production area, the lypes 
of feed stored and if it is enclosed storage or stored outside. 

2. Earthen Storage Ponds or Runoff Ponds 

a. Specify dimensions of the struc_ture including top and bottom dimensions 
of pond, relative elevation, side slopes, depth, volume, dimensions of 
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• embankments, etc. A typical cross section of the pond and diversions is 
required along with a profile of any diversions, dikes and drainages. 

b. Specify provisions that will be used to meet seepage requirements such 
as the necessity of a liner. If a liner is needed, indicate type, construction 
specifications and testing used during and after construction to ensure 
integrity. Also include documentation that will be maintained to verify 
seepage requirements are met. Include any additional precautions and/or 
maintenance used to ensure pond and liner integrity around inlet areas, if 
the pond dries out, during pumping, and if vegetation growth occurs in the 
pond. 

c. Provide soil boring location, relative elevation of borings, and boring logs 
based on the Unified Soil Classification System. In addition, note 
evidence of any past or present water tables or other soil features. A 
sample of the borrowed or in-situ material that will be used as a liner shall 
be verified by laboratory testing. 

Provide designs for any inlet structures, includirig splash pads and an 
emergency spillway. Include information or designs for equipment used in 
the ponds for solids settling or transporting or agitating manure. In 
addition, include provisions to pump or lower the liquid level of the pond 
and designs for a marker lo indicate the level at which the pond must be 
pumped so that ii can store runoff and rainfall from the required rainfall 
event. 

e. Provide an operation and maintenance plan for the pond detailing proper 
operation and maintenance to ensure it continues to operate as designed 
and listing specific items that need to be inspected and the frequency of 
the inspections. 

3. Non-earthen Storage (Concrete, Metal, Wood, Composite, Etc.) 

a. Include all dimensions and any other pertinent information such as 
relative elevation of top and bottom; design of wall, floor and top; footer 
designs; rebar specifications; joint sealers or other specifications used to 
prevent seepage; testing during or after construction; etc. 

b. Provide soil boring location, relative elevation and boring logs based on 
the Unified Soil Classification System. Note evidence of any past or 
present water tables or other soil features. 

c. Provide an operation and maintenance plan for the structure detailing 
proper operation and maintenance to ensure it continues to operate as 
designed and listing specific items that need to be inspected and the 
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frequency of inspections. 

Diversions and Embankments 

a. Specify dimensions of the structure, including top and bottom width, side 
slopes, depth, typical major cross sections, slope, channel profile 
elevation compared to ground level and flow velocity in diversion 
channels. 

b. Provide any site-specific conditions needed to ensure stability. 

c. Specify the maintenance required to ensure continued stability. 

d. Include the calculations used to estimate the peak flow in diversion 
channels, including watershed drainage area, average slope, soil type, 
vegetation in drainage area, runoff curve number, and maximum flow 
length. 

e. Include the calculations to show the stability of diversion channels at peak 
flow. If the drainage area is small, indicate that minimum diversion design 
is adequate to handle runoff. 

f. Provide specifications on any type of erosion control methods used in 
stabilizing channels, diversions, earthen storage ponds, etc. used during 
construction. 

g. Provide an operation and maintenance plan for the structures detailing 
proper operation and maintenance to ensure they continue to operate as 
designed and listing specific items that need to be inspected and the 
frequency of inspections. 

5. Construction Specifications for Water Pollution Control Structures Including 
Excavation, Earth Fill, Liners, Concrete, and Pipelines 

a. 

b. 

C. 

Provide general construction information to ensure a stable structure 
(e.g., include the type of soil used for construction, compaction, moisture 
content, etc.). 

Specify construction requirements needed to ensure stability and quality 
construction (e.g., stripping and scarifying, lift thickness and compaction, 
grass seeding after construction, etc.). 

Include any testing done during or after construction to ensure stability of 
the structure. 
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d. Designs, including location for all manure storage and water pollution 
control structures and site-specific background information as specified in 
the "North Dakota Livestock Program Design Manual." Design plans 
developed by anyone other than the facility owner must be signed by the 
engineer who prepared or supervised the preparation of the plans as per 
NDCC 43-19.1. 

3.2.2. Nutrient Management Plans 

1. The following facilities that require a Nutrient Management Plan pursuant to 
NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 or NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 must submit a copy of 
their current Nutrient Management Plan to the department along with their 
application and/or design plans which must include the information listed in 
Section 7: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

CAFOs, 

Livestock facilities that plan to apply manure on frozen ground; 

Livestock facilities with land that is designated for manure application and 
which also has soil phosphorous levels that meet or exceed the very high. 
levels for crop production based on N DSU Extension Service information; 

Livestock facilities that daily haul and land apply manure: or 

Livestock facilities which fail to comply with these rules or permit 
conditions. 

2. Facilities that do not meet the conditions in item 1 must have a current Nutrient 
Management Plan kept on site. However, they only need to submit the following 
information to the department with their application and/or design plans: 

1. An indication that the facility has a nutrient management plan; 

b. The name of the individual who developed the Nutrient Management Plan 
and the organization with which he/she is affiliated; 

c. The amount of land available for land application of manure; 

d. The type of crops or vegetation grown on this land; 

e. The typical manure application rate for each crop; 

f. The method and timing of application; 
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g. The precautions used to prevent manure from reaching waters of the 
state; and 

h. The precautions used to minimize odors to residences or public areas 
where people are present during transport and land application of manure. 

3.2.3. Time Line for Construction and Implementation for Existing Systems 

Operators of existing facilities installing or updating the manure handling systems to 
comply with department requirements shall include a project time line if construction is 
not scheduled to be completed within one year after the application is submitted to the 
department. This time line shall indicate various phases of the construction to be 
completed and include an estimated date of completion for each phase. If construction 
is not completed in one year or a construction schedule cannot be met, the department 
shall be notified in writing with a new proposed construction schedule submitted prior to 
the end of the one year or the scheduled completion date. 

3.2.4. Notice of Intent to be Covered Under Storm Water Permit 

1. Construction activities at a livestock facility site ·disturbing 1 acre or more must be 
covered under a general permit for storm water discharges from construction 
activities (NDAC Chapter 33-16-01). 

2. The livestock facility design plans must include a storm water pollution 
prevention plan detailing measures to control erosion and minimize pollution 
from construction sites. 

3.2.5. Best Management Practices for Conservation 

Identify appropriate site specific Best Management Practices for conservation to be 
implemented to control runoff of pollutants to waters of the state, both at the production 
area and at the land application areas. Practices identified in the Nutrient Management 
Plan can be referenced and do not have to be repeated. 
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SECTION 4. SITE SELECTION AND ASSESSMENT STANDARDS 

4.1. Objective 

This section describes the information required to evaluate the location of a new or 
expanding livestock facility. Site location is the single most important factor in 
protecting water and air quality resources from pollution due to livestock facilities. 
Adequate surface and subsurface information is necessary to limit the potential of new 
or expanding facilities to degrade water and air quality resources. 

4.2. Site Selection Standards 

Geologic and hydrologic conditions that control the movement of manure or waste 
water to surface water or ground water sources are preferred for new or expanding 
facilities. Upland sites underlain by low permeability soil and located away from surface 
water are ideal for minimizing the migration of pollutants to waters of the state. 
Facilities that are located at more sensitive sites typically require engineered 
improvements (e.g., above-ground storage tanks, synthetic or constructed clay liners) to 
meet department requirements to protect waters .of the state. 

The following site conditions shall be considered when evaluating the location of a 
livestock facility: 

1. Proximity to surface water; 

2. Surface and subsurface soil textures (e.g., the presence of sand lenses versus 
continuous clay layers); 

3. Depth to ground water and distance to existing wells; 

4. Surface topography; and 

5. Distance to nearby residents, particularly in the prevailing downwind direction. 

Site conditions shall be evaluated by the department during the permit application 
review process and shall be considered when developing permit conditions for a 
livestock facility. 

4.2.1. General Requirements 

New and expanding livestock facilities and manure storage areas shall be located a 
minimum horizontal distance of 100 feet from a public water supply well, 50 feet from a 
private water supply well, and 500 feet from any water supply well not owned by the 
facility where the topography is in a down-slope or down-gradient direction from the 
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livestock facility. 

4.2.2. Additional Considerations 

The location of storage structures for an animal manure system should be as close as 
practicable to the manure source. Open manure storage structures should be located 
so that the prevailing wind direction will not be toward nearby occupied areas. 
Consideration should also be given to topography, vegetative screening and building 
location to minimize visual or air quality impacts from an operation. Water supply wells 
at existing operations should be protected from animal waste impacts. 

4.3. Site Assessment Standards 

4.3.1. Scope of Site Assessment 

The scope of a site assessment is dependent on the size and location of the proposed 
livestock facility. Larger facilities or those located in sensitive ground water areas 
generally require more information to adequately evaluate the site. Smaller facilities 
located in less sensitive ground water areas generally require less information. Contact 
the department with any site assessment questions. 

The following operations require more detailed subsurface soil information. 

1. Open-lot cattle facilities with greater than or equal to 2,000 animals, or where the 
production area is greater than or equal to 20 acres in size; 

2. All other large CAFOs or existing operations expanding to large CAFO status; or 

3. New or expanding facilities, which meet any of the following criteria: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

The production area overlies or is located within 1 mile of a defined glacial 
drift aquifer (see attached Figure 1 ); 

The production area overlies a sensitive ground water area, as defined by 
the department (see attached Figure 1 ); 

Soils at the production area have sandy loam, loamy sand, sand or gravel 
textural classes as defined by Natural Resources Conservation Service 
(NRCS) soil survey maps; 

A water supply well at the facility is screened at a depth within 30 feet of 
the ground surface; 

The production area is within 1 /4 mile of a neighboring private water 
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• supply well, within 1/2 mile of a non-community public water supply well or 
within 1 mile of a community public water supply well; or 

f. The production area is located within a delineated wellhead or source 
water protection area (see attached Figure 2). 

4.3.2. Site Assessment Requirements 

Data regarding subsurface soil types shall be obtained by advancing soil borings, using 
a method that retrieves a relatively undisturbed soil sample, or by an alternative soil 
evaluation method that.is approved by the department prior to site assessment. 
Subsurface soils shall be evaluated and logged to at least 10 feet below the base of the 
manure storage structure. Th.ere shall be a minimum of three soil evaluations in the 
manure storage structure area or one soil evaluation per acre of structure area, 
whichever is greater. In outdoor feedlot areas, there should be one additional soil 
evaluation per 10 acres of feedlot area, to a depth of at least 10 feet below ground 
surface. Soil evaluations should be spaced throughout the proposed facility to enable 
an accurate assessment of the subsurface geology. The department can provide 
assistance in locating appropriate drilling locations. 

For facilities that meet any of the conditions in Section 4.3.1, soil borings are required 
for the evaluations. For other facilities, the assessment may be conducted using soil 
borings or by an alternative soil evaluation method that is approved by the department 
prior to site assessment. The subsurface soil shall be continuously logged, and the soil 
shall be classified using the Unified Soil Classification System (as outlined in ASTM D-
2488) or the equivalent. Soil types shall be recorded in a soil boring log, along with soil 
colors, soil moisture conditions and the depth of any ground water encountered during 
drilling. The ground surface elevation at each boring or assessment location shall be 
obtained to evaluate the elevation in relation to the base of the manure storage 
structure. The elevation data shall either be reported in feet above mean sea level or 
referenced to an arbitrary site benchmark. 

All soil borings that extend into an aquifer shall be completed and abandoned according 
to the requirements established in NDAC Chapter 33-18-02 (Ground Water Monitoring 
Well Construction Requirements). As defined in NDAC Chapter 33-18-01 "Water Well 
Construction and Water Well Pump Installation," an "aquifer" means a water-bearing 
formation that transmits water in sufficient quantities to supply a well. Soil borings 
completed above an aquifer must be abandoned according to the requirements of 
NDAC Chapter 33-18-02, Section 10 "Borehole and Monitoring Well Abandonment". 
Excavated or disturbed areas resulting from the use of alternative soil evaluation 
methods shall be filled with compacted soil to achieve permeability equal to or less than 
the surrounding geologic formation. 

Depending on site geology or facility location, the department may require additional 
soil borings or deeper borings to adequately characterize soil and ground water. 
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Additional borings may be required at sites with complex subsurface geology, such as 
sites with rapid transitions from fine to coarse-textured soil. 
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SECTION 5. DESIGN CRITERIA FOR MANURE SYSTEMS 

5.1. Objective 

The objective is to provide the requirements that must be met for manure handling 
systems at livestock facilities subject to department review. The manure handling 
systems should enhance the operation and management of the livestock facility by 
effectively moving manure and runoff from the production area of the livestock facility to 
properly designed storage areas, thus protecting water quality and air quality. The 
volume of manure stored should be minimized as much as possible, and manure 
should not be allowed to drain on to neighboring land. 

These design requirements are effective for all facilities with water pollution control 
structures that are constructed or updated after the effective date of NDAC Chapter 33-
16-03.1. 

5.2. Required Manure Storage 

Manure storage structures for animal facilities shall be designed to store all of the 
following: 

1 . The volume of manure, process wastewater and runoff produced in 270 days or 
during the time between dates when the storage structure can reasonably be 
emptied, whichever is longer. Operators of storage structures that allow 
evaporation can subtract the evaporation to be expected from the structure using 
regional and local evaporation rates. 

2. Rainfall on any open manure storage structure and runoff from open lots from a 
25-year, 24-hour rainfall event. Swine, chicken, turkey and veal calf facilities 
shall be designed to contain rainfall on the open manure storage structure and 
runoff from the production area due to a 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event. 

3. The volume of liquid or slurry that cannot be removed during pumping. 

4. The volume of solids accumulated from an open lot system. It is recommended 
that a solids separator be designed into these systems to extend pond life and 
minimize the chance of damage to the liner. 

For items 1 and 2, see attached Tables 1, 1A and 2. The volume of solids in item 4 
shall be determined by a suitable method or by the following: 

Slope of Lot 
0-3.9 percent 
4 -8 percent 
over 8 percent 
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Volume of Solids 
17 cubic yards per acre of lot 
50 cubic yards per acre of lot 
70 cubic yards per acre of lot 
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A marker shall be used to indicate the level at which the storage structure can contain 
the required storage volume, minus the rainfall and runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour 
rainfall event or a 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event for swine, chicken, turkey and veal 
calf facilities. When the liquid is above this marker, the level shall be lowered below 
this marker within a reasonable time period. Under normal weather conditions, this 
should occur within two weeks. In an earthen storage pond, a depth marker shall be 
installed in a manner not to jeopardize the integrity of the liner. 

Livestock facilities requiring permits under NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 and NDAC Chapter 
33-16-03.1 shall prevent the direct contact of animals at the production area with waters 
of the state to the extent applicable. 

To comply with state and federal dairy regulations, human sewage waste shall not be 
mixed in any way with livestock manure on dairy facilities. 

5.3. Earthen Storage Ponds 

An earthen storage pond holds manure, process wastewater and runoff from the 
production area of a livestock facility. Narrow or L-shaped earthen storage ponds 
should be avoided. Square, rectangular or round ponds are most desirable. 

Coverage under NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 or NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 and these 
standards does not preclude an owner or operator of a livestock facility from needing to 
comply with any other applicable federal, state and local requirements. 

5.3.1. Design Requirements 

The finished bottom of the earthen storage pond shall be a minimum of 2 feet above 
the seasonal high water table. In sensitive areas, greater separation distances may be 
required. 

Earthen storage pond designs shall include a minimum of 1 foot of freeboard above the 
minimum design storage volume level measured to the lowest level of the embankment 
or overflow structure. Manure storage ponds, which are in excess of 300 feet in length 
at the top liquid surface area, require a minimum of 2 feet of freeboard unless the 
manure storage pond is covered. 

Provisions shall be included to minimize solids entering the pond or to remove solids 
without damaging the liner or jeopardizing pond integrity. These can include, but are 
not limited to, solid separators or other methods to reduce the velocity so solids will 
settle out. 

The earthen storage pond shall meet the conditions for soil formation and liners in 
Section 5.3.3 to minimize seepage and prevent instability. 
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The facility shall be maintained to prevent erosion. 

5.3.2. Embankments for Ponds and Earthen Fill Material 

Embankments refer to the side walls of an earthen storage pond that are constructed 
using earthen fill material. The applicable construction requirements for earthen fill 
listed below also apply lo other components of the manure handling system, including 
clay liners, dikes, etc. 

1. Construction Requirements for Earth Fill 

a. Earth fill used in embankments, clay liners, dikes, etc. shall be relatively 
impervious material and sufficiently compacted to form a stable structure 
and minimize seepage. 

b. Frozen soil shall not be used in the construction of embankments, and 
such structures shall not be constructed on frozen soil. 

C. 

d. 

Final design height of embankments shall be increased by the amount 
needed to ensure the design top elevation will be maintained after settling. 
Designs shall use a minimum of 5 percent settlement at the center line of 
the embankment. 

Vegetation and organic material shall be removed from areas where the 
embankment or earth fill will be placed. The embankment shall be tied 
into the mineral soil to prevent seepage between the interface. This may 
include, but is not limited to, scarification of the mineral soil prior to 
construction and/or the use of a core trench. 

e. Organic material shall not be used in the embankment core construction; 
however, suitable topsoil that is free of debris may be used as cover 
material on the outer slopes of the embankment. 

f. The side slopes on the inside embankment of an earthen storage pond 
shall not be steeper than 2 horizontal:1 vertical. On the outside, the slope 
shall not be steeper than 3 horizontal:1 vertical. 

g. Top width of embankments shall be wide enough to be stable and permit 
access of maintenance vehicles. The top width of embankments shall be 
a minimum of 10 feet. 

h. Embankments shall be seeded from the outside toe to the high water line. 
Perennial type, low growing, spreading grasses that are erosion resistant 
and can be mowed are desirable. Alfalfa and other deep-rooted plants 
are not acceptable since the roots can impair the water-holding capacity 
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of the structure. 

5.3.3. Soil Formation and Liners 

The bottom and side slopes of earthen storage ponds shall be properly sealed to 
prevent excess seepage. This can be done by using a properly constructed clay liner, 
bentonite, a geosynthetic liner or other equivalent liner material. If a facility can meet 
the conditions specified in Sections 5.3.7 and 5.3.8, the in-situ soil may be acceptable 
for pond construction without an additional liner. 

Lined earthen storage ponds shall be designed to prevent impacts to waters of the state 
and designed such that seepage shall not exceed 1/16 inch per day at maximum 
operating depth over the life of the pond. In sensitive ground water areas, wellhead or 
source water protection areas, above glacial drift aquifers or in areas where manure 
from a pond is determined to be impacting waters, the department may require 
additional protective measures. 

Provisions shall be used to prevent or minimize drying and cracking of constructed clay 
liners. Protective measures, such as placing top soil or sandy soil over the clay liner or 
keeping a minimum liquid level in the pond, can be used. If a soil cover layer is used, 
precautions must be taken to prevent weed growth that could damage the liner (e.g., 
spraying for weeds or by maintaining a shallow-rooted grass on the soil cover). 
Removal of manure or process wastewater from an earthen storage pond shall be 
accomplished in a manner that does not jeopardize the integrity of the liner. 

5.3.4. Constructed Clay Liners 

Constructed clay liners shall meet the conditions in item 1 and the construction 
specifications listed in item 2. Laboratory tests of the soils used for the liner must be 
completed to determine the Atterberg limits and sieve analyses showing the grain sizing 
and proctor density of the soils. An additional sample shall be analyzed for every 5,000 
cubic yards and for every major soil change. These tests shall be provided to the 
department along with information on the locations where the soil samples were 
collected, including the depths at which the samples were collected. Management 
provisions must be specified to prevent the liner from drying and cracking. 

1. Required conditions for constructed clay liners are liquid limit of 30 percent or 
greater, a plasticity index greater than 10 (a range from 15 to 30 is preferable) 
and 30 percent or more (preferably 50 percent or more) of the liner material shall 
pass through a# 200 mesh screen, as tested by ASTM D-2487. 

2. Construction specifications for constructed clay liners: 

a. The liner shall be a minimum oi 2 feet thick after compaction; 
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b. To achieve the desired thickness. the liner shall be placed in equal layers 
or lifts that are approximately 6 inches thick after compaction; 

c. Parallel lifts shall be used for side slopes. However, in the event that side 
slopes are steeper than 3 horizontal:1 vertical, horizontal lifts shall be 
used; 

d. In some sensitive areas. the department may require a thicker liner 
material or additional construction; 

e. In situations that do not meet any of the conditions listed in Section 4.3.1, 
the minimum thickness of liner after compaction shall be 18 inches; 

f. Rocks greater than 3 inches in diameter shall be removed from the liner 
material prior to compaction; and 

g. The moisture content shall be in the range of 1 percent dry of optimum to 
3 percent wet of optimum. 

5.3.5. Testing of Constructed Clay Liners 

Constructed clay liners shall be tested to verify seepage. This can be done in one of 
three ways: 

1. Completing a remolded permeability test, indicating the material can meet the 
seepage limits. The liner construction must meet or exceed the proctor density 
used in the remolded permeability test, and the liner must undergo moisture and 
density testing during construction to ensure the construction specifications are 
met; 

2. Laboratory testing thin-walled tube samples of the liner; or 

3. Conducting an on-site seepage test of the liner. 

When the testing is done for permeability, Darcy's law can be used to determine the 
seepage rate at the maximum operating depth for a 24 or 18 inch liner, as appropriate. 

If a remolded permeability test is used, testing for compaction and moisture must be 
completed during construction of the liner on the pond bottom and side slopes using 
ASTM standard testing methods. Testing shall be done by the project engineer or a 
professional soil testing firm. Holes or punctures created in the liner due to testing, 
such as those from nuclear density testing, shall be filled with clay or bentonite after 
testing to prevent seepage. A minimum of fqur tests for the first acre of pond surface 
area must be completed on each lift for density and moisture. For each additional acre 
of liner, two additional tests must be completed on each lift for density and moisture. A 
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maximum of two lifts can be tested at one time. Tests shall be randomly distributed 
over the entire liner area. Ponds that are less than 1.5 acres at the full level shall 
include testing on at least two sidewalls, while ponds that are more than or equal to 1.5 
acres at the full level shall have testing on all four sidewalls. 

The department will evaluate the proposed liner testing specified in the design plan 
and, based on site conditions, may require additional testing as deemed appropriate. 

If permeability testing is performed on the constructed liner, it shall be conducted using 
either of the following methods: 

1. An on-site permeability test using standard ASTM methods; or 

2. Laboratory testing of thin-walled tube samples, provided proper ASTM methods 
of collection and testing are used. 

If thin-walled tube samples are collected, they must be taken at a rate of one tube per 
acre of pond surface area or a minimum of two tubes per pond, whichever is greater. 
Each sample shall be laboratory tested for permeability using an ASTM D5084 or 
equivalent ASTM testing method. Holes left in the liner from the thin-walled tube 
samples shall be filled with clay or bentonite and compacted to prevent seepage. If on­
site testing of the liner is proposed, the testing method and number of tests must be 
included in the design plans for departmental review. 

Depending on site-specific conditions, the department may require additional testing of 
a pond liner to ensure seepage limits are being met. 

5.3.6. In-situ Soils 

If the conditions at the site meet criteria listed in Sections 5.3.7 and 5.3.8, a liner may 
not be required. Laboratory tests of the in-situ soils must be completed to determine 
the Atterberg limits and sieve analyses showing the grain sizing. These tests must be 
provided to the department and include the location and depth of the soil samples. The 
department understands that soil borings of in-situ soils are typically field classified. 
The department will require this soil boring information; however, the laboratory tests 
are used to verify the classification of the soils. Depending on soil and site 
characteristics, the department may also require a permeability test. 

When required by the department, permeability testing shall be completed on the in-situ 
soils by: 

1. 

2. 

An on-site permeability test using standard ASTM methods; or 

Laboratory testing of thin-walled tube samples, provided proper ASTM methods 
of collection and testing are used. 
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• If thin-walled tube samples are collected, they must be taken at a rate of two tubes per 
acre of pond surface area or a minimum of three tubes per pond, whichever is greater. 

Each sample shall be laboratory tested for permeability using ASTM D-5084 or the 
equivalent. If on-site permeability tests are used, they shall be evenly distributed over 
the area of the liner. The type and number of tests must be specified in the design 
plans for review by the department. Holes left in the liner from the thin-walled tube 
samples shall be filled with compacted clay or bentonite. 

5.3.7. Manure Storage Ponds 

Manure storage pond refers to an earthen storage pond that stores liquid manure and 
process wastewater from indoor or roofed confined livestock facilities, not to a pond that 
stores only runoff from open lot livestock areas. 

A liner is required for manure storage ponds unless the in-situ soil material is adequate 
to prevent excess seepage. If a livestock facility with a manure storage pond can meet 
all of the following conditions, a liner may not be required: 

1. There is a continuous layer of soil classified as CL or CH (based on the Unified 
Soil Classification System), verified by laboratory testing using ASTM D-2487, 
below the manure storage pond bottom and side slopes. The soil layer must be 
at least 4 feet thick for ponds that hold up to 8 feet of manure, 6 feet thick for 
ponds that hold up to 1 O feet of manure or 8 feet thick for ponds that hold up to 
12 feet of manure; 

2. The site is not located in a sensitive groundwater area as defined by the 
department or in a delineated wellhead or source water protection area (see 
attached Figures 1 and 2); 

3. The volume of liquid manure to be stored at the production area, not including 
freeboard, is less than 2 million gallons (6 acre feet); 

4. The pond is inspected for coarse textured soil after excavation and before earth 
fill is put in place; and 

Any vegetation and organic material shall be removed from manure storage pond floors 
and side slopes up to the high water line, and the soil in the floor and side slopes must 
be scarified to a minimum depth of 6 inches and re-compacted to break up any 
fractures in the soil. 

If coarse textured soils are discovered during construction, they shall be removed and 
a 2-foot clay liner installed in the area where coarse textured soil was encountered. 
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i 5.3.8. Runoff Ponds 

Runoff ponds are earthen storage ponds that collect rain and runoff from open lot 
livestock facilities such as cattle feedlots. 

The bottom and side slopes of runoff ponds shall be properly sealed to prevent 
seepage. In general, facilities that meet all of the following criteria may be allowed to 
use in-situ soil material to prevent excess seepage without an additional liner: 

1. The site is not located in a sensitive groundwater area as defined by the 
department or in a delineated wellhead or source water protection area (see 
attached Figures 1 and 2); 

2. There is a continuous layer of soil classified as CL or CH based on the Unified 
Soil Classification System, verified by laboratory testing using ASTM D-2487, 
below the pond bottom and side slopes. The soil layer must be at least 4 feet 
thick for ponds that hold up to 8 feet of water, 6 feet thick for ponds that hold up 
to 10 feet of water and 8 feet thick for ponds that hold up to12 feet of water. 

If coarse textured soils are discovered during construction, they shall be removed and a 
2-foot clay liner installed in the area where the coarse textured soil was encountered .. 

5.3.9. Synthetic, Geosynthetic or Other Liners 

Synthetic, geosynthetic or other liners shall be installed according to manufacturer 
specifications. Synthetic liners shall not be used alone, but must be used in conjunction 
with a self-sealing liner material or a leak detection system to protect against seepage 
in the event of a tear or puncture. 

Minimum thickness for synthetic liner material: 

Type Minimum requirements 

HOPE 40 mill thickness 

LLDPE 40 mill thickness 

PVC 30 mill thickness 

GCL 0.75 pounds per square foot 

EPDM 45 mill thickness 

5.4. Non-earthen Manure Storage Structures 

Non-earthen structures used to store liquid or slurry manure are usually constructed of 
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reinforced concrete or fabricated steel with fused glass or plastic lining. 

The storage structures shall be designed to contain manure and accommodate 
equipment for loading, agitating and emptying. 

All seams or joints shall be properly sealed to prevent leaking. 

The storage structures shall be properly designed and constructed to: 

1. Withstand all anticipated structural loads applied; 

2. Prevent damage from livestock or maintenance equipment; and 

3. Safely prevent humans and livestock from entering. 

Steel and other corrodible material shall be covered with an adequate protective coating 
to prevent rust or corrosion. 

A minimum of 6 inches shall be provided for freeboard at the top of the tank structure. 
For larger structures, more freeboard may be required. 

Above-ground storage tanks shall have adequate footings extending below the 
anticipated frost depth. 

Above-ground storage tanks shall have a leak detection system installed below the 
structure. 

Tanks temporarily storing manure until ii is transferred to a larger storage structure 
should be designed for a minimum holding time of three days. 

5.4.1. Concrete Storage Tanks 

Concrete structures shall be properly designed and constructed to ensure adequate 
strength and stability, minimize cracking and prevent any leaks. Designs shall conform 
to accepted standards such as: 

1. Midwest Plan Service (MWPS-36) Concrete Manure Storage Handbook 
(1994 edition); 

2. American Concrete Institute Standards 318-89 (Rev. 1992) Building Code 
Requirements for Reinforced Concrete; or 

3. American Concrete Institute Standards 350R-89 and 350IR-93/AWWA (1994) 
Environmental Engineered Concrete Structures. 
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Storage tanks shall be designed to withstand all anticipated structural loads, including 
internal and external loads, hydrostatic uplift pressure, concentrated surface and impact 
loads, seasonal high water table pressure and frost or ice pressure. 

Covers, top slabs and slats shall be designed to support the maximum load which can 
be applied by the size and type of equipment to be used at the site.· In no case shall 
the live loading be less than 150 pounds per square foot. 

Designs for concrete manure storage tanks shall document the loadings the tanks were 
designed to withstand (e.g., lateral loads, surcharge loads and, if applicable, tank cover 
loads). If a publically available design standard was used, such as a MWPS standard, 
indicate the specific standard used in the design, and the site conditions that were 
considered in the design. 

5.4.2. Manure Stacking Facilities 

Manure stacking facilities refer to surfaces that are relatively impervious where solid or 
semisolid manure is stacked or stored. 

Handling manure in different phases may require a variety of designs to ensure all 
manure is stored. All runoff from the stacking facility shall be contained, and the 
structure shall be designed to prevent excess seepage. 

Manure stacking facilities shall be constructed of durable material and designed to 
withstand internal or external pressures including hydrostatic uplift loads and imposed 
surface loads. The structure shall be designed to accommodate equipment for loading 
and emptying. Floors shall be moderately sloped away from the entrance. 

5.5. Inlet, Outlet and Transfer Facilities 

Inlet, outlet and transfer facilities refer to piping, valving, pumps, mobile tanks or any 
other equipment used to move manure from one location to another. 

Equipment used for the transfer of manure shall be corrosion resistant and designed to 
protect against freezing and puncture from ice during winter conditions. 

Splash pads or aprons made of concrete or riprap shall be used to prevent erosion of 
pond liners at inlet structures. Splash pads shall have a surface area of no less than 6 
square feet. 

Transfer pipes shall be sloped to allow for good drainage without plugging and have 
clean-out ports every 200 feet and at all junctions, or other provisions to clear 
blockages. 

Provisions shall be made for backflow prevention, such as top loading into storage 
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structures or installing an air valve to prevent a siphon. Check valves used solely to 
prevent backflow shall not be used; however, they can be used in conjunction with other 
backflow prevention methods. 

Manure storage structures shall have provisions which allow for emptying the manure 
from the structure. This may include access ramps or ports and may also require 
platforms for equipment such as pumps or agitation equipment. Only piping that allows 
for transfer to manure storage, hauling or spreading equipment shall be allowed. 
Earthen storage ponds shall have provisions for emptying that will prevent damage to 
the liner. Driving of pumps and equipment directly on the liner is not acceptable. 

There shall be no outlet that can automatically release manure from the storage 
structure. Valves that are under pressure from manure storage structures shall be 
locked to prevent accidental discharge. 

5.6. Diversions 

Clean water diversions shall be used to ensure that clean water is diverted, as 
appropriate, from the production area (away from concentrated livestock areas and 
manure storage areas). 

Dirty water diversions are used to route manure laden water and runoff to containment 
structures, and shall be designed and constructed to prevent an exceedance of 
applicable water quality standards. 

Diversions shall be constructed of relatively impervious material and be adequately 
designed to form a stable structure. The diversion shall be designed to carry runoff 
from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event for the watershed that it drains and have, at a 
minimum, an additional 0.3 feet of freeboard. The ridge height of the diversion shall 
have a minimum settlement factor of 10 percent. The ridge shall have a minimum top 
width of 4 feet. 

Side slopes should not be steeper than 3 horizontal: 1 vertical, and slopes of 6 
horizontal: 1 vertical are recommended where diversions must be crossed with 
equipment. 

The channel grade shall be designed such that the velocity will not cause excess 
erosion for the type of soil and planned vegetation or lining. The maximum acceptable 
channel velocity shall range from 2 feet per second for sandy soils with no vegetation to 
3.5 feet per second for channels with high clay soils and vegetation. 

Proper maintenance shall be used to maintain the diversion·s ridge height, capacity, 
designed cross section, stabilizing vegetation and, if applicable, storage capacity. 
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5. 7. Water Spreading 

Water spreading systems are a method of containing and utilizing runoff from open lot 
livestock facilities. 

The water spreading system shall, at a minimum, be able to contain the anticipated 
runoff volume from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event. Nutrients in the runoff shall be 
utilized by the crops grown within the water spreading area. 

The nutrients in the runoff shall be evaluated based on sampling of the livestock lot 
runoff or on published values of nutrient concentration in runoff. These values can be 
found in sources such as the USDA NRCS Agricultural Waste Management Field 
Handbook, Table 4 -10a "Nitrogen Content of Cattle Feedlot Runoff." 

The soils within the water spreading area shall be sampled for nitrogen and 
phosphorous prior to installation of the system. Soils shall be sampled at a minimum of 
once every three years of operation to determine if there is an excess buildup of 
nutrients in the soil, and the records shall be maintained on file. 

If soils show a trend of high nutrient concentrations, or if ground water within the vicinity 
shows impacts attributable to the system, alternative measures to control the manure 
and runoff shall be implemented. 

Sites located in a sensitive ground water area (see attached Figure 1) will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis for water spreading systems. 

The system shall be designed to ensure: (1) the runoff is distributed over the water 
spreading area, and (2) nutrients are properly utilized. If the soils and topography are 
inadequate to ensure proper distribution of runoff and utilization of nutrients, the site is 
not acceptable. 

5.8. Other Methods of Manure Treatment or Manure Handling Systems 

Other methods of manure treatment or manure handling systems such as anaerobic 
lagoons, aerobic lagoons, anaerobic digesters, etc. will be reviewed on a case-by-case 
basis and based on industry standard specifications. The department shall be 
consulted on these systems prior to final design completion. 
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• SECTION 6. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 

6.1. Objective 

Livestock facilities requiring a permit pursuant to NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 and NDAC 
Chapter 33-16-03.1 shall be operated and maintained so they continue to operate as 
designed. Particular attention shall be paid to: (1) the handling and storage of manure 
and process wastewater, (2) measures to prevent the unplanned release of manure, 
and (3) dead animal disposal. Chemicals and other contaminants handled on site shall 
not be disposed of in any manure storage or treatment system, unless it is designed for 
that purpose. In addition, specific records shall be maintained to document the 
implementation and management of the minimum elements needed for operation. 

6.2. Required Operation, Maintenance and Inspections. 

1. CAFOs shall conduct the following routine visual inspections of the production 
area: 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

a. Weekly inspections of all storm water diversion devices, runoff diversion 
structures and devices channeling runoff to the manure storage structure; 

b. 

C. 

Daily inspection of water lines, including drinking water or cooling water 
lines; and 

Weekly inspections of the manure storage structures noting the level of 
liquid in the structure as indicated by the depth marker. 

All open manure storage structures shall: (1) maintain a depth marker which 
clearly indicates the minimum capacity necessary to contain the runoff and direct 
precipitation from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event, or (2) a depth maker which 
clearly indicates the minimum capacity necessary to contain the runoff and direct 
precipitation from a 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event for swine, chicken, turkey 
and veal calf operations constructed after the effective date of NDAC chapters 
33-16-01 and 33-16-01.1; 

Any deficiencies discovered during the inspections listed in item 1 above shall be 
corrected as soon as possible; 

Chemicals or other contaminants handled on site shall not be disposed of in a 
structure used for storage or treatment of manure, process wastewater or storm 
water unless it is specifically designed for that purpose; and 

The operator of a livestock facility requiring a permit under this chapter or under 
NDAC 33-16-01 should maintain a rain gauge at the production area and record 
measurable rainfall events. 
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• 6.3. Utilization of Manure Other Than Land Application 

1. If manure, litter or process wastewater is not land applied, it shall be either 
beneficially reused (e.g., as fuel for energy production, compost, etc.) or properly 
disposed of in a landfill. 

2. CAFOs shall keep records of how the manure, litter, or process wastewater was 
reused or disposed. The records shall include the date, location, volume of 
manure and the method of reuse or disposal. 

3. Manure is generally prohibited from being disposed of in a landfill; however, in 
certain circumstances, the department can allow for such disposal if the landfill 
owner agrees. 

6.4. Dead Animal Disposal 

Dead animals shall be disposed of in a manner acceptable to the Board of Animal 
Health and in accordance with NDCC Section 36-14-19 (attached). Dead animals shall 
be disposed of in areas that will not discharge into waters of the state and where they 
will not detrimentally impact air quality. Dead animals shall not be disposed of in any 
structure used to store or treat liquid manure, process wastewater, or storm water 
unless the department-approved system is designed for such a purpose. 

6.5. Records Required to be Maintained 

Each CAFO shall maintain on site complete copies of the information listed below and a 
copy of the most current nutrient management plan. These documents shall be made 
available to departmental personal upon request. This information shall be maintained 
for a period of five years from the date created. The CAFO must make the following 
records available to the department for review upon request: 

1. Records documenting the visual inspections (Section 6.2.1 ); 

2. Weekly records of the depth of the manure and process wastewater in the liquid 
manure storage structure as indicated by the depth gauge in the storage 
structure; 

3. Records documenting any actions taken to correct deficiencies (Section 6.2.3). 
Deficiencies not corrected within 30 days must be accompanied by an 
explanation of the factors preventing immediate correction; 

4. Records of mortalities management and practices used (Section 6.4 ); 

5. Records documenting the current design of any manure storage structures, 
including solids accumulation volume, design treatment volume, total design 
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volume and the approximate number of days of storage capacity; 

6. Records of the date, time and estimated volume of any overflow; and 

7. Records documenting the land application of manure (Section 7.7). 

6.6. Annual Reporting Requirements 

The owner/operator of a CAFO shall submit an annual report to the department which 
includes: 

1. The number and type of animals whether in open lots or confined under roof 
(beef cattle, broilers, layers, swine weighing 55 pounds or more, swine weighing 
less than 55 pounds, mature dairy cows, dairy heifers, veal calves, sheep and 
lambs, horses, ducks, turkeys, other); 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

6.7. 

Estimated amount of total manure generated in the previous 12 months 
(tons/gallons); 

Estimated amount of total manure transferred to another party in the previous 12 
months (tons/gallons); 

Total number of acres for land application covered by the Nutrient Management 

Plan; c· 
Total number of acres under control of the facility that were used for land 
application of manure in the previous 12 months; 

Summary of all manure discharges from the production area that have occurred 
in the previous 12 months including date, time and approximate volume; and 

A statement indicating whether the current version of the Nutrient Management 
Plan was developed or approved by a certified nutrient management planner. 

Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Plans and Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) 

Operation and maintenance plans mean a written description of the equipment, 
methods and schedules for: (1) inspection, monitoring. operation and maintenance of 
the animal feeding operation (manure storage structures, water pollution control 
structures and the production area); and (2) controlling water pollution and air pollution 
including odors sufficient to protect the environment and public health. Standard 
operating procedures are instructions indicating the proper manner to complete a 
specific task. · 
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1. CAFOs shall have written O&M plans for routine maintenance and inspections of 
the livestock manure handling system. These shall include, but are not limited 
to, manure storage structures, diversions, water pollution control structures, and 
transfer and land application equipment. 

General site inspections should note any areas where seepage, erosion, rodent 
infestation or degradation may be occurring at all livestock manure handling 
system structures, diversions, and transfer and land application equipment. 

The plans shall describe how manure will be sampled and tested. 

2. The department may specify that a facility have written SOPs for other situations 
related to the proper operation of the manure handling system. The department 
may require SOPs for activities where a specific protocol is needed to ensure 
good quality or timely results, such as sampling or testing; or for situations where 
a facility has had problems or compliance issues due to lack of maintenance or 
improper operation. If required by the department, these SOPs may include, but 
are not limited to: 

a. The sampling and testing of any water wells or monitoring wells; 

b. 

C. 

Any testing necessary to determine if manure may be impacting waters of 
the state: and 

Any emergency procedures for an unplanned release of manure including 
an overflow or breach of a manure storage structure. 

3. When required to be completed, SOPs shall include the following information: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

A description of the planned action: 

The equipment needed for each action and its availability: 

The frequency each action will be performed; 

Scheduled downtime for the facility, if any; and 

Any necessary prior arrangements with contractors. 
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SECTION 7. NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS 

7 .1. Objective 

The objective of the Nutrient Management Plan is to ensure livestock manure, including 
bedding, litter, waste .feed and process wastewater, and runoff from livestock areas is 
land applied to crop or grass land at a rate the nutrients will be utilized by the vegetation 
grown. The manure shall be handled in a manner so as not to impact waters of the 
state, exceed air quality standards while it is stored on site, and minimize odors to 
residences or public areas during land application. 

The department understands the Nutrient Management Plan is based on estimated 
realistic yield goals which can vary depending on weather conditions. Manure and soil 
sampling as well as record keeping, are necessary to verify proper land application of 
manure. 

7 .2. General Conditions 

1. Manure, process wastewater and runoff shall be collected and stored in such a 
manner that it will not: 

a. 

b. 

Drain into surface waters, including lakes, streams, ditches, channels or 
other waterways that convey concentrated water flow; 

Detrimentally impact groundwater; or 

c. Cause air quality violations. 

Manure collection and storage shall comply with the design requirements of 
Section 5. 

2. Manure shall be transported in a manner where it will not leak or spill on to public 
roads or into areas where it could enter surface or ground water. 

3. Manure shall be land applied at rates where the nutrients will be used by the 
crop grown. Land application shall not impact waters of the state and 
precautions shall be used to minimize odors to residences or public areas where 
people may be present. 

7.3. Nutrient Management Plan Information 

Facilities requiring a Nutrient Management Plan pursuant to NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 or 
NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 shall include the following information in their current 
Nutrient Management Plan: 
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1. The type of livestock, number of days per year they are on site, an estimate of 
the volume of manure generated, and the information on which the estimate was 
based; 

2. A description of the manure handling at the facility, including how often manure 
is cleaned from the livestock areas and how and where manure may be 
temporarily stored; 

3. An aerial photograph/map and a soil map of the site where manure is to be 
applied; 

4. Fields where manure will be applied during frozen conditions shall be identified; 

5. Current and/or planned plant production sequence or crop rotation; 

6. Complete nutrient budget for nitrogen and phosphorous for the rotation or crop 
sequence that considers all potential sources of these nutrients; 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

Results of soil, plant, water, manure or organic by-product sample analysis. 
Nutrient planning shall be based on current soil and manure test results and 
developed in accordance with NDSU Extension Service guidance. Soil and 
manure tests are considered current if they are no older than three years for 
livestock facilities that require a Nutrient Management Plan or one year for 
CAFOs; 

Quantify all nitrogen and phosphorus sources; 

Recommended nitrogen and phosphorous rates, timing, method of application 
and incorporation; 

The form of manure (liquid or solid) and the expected frequency of land 
application; 

Location of sensitive areas or resources such as water ways, drainage ways, 
wellhead or source water protection areas, high water table areas, residences or 
public areas and the associated manure-handling or nutrient management 
restrictions; 

Guidance for implementation, operation, maintenance and record keeping; 

A field-specific assessment of the potential for nitrogen and phosphorous 
transport from the field to surface waters. The assessment shall address the 
form, source, amount, timing and method of application of nutrients on each field 
to achieve realistic production goals, while minimizing nitrogen and phosphorous 

. movement to surface waters; 
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14. Precautions that will be used to prevent manure from impacting surface water, 
( . 

exceeding air quality standards while it is stored on site, and causing excess 
\, 

odors to nearby residences or public areas when manure is land applied; 

15. A description of the land application manure records that will be maintained to 
document the minimum Nutrient Management Plan requirements are met; 

16. Realistic yield goals for the crops in the rotation. These goals shall be 
established based on soil productivity information and historic yield data from the 
farm land or county wide average. If the yield goal exceeds NDSU Extension 
Service or NRCS recommendations or is 20 percent higher than county record or 
historical crop yield data, the reasons for the increased yield goal shall be 
documented. For new crops or varieties, industry yield recommendations may 
be used until documented yield information is available in the area of the facility; 

17. BMPs implemented to manage nutrients as efficiently and effectively as possible; 
and 

18. The name of the individual who developed the Nutrient Management Plan and 
the organization with which he/she is affiliated. 

7.4. Sampling and Testing of Manure and Soil 

- 1. Soil samples shall be collected and prepared according to NDSU Extension ('',\ 
Service guidance. Laboratories shall use testing procedures accepted by NDSU ' ---
to perform soil sample analyses. 

2. Soil testing shall include analyses for soil organic matter, nitrogen, and 
phosphorous. If there is concern about heavy metals or salts, the department 
may require testing of the soil for these materials. 

3. Manure samples shall be collected and prepared according to N DSU Extension 
Service guidance or industry standard methods, as approved by the department. 
Manure testing shall include analyses for nitrogen, ammonia, and phosphorous. 

4. If the operator uses feed or feed additives with high concentrations of salts or 
heavy metals, the department may require the manure be tested for these 
materials. The same is true if there is a reasonable expectation that the manure 
might contain elevated salts, metals or other potentially harmful materials. 

5. Manure to be land applied shall be sampled from each manure storage structure 
that holds manure from separate types of livestock or from similar types of 
livestock in different phases of growth. 

6. Livestock facilities identified by the department as needing nutrient management 

• 46 

l 



• plans shall have their manure and the soil where manure is being applied tested 
in accordance with items 1-5 once every three years. CAFOs shall have their 
manure and the soil where manure is being applied tested in accordance with 
items 1-5 each year. 

7.5. Application Rates to Meet Nutrient Requirements 

1. The manure application rate shall not exceed the recommendations for nitrogen 
and phosphorous based on either the North Dakota Phosphorous Index (Pl), as 
developed by the NRCS, or NDSU Extension Service recommendations based 
on soil testing. 

2. The Pl allows manure and other sources of nutrients to be applied at rates to 
meet the nitrogen needs of a crop if the Pl rating is low or medium. If the Pl is 
high, ii allows manure and other sources of nutrients to be applied at rates to 
meet the phosphorous removal in the crop biomass. If the Pl is very high, it 
requires that no manure be applied to that field. Manure shall not be applied to 
fields where the soil test phosphorous exceeds 125 parts per million (ppm) (250 
lbs per acre). 

3. Manure and other sources of nitrogen must not be applied at rates that exceed: 

a. 

b. 

The recommended nitrogen application rate during the year of application; 
or 

The estimated nitrogen removal in harvested plant biomass for legumes 
during the year of application. 

4. Nutrient Management Plans shall contain a field-specific assessment of the 
potential for nitrogen and phosphorous transport from the field. The assessment 
for phosphorous can be done using the phosphorous screening tool and soil 
tests, or the Pl assessment. 

5. If sewage sludge is applied, the accumulation of potential pollutants (including 
arsenic, cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, nickel, mercury, selenium and zinc) 
in the soil shall be monitored in accordance with 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations, Parts 403 and 503, and any applicable state and local laws or 
regulations. 

7.6. Precautions to Prevent Surface Water and Air Quality Impacts 

1. When land applying manure, the operator shall use reasonable judgment and 
take adequate precautions to prevent surface water impacts and minimize odors 
to nearby residences and public areas. Land application shall not occur during 
rainfall events, except to prevent the catastrophic failure of a storage structure. 
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- 2. On land controlled by the operator, manure shall not be applied closer than 100 
(·-··, 

feet to any down-gradient surface waters, open tile line intake structures, 
\-: 

sinkholes, agricultural well heads or other conduits to surface waters, unless: 

a. A 35-foot wide vegetated buffer on which there are no applications of 
manure is used; 

b. The facility's owner/operator demonstrates that a setback or buffer is not 
necessary because implementation of alternative conservation practices 
or field-specific conditions will provide pollutant reductions equal to or 
greater than the reductions achieved by the 100-foot setback. 

3. When irrigating with manure or process wastewater, the application rate s.hall not 
exceed the estimated soil infiltration rate, or the nutrient requirements of the 
crop. Irrigation application rates shall be adjusted to avoid significant ponding of 
manure or process waste water in surface depressions or seasonal drainage 
ways. 

4. Manure shall be injected or incorporated within eight hours if applied within 1 /2 
mile of an occupied residence (other than the owner's residence), building or 
public area where people may be present. The operator shall be required to 
inject or incorporate the manure into the soil if manure is applied in a manner 

- such that it causes an odor reading, for two or more days within a 10-day period, (=,,, 
(as measured with a scentometer) of 7 or greater within 100 feet of an occupied ·, 
residence, building or public area. A plan to minimize excess odors will be 

) 

'...__...-
required before future application of manure in this area. 

5. Manure shall not be applied to frozen, snow covered or saturated soils if there is 
a likelihood of runoff. However, manure can be land applied during frozen 
conditions provided ii is applied on land where runoff is contained and does not 
drain off during spring runoff. The department recommends operators consider 
land with slopes of less than 6 percent, where there is stubble or vegetative 
cover and less than 8 inches of snow on the ground surface. Conservation 
measures such as terraces, contour strips and reduced tillage effective at 
reducing runoff. 

6. When manure is being land applied, the equipment operator shall periodically 
inspect equipment for leaks. This shall be done daily for trucks or tanks used to 
handle solid or liquid manure. For an umbilical cord system or irrigation system, 
a measurement device shall be used to continuously check pressure so leaks 
can be found and pumps shut down immediately. 

7.7. Record Retention 

1, Owners/operators of livestock facilities requiring a permit pursuant to N DAC 

• 
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2. 

3. 

Chapter 33-16-01 and NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1 shall maintain on site a copy of 
the Nutrient Management Plan, the facility design plan for the manure handling 
system and any other required information listed in items 2, 3 and 4 below. The 
plan and information shall be available to the department for review upon 
request. 

CAFOs shall maintain complete copies of the following information on site for a 
minimum of five years from the date they are created: 

a. The crops grown and expected realistic crop yields; 

b. The date(s) manure, litter or process waste water is applied to each field; 

c. Weather conditions at time of application and for 24 hours prior to and 
following application; 

d. Test methods used to sample and analyze manure, litter, process 
wastewater and soil; 

e. Results from the annual testing of the manure, litter, and process 
wastewater, and annual soil sample results for land where manure was 
applied that year; 

f. An explanation of how the manure application rates were determined in 
accordance with the standards established by the department; 

g. Calculations showing the total nitrogen and phosphorus to be applied to 
each field, including sources other than manure, litter or process 
wastewater; 

h. Total amount of nitrogen and phosphorus actually applied to each field, 
including documentation of calculations for the total amount applied; 

i. The method used to apply the manure, litter or process wastewater; 

j. Inspection of manure application equipment including method, frequency, 
dates and repairs made if leaks were found; and 

k. Setbacks, vegetated buffers or other alternative practices used when land 
applying manure near surface water or potential conduits to surface water. 

If manure is transferred from a CAFO to other persons or entities not associated 
with the facility, the following conditions shall apply, and records shall be 
maintained: 
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a. Owners/operators shall provide the recipient of the manure, litter or 
process wastewater with the most current nutrient analysis prior to 
transfer; 

b. The analysis provided shall be consistent with the requirements of Section 
7.4; and 

c. The owners/operators of the CAFO shall retain records for five years after 
the transfer date documenting the recipient's name and address, the 
approximate amount of manure transferred, and the date the manure was 
transferred. 

4. A livestock facility which is not a CAFO and requires departmental review under 
N DAG Chapter 33-16-03.1, shall maintain complete copies of the following 
information on site for a minimum of three years from the date created: 

a. The crops grown and realistic crop yields; 

b. The date(s) and rates manure, litter or process wastewater is applied to 
each field; 

C . Test results of manure, litter, and process wastewater, that are not more 
than three years old, and test results of the soil where manure was 
applied that are not more than three years old; 

d. Setbacks, vegetated buffers or other alternative practices used when land 
applying manure near surface water or potential conduits to surface water. 

7.8. Back-flow Prevention 

Irrigation equipment used to apply manure shall have back-flow prevention to stop 
manure from siphoning back into the irrigation source water. 
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SECTION 8. GROUND WATER MONITORING 

8.1. Objective 

The department may require ground water monitoring at livestock facilities to: 

1. Define the hydrogeologic characteristics of the site (e.g., ground water elevation, 
ground water flow direction, ground water quality); and 

2. Evaluate potential impacts to ground water quality resulting from the facility's 
operations. 

Questions regarding ground water sampling can be directed to the department. 
Additional information regarding well installation and ground water sampling is 
presented in the department's Guidelines for Installing Ground Water Monitoring Wells 
at Confined Livestock Facilities (North Dakota Department of Health, July 2001 ). 

8.2. Ground Water Monitoring Program for Livestock Facilities 

The department may require a ground water monitoring program be implemented for 
livestock facilities that meet any of the conditions listed in Section 4.3.1 and at sites 
where alternative manure-handling systems are used in lieu of containment ponds or 
structures (e.g., water spreading systems). 

8.3. Ground Water Monitoring Plan 

Facilities requiring ground water monitoring shall submit a Ground Water Monitoring 
Plan (GWMP) to the department for review and approval prior to commencement of 
animal feeding operations. The GWMP shall describe the proposed well locations, the 
SOPs that will be followed during well installation and sampling and the proposed 
analytical program. 

8.4. Well Location and Installation 

A ground water monitoring network for a livestock facility consists of wells on or near 
the site from which water samples can be collected to determine ground water 
elevation, flow direction and quality. The ground water monitoring network shall consist 
of a minimum of three wells. Generally, one well shall be located up gradient, and two 
wells shall be located down gradient of the facility's livestock and manure storage 
structures. Additional monitoring points may be required by the department to detect 
any changes in water quality resulting from a facility's operations. 

All ground water monitoring wells shall be installed by a state-certified monitoring well or 
water well contractor and shall be constructed in accordance with NDAC Chapter 33-
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18-02 (Ground Water Monitoring Well Construction Requirements). All monitoring wells 
shall be surveyed at: 

1. The elevation of the ground surface at the well locations; 

2. The elevations of the top of the well casing; and 

3. The well locations in relation to each other and any livestock manure storage 
areas. 

The elevation data shall either be reported in feet above mean sea level or referenced 
to an arbitrary site benchmark. 

With prior department approval, ground water monitoring can be conducted by using 
existing on-site wells that supply water to the facility, provided information is available to 
evaluate whether or not the wells were constructed in a manner that will accomplish the 
objectives of this section. 

8.5. Ground Water Monitoring Frequency and Sampling Parameters 

8.5.1. Sample Frequency 

To evaluate the background water quality for new facilities, a minimum of two sampling 
events shall be conducted prior to commencement of facility operations and on-site 
storage of livestock manure. A sampling event consists of one sample collected from 
each ground water monitoring well. The sampling events should be conducted at least 
two weeks apart, if feasible. 

The ground water monitoring wells shall be sampled a minimum of two times per year 
while the facility is operating. The department may require more frequent sampling if 
necessary. For example, additional sampling may be required at sites located within a 
sensitive ground water area, when the wells are initially installed at a site (to determine 
background water quality) or when sample results indicate the facility may be impacting 
ground water. The department may specify the months during which sampling shall be 
done. 

Following two years of monitoring, the department may consider reducing the sampling 
frequency if requested by the owner. The department will evaluate all ground water 
monitoring data prior to making such a determination. 

8.5.2. Ground Water Sample Collection Procedures 

Ground water samples shall be collected following department-approved SOPs, which 
include implementation of appropriate quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC) 
practices. The SOPs will be implemented to minimize the potential for cross-
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contamination of monitoring wells, ensure the collection of a representative ground 
water sample, and establish a chain of custody to maintain sample integrity during 
transportation to a laboratory. 
8.5.3. Required Analysis 

Ground water samples shall be analyzed by a laboratory certified by the department's 
Division of Chemistry. At a minimum, all samples shall be analyzed for: 

1. Nitrate plus nitrite as nitrogen; 

2. Ammonia; 

3. Total kjeldahl nitrogen; 

4. Chloride; 

5. Sulfate; and 

6. Laboratory specific conductance. 

Additional parameters may be required by the department, based on site 
characteristics, facility operations and the locations of potential ground water receptors. 

8.6. Data Reporting Requirements 

Data that is required by the department shall be submitted to the North Dakota 
Department of Health, Division of Water Quality, 1200 Missouri Avenue, Bismarck, ND 
58506-5520. 

8.6.1. Well Completion Report 

Well logs and completion data shall be submitted to the department on monitoring well 
report forms provided by the State of North Dakota Board of Water Well Contractors. A. 
map indicating the surveyed locations of the wells shall also be included. Well 
elevation data can be included on the map or submitted in tabular format. 

8.6.2. Ground Water Sample Data 

All ground water sampling data shall be reported to the department by the last day of 
the month following the month the samples were collected. For example, if the samples 
were collected in March, the results shall be submitted to the department by April 30. 
The ground water sampling data submitted to the department shall include, but is not 
limited to: 
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2. 

3. 

A map showing well locations; 

Depth to ground water data; 

Well sampling forms; 

4. A discussion of any deviation from the approved GWMP; and 

5. Laboratory analytical reports (including laboratory QA/QC documentation). 

8.7. Action Limits 

The department has established two types of action limits for potential impacts to 
groundwater. They are "increased monitoring action limit" and "maximum level action 
limit. " 

8. 7 .1. Definition of Established Action Limits 

The "increased monitoring action limit" is 5 milligrams per liter above the average of the 
background samples for any of the following parameters: ammonia, total kjeldahl 
nitrogen and nitrate plus nitrite as nitrogen. The "increased monitoring action limit" for 
chloride or sulfate is 50 percent above the average of the background samples for 
either parameter. 

The "maximum level action limit" is reached when three consecutive sample results are 
10 milligrams per liter above the average of the background samples for ammonia and 
total kjeldahl nitrogen, or when three consecutive sample results are 10 milligrams per 
liter, or greater, for nitrate plus nitrite as nitrogen. 

8. 7 .2. Exceedance of Established Action Limits 

If a sample result from the monitoring wells exceeds any action limit, the department 
shall be notified by telephone within 48 hours. A written response shall be sent to the 
department within five working days. At a minimum, the information provided to the 
department shall. include: 

1. Completed well data sampling form; 

2. Analytical results; 

3. Description of monitoring well condition; 

4. Date and time of sample collection; and 
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5. The name of the laboratory completing the analysis. 

If one sample result of a groundwater monitoring well exceeds the increased monitoring 
action limit, an additional sample from that well shall be taken within 30 days. The 
department may also require samples from other wells. If three consecutive sample 
results exceed the increased monitoring action limit, the facility shall, within 30 days of 
the last sample date, submit for department approval a plan to locate the source and 
determine the extent of contamination. This plan shall include a proposed lime 
schedule from start to finish. The assessment shall be conducted by a person or 
consulting firm experienced in comprehensive environmental impact assessments. 

If the contamination source is determined to be at the. facility site, a plan shall be 
developed to stop or reduce the contamination from impacting ground water. The plan 
shall also include a time schedule for implementation. This plan must be approved by 
the department and be submitted within 60 days of determining the source of 
contamination. 

If the maximum level action limit is reached, the department may require the facility to 
remove all manure from the area which has been determined to be the source of 
contamination. The department may also require that no additional manure be placed 
in this area until steps have been taken to upgrade the facility and mitigate the source 
of contamination. This upgrade must be approved by the department. 

8.8. Treatment of Contamination and Closure of Site 

If a facility is causing contamination to ground water, the department may require 
remediation. · 

If a facility will be closed, the owner/operator shall submit to the department a plan 
outlining the steps to close the facility in an environmentally safe manner. 

8.9. Record Retention 

All records pertaining to ground water monitoring shall be kept on file for five years. 
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SECTION 9. CORRECTIVE ACTIONS FOR AN UNPLANNED RELEASE OF 
MANURE 

9.1. Objective 

The objective of this section is to identify the corrective actions that should be initiated 
to protect waters of the state in the event of an unplanned release of manure. An 
unplanned release is manure that is released to the environment in a manner which is 
not identified in the Nutrient Management Plan for proper handling of manure and which 
exceeds the rate of nutrient uptake by plants. This shall include manure that is spilled 
from manure storage areas or transfer equipment on or off the production area or land 
application area. Also included will be any release of manure impacting ground water 
and resulting in an exceedance of established action levels. 

9.2. Unplanned Release of Manure to Ground Surface 

If there is an unplanned release of manure on to the ground surface, the following 
priorities shall be followed in addressing and cleaning up the release: 

1. 

2 .. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Protect individuals from the loss of life or health; 

Prevent manure from reaching waters of the state; 

Contain manure until it can be properly utilized or disposed of; 

Properly utilize or dispose of the manure; and 

Clean and restore the release area as needed. 

9.3. Emergency Action Plan 

If directed by the department, a livestock facility shall develop an emergency action plan 
to address the unplanned release of waste. The plan shall include the SOPs for actions 
to take in the event of an unplanned release of manure from the storage area or 
transport equipment. The SOPs shall follow the priorities listed in Section 9.2 and 
include the following information: 

1. The general locations where an unplanned release of manure is most likely to 
occur; 

2. A description of the action to be taken; 

3. The equipment needed for each action and its availability; 
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4. The names and addresses of contractors or individuals who may have 
equipment needed; 

5. Any necessary prior arrangements that have been made or need to be made 
with contractors or equipment owners; and 

6. The names and addresses of people who may need to be notified such as down 
stream land owners, contacts for down stream communities or public areas, local 
law enforcement agency, fire department, ambulance, emergency management 
and the department. 

9.4. Department Notification of Unplanned Release of Manure 

If manure is released where it could directly reach surface or ground water and exceed 
established action levels, or if the release could endanger human health or the 
environment, the department shall be notified as soon as possible but within 24 hours. 
Notification shall be made by calling 701-328-5210 during normal working hours or by 
calling the Division of Emergency Management at 1-800-472-2121 during non-working 
hours (including weekends and holidays). 

Notification to the department shall include: date, time, location, volume of manure 
released and actions taken to contain, utilize or properly dispose of the manure. A 
written report with the above information shall also be submitted to the department 
within five days of the release, along with a description of the actions taken to prevent a 
similar release in the future. 

An unplanned release of manure may require an assessment to determine if the 
release could endanger human health or the environment. Contact the department, the 
local health unit or the county emergency manager for assistance. 

If the volume of manure released will not directly impact waters of the state and does 
not pose an immediate danger to human health or the environment, the department 
does not need to be notified; however, records must be kept of the release. 

9.5. Record Retention 

If there is an unplanned release of manure from a livestock facility which requires a 
permit under NDAC Chapter 33-16-01 or NDAC Chapter 33-16-03.1, records shall be 
kept which document the date, time, location, volume of manure released, and the 
action taken to contain the release, properly utilize or dispose of the manure and clean 
the site. The records shall be kept on site for a minimum of 3 years for AFOs and 5 
years for CAFOs. CAFOs shall submit this information for each release to the 
department as a part of the annual report. 
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• NDCC CHAPTER 36-14 

CONTAGIOUS AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES GENERALLY 

36-14-19. Disposition of carcass of animal dying from contagious or Infectious disease. 

Any animal which is found dead must be presumed to have died from a contagious or infectious disease 

until the contrary is shown unless another cause of death is apparent. The owner or person in charge of 

any domestic animal or nontraditional livestock which dies within this state from or on account of any 

contagious or infectious disease shall dispose of the carcass of such animal as follows: 

1. If the animal died of anthrax, as determined by a licensed veterinarian, the carcass must 

be completely burned at the place where it died if possible. If the carcass must be 

moved, it may not be dragged over the ground but must be moved only on a suitable 

conveyor and all body openings in the carcass must be plugged with cotton saturated with 

a strong antiseptic solution. 

2. If the carcass is of a hog which died from hClg cholera or swine erysipelas, the same, with 

hide intact, must be burned within thirty-six hours or given to a licensed rendering plant 

within such time. 

3. If the carcass is of an animal which has died of a disease other than is specified in 

subsections 1 and 2, or from any other cause, it must be burned, buried, composted, or 

given to a licensed rendering plant within thirty-six hours, or must be disposed of by a 

method approved by the state veterinarian. If the carcass is buried, it must be buried not 

less than four feet [1.22 meters] below the surface of the ground and covered with dirt to 

that depth. No carcass may be disposed of along any public highway or along any 

stream, lake, or river nor buried near or adjoining any such place. 

The State Veterinarian and the Board of Animal Health can be contacted at 701-328-

2655 
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TABLE 1 

Rainfall and Runoff for 25-Year, 24-Hour Sto~ in North Dakota 

Rainfall Runofllnjnche§ Rainfall Runoffi□ loches 
Unpaved PaVed Unpaved Paved 

County (Inches) l,lil Lot CounlY (lnc□es} Lot Lot 

Adams (3.6) 2.5 3.0 Mercer (3.6) 2.5 3.0 

Barnes (4.0) 2.9 3.4. Morton (3. 7) 2.6 3.1 

Benson (3.8) 2.7 3.2 Mountrail (3.6) 2.5 · 3.0 

Billings (3.5) 2.5 2.9 Nelson (3.9) 2.8 3.3 

Bottineau (3. 7) 2.6 3.1 Oliver ( 3. 7) 2.6 3.1 

Bowman (3.5) 2.5 - 2.9 Pembina (3.9) 2.6 3.3 

Burke (3.5) 2.5 2,9 Pierce (3.7) 2.6 3.1 

Burleigh (3.8) 2.7 3.2 Ramsey (3.8) 2.7 3.2 

Cass (4.1) 3.0 3.5 Ransom (4.1) 3.0 3.5 

Cavalier (3.8) 2.7 3.2 Renville (3.6) · 2.5 3.0 

Dickey (4.1) 3.0 3.5 Richland (4.2) 3.1 3.6 

\. Divide (3.5) 2.5 2.9 Rolette (3.7) 2.6 3.1 

Dunn (3.6) 2.5 3.0 Sargent (4.2) 3.1 3.6 

Eddy (3.8) 2.7 3.2 Sheridan (3.7) 2.6 3.1 

Emmons (3,9) 2.8 3.3 Sioux (3.8) 2.7 3.2 

Foster (3.9) 2,8 3.3 Slope (3.5) 2.5 2.9 

Golden Valley (3.5) 2.5 2.9 Stark (3.6) 2.5 3.0 

Grand Forks (3.9) 2.8 3.3 Steele (4.0) 2.9 3.4 

Grant (3.7) 2.6 3.1. Stutsman (3.9) 2.8 3.3 

Griggs (3.9) 2.8 3.3 ~owner (3.8) 2.7 3.2 

Hettinger {3.6) 2.5 3.0 Traill (4.0) 2.9 3.4 

Kidder (3.8) 2.7 3.2 Walsh (3.9) 2.8 3.3 

LaMoure (4.0) 2.9 3.4 Word (3.6) 2.5 3.0 

Logan (3.9) 2.8 3.3 Wells (3.8) 2.7 3.2 

McHenry (3.7) 2.6 3. 1 Williams (3.5) 2.5 2.9 

Mcintosh (4.0) 2.9 3.4 

McKenzie (3.5) 2.5 2.9 

McLean (3.7) 2.6 3.1 

ND651.10(o) 

(210-vi-AWMFH, ND Supplement 651.10, July 2003) 

59 



- TABLE 1A 
c~-

' 
Rainfall and Runoff for 100-Year, 24-Hour Storm In North Dakota 

Runoff in Inches Runoff in Inches 

Rainfall Unpaved Paved Rainfall Unpaved- Paved 

County in Inches Lot ---1EL. County in Inches Lot ---1EL. 

Adams 4.6 3.5 4.0 McLean 4.7 3.6 4.1 

Barnes 5.1 4.0 4.5 Mercer 4.7 3.5 4.1 

Benson 4.8 3.7 4.2 Morton 4.7 3.6 4.1 

Billings 4.5 3.4 3.9 Mountrail 4.6 3.5 4.0 

Bottineau 4.7 3.6 4.1 Nelson 4.9 3.8 4.4 

Bowman 4.5 3.4 3.9 Oliver 4.7 3.6 4.1 

Burke 4.6 3.4 4.0 Pembina 4.9 3.8 4.3 

Burleigh 4.8 3.7 4.2 Pierce . 4.8 3.6 4.2 

Cass 5.2 4.1 4.6 Ramsey 4.9 3.7 4.3 

Cavalier 4.8 3.7 4.3 Ransom 5.2 4.1 4.6 

Dickey 5.2 4.0 4.6 Renville 4.6 3.5 4.0 

• Divide 4.5 3.4 3.9 Richland 5.4 4.3 4.8 C. Dunn 4.6 3.5 4.0 Rolette 4.7 3.6 4.2 

Eddy 4.9 3.8 4.3 Sargent 5.3 4.2 4.7 

Emmons 4.9 3.8 4.3 Sheridan 4.8 3.7 4.2 

Foster 4.9 3.8 4.4 Sioux 4.8 3.7 4.2 

Golden Valley 4.4 3.3 3.9 Slope 4.5 3.4 3.9 

Grand Forks 5.0 3.9 4.4 Stark 4.6 3.5 4.0 

Grant 4.7 3.6 4.1 Steele 5.3 4.2 4.7 

Griggs 5.0 3.9 4.4 Stutsman 5.0 3.9 4.4 

Hettinger 4.6 3.5 4.0 Towner 4.8 3.7 4.2 

Kidder 4.9 3.7 4.3 Traill 5.1 4.0 4.5 

LaMoure 5.1 4.0 4.5 Walsh 4.9 3.8 4.3 

Logan 5.0 3.9 4.4 Ward 4.7 3.5 4.1 

McHenry 4.7 3.6 4.1 Wells 4.8 3.7 4.2 

McIntosh 5.0 3.9 4.4 Williams 4.5 3.4 3.9 

McKenzie 4.5 3.4 3.9 
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ND Supplement to NEt-1, Part 651 - AWMFH 

TABLE 2 

Design R_unoff Zones 

.... 
!IMO Ui'lflD """'" 

llll.LIANI 

ZIIIIH 
"""" ""' - """' ""°"'" 

'"' """"' '"'" ""'-' 
,os1a "'"' """ ZONE 1 

··-""' ~" -· """' Z~EJ· ..... 
'°'""' 

\_ __ l 
""" u- .... ... 

""'' 7__ """' 
""' ,,,. """"' PIC'3:T "''"' 

RUNOFF (lnch<!.fil 

Oct 15 -
Zone April 30 May ,Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Yearly 

0.7 0,5 0.8 0.9· 0.8 0.7 0.2 4.6 

2 0.6 0.5 a.a· 0.7 0.6. 0.6 0.2 4.0 

3 0.6 0,5 0,7 0.8" 0.6 0.5 0.2 3.9 

4 0.6 0.5 0.1' 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.1 3.6 

5 0.4 0.5 o.r 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.1 2.7 

6 0.4 0.5 0.9' 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.1 3.1 

•Note that for each zone, the October 15 to April 30 runoff value is less than that shown 
for either June or July. In Zone 6, the June runoff Is more than t\-vice that for October 15 
to April 30. Thererore. if the October 15 to April 30 value is used, pumping will be 
required more often to have available capacity for the 25-year, 24-hour storm runoff. 

ND651.10(6) 

(210-vi-AWMFH, ND Supplement 651.10, July 2003) 
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North Dakota Department of H ea Ith - Division of Water Quality, December 2003 

Please note: This map is intended for general planning purposes. Detailed maps are available for site specific evaluations. 
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To: Senator Tim ?lakoll, Chrm. 
Senate Ag Com.mi.tt.ee 

rrom: !s.odney Brown 

~e HB-142J 

Date: March 13, 2007 

I am writi.ng to uge )'l)Uf s·Jpport of HB-142C. The bill refers to N:::: Dept. of HeaU1 
rules for en·vi.co::imental regulation of animal feedwg operaticns. The lack of co.:1si::1ency 
1D environmental regulation is a drawback to l;'.1e deve:opmer.t of anim::il feeding ill 'forth 
Dakota, The State Health Department will prcvide consistent, relfable regulatory 
stan:lards, 

Thank you for your cor.si:ieration of this matter 

~ ~ 
Rodney Brown 
!.1288 93~d Ave. NE 
Crarv ND 58327-9305 
D '.Stri~t 15 

MRR-13-2007 09:29PM FRX:7016623413 ID:DRKOTRH NEWS PRGE:001 R=95% 



Testimony on House Bill 1420 
Presented by 

Randy Lemm, 
Kelso Township Zoning Officer 

January 25, 2007 

Good morning Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture 
Committee. As the Kelso township zoning officer, I am in support ofHB 1420. 

I think township zoning authority will be enhanced by this bill. We will be able 
to establish the location of animal feeding operations in our township and, if we so 
choose create agricultural production districts. This could be very positive for more 
urban areas of the state. 

Most of our township's budget is used to maintain our road system. This leaves 
very little for other expenditures. I believe the most critical issues surrounding zoning for 
animal agriculture involve environmental controls. Environmental regulation of animal 
feeding operations is best left with the Department of Health. They have expertise, 
manpower and the financial resources to regulate environmental issues. I don't want that 
responsibility placed on our township. I would encourage the Senate Agriculture 
Committee to amend that language back into HB 1420. 

I strongly encourage the committee to give a "Do Pass" on HB 1420. Thank you for the 
opportunity to express my views. 
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My name is Harriet Bracken, President for Citizens Against Factory Farms (CAFF). I live in 

Leeds, ND and I'm writing this in regard to HB 1420 .. Citizens Against Factory Farms (CAFF) 

realizes that animal agriculture is and always has been important to North Dakota's economy and we 

support responsible animal agriculture. CAFOs/hog factories are not the answer, especially when 

they refuse to be bonded or take responsibility for pollution, cleaning up lagoons, and building sites 

when they move on in about ten years. 

In CAFF's opinion HB 1420 was introduced because Viking Feeders and the Farm Bureau 

failed to get Ramsey county to gut the zoning ordinance the Ramsey County Zoning Board spent 

much time and effort to put into place in order to protect the Devils Lake Basin. The Ramsey County 

ordinance also attempts to protect the soil, water, air and health of citizens of Ramsey County from 

pollution caused by Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations (CAFOs)/hog factories. The pollution 

caused by CAFOs/hog factories to waterways and the environment are well documented if one takes 

the time and effort to check out this issue. Townships and Counties are in the best position to 

monitor CAFOs/hog factories regarding environment and health issues as they are the ones most 

affected . 

Rep. Dennis Johnson, Chairman of the House Ag Committee, stated in an interview on KZZY 

Radio that if the State Health Dept is to take over this job that the Health Dept. would need more staff 

for inspectors and more funding. Is this being done in this bill? CAFF would suggest that funding be 

put in place to help Counties and Townships deal with these problems on a "as need basis", or 

maybe those making the mess should be responsible for cleaning it up. 

In 2001 the Dickinson Research Extension Center did "An Economic Analysis of Swine 

Rearing Systems For North Dakota". They compared CAFOs, Hoop Barns and Open Pens. All things 

considered they found that the Hoop Barns system showed the greatest profit of 6.63% over the 

CAFO and that Open Pens came in next at 4.7%. Why so much hype that CAFOs/hog factories are 

the "salvation" of pork production?? Are we being sold a "pig in a Poke"? 

There is also hype that because of new bio-diesel and ethanol projects that there is a need to 

use the grain by-products and CAFOs/hog factories could use these. It is CAFF's understanding that 

these grains are not a good feed source for hogs as they are too rich and can only be used as a small 

portion of the feed rations .. 

In Nov. 2006 Manitoba put a ban on any new or expansion of CAFO'/hog factories because 

of waterways and environmental pollution. What does this tell us? It is our opinion that in order to 

protect our water_ soil. air and the health of our citizens Townships and Counties must be allowed 
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to retain the right to regulate CAFOs/hog factories in the areas of health and environment, as well 

as siting. 

CAFF also believes there does need to be more study and public input on all issues 

surrounding CAFOs/hog factories including social and financial affect on the rural communities . 

This is an issue that we can't get wrong if we want to retain the quality of life we enjoy in North 

Dakota. 

In closing we urge that you recommend a DO NOT PASS for HB 1420 or at the very 

least move it on for more study. 

Sincerely yours, 

~~~ 
Harriet Bracken, 

President of Citizens Against Factory Farms, 
PO Box 237, Leeds ND 58346 
Phone 701-4662738 

C 
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TO 

AUDITOR'S OFFICE 
DIVIDE COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 

P.O.BOX49 
CROSBY, ND 58730 

GAYLE JASTRZEBSKI., AUDITOR 
Phone (701) 965-6351 

: ND Legislative Session 

ATTN: District #2 House of Representatives & 
Distri.ct #2 Senator 
House Ag Committee 

~nate Ag Committee 

.FAX : 701-328-1997 

DATE; February 7, 2007 

FROM : Divide County Commissioners 

FAX : 701-965-4370 

COMMENTS; Attached find the do not pass resolution o ~- SB2331 
, .. ~ 
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RESOLUTION Dividt County Commissioners request a DO NOT Pass for HB 1420 

WHEREAS, Divide County Planning and Zoning Commission and County Commissioners mayfdid 
developed said ordinance using the power and authority granted to them by the NDCC 11-33-02.2; 

and 

WHEREAS, ND Century Code 23-29 states that the term "Solid Waste" does not include: 
a. Agricultural waste, including manures and crop residues, returned to the. soil as.fertilizer or 

soil conditioners; and 

WHEREAS, manure from CAFOs is not included in the management of solid waste by the State 
Department of Health then it needs to be maoaged by the County Commissioners and/or Township 

Supervisors. 

WHEREAS, Divide County Planning and Zoning Com.tlllllsion and County Commissioners may/did 
develop an ordinance equal to or more stringent than State rules as allowed by NDCC 23-29-05; and 

WHEREAS, Divide County Planning and Zoning Commission and County Commissioners may/did 
develop said ordinance following the "A Model Zoning Ordinance for Animal Feeding Operations", 
March 2000 which was developed under the direction by the 1999 Executive Order (1999-03) 
Governor Schafer issued an which directed the Department of Health to develop said Model 
ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, part of zoning rules are to regulate odor and water setbacks of large concentrated 
animal feeding operations to protect the environment and health of said county stated in above stated 
NDCC and State Model Ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the North Dakota State House of Representatives 
vote "DO NOT PASS" on HB 1420. 

Dated at Crosby, ND tbis .,,?.., day of fe.h , 2007 by Divide County Commissioners 

Print Name Address/Phone number · Signature 
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